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Exact Name o isguer g spectlned in s charter; LBC EXPRESS HOLBDINGS, INC. (formeriy
Federsa) Resources Investirent Grong Ineg.}

Provinee, counmy or other Jutistiction of incorperation or ofpranization: Philippines
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No. 35 San Antonio Sireet, San Francisco Del Monte, Onczon City
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Name of Stock Exelange: Philippine Stock Exchange
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Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12} months (or for such shorier
period that the regisirant was required to file such reports):

Yes(x) No{)

b} has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.

Yes (%) No ()
13. Aggregate market value nf vnting stock held by non-affiliates is £3.203.949.698 as of March 31,
1017.° '
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
14, Brietly describe dotuments incorporated by reference and identify the part of the SEC Form 17-

A inlw which the document is incorporated:

(2) 2016 Consolidated Audited Financial Statements {incorporated as reference for items
6,7 and 12 of SEC Form 17-A)

(b} Annnal Corporate Governance Report, including annual uwpdates thercto

(incorporated as reference for Part 1V of SEC Forrm 17-A)

*Inclusive of cornmon shares with pending listing applications.
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Unless otherwise specitied ar the context otherwise requires, all refererces 1o the “Company™ are
to LBC Express Hoidings, Inc.. (LBCEH) its subsidiary LBC Express, Inc. (LBC Express) and
the subsidiaries of the latter on a consolidated basis. However, references to the “Company”, when
used in the context prior to the corporate reorganization, are (0 Federal Resources Investment
Group, Inc. .

For purposes of presenting the financial condition of the Company, the Company has applied the
reverse acquisition method of accounting in view of LBC Express Holdings, Inc.’s acquisition of
LBC Express, Inc. whereby LBC Express Holdings, inc. is treated as the accounting acquire,
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of LBC Express Holdings, [nc. have heen
prepared as a continuation of conenlidated financial statements of LBC Express, luc. and its
subsidiaries. '

FPART I - BUSINESS AND GENFRAL INFORMATION
Item 1. BUSINESS

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATE REORGANIZATION

The Company was incorporated and registered with the Securities and Exchange Commnission
(SEC) as “Federal Chemicals, Inc.” on July 12, 1903, At the fime, the Company was principaily

. engaged in the business of manufacturing varions adhesives and sealanis and other chemicals for
hardware, construction, do-it-yourseli and industrial applications. The Company has heen a
publicly-listed company since December 21, 200 1 » and was traded under the ticker symbol “FED”
on the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

On Seplember 28, 2007, the change in corporate name from Federal Chemicals, Inc. 1o Federal
Respurces Investment Group, [nc. as well as the change in the primary purpose of the Cotmpany to
that of a holding company was approved by the SEC.

On April 23, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the issuance of 59,101 000
common shares, al Pi.00 per share, oul of the unissusd portion of the Company’s authorized capital
Stock to LBC Development Corporation, subject fo acceptable documentation being arrived at, as
well as the fulfillment of such conditions apreed upon by the parties, including a mandatory tender
offer, where requircd under relevan laws and regulations.

The Company needed 10 raise additional capital through the issuance of new shares out of the
unissued portion of the Company’s authorized capital stock for general corporate purposes, Further,
such infusion was preparatory to a potential additional investment of LBC Development
Corporation into the Company as a result nf the ongeing due diligence on the Company.

On May 18, 2015, the Company and LBC Development Corporaiion entered inte a Deed of
Subscription, whereby LBC Development Corporation, subject to the completion of the mandatory
tender offer, subseribed to 59,101,000 common shares out of the unissued anthorized capital stock
of the Company or 59.10% of the authorized capital stock of the Company. The consideration for
the subscribed shares was P58,101,000 or PL.OO per share.

On May 22, 2015, LRC Development Corporation filed with the SEC its mandatory tender offer
report for all the outstanding shares of the Company for a iender offer price of #1.00 per share. The
mandatory tender offer period commenced on June &, 2015 and ended on July 7, 2015, On July 14,
2015, LBC Development Corporation filed with the SEC iis final tender offer report.



On July 22, 2013, the Company issued the stock certificates covering the subscribed shares 1o LBC
Development Corporation.

On 2% July 2015 and in consonance with such change in control, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved the acquisition by the Company of all the outstanding shares of stock of LRC
Express, Inc., at the time 2 wholly-owned subsidiary of LBC Development Corporation, at the book
vaiue of not less than #1 hillirm. The Board also approved the foliowing:

(i} increase in the authorized capital stock of the Company from P100 million to up to
. P4 billion: '

(it)  the issuance of shares out of the inerease in authorized capital stock or out of the
unissued capital stock to LBC Development Carporation and/or to ather investors
and/or third parties for the purpose of (a) funding the acquisitior by the Company of
all the ourstanding shares of stock of LR( Express, Inc.; (b) funding the acquisition
of other potential investments, whether or not related to the business of LR
Express, Inc; and (¢) ensuring cempliance by the Company with the minimum
pubiic ownership requirenments of the PSE:

(iliy the change in the name of (he Company to “LBC Express Holdings, Inc.”: and

(1v)  the change of the trading symbo! “FED™ 10 “LBC™. -

On 4 September 2015, the stockholders of the Company approved all of the foregaing matters.

On 18 September 2015, pursuant to the authority 1o issue shares out of the increasc in authorized
capital stock or out of the unissued capitai stock to LBC Development Covporation, the Company
and | BC Development Corporation cntered into Subscriplion. Agreements, whereby LBC
Development Corporation subseribed to, and the Company agrecd 1o issue, 1,146,873,632
addilional Common Shures al a subscription price of P1.00 per share or an aggregate subscription
price of P1,146,873,632 {the Additional Subscriptiuns), consisting of 475,000.000 shares issued
from the increase tn the authorized capital stock of the Company and 671,873,632 shares Issued
out of the authorized and unissusd capital stock of the Company, fallowing the approval by the
SEC of the increase in the authorizcd capital stock of the Company from £100,000,000.00 divided
inio 100,000,000 Common Shares with par value of P1.00 per Share, to ¥2,000,000,000.00 divided
into 2,000,000,000 Common Shares with par value of P1.00 per Share. Notices of exemption for
the Additional Subscriptions were filed with the SEC on October 13,2015,

On September 24, 2015, the Company purchased from LBC Development Corporation a fotal of
1,041,180,493 shares of stock in LBC Express, Inc. for an aggregate purchase price of
P1.384.670.966.

On 2 Dctober 2013, the Company cntered inio Subscription Agreements with each of Vittorio P.
Lim, Mariano L, Martinez, Ir. and Lowel] L. Yu {collectively, the Subscribers), wherein subjec(
to the approval by the SEC of the Capital Increase. the Subscribars agreed to subseribe, and the
Company agreed 10 issue, a total of 178,991,839 Comunon Shares of the Company at the par value
of #1.00 per share or an aggregate subseription price of P178,991.830.00 out of'the authorized and
unissued capital stock of the Company. The foregoing subscription was undertaken to ensure
compliance by the Company with the PSE Minimum Public Ownership reguirement of at teast 10%
of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. A notice of exemplion for the subscription was
filed with the SEC on Oclober 13,2015, )

Involvement in Bankruptcy or Receivership Proceedings

As af the end of December 2016, the Company was nol involved in any bankrupicy, receivership
o any similar proceedings.



Mumerial Reclassification, Merger, Consofidaiion or Purchase of Sale of o Significant Amount
of Assels (nat in the erdingry course of buesiness)

On 24 September 2015, the LBCEH purchased from LBC Development Corporation a total of
1,041,180,493 shares of stock in LBC Express for an aggregate purchase price of F1,384,670,966.

LEC HISTORY

LBC Express was initially foonded in 1950s as “Luzon Brokerage Corporation.” Tt subsequently
changed its name to “LBC AirCargo, Inc.” and operated as a brokerage and air cargo agent. A few
years after incorporation, LBC Express evolved into an express delivery service, becoming the firsr
Filipino-owned private courier company to provide time sensitive deliveries in the Philippines and
offer customers an aliernative 1 the Government-owned and operated postal service. In 1973, LBC
Express pioneered 24-hour door-to-door express delivery and messengerial services in the
Philippines, providing greater convenience to its existing customers and further expanding its
market share. LBC Express’ name was formally changed to 1. BC Express, Inc.” on April 26, 1988
to reflect the express delivery services that had come 10 form its hallmark business. In the 19%0s,
LBC Express adopted the slogan “Hari ng Padala”, or Tagalog for “King of Forwarding Services.”
LBC Express has now become the market leader in the Philippine domestic air freight forwarding
market and, for the year cnded Novenber 30,2012, had a market share of 41.8% of the domestic
ait freight forwarding industry in terms of throughput by weight, according to data from the CAB.
While LBC Express’ logistics business stili primarily comprises retail express courier and freight

forwarding services, it has also expanded its product mix 1o offer services targeted at carporate
customers, inclading full container load and less-than-container load sea freight forwarding and
end-to-end logistics solutions.

In the early 1980s, LBC Express entered into the domestic remiilance business, leveraging the
existing branch network of i1s lopistics business as customer contact points for remiftance
acceptanee and fulfillinent, growing this business at Tow marginal enst. Beginning in 1999, LEC
Express expanded its money transfer services segment by offering bill pavment collection services
in the Philippines by serving as a third party collection agent for various vendors thronghout the
Philippincs. 1n 2006, LBC Express also began providing corporate remittance fulfillment services,
surh as payouts of government Social Seeurtty System benefils, payroll and insurance benefits on
behalf of third parties, as well as remittance encashments for customers of its local remittance
partner, Palawan Pawnshop.,

LBC Express commenced it international money transfer operations in 1987 by establishing
rclationships with agents and affiliates in the United States and steadily expanding its network
elsewhere globally to provide fulfillment services for inbound international remittances. LBC
Express later leveraged the network of i1e overseas affiliates to expand its Logistics business
internationally as well. Today, LBC Express provides courier and freight forwarding services in 22
countries and territories outside of the Philippines and fulfiiliment services for inbound remittances
originating from over 30 countries and territories outside the Philippines, inciuding the United
States, Canada, the Asia Pacific region, Eurppe and the Middle East.



The following diagram illustrates the operating ownership structure of the Company as of the date
of this Repari-

J LBC DEVELOPIMENT CORP. ‘

84.58% Dwnership

L LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC.

100%;

LBC EXPRESS, INC. '

LBEC Express Shipping Campany, WL {Kuwait) PHILIPPINES
{495} With 19 subsidiary companies operating —
| nationwide
LECE
- {;s::: e MM s
1

I [100%} {1005}

+ NEMM SEL

{1003 [100%
LBC Express Bahrain, WLL {Baiirain) =

£4905] MW RAM I YIS

[10053) (1003}

ORIV Wy
{1004 (100

CE MIM
[A00%) [ 100k}

NL SEM
f100%] [1iMI%]

CL SMcc
[100%] 003

5L MM
{10055 [100%]

EnALA LBC Syslums

(100K} {100%%

! LBC Corporate Solutions
. (100%3

The 19 subsidiaries of the Company which are incorporated in the Philippines are involved in
logistics and inoney remittance operations while the entities incorporated in Kuwait, Bahrain and
(Qanar are involved in logistics activities only.

FExcept for LBC Express - SMCC, Ine. and LBC Express - SMM, Inc,, the principal offices of the
17 other subsidiaries named above are located in the General Aviation Center, Domestic Road,
Pasay City. The principal office of LBC Express- SMCC is lacated in Door No. 7. Yabon Building,
Darimee Silawy, Dadiangas West, General Santos City, whilc the principal office address of LBC
Express - SVIM, Inc. is located at the 3rd Floor Sycamore Centre, Alabang Zapoie Road, Alabang,
Muntinlupa City.



BUSINESS
SERVICES

The Company’s business COMPprises two primary segments: (a) lopistics; and (by money transfer
sCrvices, .

The table below presents the components of the Company’s revenue associated with its business
segments for the periods indicated.

Fur the years ended December 31,

2016 ’ 2015 2014
R iv miflions, '

Laegistics
Retail ..o 496410 41,091.3 31,6736
Carporate ... ... 2,557.9 2,199 1.968 3
’ 75218 0,290.3 56419

Morney Transfer Services -

Domestic" 1,058.4 1,186.9 13173
Interiativnal Inbound® 1is.1 200.3 97.0
I,173.5 1,394.2 1,414.3
Total Service Revenue R.695.4 7,086.5 7050.2

Motes. : .
(1) Comprises fex icome from domestic rem itances and bills pavment collection services.
12y Comprizes fee income Jrom international inbo g FERNCICES,

As of December 31, 2016, the Ingistics business of the Company account for approximately 86.5%
of its total revenues while money transfer services aceaund for the remaining 13.5%.

Logistics

The lagistics business is the Company’s primary source of reverue. The Company serves rwo
primary customer segments within the lagistics business: (a) retail customners, and (b) corporate
customers. The main services offered 10 retail customers inelude courier, ait cargo forwarding and
baltkbayan boxes services. The main services offered 1o corporate clients include, in addition to
courier and freight forwarding services, specialized corporate solutions, or corporate logistics
services tailored to (he specific needs of the client.

Retail Logistics

Rerai] Logistics comprised 66%, 65% aud 65%, respectively, of the Company’s service revenue
from Logistics tor the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 20i4. The Company’s primary
retail logistics offerings are its “Express” products (comprising courier and air carge forwarding)
and baiikbayan boxes.

Coyrier

Courier services are the Company’s express messengerial scrvices and refer Lo deliveries of parcels
(Lc. Ietiers and small packages Lypically weighing three kilograms or less) by land and/er air on a
fime-sensitive basis. The Company generally makes domestic courier deliveries within 24 haurs of
acceptance and international courier deliveries within one to three days of acceptance, depending
on the origin and destination country. The Company is limited in 1iability for delays caused by
cenam foree majeure and other events that may prevent it from making an on-time delivery. The
fees lor courier services are based on weipght, dimensions and final destination, and the Company



mposes add-on charges for extra services such as pick-up in certain areas outside of the National
Capital Region of the Philippines, additional insurance and same-day delivery service.

Afr Cargo

Cargo refers to larger packages and boxes (typically weighing over three kilograms). As with
courier services, the Company generally makes express deliveries of domestic air cargo within 24
hours of acceptance, while international air cargo is generally delivered within one to three days of
acceptance, depending on the destination eomtry. The Company charges for air cargo forwarding
and items delivered by ground based on volumerric weight (2 function of hath the actual weight
and dimensions of'the cargo) and final destination, as well as add-on charges for extra services such
as pick-up in certain areas, additional ingurance and same-day delivery service.

Balikbayan Boxes

The balikbayan box is a box shipment of personal effects cargo sent hy retail customers to friends
and family domestically and internationally. Balikbayan Loxes are forwarded by the Company by
way of sed ransport and generally delivered within 15 days of acceptance from the sender, subject
to force majewre and other unloreseen events. Because the Company charges for sea freight
forwarding based on standard dimensions of the box rather than weighrt, balikbayan boxes provide -
a luw cost option to customers making shipments of various items. They are also & means for
customers to ship certain items (hat cannot be shipped hy air, such as liquids and aerosols.
Accordingly, balikbayan boxes arc frequently used by overseas Filipino works to send large
mumbers or volumes of consnmer products, such as clothing, home goods and personal care items,
to recipients in the Philippines. Balikbayan boxes come in a variety of dimensions and typically
weigh between 30 to 80 kilograms. '

Corporuic Logistics

The Company provides services 1o a varied portfolio of corporate clients, which include consumer
goods manufacturers, food products producers, pharmaceutical companies, educational institutions,
financial services companies and others, icluding several well-known multinational carporatiens,
Inaddition to fulfilling the express delivery needs of corporate clients through courier and air cargo
forwarding services, the Company also provides the following services:

Specialized Corporate Solutions (SCS)

SCS refers to the end-ic-end tailored logistics services provided by the Company to corporate
clients with specific requirements.

As part of SCS, the Company provides Iransportation of mail, parcels and carge via air, lang and
sea. The Company offers sea freight forwarding services domestically for both full container load
(FCL) and less-than-container Ipad (LCL) shipments. LCL services are patticularly attractive for
small and medium-sized businesses with relatively lower volume shipping reqiirements. Corporate
clients have the aption of dropping off (heir shipments at the Company s coniainer freight slations
!ocated near focal ports or requesting a pick-up from the Company. The Company afso offers
flexible payments modes, including paywment at origin, payment at destination, paymeni on account
of shipper, and payment on account of consignee. Shipping times for sea freight are more protracied
than for gir freight, ranging from three o seven days for domestic shipments and seven (o 35 days
for iternational shipments, In recent years, the volume of sea freight forwarding services provided
by the Company has increased due to the growth in its corpoerate clicnt partfolio.

The Company also expanded SCS to inciude value-added services such as onsite operations,
warehousing and print solutions. The paletie of avaiiable ongire operations includes warchouse



storage, cross-docking (the temporary starage of arriving order and subsequent breaking-down and
reassembly for truck delivery), inventory management, reverse logistics, pick-up of pallets and
confainers, order fulfillment services at the customer’s own warehouse, specialized packaging and
Te-packaging (such as ice gelling for pharmaceutical preducts), open-checking services, cash on
delivery (coflection of value of item from consignee upon delivery and remittance of value to
shipper) and delivery and discrepancy reporiing, among others, which are in addition to its
customary courier and freight forwarding services.

The Company, through its wholly-gwned subsidiary LBC Express Corporate Solutions, Inc., offers
Print and Mail Solutions. Thig involves end-to-end solutions for clients” malling and printing
requirements, including the printing, envelope-stuffing and delivery of invoices, notices,
advertisements, direct mail and other bulk mail as wel!? as the issuance of pronf-afidelivery reports.
Other potential services include full color variable printing, transpromo printing (the combination

- of persongiized materials with transactional printing to make use of transactional dotumens as a
medium for adverttsements), book prining, as well as the printing and delivery of documents,
passports, visas, account statements and credit cards. Clients who make use of the Company’s FPrint
and Mail Solutions include financial institntions, retailers, utilities companies and others,

The Company performs services for corporate ¢lients both pursuant w long-ierm contracis and on
a per-transaction basis. Print and Mail and SCS contracts typically have terms of one to three years.
The Company cxtends credit facilities 1o most of its corporate ¢lients, fallowing a standard credit
check procedure when first engaging a new client. '

In recent yeais, the Company has increased its focus on the corporate logistics business and alms
lo centinue expanding its eorporate client portfolio and service offerings going forward.

Money Transfer Services

Money transfer services are the Company’s second primary business segiment and comprise both
domestic and inlernational meney transfer services. For the years ended December 3 L, 2008, 2015
and 2014, revenues from Money Transfer Services were F1.173.5 million, 1,396.2 million and
P1.414.3 miliion, representing 13%, 18% and 20% respectively, of the Company’s overall service
revenue,

Darmestic

Domestic money transfer services include (1) remitiances and {b) bills payment collection and
corporate remittance payoui services. For the years ended December 31, 20106, 2015 and 2014,
service fees [rom domestic Money Transfer Services ware P1.058.4 million, #1,186.98 million and
P1.317.3 million, representing $0%, 85% and 93%, respectively, of the Company’s total service
revenues from Momay Transfer Services.

Hemitiances

Remittances are transfers of funds between cusioners fron one location te another. |he Company
is licensed by the Rangko Sentral ng Piliptnas (BSP) to scrve as a remittance agent in the
Philippines for both domestic remittances {wherein both the sender and the beneficiary are located
within the Philippines) and international inbound remitiances (wherein the sender 1s located cutside
the Philippines and the beneficiary is located within the Philippines). Retail customers in (he
Philippines, paiticularly the unbanked population and -others who are underserved by fraditional
banking institutions, account for the majority of the Company’s domestic remitlance cuslomers.
The Company offers domestic remitiance services in the form of {a) branch retail remittance
services; (b) pre-paid remittance cards; and () online and mabile remit.

O



*  LBranch rerail services enable cistomers who make remittances at any Com pany-owned branch
in the Philippines 1o choose among the following filfillment options for their beneficiaries-

*  itnstant branch pick-up, a real-time cash pick-up remitlance facility in which funds become
instantaneously available for pick-up by the remitter's beneficiary once the sending party
has made the payment at » Company-owned branch: the sending party can designatc any
pick-up location or geographic zonc within the Company’s domestic network (intluding
both Company-owned branches and branches of its partner, Palawan Pawnshop);

*  Pevopak, a service by which remittances are delivered directly to the beneficiary®s
doorstep, providing an attractive option for situations in which beneficiaries cannot or do
nol want 16 visit a branch; the Company offers next day delivery for Pesopak in almosi all
areas n the Philippines; and

*  Remit-fo-account, a scervice by which funds accepted from a sender at 2 Company branch
will be directly deposited to the designated local bank account of the beneficiary.

¢ Prepoid remittance cards are debit cards powered by VISA and issued by local banking
institutions with whom the Company has agresruents, including RCEC, Philippine Veterans
Bank and Union Bank of the Philippines. Through pre-paid remittance cards, senders can
purchase a card on behulf of the beneficiary and reload the card instantly at any of the
Company’s branches or agent-operated locations, The beneficiary is then able to use the funds
at any location where VISA cards are accepted. '

*  Mobile and online remif seivicer (unction in a similar manner as pre-paid phone cards. A
Customer can pirchase a card with a confirmation code, which can then be texted (o a
beneficiary or entered online at the Company’s website. For mabile remit, ibe beneficiary can
then bring the code 1o the branch location 1o e€ncash the funds. For online remit, the sender can '
choose any of the fulfillment options availabfe through branch services (i.e. instant branch mck-
up. Pesopak and remit-to-account) for the beneficiary. Mabile and online remit codes are sold
i nearly 5000 locations throughout the Philippines, Incliding the Company’s branches,
supermarkeis and other retailers.

The Company charges a service fee (o processing domestic remittances according to a progressive
schedule based on the value of the remitlance. Fees may also vary depending on the chosen methnd
of fullillment. For example, remit-to-aceount and Pesopak deliverics may incur additional service
charges. The significant majority of remittances made by customers of the Company are or sems
equivalent to approximately £13,000 or lcss.

Bills Payment Colfection and Corpurate Remitiance Payots

The Commpany serves as a third party bills payment collection sub-agent for various creditors in the
Philippines, including major wilities companies, msurance companies, certain Governmient
agencies, telecom providers and publishers, among others, (through its contract with CIS Bayad
Center, Inc. (Bavad). Through the Company’s bills payment colleciion service, cuslomers of these
merchants and other ereditors can settle their accounts by submitfing their payment along with the
billing notice issued by the merchant to any Company-owned branch in the Philippines. The
Company processes bills payment enllections lhrough the same integrated point-of-sale (POS)
system used by the Company for acceptance of parcels, carge and remittances,

The Company also provides payoul services for various corporations and organizations. Fur
example, benefictaries of the Philippine Social Security System, as well as private insurance
carriers with whom the Company has confracted, ean collcet their beuelils al & Company-owned
branch. Likewise, the Company provides payroll services for certain companies, whereby

1



cmployees can collect salary checks at a branch office. As part of its reciprocal agreement with
Palawan Pawnshop, e Company also provides encashment services for beneficiaries of senders
who make a reminance at a Palawan Pawnshop branch.

lnternational

The Company provides fulfillment scrvices for Iniernational inbound remittances from over {6
coumtries and erritories overseas (as of November 30, 2016} o the Philippines through its overseas
brancihes and affiliates and its network of international reminance agents.

Toexpand its international reach, LBC-Express, Inc. has alse entered into agreements with affiliates
and remittance fulfillment agents in a dozen countries and territories outside of the Philippincs.
These agents include international remittance houses such as Money Exchange in Spain; Al Ghurair
Uxehange, Al Falah Exchange and Speed Remit in the Unifed Arab Lmirates, TML Remitiance
. Center and Placid Express in Malaysia; Far East Express and RJ Mart in Taiwan; and Manila
Trading in Ansiraiia, among others, as well as Philippine financial -institutions with strang
international presence such ag Metrohank, Land Bank of the Philippines and RCBC, Through the
extended nelworks of its agents, the Company provided fuMillment services for inbound
remittances, although the it transacts only with jts direct agents. Under the terms of the fulfiliment
partnership agreements that the Company enters into, direct agents are permnitied only Tlimited use
of the “LBC” name, trademarks and other protected sipns when transacting business on behalf of
the Company and siill carrying on bustuess under their own corporate and trade names. The
Company receives a tixed rercentage of the agent’s revenues in exchange for its services in relation
te inbound international remittances. 1he Company requires most of its remitiance agents to
maintain a revolving fund for advance funding cover, which musi be replenished when the balance
falls beneath a set threshald. This is to ensure that the Company bears minimal credit risk when
making payouls on behalf of international agerts In addition, most of the agreemenits have in place
a maximum remittance value per transaciion as a further risk mitigation tool, typically ranging from
FT5.000 te #100,000.

The basic process for domestic remiitances is as follows:

* Remiuances from origins are accepted via poini-of-sale system. Encashment branch will
cheek the possible maich using the AUto-Scrubbing Process (Sender and Beneficiary
names are checked against the International Sanctions List) and ensure the validity of
transaction. Data processing will be performed as well as fund allgcation. Payour,
delivery, credil 1o bank el.al are the methads in fulfillment of the transaciions.

* lnternational RX Product. Associate from international branches will enler the transaction
details and submit to partner bank (Rank of Commerce) for validation. Bank of
Commerce will send reference number and Institution contirmation number to the branch
which accepted the transactions and the latter will sollect payment and print the receipi.

As with domestic remittances, beneficiaries of international inbound remittances can avail of
instant branch pick-up services at any location within the Company’s domestic network as soon as
the transaction is processed into the Company's POS system from its overseas branch or agenl-
operated location. Beneficiaries of inbound international remittances can also arrange for the
money 1o be delivered to their door, have the sums cradited Lo a pre-paid remittance card or have
proceeds deposited directiy 1nto a barik account. The Company charges a service fee for processing
international remitlances according (o a progressive schedule based on vatue of the remiitance and
pick-up destination of the remirtance, Although mobile remit confirmation codes are nat vet sold
internationally. the Company does enable online remi services from the United States, in which
ihe sender can remit funds to a Philippine beneficiary through the Company's website using a debil



card. The significant majority of remitlances made by customers of the Company are for sums
tquivaient to appraximately ®10,000 (o F15,000 or less.

As of the end of December 201 6, the Company does not process outbound remittances from the
Philippines. For the vears ended December 3 1,2016,2015 and 2014, service fees from international
inbouid remitiances were #1151 million, P209.3 and £97.0 millien, accounting for 9.8%, 15.0%
and 6.9%, respectively, of the Company’s tolal service revenuves from Money Transfer Services.

OPERATIONS
Logistics

Logistics entails the management of the flow of poods from a point of origin to a specified
destination, including any ancillary services that may be required to facilitate the process, such as
storage and packaging. The Company’s courier and freight forwarding services utilize iransport by
air, sea and land and a set of strategically locaied warehouses, distribution eenters and delivery
fubs to provide end-10-end delivery services for its retail and corporate clients.

Air Freight Forwarding
Domestic

The Company’s end-to-cnd domestic air freight forwarding services involve the following steps:
(1) acceptance (hy pick-up or drop-off ai a branch) (2) ground transport to a regional distribution
center, (3) primary sorting, (4) ioading io aircrafts (for air transport), (5) withdrawual by the
receiving distribution center, {6) secondary sorting (if required) and (7) ground transport for
delivery ia final destination,

* Acceptance is the receipt by the Company of the customer’s parcels and cargo, cither
through itg pick-up service or at one of e Company's 1,252 customer contact points in
the Philippines (as of November 30, 20 6} where customers can drop off parcels and cargo.
All parcels and cargo must be accompanied by a waybill from the customer providing the
recipient’s name, shipping address, description of contents, estimated value and other
pertinent information. Upon receipt of the customer’s parcel or cargy, the receiving agent
affixes a barcode onto the package and scans the package, beginning the tracking process.
The parcel or package is rescanned at every subsequent touch point throughout the
transport process umil its final destination,

s Althe close of business each day (approximately 7:00 p.m.). ail nackages are delivered by
the Company’s vehicle fleet to a regiona| distribution cenler. The primary disiribution
center is the Central Exchange, incated at the Company’s corporate headquarters in the
General Aviation Center of the uld domestic airport in Manila, where ll packages collected
from, passing through or destined for Metro Marnjla are aggregaled, Packages collected in
uther areas are aggregated at one of 12 regional distribution centers located near airports
throughout the country. Upon receipt, the exchange team scans in all packages and prints
a manifest (i.e, an itemized inventory) listing all of the barcudes. The manifest is used to
check the number of shipments scanned in against the number of shipments that are later
scanned put,

* Throughout the night. the exchange team engages in primary sorting at the distribution
centers and labels parcels and cargo bound for different destinalions regionally in the
Philippines to prepare them for onward transmission by air or land. All packages 10 be
transporied by air are scanned by X-ray machines for detection of illegal and contraband
goots. In the Centra) Exchange, the Company houses its own X-ray machines which ara
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Incated ingide the Company’s hangar and operated by independent airline employees. This
bypasses the naed to transport the cargo to the airline carriers’ facilifias for scanning,
increasing the efficiency of the Company's sorting process.

* By morning, ali packages bound for other provinces and cities are loaded onto the first and
second flights of the day operated by Cebu Pacific Ajr and Philippine Airlines.

*  Whenthe planes arrive al the destination airport, a team of employees withdraws shipments
and again scans the barcodes and sorts the items, segregating parcels and cargo destined
for different zones. The items may also be sorted at the Company’s regional hubs
(secondary distribution centers) for more efficient distribution to smaller cities and
municipalities. ’

* Packayes are then loaded onto the Company’s delivery vehicles, which either transpor! Lthe
items 10 a delivery hub for secondury sorting, or directly to the final destination if already
within the zone of delivery.

International

The Company’s internationat air freight farwarding and courier services involve a similar process
as its domestic air freight forwarding and courier services, namely (1) acceptance (by pick-up or
drop-off at an infernaticnal LBC Express, Inc.-owned, or alTiliate-owned branch or agenl-operated
location), (2) ground transport 1o a regional disiribution center, {3} primary sorting, (4} loading o
international aircraft, (5) withdraws) of cargo by Philippine associates at the Central Exchange in
Manila, (6) secondary sorting, {7) further forwarding by air 1o regional destinations (it necessary)
and () ground transport, via Company-owned and third party trucks, for delivery o final
destination. [n the case of shipments originating from nverseas, LBC Express, Inc.’s overseas
branch, affiliate or agent, as applicable, is responsible for all of the steps from acceptance of the
parcel/cargo through loading of the pareel/eargo onto the Philippine-bound airline camier,

In the case of shipments originafing from the Philippines and sent averseas, the overseas branch,
alfiliate or agent, as applicable, is responsible for all of the steps from acceplance of the
parcel/eargo ai the inter naijonal destination to secondary sorting and delivery of the item to its final
destination by ground.

Infernational shipmenis wilize the same, integrated barcoding and scanning system as domestic
shipments, enabling a seamless exchange between the Company’s domestic team and s averseas
leams,

Ceround Delivery Fleet

Ground transport forms a key compenent of nearly all forms of delivery and forwarding services
offered by the Company. Motorcycles and trucks are used for door-to-door pickup and delivery of
parcels, cargo and money remittances, as well as ground transport of items destined for onward
forwarding by air or sea. The vehicle fleet Is also an intepral part of the Company’s cenlingency
planning in the event that air and/or sea ransport become unavailable. The Company alse from
litne to time engages third party trucking and transportation companics.

For items that are ransported entircly by ground, parcels and packages undergo (i) acceptance (by
pick-up or drop off at a branch), () ground transport to the regional distribution center. (3} primary
gorting, (1} ground transport to a delivery hub for secondary sorting (if required) and (53 ground
transport to the final destination.



As ol November 30, 2016, the Company had a fleet of 1,678 vehicles (including 1,164 motorcycles
and 514 vans), of which 307 were leased, The Company’s deivers and couriers are trained in vehicle
operation safety, custumer service, cash handling and other procedures. Vehicles arc acquired on a
lease-to-own basis pursuant to finance |eases with a typical term of three vears 1o ownership. The
Company’s vehicle fleet undergoes maintenance on a reguiarly scheduled basis, and vehicles are
typically replaced every five to seven years. The Company began refleeting of most of its delivery
vehicles in 2014. Comprehensive insurance is maintained for all of the vehicles.

Sea Cargo Forwarding

As of the end of December 2016, the Company’s sea cargo forwarding services are avatlable
domestically in Manila, Cebu, Bacolod, llnilo, Davao, Cagayan de Oro and Ceneral Santus, and
nternationally in 22 countries and (erriories outside the Philippines.

The Cormpany does not own ships and contracts with third party shipping carriers for these services.
Domestic sea transport is provided by Oceanic Container Lines, Inc. 2Go Freight, Lorenzo
Shipping Lines, Gothong Southern and Asian Marine Transport Corporation, among athers, while
internativnal sea transport is provided through Orient Freight International (an international freight
forwarding agency). The Campany also entered into a partnership agreement with OHL effective
August 1, 2013 to engase in internafional freight forwarding as an NVOCC. This allows the
Company 10 contract directly with international shipping carricrs rather than rely on another
international freight forwarder. The Company’s sea cargp farwarding services are separated into
retail operations and corporate opcrations.

Reiai?

Retail sea cargo comprises halikbayan boxes, which arc primarily internalional inbound shipments
and intra-Philippine shipments.

The basic forwarding process for Balikbayan Boxes is as follows:

* Acceptance of Balikbayan Boxes is handled by the Company (in the case of domestic
shipments) or the LRC Express, Inc.’s overseas branch, or affiliate (in the case of inbound
intiernational shipments), Balikbayan Boxes are typically picked up by delivery trucks, as
they tend to be farger in terms of weight and volume.

* Upon acceptance, all cargo is input into the Company*s INCA aceeptance systen by a
delivery team, which produces a delivery dispateh report and cross checks each shipment
for discrepancies when units are consigned to the international freight forwarder.

+ Balikbayan Boxes are sorted and placed into containers at the lecal warchousc or
distribution center of the LB Express, Inc.’s branck or affiliate/agent. Once a container is
full, the Company can arrange for pick-up from the international freight forwarder or local
shipping partner, as applicable. Recause the throughput of goods shipped by the Company
is substantial, containers are usvally filled within one (o twa days.

* The Company’s international freight forwarder (in the casc of inbound terrettional
shipments) or the Company’s local shipping pariners (in the case of domestic shipments)
will then collect the cargo from the warehouse or distribution center and load the items
onto a ship,

¢ International inbound Balikbayan Boxes are in transi for three to four days {for shipments
within Asia) or 30 to 15 days (for shipments fiom Furope or North America) prior o
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arriving jn Manila. All such Balikbayan Boxes are received by the international freight
forwarder at the Port of Manila and consigned to the Company at the Vitas Harbor Center
Warehouse. Intra-Philippine shipments, which generally take between two and five days
o amive at their destination, are received at regional warchouses and distribution centers,
For internalional inbound shipments, the Company’s customs brokers facilitate procedures
Tecessary to be underiaken with the Philippine Bureau of Customs, while its international
freight forwarder arranges for custams brokerage in the international jurisdictions.

* At Vilas Harbor Center Warehouse or regional warehouses and distribution centers, boxcs
are again scanned, inspected for any damage and sorted for further forwarding ta their final
destination by grenmd transport or te-directed to a domeslic shipping company for further
sta transport if necessary. international mtbound Balikbayan Roxes are reecived by LBC
Express, Inc.’s overseas branches and affiliates and sorted for final delivery. Balikbayan
Boxes are randomly scanned in the United States and'in the Philippines via X-ray machines
Lo prevent entry of tilegal snods and money laundering,

Corporare .

For corporate sea cargo shipments, the Company provides forwarding services for both FCL and
LCL shipments. The Company’s corporate sea cargo forwarding services include, among others,
pier-to-pier service (in which a customer’s shipment is delivered 10 a teceiving office at the
destmation pir for pickup by the receiving party) and pier-to-door service (in which the castomer’s
shipment is delivered to the address of the reeeiving party). Corporate clierts can either drop off
their carge at the Company’s container freight stations or arrange for pick up by the Company’s
delivery fleet.

[For corporale customers who wish to make regular use of the Company’s services, the Company
asgigns an account exceutive to be in charge of obtatning details of the shipments and advising the
cusfomer on the readiness process and approval of credit terms. In addition, after shipmenis are
compleled, an account coordinator reports a summary of the fransactions and the billing and
collection department bills and collecis payment for the shipments.

All corporate shipments are agpreeated and sorted at the Company’s containcr freighi stations

located near the local ports. Caniainer freight stations are separate from the receiving warehouse
for the retail balikbayan boxes.

Specialized Corporate Soluiions

Under 8CS, the Company provides transportation of mail, parcels and cargo via air, land and sea
for its corporale clients, as well as value-added Services such as onsite aperations, warehousing and
print solurinns. The transportation service operates in substantially the same manner as the general
logistics operations described above.

Money Transfer Services

Remittances

Infrasiruciure

The Company lcverages the branch network and vehicle fleet used for its l.ogistics services as a
plattonm for its remiitance services. The extensive geographic reach of its branch network, its large

fleet of delivery vehicles, the exisling workforee of trained employees and the availability of cash
funds at each of the Company branches from its logisiics operations enable the Company to offer
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femittance services at very low additional uperating Cost. As the remittance husiness has grovm
Intoa significant portion of its business, the Company has increased (he number of customer contact
points for its remittance services by entering imo fulfiliment partnership agreements with agents
and affiliates domestically and internationally.

The Global Remittance Team is in charge of operating the Company’s remittance business. With
respect lo domestic remitlances, its primary duties include, among others, reviewing daily
acceptance vahies; forecasting the daily furding needs of each branch to meet firlfillment
abligations; ensuring the proper safeguarding of cash at branches; eversecing (he transport and
deposit of cash into the Company’s regional bank accounts (from which local managers of the
branch nffices can withdraw the funds); establishing and training branch employees in cash
acceplance, anti-money laundering, customer identification and other policies; and reporting.
covered transactions and suspicious transactions to the RSP With respect to international
remifrances, its primary duties include monitoring balances of revolving accounts and settlement
of payments. The Global Remitiance Team uges data cellected from the Company’s [ront-end POS
software to analyze end-ol-day acceplance information a1 all of the branch lecations. This cnables
the Global Remitiance Team to cstimate the funding requirements for each branch on a daily basis.
The Company is in the process of trangitioning its POS system inte a more (ully integrated system
with the rest of its buginess operating soflware.

Domestic Partners

To expand its domestic netwark for remitance services. the Company and Eight Under Par, Inc. (a
Philippine corporation doing business under the tradc name “Paawar: FPawnshop™) entered into a
non-exclusive agrecnent in June 2012 fo serve as reciprocal fulfillment agents within the
Philippines. Through the agreement, all of Palawan Pawnshop’s branches in the Philippines are
available ta provide instant branch pick-up services for beneficiaries of the Company’s remittance
custumers, and all of the Company®s hranches in the Philippines in turn provide the same service
for Palawan Pawnshop's customers. Both partners coilect a reciprocal percentage of the service fee
for performing services on behalf the other.,

The Company believes that its stralegic parthership with Palawan Pawnshop has enabied it to
greatly expand its geographical reach in the Philippines. particutarly in areas where it has fewer
Cempany-owned branches, at minimat expense. As of end of December 2016, Palawan Pawnshop
is the Company’s oniy domestic fulfillment agent, although the Company evaluates opportunities
for other strategic partnerships as they arise from tinie to time.

The Company also has relutionships with local financial insttutions, including RCBC, Philippine
Vererans Bank and Unjon Bank of the Philippines, which issue pre-paid remittance debit cards
offered 10 the Company’s customers. With these cards, customers can load the cards at any LBC
branch and beneficiaries can withdraw cash from the remittance carrls at any of the partner banks®
ATMs and branch offices. These cards, which are powered by VISA, are also available for use at
any location where VINA cards are accepted,

The basic process for domestic remittances is as follows:

¢ Branch Reiail services enable customers who make remittances a1 any Company-owned
branch in the Philippines 10 choose amuong the [ulfiliment options for their beneficiaries.
Upon acceplance from the sender, there is an enline facility that would process (he request.
Encashuent alert is sent 1o the specified branch and the latier ensures fund availability w
serve the consignee,

o leso pok, aservice by which remittances are delivered direetly to the baneficiary’s
doorstep.



o Instani branch pick up, a real-time cash pick-up remitiance facility in which funds
become instantanennsly availabie for pick-up by the remitter’s beneficiary once
the sending party has made the payment at a Company-owned branch; the sending
party can designate any pick-up location or geographic zone within the Company's
domestic nerwark (including both Company-owned branches and branches of its
partner, Palawan Pawnshop); )

o Remit-lo-account, a service by which funds accepted from a sender at a Company
branch will be directly deposited to the designated local bank account of the
benehiciary.

* Prepaid remittance cards are debit cards powered by VISA and issued by local hanking
institutions with whom the Company has agreements, incl uding RCBC, Philippine
Veterans Bank and Unjon Bank of the Philippines. ‘Through pre-paid remittance cards,
senders can purchase a card on behalf of the beneficiary und reload the card instantly at
any of the Company’s branches or agent-operated locations. The beneficiary is then able
1o use the funds at any localion where VISA cards are accepted.

fnternational Remiitunce Agenis

Toexpand its international reach, LRC Express, Inc. has also entered into agreements with affiliates
and reminance fulfillment agents in a dozen countrics and territorics outside of the Philippines.
These agents include inlernational remittance houses such as Money Exchange in Spain; Philrem
in the United Kingdom; Al Ghurair Exchange, Al Falah Exchange and Speed Remit in the United
Arab Emirates; TML Remittance Center and Placid Express in Malaysia; Far East Express and R
Mart in Taiwan; and Manila Trading in Australia, amang others, as well as Philippine financial
institutions with strong intcrnational presence such as Metrobank. Land Bank of the Philippines
and RCBC. Through the extended networks of its agents, the Company provides fulfillment
scrvices for inbound remittances origmating from 16 other countries and territories {as of
Nevember 30, 2016), although the Compary transacts only with its direct agents. Under ihe 1erms
ofthe fulfillment partnership agreements that the Company cniers into, direct agents ure permiteed
only limited wse of the "LBC” name, trademarks and other protected signs when Iransaeling
business on behalf of the Company and still carrying on business under their own corporate and
trade names. The Company receives a fixed percentage of the agent’s revenues in exchange for its
services in relation o inbound international remittances. The Company requires most of ils
remiltance agents {0 maintain a revolving fund for advance funding cover, which must be
replenished when the balance falls beneath a set threshold. This is 10 ensure thal the Company bears
minima) credit risk when making payouts on behalf of international agents, In addition, mest of the
agreements have in place a maximum remitlance value per transaction as a further risk mitigation
tool, typically ranging from P75,000 to P100,000.

The basic process for domestic remitiarices is as follows:

* Remittances from origins are accepted via point-of-sale system. Encashment branch wili
check the possible match using the Aulo-Scrubbing Process {Sender and Reneficiary names
are checked against the International Sanctions List) and ensure the validity of transaction.
Data processing will be performed as well ag fund allocation. Payout, delivery, credit 1o
bank et.al are the metheds in fulfillment of the fransactions.

* International BX Product. Associale from international branchcs will enter the transaction
details and submit 10 partner bank (Bank of Commerce) for validation. Bank of Commerca
will send reference number und institution confirmation weraber o the branch whick
accepied the transactions and the latter will collect payment and print the receipt.
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Bills Payment Collection and Corporate Remitiance Payouts

The majority of the Company’s bills payment collection services are governed by an agreement
with Bayad dated January 21, 201 3, under which the Company subcontracts with Rayad to perform
tird-party bills collection services for a group of vendors, including utility companies,
telecommunications companies and others, with whom Bayad has contracted. The term of the
agreement is three years with a renewal option thereafier by mutual consent of the pariies. The
Company collects a service fee from Bayad each month based on the total number of valid
transuctions it has processed that month. At the close of each business day, a payment transaction
report is gencrated for cach vendor and transmitted (o Bayad. The Company musi then deposit the
day’s collections into a designated bank account of Bayad by the following day.

The Company also contracts directly with certain organizations, such as the Philippine Social
Security System, private insurance companics and certain employers, 1o serve as a corporate payout
agernil, ’

‘The basic process for bills payment colleetion and corpurate remittance payouts is as follows:

*  Bills payment. The Company serves as a third party bills payment collection sub-agent for -
various ecredilors in the Philippines, including major utilities companies, insurance
companies, certain Government agencies, telecom providers and publishers, among others,
thiough its contract with C1S Bayad Center, Inc. : :

©  Via POS. The customer will fill out details necessary to the transaction, in which
the branch assuciale will enter to the POS. Cash transaction ammount and pass-on
fee is collected from the customer, if applicable. The branch does the data sending
(from lacal server to production server). LEC Backroom will perforin all necessary
validation procedures betfore closing of transaction

O Via PCS/Bayad Center. The customer will fill out details necessary o the
transaction, in which the branch associate will enter to the PCS. Cash iransaction
amount and pass-on fee is collected from the customer, if applicable. The
transaction will be uploaded to CIS Bayad Center per PC/Terminal followed by
data import and sending. C1S Bayad Center, in return, sends report and
conlirmation of the validity of iransactions. LRC Backroom will perform all
necessary validation procedures before closing of transactian.

* Corporate trapsactions. The Cormpany also provides payout services for various
corporations and organizations, The processor will acknowledge corporate transactions
via email and validate payments by corporate client. LBC backrooin will confirm fund
aliocation, assign tracking numbers and perform recording to complete the transaction
processing.

MARKETING ANDSALES

The Company belicves that strategic marketing and 1argeted sales are crucial to mamtaining iis
competitive advantage over competitors. The Company regularty advertises on television, radio
and billboards, as well as in print and on the Internet. [he Company also brands its ground fleet
with the “LBC” logo. In addition, it has dedicaled teams to promole the value of its brand among
general consumers as well as to manage long-term corporate client relationships. 1t also engages in
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several community outreach initiatives m line with ite commitment to corporate social
responaibility.

Brand Equity

The Company considers the “LBC> brand, which has been cultivated over the Company's over 60-
year operating history, to be an integral componert of its operational success. The Company
believes that ihe brand, the distinctive red and white “LBC™ logo and the Company’s key marketing
slogans (formerly, “Hari ng Padala,” and currenily, “We like 10 move it”) have become associated
with its reputation for being a convenient, affordable and reliable provider of its services. As par|
of its marketing strategy, the Company outfits its delivery fleet, branch offices, advertisernents and
other marketing materials with the “LBC” togo and believes that its brand equity is one asset that”
puts it ahead of'its competitors in gaining market share in a ficree competitive envirenment.

The Company has recently undgrtaken a re-launch of the “LEBC™ brand, which began in November
2013, The re-launch involves an update of the “LRC" lego, a new Company slogan (“We like 10
move 17}, a revamp of its website and re-outfitting of its vehicle fleet and branch offices to reflect
the new design. The re-launch of the brund and other measures are intended to promote a posifive
cultural shift to its business and employees, manifcsting the Company’s ethos of constant evolution
and adaptation to the times. Lixternal consnultants were engaged and market research was conducted
in planning the re-launch.

Corporate Sales Force

The Company’s corporate sales are conducted through its dedicated sules and marketing teams
which, as of November 30, 2016, comprised 10 field zccount managers in charge of client
relationship management. To better manage ifs corporate accounts, the Campany has also invested
in sales order management software designed by SAP that helps the Comparny maintain records on
the processing of sales orders, accounts, inquirles, quotations, contracts, bi lling, returns processing,
consignmenl, sales planning, sales reporling and customer analytics. In addition to automating
several aspects of sales record keeping, (his prograrm is aiso expected 1o help the sales force gain
markeling and business intelligence as well as improve customer refention.

Advertising
The Company regularly advertises over media channels such as TV, radio and print. The Company

also sponsors community cvents such as the Ronda Pilipinas, the largest Philippine cycling race,
and sporting evenrs.



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Operationzl

The Company has invested in technology inrecent years, The Compuny is currently in the process
of implememing an updated proprietary [T system that swill integrate several components of its
existing opcrational IT systems. The integrated system, VISTRA, will combine the POS system
that the Company currently uses to manage its front-end acceptances for courier and cargo
shipments. 1t would integrate seamliessly to its track and trace scanning systemn o allow for more
cfficient racking of trransactions, improve inventory control, and centralize customer management.
In addition, the Company has outfitled each of its couriers with handheld scammers, which will
merease efficiency and minimize human error in documenting daily pick-ups and deiiveries. These
tandhelds will also utilize GPS technology to improve its delivery performance. The Company
has also implemented g put-G-light sorting technology for its non-bulk mail, which will help
" Automate seme aspects of the parcel sorfing process. The Company has also signed up with
Interblocks to update its remitrance plaiform by creating an e-wallet for its cusiomers allowing
access vig any browser or mobile device. This will be implemented in the 4th quarter of 2017

The Company has also upgraded its current network infrastructure to allow for 2 more secure and
reliable environment, This has enabled the Company to improve its nciwork availability
significantly,

Business Management

The Company uses a comprehensive suite of customized businegs management solutions software
designed and licensed by SAP. The Company has wtilized SAs Financial Accounting and
Controlling (SAP FICC, Sales and Distribution (SAP SIY) and Materials Management {(SAP MM}
modules. It has recently signed a deal with RAMCO Sysiems in 41h quarter-ot 2016 for its Human
Resources Systerns which will be implemented in the 2nd quarter of this year.

The Company has alse embarked on its own digital transformation. The Company has utilized
Data Analytics for both predictive and apcrational purposes. 1t has also utilized its GPS data to
create a database for last meter deliveries, It has also allowed i1self 1o do paperless transactions
through its handheld devices. The Company is also maximizing the use of Power Bi {Business
Intelligence} for iis operational and financial reports allowing il 1o be able 10 make well informed
decisions based on real time dafa.

Omnline and Mobile Platform

To enhance the custoner experience, the Company has developed a digital platfarm thai
enables online real-time transaction processing and customer service through its website
{www. Ibcexpress.com). Currently, the Company’s website centains several interactive
features for its customers, including package tracking, rate calculators and scheduling of pick-
ups for parcels and cargp, as well as rcal-time customer service support through the “Live
Talk” capability. I'hc website is mobile responsive allowing the same functionality from any
mobile device.
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STATUS QF ANY PUBLICLY-ANNOUNCED NEW PRODUCT OR SERVICE

There are no new products or services annonnced to the public that were not yet launched as
of December 31, 2016.

COMPETITION

Logistics

The Company believes that it is a leader in the retall logistics industry. In 2012, the Company was
the leader in air freight forwarding in the Philippines, with 41.8% of domestic market share hased
on throughput by weight, according 1o the Civil Aeronantics Board. The Company believes that it
has been the top importer of balikbayan boxes in terms of throughpnt for the past 20 years. Although
the Company has a leading position and significant murket share in the courier and air freight
forwarding industry, the Company’s faces competition from AP Carge Logistics Network
Corporation, Wide Wide Wuorld Express, Inc., Ximex Delivery Express, Airfreight 2160, [nc., and
JRS BRusiness Corporation. The Company’s international competitors include DHL, FedEx and
UPS. However. international Freight forwarders have historicaily not been strong competitors of
the Company in the Philippines due to certain restrictions on foreign ownership in the cargo
industry in the Philippines, as well as the high barriers to entry created by the dispersed geagraphy
of the archipelagic nation.

In the corporate logistics industry, the large indusiry players in the Philippines are 2Go Freight and
Fast Cargo, inc. The main international competitors far the corporate seclor are DHL, FedEx and
UPS. Although the Company’s market share is still relatively small in the corporate logistics
industry, its corporate logistics segiment has maintained strong growth sinee the Company first
formally introdnced these services as a separatc business line in 2010. The Company seeks to
increuse its market share by leveraging its existing brand and network from its retail services.

Money Transfer Services

According to Ken Research, the Company is one of the top five non-bank providers of domestic
remitiance services by remittance volume as well as ome of the lop five non-bank praoviders of
international inbound remitiances in the Philippines by remittance volume in calendar year 202,
The Company competes againsl Phitippine banks and various non-banks, such as pawnshops, for
ts infernationai and domestic remitlance services, Philippine bunks, such as BDO Unibank, Inc.,
Bank of the Philippine Istands, Philippine National Bank, Metrobank and RCBC, account for the
significant majority of market share in terms of volume for both domestic and (mernational
remittances. However, because the Company targets the unbanked population in the Philippines
(which account for the majority of Filipinos), the Company believes its domestic remittance
business has significant roomn for additional growth. The Company’s main non-hank competitors
1 the remittance industry include M, Lhuitlier, Cebrana Lhuillier, iRemil and Western Unfon. The
Company believes that high barriers to entry, including regulatory licenses and a distribution
network, make it unlikely thal there will be additional material competitors in the fulure. For the
bills payment segment, the Company’s largest competitors are bills payment outlets owned and
operated by the SM group of companies al its various malls, as well as various banks.

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Quality Assurance

The Company is committed 1o providing high quality service for customers in all areas of its
business. To this end, it has in place standards and procedures 10 ensure a guality, reliable and
seanless customer experience. The Company has in place the following procedures to monitor the
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quality of its services on a regular basis, as well as plan for contingencies that may otherwise cause
an interruption in its business.

Discrepancy Reporiing and Undeliverable Tfems

To ensure that loss and damage is minimal the Company trains all relevant emplovees in the proper
handling of parcels and cargp. It also has in place stringent procedures for scanning of shipments
al all touch points. Upon withdrawal of an item at a distribution center, a manifest ui all scanned
barcades is printed, which is later checked against outgaing shipments. Pursuant 1o the Company’s
standard operating procedurcs, al! shipping discrepancies must be reported as they oceur, with team
icaders ar the Ceniral Exchange and regional distribution centers responsibke for preparing
preventive and corrective action, as well as compiling and providing discrepancy reports to ihe
management on a regular basis. Discrepancies include damage, incomplete addresses, misronted
pareels and cargn, shipments 1o out-of-delivery-zone addresses, pilferage and improper accemance.

When shipments are undeliverable because, for example, a recipient is unknown or not fonnd at
the destination address, or the destination address is not locatable, the Company will send owt
multiple notices 10 the sender, including initially an e-mail, followed up by a phone call and, as a
last resort, a letter by registered mail. Shipmenis that remain unclaimed following these procedures
{which typically iake place over the course of six months 1o a year) are auclivned, with proceeds
generally donated to charity after deducting costs incurred by the Company for storage and other
related expenscs.

Cash Collection and Management

The Company has implemented strict and comprehensive cash collection and management policies
and procedures to minimize nperational errors and promote customer trust. For cxample, every
Company branch office is required 10 set up “cash sanciuaries” 1o tinimize financial loss in the
evenl of a robbery. In addition, the Company also sets sirict limits on the amount of cash each
branch is permitted to hold before the branch is required to make cash deposits at a bank, as well
as value limits on cash deliveries of Pesopak.

Caimpliance with the Company’s cash collection and managemeni policics and procedures is
monitored hrough random audits conducted by the Company’s general accounting siaff. Each
branch has a team leader who is responsible for appoiniing two cash cusiodians, one primary cash
Cusiodian and one hack-up cash custodian, maintaining a team resolution {which is signed by all
branch asyociales and delineates the type of funds kepl by the cash custodians) and producing
readily-available documents showing proper cash turn-over among associates. The primary cash
custedian is required 1o properly account for cash under safeleeping on a daily basis and ensure
that there is no mingling of Company funds with customer funds. FEvery branch associate is required
1o undertake precautions 1o safeguard the cash within tis or her branch office.

Business Continuity

‘The success of the Company’s business is particul arly dependent on the sfficient and uninterrupted
flow of its operations.

To safeguard againsi unanticipaied interruptions in its business, the Company has instated the
following business continuity plans and procedures:

*  Irformution Techrology. With respeet to technology, the Company has back-up scrvers
managed by its IT service provider with built-in redundancies for its varfous systems in
which operaticnal and customer data is stored. In the event of systein downlimes, the



Company has in place a back-up system whereby communication is maintained through
mobile text messaging.

»  Transporiation (Logistics). Although the Company relies on airline and shipping carriers
for its daily freight forwarding operations, it also has in place alternative procedures in the
event thal an airiine or shipping carrier is unavailable. For example, when flights ure
grounded due to severe weather, the Company’s vehicle fleet is capabie of making
deliveries by ground. Although ground deliveiies may take lonzer than air cargo shipments,
this enables the Company to continue its service aven when other modes of transportation
may be unavailable. When its usual shipping carriers are unavailable, the Company also
makes use of its vehicle fleet. The vehicles ¢.an make deliveries to any region accessible by
land, or can make use of RORQ (“roll-on-roll-off) car ferries to reach locations (hat
require sea transport. '

*  Funding Insufficiencies (Remittunces). Although the Global Reminance Team maonitors
and makes daily estimates of the tunding needs of each branch, on occasion, thare may be
insufficient funds at a given location 10 encash a remittance. In siich a case, the Company
has in place procedures for either nearby branches to deliver the necessary sums, or for
authorized personnel to withdraw the cash from one of the Company’s local bank accounts.

SUPPLIERS

The Campany has a broad base of suppliers. The Compuny is not dependent on one or a limited
number of suppliers. -

CUSTOMERS .

The Company has 4 broad marker base, mcluding local and foreign individual and institutional
clients. The Company does not have a customer thal will account for 20% or more of its revenues.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Please refer 10 item 172 (“Ceriain Relationships and Related Transactions™) of this Report.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The Company uses a variety of registered names and marks, including the names “LRBC Express,
Inc..” “LBC Express,” “LBC”, “lar{ Ng Padala™ (Tagalog for “King of Forwarding Services™) and
WWW.LBCEXPRESS COM™ as well as the traditional and the re-designed “LBC™ corporaie
logos (including the new slogan “We jike to move it”™), the “Team LBC Hart Ng Padala™ loge and
“LBC Remit Express™ loge in connection wilh its business. Except for the “LBC Remit Fxpress”
design and lngo 9registered on July 26, 2012 and expircs on July 26, 2022) and the LBC in
rectangular box and Pesopak logo {registered on May 31, 2012 and expires on May 31, 2022),
which are owned directly by the Com paiy, these marks (collectively, the “LBC Marks™ are owned
and licensed w0 the Company by LBC Development Corporation, the Company’s parent cotnpuny,
pursuant to a trademark licensing agreement. Under the terms of this agreement, the Company has
the fuli and exclusive right 1o utilize the LBC Marks in consideration for a fixed rovalty fee of 3.5%
ofthe Company’s annnal gross revenues (defined as all revenue from sales of products and services,
direct and indirecl. relating to the Company’s business operations}. Pursuant to an addendum signed
Craober 25, 2013, the fixed royalty fec was lowered to 2.5%. eftective December I, 2005, Under
the agreement, the Coinpany alse has the right to extend the use of the LBC marks to its subsidiarics
(defined as companies in which the Company holds at least 67% of the voting rights) within the
Philippines, as well as to its remittance and cargo/couricrfreight forwarding fulfilhnent service
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partrers and agents in the Philippines and abroad, subject to ceriain terms and conditions. In
practice, foreign agenis of the Company are granted very limited use of the “LBC” brand and lopos
pursuani to the individual agency agreements entered into between them and the Company.

The LBC Marks have also been registered in each major jurisdiction in the Company's international
network. LBC Development Corporation is currently in the process of registering the LBC Marks
in the Intemational Register pursuant to the Protocol Relating 10 the Madrid Agreement (the
“Protocel™), which will grant the LBC Marks intellectual property protection in the furisdictions of
all Centracting Parties (as such term is defined in the Protocol). LBC Development Corporation is
also currently in the process of registering the LBC Marks in jurisdictions within the Company’s
International network not covered by the Protocol.

GOVERNMENT PERMITS AND LICENSES -

The Company secures various approvats, permits and licenses from the appropriate government
agencies or authoritics as part of the noomal course of iis business.

EMPLOYEES

As of November 30, 2016, the Company had, on a eensolidated basis, 6,539 full-time employees,
compared 10 6,363 full-time employees as of November 30, 2015, The Company continues o add
to its workforce on a regular basis in line with the growth of its business.

Under the Company’s hiring policy, all branch employees must have at minimum acollege degree,
while exchange associates and drivers and couriers are generally required to have completed a two-
year vocational course or the sccond year of college. Employees of the Cormpany in the Philippines
are primarily trained in-house.

The Company maintains a non-contribulory defined benefit plan covering all qualified employees
in the Philippines.

The following table scts out the number of emptoyees of LBC Express, Inc. by job function as of
Novernber 30, 2014:

Number of

Management and Administrative Associates ..................... 172
Central Exchange and Regional Distribution Center 247
ASSOCIALES. oo e

Branch ASS0CIAES oo e et 3,535
Drivers and COUrIErs e 1,375
OTREE et 1,194
T oo e eereeemmse st 6,539

frode.
1) Frgrves presemed 4o 1ot include produtional emplovees fi.e. individuafs win had been emploved

by the Company for lesy e soc-monds as of the perfod imdicwied),

As of the end of November 2016, four Company subsidiaries in the Philippines have entered into
collective bargaining agreements with their respective employees, with approximately 709
=npioyee memberships. Approximately 363 of these employees in the Philippines belong 1o cne
0f the six labor unions (for four suhsidiaries) and the remaining approximately 100 emplovees
belong to one of the othes five fabor unions. The Company believes that there is sufficient COverage
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by its other. non-unionized subsidiaries to provide back-up support inthe event of a disruplive labor
dispute at any given unionized subsidiary. In addition, because freight forwarding and messengerial
services may be considered indispensable w national interest in the Fhilippines, the Secretary of
the Department of Labor and Employment in the Philippines has the discrelion w end strikes or
certifly the same to the National Labor Relations Commission for compulsory arbitration pursuant
to Article 263(g) of the Philippine Labor Code, even in cases invelving private praviders of such
services. Such cessation order or arbitration certification would have the effect of automatically
enjeining an intended or impending strike or, if one has already taken place, of requiring all striking
or locked out employees 10 immediately return to work and all employers 1o immediately resume
noperations. The Company has not expericnocd any disruptive labor disputes, sirikes or threais of
strikes for at least the past decade. Management believes that the Company’s relationship with its
“employces in general Is satisfaclory. '

The Company complies with minimum eompensation and benefits standards s well as all other
applicable labor and employment regulations In ali of the jurisdictions in which it aperates, The
Campany has in place internal conirol systems and risk management procedures, primarily
overseen by its Corporate Compliance Group, Labor Department and Legal Department, to menitor
its continued compliance with labor, employment and other applicable repulations.

[naddition to full-time employees, the Company relies on contractors for the pcak seasons,.such as
during the Easter and Christmas seasons, 1o satisfy increased demand for services.

RISKS
The Company is subject to certain operational, regulatory and financial risks as follows:

= Asignificant portion of the Company’s business activities are conducted in the Philippinecs and
a significant portion of iis assets are located in the Philippines, which exposes the Campany to
rigks associated with the Philippines, including the performance of, and impacis of global
conditions on, the Philippine economy.,

» The Company’s business is particularly dependent on the quality as well as the efficient and
uninterrupted opcration of its 1T and compuler network systems, and disruptions to these
systems could adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of operations.

¢ The Company may not be able 10 expand its domestic branch network and its product offerings
and expand into new geugraphical markets or develop its existing international operations
successfully, which could limit the Company’s ability to grow and increase its pro(Ttabilily,

» If consumer confidence in the Company and the “LBC” brand deteriorates, the Company’s
business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

» The Company rclies on third party contraciors o provide various services, and unsatisfactory
or fanlty performance of these contractors could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business.

*  The Company faces risks from increases in freight and transporiation costs.

& The Company operates in compctitive indusiries, which could limil its abilily to maintain cr
increase its market share and maintain profitability.

* Any deterioration in the Company s employee relations, or any significant increases in the cosi
of laber, could materially and adversely affect hie Company’s operations.

* The Company does not own any real property and the Company may be unable to renew leases
at the end of their lease periods or obtain new leases on acceptable terms. .

¢ The Compuny inuy encounter difficulties in managing the operations of its agents and aftiliates
effactively.

* The Company's businesses are subject to regulation in the Philippines, and any changes in
Government policies could adversely affect the Company’s operations and profitability.



¢ The Company is subject to numerous U.S. and international laws and regulations intended to
help delect and prevent money laundering, terrorist financing, fraud and other illicit activity.
Failure by the Company, its agenis and affiliates to comply with these laws and regulations and
increased costs or loss of business associated with compliance with these laws and regulations
could have a material adverse cffect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results
of operations.

* The Company faces risks from trade restrictions.

-* Any inability of the Company (o secure tenewals or new licenses for its money transfer
cperations may have a material adverse effect on its business, prospects, financial condition
and results of operations. .

* Risks associated with the Company’s meney transfer operatinng oniside the Philippines could
adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Item 2, PROFERTIES
'REAL PROPERTY
As of the end of December 2016, the Company does net own any real property.

The Company’s registered office is located at the LRC Hangar at the Generzl Aviation Center in
the Old Domestic Airport, Pasay City pursuant to a lease with the Manila [nternational Airport
Antharity. The LBC Hangar houses the Central Exchangc, as well as the Company’s InfGrmation
Technology Team and Global Remittance Team. The aggregate floor space of the LBC Hangar is
approximately 2,160 sq. m. -

In addition, the Company leases. the spaces for all of its 1,252 Company-owned branches in the
Philippines, as well as iis regional distribution centers, delivery hubs, container freight stations and
warehouses. The average ferm of thesc Icascs is three to seven years, with renewal vpliens under
most of the lease agreements. Branch offices are refurbished approximately every five to seven
years, and the Company considers strategic relocation of branch offices from time to lime 10 meet
changing marke! demands.

For its general and sdministrative activities, the Company leases 2,600 sq. m. of office space in the
Star Cruises Centre in Pasay Cify, Manila, located near its registered office al the LBC Hangar.

Fou the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s total rental expense was
£515.1 million, P481.0 million and R436.5 million, respectively.

EQUIPMENT

Other properiy and equipment owned by the Company in the Philippines primarily comprises its
fleet of 1,484 delivery vehicles (as of November 30, 2016), servers, computers and peripheral
equipment, sottware, vanlts, handbeld scanners, X -ray scanners and its bulk mail sorting machine.

Items 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Due to the pature of the Company’s business, it is involved in various legal proceedings, both as
plaintiff and defendant, from time to time. Such litigation invelves, among others, claims against
the Company for non-delivery, loss or theft of packages and documents, mis-release of remilances,
iabor disputes, as well as casss filed by the Company against employees and others for theft and
similar offenses.



Except as disclosed below, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have been or are
involved in, or the subject of, any gavemnmental, legal or arbitration proceedings which, if
determined adversely Lo the Company or the relevant subsidiary’s interests, would have a material
effect on the business or financial position of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

In *Carlos Araneta, LBC Developmen Cerporation and LBC Express, Inc. vs. The Professional
Group”, Case No. R-PSY-08-03897-CV pending before Branch [l of the Pasay Regional Trial
Court, Carlos Araneta, LBC Development Corporation and LBC Express, Inc. filed a Pelition for
Accounling against The Professional Gronp (TPG}) The complaint alleged the necd for an
aceounting considering TPG’s position that LBC Development Corporation and LBC Fxpress, Inc. .
had unremitted collections to TPG in the amount of Phpé8,154,390.25 while LBC Development
Corporatiun and LBC Express, Inc. incurred expenses in the amount of Php63,001,497.55
(exclusive of intercst). The petition was filed for the purpose of seeking a final adjudication on the
amount of the parties’ obligation in favor of one another under the callecting agent contract between
the LBC and TPG. On February 2, 2016, the case was dismissed on the ground that the parties have
execlited a  Mcemorandum  of Understanding, conceming  their  disagreements  and/or
rusundarstanding and that they have amicably settled their disputes.

On November 2, 2015, LBC Development Bark, inc., through PDIC, filed a case against LRC
Fxpress, Inc. and LBC Development Corporation, among other respondents, for a thtal collection
of P1.82 billion. The case is in relation to the March 17, 2014 demand letter representing collection
of unpaid service fees due from June 2006 to Augost 2011 and service charges on remittance
transactions from January 2010 to September 2011, The increase in the amount from The demand
letter to the amount contained in the case wag explained by PDIC in the complaint as attributed to
their discovery that the supposed payments of LBC Express, Inc. seem ta be unsupporied by actual
cash imflow to LBC Development Bank.

On December 28, 2015, the summeons. together with a copy of the Complaint of LBC Development
Bank, Inc., and the writ of preliminary attachinent were served on the former Corporate Secretary
of LBC Express, Inc. The writ of preliminary attachment resulted to the (a) tagging of the
1,205,974,632 shares of LBC Express Holdings, Inc. owned by LRC Development Corporation
and; (b) the attachment of varicus banks accounts of LEC Express, Inc. totalling .99 millien. The
taggng of the shares in the record of the stock transfer agent has the cffect of preventing the
registration or recording of any shares in the records, unless the writ of attachment is lifted, quashed
ar discharged.

On January 12, 2016, LBC Express, Inc. filed with the regional court, its Motion to Dismiss the
Complaint for the collection of the sum of P1.82 billien and on January 21, 2016, filed its Urgent
Motion ta Nismiss the Complaint for the collection of the sum of 1.82 billion and on January 21,
2016, filed {ts Urgent Motion to Approve the Counterbond and Ilscharge the Writ of Attachment.

On Febroary 17, 2016, the regional trial court issued the order to lift and set aside the writ of
preliminary artachment. The order to 11t and setaside the preliminary attachment directs the sheriff
of the court to deliver to LBC Express Inc. and LBC Development Corperation all properties
previously garnished pursuant to the writ of preliminary attachment. The counterbond delivered by
LBC Express, Inc. and LBC Development Corporation, which is for an amount equal to P1.82
billion, the total amount of the claim, shall stand in place of the properties so released and shall
serve as security 1o satisfy any fina! judpement in the case.

Pursuant to the Order of the Makali Cily Reginnal Trial Court — Branch 143 dated 17 February
2016 setring agide the writ of preliminary attachment and garnishment, RCDC Stock Transfer
Department has effected. as of 13 July 2016, the lifting of the (i) tagaing of LBC Express
Development Corporation®s 1,205,974,632 shares in the Company and (ii) garnishment of PLDT
preferred shares of LBC Development Corporaticn.
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[n a Joint Resolution dated 28 June 2016, the court resolvad ta deny the Motion to Dismiss filed by
LBC Express, Inc., as well as the other defendants. On 18 July 2016, LBC Express, Inc., togather
with the other detendants, filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the Joimt Resolulion,

in its Resolution dated 16 February 2017, the cour resclved to deny the defendants® Motian for
Reconsideration and direcied the defendants to file their respective Answers within the remaining
period. On 28 February 2017, LBC Express, Inc. filed its 4d Censtelam Motion [or Extension of
Time w0 File Answer, asking for an additional period of 15 days, or until 15 March 2017, within
which to file its Answer. On 15 March 2017, LBC Express, [nc. filed its 4d Caurelam Motion for
Further Extension of Time 1o File Answer, asking for a further exiension of 15 davs, ar until 30
_ March 2017, within which to fite its Answer.

The ultimate outcome of the case cannot be presently determined.

Ttem 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Except for matlers taken up during the annyal meeting of the stockholders of the Company held
on Tuly 29, 2016, therc was no othel matter subimnitted 1o a vote of security holders during the period
covered by this Repart. -



PART [1-OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Hem 5. MARKET FOR ISSUER'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

MARKET INFORMATION
The Company’s commen shares are listed with the PSE. As of the end of December 2016, the
total number of shares held by the public was 219,889 833 common shares or 15.42% of the total

issued and outstanding capital stock of the Cumpany.

The following table sets forth the share prices of the Campany*s common shares for the first quarter
of 2017 and each quarter of the years 2016 and 2015:

High Low
B Guarter () ()
2016 - C e
41 16.00 11.50
3RD 1488 10.50 .
oND 1500 10.14
157 1220 6.20
2015 - . . - - B
4TH 14.50 ' 11.30
3RD 15.08 11.32
NP 24.80) 1132
(57 27.55 15.02
2014 = - S
4™ 15.90 776
3RD 10,00 6.00
2HD 11.00 530
§5T 13.98 | 8.88

The stock price of each common share of the Company as of the close of the latesi praclicable
trading date, March 31, 2016, is £14.98.

STOCKHOLDERS
As of the end of December 2016, there were a 101al ol 486 registered holders of common

shares of the Company. The following are the top 20 regisicred holders of the common
shares of the Campany as of' the end of December 2016

' : [ Nuvmberef | | .
- Name of Stackholder Nationafity i Shares Held Percentage

| _.BC Pevelopment Corporation Filipino 1.205.974.632 84.58%
2 | Virorio Paulo P. Lim Filiping 55.663,948 4.18%
3 |Mariano I, Murtinez, Jr. Filipino 39,663,944 4.1 8%
4 |Lowell L. Yu Filipino 50,663,016 4.18%
5 {Tower Securitics, Inc. Filiping 17,748 498 1.24%
& |3B Equities, Inc. Filipino 4,864,700 0.34%

The First Resources Management | Filipine 4,806,402 N.34%
7| and Securities Corp.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Chinese 2,300,000
g Banking Corp. Lrd. 0.18%
# | Wealth Securities, Inc. Filipino 1,658,500 3.12%
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10 |Caberco Securitice, Ine. Filipino 1,277,100 0.09%
I |COL Financial Group, Inc. Filipino 890,511 0.06%
12 | Alpha Sceurities Corp. ) Filipinp 486,700 0.03%
13 | Abacus Seanrities, Corp. Filipine 351,205 0.02%
14 |R. Nubla Securities, Inc. Filipinn 195,200, 0.01%,
15 | Triton Securities Corp, Filiping 151,000 9.0 1%
Globallink Securities & Fiiipino 135,800 0.01%
16 Stocks, Ing,
17 | Phiistocks Financial, Irc. Filipino ' 134,011 ¢.01%
18 | AB Capital Sceurities, Ing. Filiping 134,000 0.01%
12 [R5 Lim & Co., Inc. Filipine 117,960 0.01%
y Evergrecn Stock Brokerage & Filiping 117,800 0.01%
_0 Sec.. Inc.
DIVIDENDS

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy to distribute o its shareholders a portion of its funds
that are surplus subject to the nperating and expansion needs of the Company, as determined by the
board of directors of the Company, in the form of stock andfor cash dividends, subject always to:

{a) All requirements of the Corporation Code of the Philippines as well as all other applicable
laws, rules, regulations andfor orders;

(b Any banking or other funding covenants by which the Cmupah}' is bound from time to
time; and

(c) The pperating and expansion requiremerts of the Company as mentivned above.

The Company's subsidiary, LBC Express, inc. has adopted the same dividend policy.

Cash dividends are subject to approval by the Company’s board of directors without nced of
stockholders™ approval. However property dividends, such as stock dividends, are subject to

the appraval of the Company’s board of dircetors and stockhalders.

The paymeni of dividends in the future wil] depend upon the earnings, cash flow and financial
condition of the Company.

Dividend History

On October 11, 2016, the Board ol Directors of LRCEH approved the declaration of cash
dividends amounting to P313.69 willion or P0.22 for every issued and outstanding
common share.

RECENT SALL OF SECURITIES

Flease refer to the discussion under “Corporate Reorganization” of item I (*Business™) of this
Report for a summary of recent issuances of shares by the Company.
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llemé.  MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF
OPERATION {alf iforemution inthis item is upduied)

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Financial Ratins:

2016 2015
Currznt ratio Current Assets’Current Liabilities - 1.67 1.i8
Detn to equity ratio Total Liabilities/Stockholders' Equity 1.74 2.66
Debt to total assets ratic Total Liabilifies/Total Assets .63 - 0.73
Return on average assets Met incomne  aliributable  to  Parent 14.52% RI1%
' Company/ Average assets
Book vatue per share Stockhalders' Equity/ Total Number Shares F1.73 P14
Earnings/(Loss) per share  Net Incomea/(Loss)/ Total Number Shares P0.65 F0.29

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year ended Decemher 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2015
Service Revenues

The Company’s service revenues increased by 13% to P5,695.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016 from P7,686.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2015,
primarily due to an increase in revenues from the Logistics scgment attributable 1o
growli in both retail and corporate sales.

Logistics

Revenues from the Logistics scpgment grew by 20% 10 P7,521.9 million for the vear
ended December 31, 20146 from 26,290.3 million for the year ended December 31 L2015,
prinwarify due fo a growth in the volume of courier services rendered. The growth in
volume of services was mainly allributable to the horizontal growth of the Company,
evidenced by the addilion of 48 new branches in the Philippines. This growth also
resulted in an incremental increase in the Company's volumes from cargo forwarding
services duing the year.

Price increase is also implemented at an average of 7% Lo 9% for Philippines, effective
April. 20135, respeclively, which resulted to higher price variance for the months of
January 10 March.

Cost of Servicey

Cost of services increased by 9% 1o P5,390.5 million for the vear ended December 31,
2016 from #5,119.5 miliion (ur the year ended December 31, 2015 mainly attributable
to higher revenue by 13%4,



While the improvement in percentage to revenue to 64% in 2017 from 67% iy primarily
due 1o favorable cost ratio which resulted from the lower average freight rates of major
carrier for the utilization of mid-day flights and maximizing the nse of sea carrier with
tower rates. Other fixed costs such as salaries and wages, Tent, utilities and depreciation
remain at a reasonable level with only 6% increment,

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased by 21% to $3.104.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2016 from P2,556.9 million for the year ended December 3 I, 2015, primarily die 10 the
increase in volume and rate of air and couricr services and improvement in costs of air
and sea freight.

Operating Expanses

Operating expenses decreased by 4% to P1,872.8 million for the year enrad Necember
31,2016 from P1.847.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015,

Significant reduclion of advertising expense by 32% or P17 million is mainly
attributable to non-incurrencc of boxing spoits sponsoership (Pacquiao) and decrease in
media advertising and production related to brand awareness.

The Company had assessed a lower amount of provision for imparrment losses on
receivables at P15.8 million for 2016 while P11.4 millien for 2015, Incidences that
causes write-off of receivables also lowered resulting 1o another $23.4 million reduction
in expenses.

The above decreases are offset by increasc in professional fees by 119% or #19.8 million
which is mainly related 10 acnquived services of consultanis for overall process
improvement of Lhie company.

Otirer Tncorme, Net

Other income, net which comprise of foreign exchange gain, gain on sale of disposal of
assets and other miscellaneons expense increased by 41% to #154.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2016 from P109.6 miltion for the year ended December 31. 2015
primarily resulted from eamings geneiated from foreign exchange trading.

Finance Costs, Net

Finance ensts, net increased by 46% to P&1.1 million for the vear ended December 11,
2016 from P41.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, which it related to
availment of Jong-term loans during the year.

Iincome pefore fncome Tox

Income hefore income tax increased by 93% to #1,325.1 million for the year ended
Cecember 31, 2016 from P686.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2015,
primarily due to improvement in revenue and costs.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by 52% to P411.2 miltion for the year ended December
31, 2016 from P270.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 mm line with the
growth in operating income subject fo income taxes,

Net Income for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Company’s profit far the year increased by [20% 1o
PO13.9 million for the year ended Deceriber 3 I, 2016 from P416.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2015, ' :

FINANCIAL CONDITION

As of December 31, 2016 compared o as of December 31, 2015
Assets

Clurrent dssels

" Cash and cash equivalents increased by 36% to P1 327 8 million as December 31 L2016
from P979.1 million as of Decernber 31,2013,

Trade and other receivables increased by 4% to P1,526.7 million as of December 31,
2016 from P1,466.8 million as of December 31, 2015, primarily die to growth of
receivables from affiliates for the company’s fulfillient services. Amount of remittance
and cargo service fees is higher by 4% to £400.3 million for 2016 and P356.4 for 2013,

Due fram retated parties decreased by 16% to P1,108.0 million as of December 31, 2016
from £1,321.3 million as of Necember 3 I, 2015, primarily due o settlement amouniing
o P198.0 million before the end of the current year.

Available-forsale investments amounting to 250.9 million represents the Company’s
investment in unquoted unit investment trust fund,

Prepayments and other cuirent assets decreased by 12% fo P388.1 miilion as of
December 31, 2016 from P443.3 million as of December 31,2015, primarily due to the
restricted cash of P135.3 million representing cash deposit in bank in the name of the
Company which was funded by a specific customer in refation to the monev remittance
service in bebalf of the said specific costomer. The Company availed of a loan from a
bank specifically to service the said customer and the cash d eposit served as a guarantee
to fhe bank. The cash balance is being diminished as the ioan balance gets repaid by the
Company. This is fully setiled during the current year,

Non-current dssets
Property and equipinent, nel increased by 10% {o P840.0 million as of December 31,
?0i6from P763.0 million as of December 31 , 2015, primarily due to business EXpansion

which led to net acquisitions of leasehold improvement and furniture and fixiures
resulting to an increase by 24% and 26% . respectively, based on net book value.
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Intangibles, ner decreased by 4% 10 P266.0 million as of December 31, 2016, from
P276.4 million as of December 31, 2015, primarily due to lower SAP related additions
for this year,

Available for sale investment, higher by 116% to P458.3 million as of December 31,
2016, from P2]2.6 million as of December 31, 2015, as market price increased from
P1.09/share to P2.0%share,

Deferred ax ussets, net increased by 22% to P274.4 million as of December 31, 2018,
from P225.6 million as of Dcccmbcr 31, 20135, as a result of higher non-dedictible
expenses from retirement benefit and acerucd bonus and leave credils.

Security deposils, increased by 8% 10 P225.3 million as of December 31, 2016, from
P209.9 million as of December 31, 201 5, primarily due to increase in branches.

Other noncurrent assets, increased by 14% to 70.2 million as of December 31, 2016
from P6).8 million as of December 31, 2015, which resulied from the increase in
noncurrent portion of inpur tax on capital assets.

Liabilitiey

- Accounts and other payables decreased by 29% to P1,294.9 million as of December 31,
2016, from ®1,832.0 million as of December 3 [, 2015, primarily due to reduction in
trade payzhle by 19%. This is mainly attributable to improvement of operating expenses,

Notes payable {current and noncurent) increased by 31% 10 1.359.2 as of December
. 31, 2016, from P1,040.6 million as of December 31, 2013, prinwarily due 1o higher
outstanding loan from BDO hank. The Company availed five-year term loan from the
said bank during the year.

Transmission liability decreased by 8% to P467.3 million as of December 21, 2016,
from £508.1 million as of December 31, 2015, primarily due to lower volume and
amount of money remittance transactions on the jast duy of the operations of the year,

Income tax payable increased by 95% to ¥254.8 million as of December 3 1, 20118, from
P130.7 million as of December 31, 2015, in line wilh the growth in operating income
subject to inenme raxes.

Finance lease liabilifics (current and noncurcent) increased by 6% 10 P124.1 million as
of December 31, 2016, from P117.2 million as of December 31, 2015, due to additionat
service vehicles acquired through finance lease during the year,

Retirement benefit obligation increased by 12% 10 B721.0 million as of December 31,
2016, from P641.8 million as of December 31, 2015.



LIQUIDITY

Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 25

Cush flow from operating activities

The Company's net cash from operating activities is primarily affected by incoma befire
Income tax, depreciation and amortization, interest expense, reliremnent benefit expense,
interest expense -and changes in working capital. The Company’s nct cash from

vperating activities were P757.3 million, and P594.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, cash flow from operating activities were derived
from the normal operatians.

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flow used investing activities for the years ended Diecember 31, 2016 and 2015
were P253.4 million and $1,722.2 millien, respectively.

Payment of cash to effect reverse acquisition amounting to $1,325.5 million had (he
largest impact on cash flow fram investing activities for the year ended December 31,
2015,

Cash flow from financing activities

Cash flow from financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
were 1546 million and P1.567.0 million, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the inflow from financing activities is primarity
from the issuance of stocks amounting to P1,369.3 million, net of stock issuance cost.
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Item 7, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The 2016 consolidated financial statements of the Company are incorporated herein the
accompanying index 10 exhibits.

Itemn 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended Decemher 31,201
and 20145 were audited by SGV & Co_, a member firm of Crnst & Young Global Limited,

SGV & Co. has acted as the Company’s independent auditor since fiscal year 2014, Cyril Tasmin R,
Valencia is the current audit partner for the Company and has served as such since fiscal year 2014.
‘The Company has not had any material disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures with
its current independent auditor for the same periods or any subsequent interim period. SGV & Co. has
neither shareholdings in the Company nor any right, whether fegally enforceable or not, to nominare
persons or to subscribe for the securities of the Company. The toregoeing is in accordance with the
Cede of LCthics for Professional Accountanis in the Philippines set by the Board of Accountancy and
approved by the Professional Regulation Commission,

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed for each of the last two years for professional
gervices rendered by SGV & Co.

2016 205
In millions (£}
Audit and Audit-Related Feest" P7.087.500 8,035,000
Total P7.927,500 P8.035,000
{1 Audif ane Avdit-Relasedd Fees. This category includes the audit of anual fircacial statemenis, review of interim

fuanciul siatements and services that are normally provided by the independent auditor in comnection with
sitrtutory and regulaiory filings or enpagements for those redendar years

SGV & Co. did not provide services for lax accounting, compliance, advice, planning and any other
form of tax services to the Company in the lasl iwo fiscal years. Other than the audit of the annual
financial statements and the review of the interim financial statements, SGV & Co. did not provide any
other services to the Company in the last two fiscal years.

In relation to the audit of the Company’s annual financial statcments, the Company’s Corporate
Uovernance Manual, provides that the andit committee shall, among other activifies (i) review the
reports subimitled by the infernal and external auditors; (ii) ensure that other non-audit waork provided
by the external auditors are not in conflicl with their functiorns as external auditors; and (iii) coordinate,
monitor and facilitate compliance with laws, rules and regulations.

The audit committee consists of at least three members of the board of directors, at least one of whorn
isan independent director, including the chairman of the committee. The audit committee, with respact
to an external audii; '

. Perform aversight functions over the Company’s external auditors; the Audit Committee
should ensure that the internal and external auditors act independently from each other, and
that both auditers are given unrestricted access to all records, properlies and personnel to
enahla them io perform their respective audit functions.
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. Prior to the commencement of the audit, discuss with the external auditor the nature, scope
and expenses of the audit, and ensure proper coordination if more than one audit firm is

involved in the activity 1o secure praper coverage and minimize duplication of efforts.

J Evaluate and detcrmine the non-audit work, if any, of the external auditor, and review
periodically the nan-audit fees paid to the external auditor in relation o their significance to
the wial annual income of the external auditer and to the Company’s overall consultancy
expenses. The committee shall disallow any non-andit work that will conflict with his duties
as an exfernal auditor or may posc a threat 1o his Independence. The non-audit work, if

allowed, shouid be diselosed in the Company’s annual report.
. Review the reports submiticd by the external auditors.

The following arc the membérs of the Company's audif committee:
ta) Solita V. Delantar - Chairman
{b)  Miguel Angel A Camahort - Member
{¢)  Enrigue V. Rey, Ir. - Member



PART I - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
Ttem 9, DIRECTORS ANDN EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

DIRECTORS

The Company’s by-laws and articles of incerporation provide for the election of nine directors, two
of whom shall be independent directors, The board of directors is responsible for the direction and
control of the business affairs, and management of the company, and the preservation of ts assets and
properties. No person can be elected as a director of the company unless he is pre-screened by the
nomination committes and is a registered owner of al least one common share of the capital of the
Company.

The Company’s nomination commitiee is composed of the following:

(a) Solita V. Delantar - Chairman )
(b) Miguel Angel A. Camahort - Member
{c)  Enrigque V. Rey, Ir. - Member

The table below sets forth each member of the Company’s board of directors:

Name Nationality | Ape Positiom
Miguel Angel A. Camahort Filipino 54 Chairman of the Beard
Een¢ E. Fuenies Filipino 43 Director
Enrigue V. Rey, Ir. Filipino 45 Direciur
Avnmuste G, Gan Filipino 52 Director
Mark Werner J. Rosal Filipino 40 Director
Solita V. Delantar ~_Filipino s Independent Director
Luis M. Yu_ k. Filipino 61 independent Director

The business experience of each of the directors is set Torth below.,

Migeel Angel A. Camahnrt
Chairman of the Board, Chief Execurive (Officer and President

Mr. Miguel Angel A, Camahnrt is a Director, Chairman ot'the Board, and President of the Company:.
He is also the President of LBC Express Corporate Solutions, Inc, the subsidiury operating the “Print
and Mail” busincss of LBC Express, Inc. Mr, Camahort concurrently serves on the Board of Directors
of the United Football League. Prior 1o joining the 1.RC Group, Mr. Camahort was a Senlor Yice
President and the Chief Operating Officer of Aboitiz One, Inc. from 2007 (o 2009 and Aboitiz
Transport System Corporation (ATSC) Solutions Division from 2004 to 2007. He also served as a
Seniar Vice President and the Chief Operating Officer of Aboitiz Transport System Corp. {formerly,
Wwilliam, Gothong & Aboitiz, Inc.) in the Freight Division from 1999 1o 2003, prior o which he was
the President of Davao Integrated Stevedoring Services Corporation {DIPSCCOR ) from 1999 162003,
Mr. Ceamahort holds a Bachelor of Seience depree in Business Administration and Economics from
MNotre Dame de Namur University (formerly, the College of Notre Dame} in California, V.8 A.

Rene K. Fuentes
Directar

Mr. Rene E. Fuentes is currently the Senior Viee President for Global Retail Operations of LBC
Bxpress, Inc. Prior 10 joining the Company, Mr, Fuentes served as President of Documents Flus, Inc.
from 1096 to 2001, and as Regional Manager, Vice-President of EFC Food Corporation from 1996 10
2001. Mr. Fuentes attended De La Salle University and completed a Key Exscutive Frogram in
November 2013 at the Harvard Business School.
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Enrique V. Rey Jr.
Direcior

Mr. Enrique V. Rey Jr. assumed the pesition of Investor Relations Officer of the Company on
September 2015 and the acting Treasurer and acting Chief Finance Officer on December 2015. M.
Rey, It was alsc a director of LRC Systems, Inc. from 2008 to 2010 and LBEC Mundial Inc. from 2005
Lo 2008. Prior 1o joining the Company, Mr. Rey, Jr. worked for Coca-Cola Phil ATS, where be was
the Scnior Itead of Sales from 2003 to 2005 and the Associate Vice President for Institutional
Sales from 2000 to 2003, Mr. Rey, Ir. aticnded De La Salle University and completed a Management
program at the Afeneo Business School. Mr. Rey, Jr. has also recejved training in Finance. Since 2010,
Mr. Rey, Jr. has been a inember of the Institute of Internal Auditors.

Mark Werner J. Rosal
Director

Atty. Rosal became a director ofthe Company on 28 April 2015. Born in Ccbu City, Atty. Rosal, priur
to taking 'up law, has a Bachelor’s Degree in Physical Therapy from Cebu Velez Collepe and is a
licensed Physical Therapist. Atty. Rosal graduated in the op 5% of his law school batch at the
University of San Carlns, Cebu City, in 2002 and was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 2003. He speni
his sarly years in the practice of law at Balgos and Pere7 T.aw Dffices and Angara Cruz Concepéion
Regala and Abello (ACCRALAW). Currently, he is the Managing Pattner of Rosal Diaz Bacalla and
Fortuna Law Offices, a Cebu-based law firm. As part of his law practice as refained counsel ol private
cerporgtions, he is a director (holding nominal shares) of Cebu Agaru Motors Inc., Wide Gain Preperty
Holdings, Inc.. and Sem-Ros Food Corp. (4 non- operational corporation).

Augusto Gan
Directar

Mr. Angusto G. Gan was appointed Director of the Company in September 20135, Mr. Gan
concurrently serves as a Dircctor of Atlantic Gulf and Pacific Company, Investment and Capital Corp
of the Philippines, Pick Szeged ZRT and Sole-Mizo Zrt. He is also the Managing Director of Ganesp
Ventures and the Chairman of the Board of Anders Consnlting Ltd. Previously, Mr. Gan was the
President of the Deiphi Croup from 2001 1o 2012 and the Chief Executive Officer of Novasage
Incorporations (HK) from 2006 to 2007. He has also served as a Director of AFP Group Lid. (HK)
from 2005 10 2007 and 1SM Communication trom 2003 to 2004, as well ag the Chairman of the Boards
of Cambridge Heldings from 1995 to 2000 and Qualibrand Industries from 1988 to 2001. Mr. Gen
holds a Master in Business Management degree from the Asian Institute of Management.

Solita V. Delantar
Independent Divector

Ms. Solita V. Delantar was appointed Direclor of the Company in March 2014, She concurrently
serves as Independent Director on the Board of Directors at Anchor Land Holdings, lnc., Execulive
Director at PMAP Human Resources Management Foundation (since Yuly 2013) and Vice President
at PONTICELLI, Inc. (since 2006). Previously, Ms. Delantar served as Vice-President. Human
Resnnrees Management & Development Administration (November 1999 — September 2003),
Consultant {July 1997 — July 1998), Vice-President, Finance & Administration (May 19RE - June
1996} and various other positions at Honda Philippines, Inc. Ms. Delantar is a Certified Public
Acconntant, Fellow in Personal Management and professional business mediator. From Septenber
1998 1 March 2007, she served as a Member of the Professional Board of Accountancy, which
administers icensure examinaliens for CPAs. Ms. Delantar received her Bachelor of Science deeree
tn Commerce with @ major in Accounting from Far Eastern University and participated in a Bachclor
of Laws program at Aleneo de Manila LUniversity.



Luis N. Yu, Jr.
Independent Direcror

Mr. Luis Y, Jr.is the Founder and Chairman Emeritus of the 8990 Holdings, Inc. Mr. Yu is also the
Chairman Emeritus of IHoldings, [ne. (7012 1o present). He is also the Chairman of 8990 Cebu
Housing Development Corporation, §990 Visayas Housing Development Corporation, 8990 Davao
Housimg Development Corporation, 8990 Mindanao Rousing Development Corporation, 8990 lloilo
Housing Development Corporation and 8980 Luzon Housing Development Corporation (2009 tu
present), 8990 Housing Development Corporation {2006 1o present), Ceres Homes, Inc, {2002 1o
present), N&S Homes, Inc. (1998 to present), L&D Really Holdings, Inc. (1998 to present), and Fog
Horn {1994 to present). Mr. Yu is currently the President of DECA Tousing Corporation (1995 1o
present). Mr. Yu hoids a Master in Business Management degree from the Asian Institute .of
Management. Mr. Yu has more than 3¢ years of experience managing and heading companies engaged
in Mass Housing subdivision development.

MANAGEMENT AND OFFICERS

The Company’s executive officers and management team conperate with its Board by preparing
appropriate information and documenls concerning the Company’s business operations, financial
condition and results of operations for ifs review. The tablc below sets forth each member of (he
Company’s management:

Narme B Nationalify | Asge  Position
Chief Executive Officer

Miguel Angel A Camahari Filipino 54 and President
Investor Relations Officer,
) o Acting Treasurer and
Enrique V. Rey, Ir Filipino 45 Acting Chicl Finance
Qfficer -
Crigtina . Palma Gil- o _ N
Fernandes Filipino 48 Corporate Secretary )
Assistant Corporate
_ I . Secretary, Corporate
wahleens G. Go Filipino 36 Information Officer and
Compliance Officer _
R Asgist T
Ma. Eloisa lmelda 8. Singzon  [Filipino 30 ssistant Corporate

Information OHficer

The business experience of each of the Company’s officers is set forth below.

Miguel Angel A, Camahort
Chief Execntive Officer and President

Pleasc refer to the table of directors above.

Enrigue V. Rey Jr.
Investor Relations Officer, Acting Treasurer and Acting Chief Finunce Officer

Please refer to the table of directors above.
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Cristina S, Palma-Gil Fernandez
Carporate Secreiary

Atty. Palma Gil-Fernandez assumed the position of Corporate Secretary of the Catmpany in September
2015, Atty. Palma Gil-Fernandez graduated with a Bachelor of Arls degree, Major in History (Honors)
from the University of San Francisco in 1989, and with a Juris Doctor degree, sccond honors, from
the Atenco de Manila University in 1995, She is currently a Partner at Picaza Buyeo Tan Fider &
Santos Law Offices and has morc than 20 years of experience in corporate and commercial law, with
emphasis on the practice areas of banking, securities and capital markets (equity and dcbt), corporate
reorganizations and restructurings and real estate,

Mahlesne G. Go :
Assisiunt Corporate Secretary, Corporate information Officer and Compliance Cfficer

(Alty. Mahieene GG. Go assumed the position of Assistant Corporate Secretary, Compliance Officer and
Corporale information Officer of the Company in September 20105 Rorn on Aprii 25, 1980, Awty. Go -
graduated with the degrec of Bacheloc of Arts, Major in Political Science, from the University of the
Philippines in 2007, and with the degree of Juris Doctor from Atenco De Maniia University -School
ol Law in 2005. She also received a Certificate of Mandarin Language Training for International
Students from 2011 to 2012 in Peking University, Beijing, China. She served as a Junior Associate at
Pirazo Ruyco Tan Fider & Santos Law Offices from 2007 to 2010 and 2012 and is currently a Senior
Associate at the same otfice. She currently serves as Trustee and Corporate Secretary for Center for
Empowerment and Resource and Development, Inc.

Maria Elotsa Imelda 8. Singzon
Alternare Corporate Information Officer

Maria Eloisa Imelda S. Singzon: Atty. Singzon assumed the position of Alternate Corporate
Information Officer of the Company in April 2015. Born on September 18, 1986, Ay Singron
graduated cum laude with the degree of Bachelor of Science, Business Ecenomics, [fom the University
of the Philippines in 2008, and with the degree of Juris Doctor from Atenco de Manila School of Law
i 2012, She is a Junior Associate at Picazo Buyco ‘I'an Fider & Santos Law Offices from 2013 to
present.

SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

The Company considers its entire work force ac significant employees. Everyone is expected to work
together as a team to achieve the Company’s goals and objectives.

FAMI1.Y RELATIONSHIPS

As of the date of this Report, there are no family relationships between Directors and members of the
Company’s senior management known to the Company.

INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company believes that none of the Company’s directors, nominees for election as director, or
executive officers have in the five-year period prior to the dale of (his Report: (1) had any petition
filed by or against any business of which such person was a general partner or executive officer either
al the ime of the bankruptey or within a two-year period of that lime; (2) have been convicted by final
judgment in a criminal procecding, domestic or foreign, or have been subjecied to a pending judicial
proceeding of a2 criminal nature, domesiic nr foreign, exeluding traffic violations and other minor
offenses; (3) have been the subject of any order, judgment, or decree, nol subsequently reversed,
suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or
lemporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting their involvement in any type of
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business, securities, commodities or banking activities; or (4) have Leen found by a domestic or foreign
court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC or comparable forcign body, or a domestic
or foreign exchange or other organized trading market or self-regulatory organization, to have violated

4 securities or commodities law or regulation, such judgment liaving not been reversed, suspended, or
vacated,

On 9 September 2011, pursuant to Monciary Board Resolution No. 1354, the Maonetary Board
prohibited LEC Bank (which is controllad by the Araneta Family) from doing business in the
Philippines, ordered it closed, and placed it under the recelvership of the PDIC based on the tollowing:

1. LBC Bank has insufficient realizable assete to meet liabilities;

2, LBC Rank cannot continue in business withoul involving probable losses to its depositors
and creditors: and

3 LRC Bank has willfully violated the Cease and Desist Order of the Monetary Board dated
12 March 2010 for acts or transactions which are considered wnsafe and unsound banking
practices and other acts or transactions constituting fraud or dissipation of the assets of the
institution and considering the failure of (he Board of Directors/management of LBC Bank
10 restore the bank’s financial health and viability despite considerable time given to
address the financial problems, and that the bank had been accorded due process.

The PDIC thereafter stepped in as receiver and preparcd 1ts report on LBC Bank’s status. Based on the
Rehabilitation Report of PDIC, the conclusion/ recommendation was that LEC Bank could o] be
rehahibtated or otherwise placed in such a condition that it can be permitted to resume business with
safety 1o its depositors, creditors, and the general public considering that:

l. the estimated realizable value of i1s assers {ERVA)as of 31 December 2011 in the amount
of Phpl .7 billion is deficient by Php4.96 billion o cover estimated liabilities aggregating
to Phps.6 billion. Additional capiral infusion of Php5.96 billion is nceded to mest the Phpl
billion minimum capital requirement for a thrift bank with head office located in Metro
Manmila: and

2. the rehabilitation proposal submimed by the LBC Group of Companies and the Rizal
Ranking Corporation via asset purchase agreement was found not viable.

On § July 2012, the MB of the BSP issued Resolution No. 1088 directing PDIC to proceed with the
liquidation of LRC Bank on the basis of the Rehabilitation Report.

The PDIC has filed various criminal aid administrative complainis against certain members of the
Araneta Family in relation to the receivership of LBC Bank, which are described below:

. Mr. Juan Carlos Aranata, My. Santiagoe Araneta, Mr. Fernando Araneta and Ms. Ma. Monica
G. Araneta (the “Araneta Siblings™ werc named as respondents n their capacity as
stockholders andfor directors LBC Bank in a complaint for estafa, falsification of commercial
decuments and conducting business in an unsafe and unsound manmer that was filed by the
PDIC before the prosecutor’s office. PDIC alleged that the Aranela Siblings, in conspiracy
with the other respondents, made it appear that they infused capital into LBC Dank in the
amount of approximately 39 Million-Pesos to cover a capital deficiency as required by the BSP.
Un 18 April 2016, the complaint against all the respondents were dismissed. The PDIC filed a
Petition fur Review with the Department of Justice (“DOI”) 1o appeal the dismissal. The appeal
is currenily pending with the DOJ.

- Mr. Juan Carios Araneta, Mr, Santiage Araneta and Mr. Fernando Araneta were named as
respondents in their capacity as stockholders and/or directors of LBC Barnk in a complaint for
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syndicated estafa, falsification of comimercial documents and conducting business in an unsafe
and ungound mannar that was filed by the PDIC before the prosecutor’s office. PDIC alleged,
among others, that LEC Bank taok out a 30 Millien Peso loan from Chinabank “to generate
funds for the purpose of rearittance.” The loan, however, was not recorded as “Bills Payalle”
nor as any other liability in LBC Bank’s books, bur was used to credit 30 Million Pesos from
“Miscellanzous Assets,” which Is one of the accounts used to record the advances, It turther
alleged that the lgan proceeds were then transferred to LRC Development Corporation, which
then issued a check in faver of LBC Bank for the same amount supposedly as payment for the
advances. LBC Bank then allegediy paid its Joan to Chinabank Prior 1o maturity date using
LBC Bank’s own funds. The case was submitted for resolution on 28 March 2016,

Mr. Juan Carlos Araneta, Mr. Santiago Araneta and Mr. Fernando Araneta were named as
respondents in their capacity as stockhoiders and/ar directors of LRC Bank in a complaint {or
syndicated estafa, falsification of conunercial documents and conducting husiness in an unsafes
and unsound manner that was filed by the PDIC bofore the prosecutor’s office.  PDIC alleged”
that LBC Bank obtained three joans from Chinabank in the amount of approximately 50 Million
Pesos, which were securcd by a Hold-Put Agreement on LBCs existing Foreign Currency
Deposit Unit Time Deposits with Chinabank. The Ioans ail indicated that the proceeds were
intended for LBC Bank’s “working capital” and yet were not recorded as “Bils Payables™ or
liabilities in the books of LBC Rarik. The proceeds from the lnan were allegedly ‘credited by
Chinabank to LB( Bank’s Current/Savings Bank Account, and then used as partial payment to
the “advance to affiliates’”. Thereafter, 1-BC Bank used the proceeds of the malured time
deposits to pay the loans to Chinabank. The ¢ase was submitted for resolution on 25 May 2016.

Mr. Juan Carlos Araneta, Mr. Santiage Araneta and Mr. Fernando Aianety were named as
respondents in their capacity as stockholders and/or dirertars of LBC Bank in a complaint for
syndicated estafa, falsification of commercial dovuments and unsound business practices that
was [iled by the PDIC befare the prosecutor’s office. PDIC alleged thal Foreign Currency
Remittances received by LBC Mabuhay were not deposited to LBC Bank’s Doliar Account
with CalRank resulting in Funding Gaps or “short reminances.” Despite this, I.BC Rark
continued to pay the full amoint of the remittance instructions resuliing in Advances by LLBC
Bank in faver of LBC Mabuhay, supposedly in violation of the Memorandum of Undcrstanding
between LBC Bank and the BSP. The case was submined for resolution on 25 May 2016,

Mr. Juan Carlos Araneta, Mr. Santiago Araneta, Mr. Fernando Araneta and Mr. Carlos G.
Araneta were named as respondents in their capacity as stockholders and/or direntors of LBC
Bank in a complaint for nnsafe and unsound business practices that was filed by the PIIC
beforc the the prosecuter’s office.  PDIC alleged that the respondents commined acts or
omissions constituting unsafc and unsound business practice by entering into Service
Agreements with LBC Express, Inc., whose terms were supposedly wanifestly and grossly
disadvantageous 10 Bank. The Respendents allegedly failed to enforee payment of scrvice faes,
thereby causing undue injury and/or unwarranled benefits, advantage, or preference to LBC
Express, Inc. through manifest partiality and bad faith thatresulted in a material Joss or damage
to the liquidity or solvency of LBC Bank and to the latter's depositars, creditors, and the general
public. The case was submitted for resolution un 11 August 2018,

An administrative complaint was filed by the PDIC before the the prosecutor’s office against
Mr. Juan Carlos Araneta, Mr. Santiago Aranela, Mr. Fernando Araneta and Mr. Carlos G,
Araneta in their capacity as stockholders and/or directors of LBC Bank. PDIC alleged that the
respondents had caused LBC Bank to enter into mantfestly and grossly disadvantageous Service
Agreements with LBC Express, inc.. In these Service Agreements, the LBC Bank would act as
a payoul or distribution agent for the remittances to the beneficiaries of LBC Cxpress Inc.. In
retuen, LBC Express would pay LBC Bank service fees on 2 per transaction basie. PDIC
accused the respondents of not enforcing the payment of the service fees due from LBC Express
in faver of LBC Bank. These actions’ aiiegedly amount to “commission of any oOther

13



irregularities and/or condirting business in an unsafe or unsound manner,” which vialate
Section 21(f) of RA 3591. The ease was submitted for resolution on 27 September 2016,

Item 10, EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

COMPENSATION

There are no emplovees under LBCEH.

Standard Arrangements

Other than payment nf reasonable per diem as may be determined by the board of directors for every
megting, there are no standard armangements pursuant to which directors of the Company are
compensated, or were compensated, directly orindirectly, for any services provided as a director and
for their committee participation or special assighmients for 2010 up 1 the present.

Other Arrangements

There are o other arrangements pursuant to which any dircetor of the Cumpany was compensated, or
to be compensated, directly or indirectly, during 2013 for any service provided as a director.

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS

"The Company has no special employtent contracts with the named executive officers.

WARRANTS AND OPTIONS OUTSTANDING

Thert are no outstanding warrants or options held by the President, the named executive otficers, and
all officers and directors as a group,

Item 1], SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFTCIiAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners of more than 5% of the Cormpany’s
voting sccurifies as of 31 January 2017.

Name and
Address of Na. of
Recard Commaon %4 of Toin!
Owner and Shares Held Outstamling
Relationship Mume of Beneficial in the Shares of the
Title of Class v Issuer Owner Citizenchip Company C‘umpany_
Commaon LBC The recurd owner is Filipino 1,205,974,632 £4.58%
Developmeni ihe heneficial owner of
Corporation the shares indicated
Creneral
Aviation
Center,
Demestic
Amport
Compound,
Fasay City
(stockholder)
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Security Ownership of Directors and Officers as of 31 January 2017

Amouni and Nature % of Total
nf Beneﬁci;:l Costanding

Title of {lass Name of Beneficial Owner Ownership Citizenship Shares

Comuman Rene E. Fuentes 1- direct Filiping 0.0%
Common -Enrigue V. Rey, i 1- direct Filipino 0.0%
Common Augusio Gan I- direet Filiping 0.0%
Comman Miguel Angel A. Camahort  I- direct Filipino 0.0%
Camnmon Mark Werner | Rosal 1,000 - direct Filipino 0.0%
{"ommaon Solita V. Delautar |- direct Filipino 0.0%
Common Luis N, Yu, Ir. . 1- direct Filipino ' 0.0

Voting Trust Holders of five percent or More

There were no persons holding more than five percent of a class of shares of the Company under a
voting trust or similar agreement as of the date of this Prospectus.

CHANGE IN CONTROL

On May (8, 2015, LBC Development Corperation subscribed to 58,101,000 common shares of (he
Company (equivaient to $9.10% of the total issued and outstanding capitai stnck of the Company as
of said date} which resutted in T.RC Development Corporation acquiring control of the Company.

Un September |8, 2015, LBC Development Curporation subscribed to an additional 1,146,873,632
cotnmen shares which were issued on October 12, 2015 following the approval by the SEC of the
Company’s application 1o increase ils authorized capital siock from P100,000,000.00 divided into
160,000,000 common shares with par value ol P1.00 per share, 1o 2,000.000,000.00 divided into
2,000,000,000 common shares wiih par value of ®1.00 per share. As of the date of this Report, LBC
Development Corporation holds a total of 1,205,974 632 common shares of the Company or §4.58%
of the Company’s toial issucd and outstanding capital stock of the Company.

As of December 31, 2016, there are no arrangements which would delay, defer or prevent a change in
control of the Company.,

Item 12, CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company and its subsidiaries in theiy ordinary course of business, engage in transactions with
related parties and affiliates consisting of its parent company (LBC Development Corporation) and
enfilics under common control. These transactions include royahy, service and management fee
arrangements and loans and advances.

It a policy of the Company that related party transactions are enlered into on terms which are not
more faverable to the related party than those generally available to third parties dealing at arm’s
lengih basis and are not detrimental to unrelated sharcholders. All related party tramssclions shall bs
reviewed by the appropriate approving authority, as may be determined by the board of directors. In
the event of'a related parly transaction involving a director, the relevant director should make a full
disclosure of any actual or potential conflict of interest and must abstain from participating in il
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deliberation and voling on the approval of the proposed transaction and any action ta be taken to
address the conflict.

Please reter to Note 14 {("Related Party Transactions™) 10 the notes to the 2016 consolidated financial
Statements of the Company which ic mcerporated herein in the accompanying index to exhibits,

‘Fhe Company has the following major transactions with related parties:

Royalty Fee and Licensing Agreement with Parent Company

LBC Express, Inc. and LBC Development Corpuration have entered into a trademark licensing
- agreement dated November 29, 2007 under which LBC Deveiopment Corporation has granted the
Company the full and exclusjve right within the Philippines to use LBC Marks including the names
“LEBC Express, Inc.,” “LBC Express,” “LOC™, “Hari Ng Padala™ (Tagalop for “King of Forwarding
Scrvices™ and “WWW LBCEXPR FSS.COM” as well as the “LBC” vorporate logo and the “Team
LBC Hari Ng Padala™ logo.

Cash Advances to and from Related Parties

The Campany regularly makes advances o and from related parties to finance working capital
requirements and as part of their cost reimbursemcnts arrangement. These unsecuered advances are
non-interest bearing and payable on demand. :

Fulfillment Fee

In the normal course of business, the Group fulfills the delivery of balikbayan boxes and money
remittances, and performs certain administrative functions on behalf of its international affiliates,
The Group charges delivery fees and service fees for the fuifiliment of these seivices based on
afrreed rates,

Guarantee Fee

The Group entered into a loan agreement with BDO which is secured with real estate mortgage on
various real estate properties owned by the Group’s affiliate. In consideration of the affiliate's
accommodation to the Group’s request 10 vse these praperties as loan collateral, the Group agreed to
pay the affiliate, every Aprii 1 of the year stacting Apiil 1, 2016, a gharaniee fee of 1% of the
outstanding lvan and until said properties are released by the bank as loan coliateral.

Dividends

The BOD of LBCH approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting to #313.69 miliion or
F0O.22 for every issued and outstanding common shai e. On November 29, 2016 through a
Memorandum of Agreement, LBCD( and LBCH agreed to offsct the dividends payable of LBCH to
LBCDC against LBODCs payable to the Greup amounting ta £265.31 million (see Note 21 of the
notes io the 2016 consolidated financial statements of the Company which is incorporated herein in
the accompanying index, to exhibits). The P265.31 million pertains 10 the shace i dividends of
LBCIXC while the #48.38 million pertains 10 the share of non-controlling interest

PARENT COMPANY/MAJOR HOLDERS

As of the date of this Repor, LBC Development Corporation awns 81.58% of the total issued and
outstanding capital stock of the Company.
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PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Ttem 13. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Please refer (o the Annual Corporate (iovernance Report filed on January 10, 2017,

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

Company (the*Fullow-on Offering”) of up to 69,101 .000 common shares {the “Offer
Shares™)

Date of Report
U4 January 2016
07 January 2016
08 Janpary 2046
13 Januwary 2016
18 Tannary 2014
19 January 2016
27 lanuary 20 1 6
23 February 20146

14 July 2016

02 August 2016
03 Octgber 2016
11 October 2016
11 October 2016
17 MNovember 2016
18 November 2016

15 November 2016

2% November 2016

Atem 14, REPORTS ON SEC FORM 17-C
(a) Exhibits - Please accompanying index to exhibits -
(b} Reparts on SEC Form 17-C
The following current reports have been reported by I.RC Express Holdings, Inc. during the
vear 2016: .
Diselosure :

I SEC 17 C (Legal Praceedings) {Civil Case against LBC Bevelopment Corporation
and LBC Express, Tne.) .

2 SEC |7-C (Material Information/Transaction) (additional information on disciosure
made on 04 lanuary 2016) (Letter Reply}

3 SECI7-C{Replyto Exchange’s Query) {Writof Preliminary Attachment in
relation to Civil Cage No, 15-1528)

4  SEC17-C(Reply 1o Exchange’s Query) (Civil Case apainst LBC Development
Corporation and LBC Express, [ne)

5 SEC I7-C (Reply o Exchange’s Query) (Civil Case No, 15-1258 against LBC
Development Corporation and LOC Express, Ine.}

6 SEC 17-C (Clarification on News Reports) (Clarification on news article nnder
Cocktales column entitled “LBC sinks deep ino garnishment™ posted in
Interaksyon.cont on January 18 2014

7 SEC 17-C {Mazierial Information/Transactions) { Lengr Reply}

§  SECI7-ClLegal Proceedings) {Lindate on Civil Cace No. 15-1258 against, among
others. LBC Development Corporation and LBC Express, Inc.)

9 SEC i7-C (Further update on Civil Case NQ, 15-1258 against, among others, LBC
Development Corponation and LBC Express, Inc.)

G SEC 17-C (Clarification on the news article entitled “LBC Express income seen to
hit "1 billion by year-end™ pusted on Business Mirror (Internet Edition) on 31 Iuiy
016™

Pl SEC 17-C (Declaration of cash dividends by the Company's subsidiary, 1 RC
Express, Inc)

12 8EC 17-C (Peclaration of Cash Crividends)

13 5EC 17-C (Amend} (Declaration of Cash Dividends)

14 SEC 17-C (Press release on the Company's periormance for the 3rd quarter of
2016}

15 SCC 17-C (Amend) (Press release on the Contpany's performance for the 31d
quarter ol 70 16)

16 SEC 17-C(Clarification on the news article entitled “LBC eyes P1.2-R foliow on
offer” posted on the Philippine Star website, philSTAR com, 18 Nevenber 2016)

17 3EC 17-C (Confirmation of authority to conduct a follow-on offering of €9,101 400
shares of the Corporation (FOO consists of 59,101,000 secondary shares and
10.0:04,000 primary shares )t

1§ SEC 17-C (Filing of Registration Statement in relation to the publiic affering by the

02 December 2016
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STATERMENT OF MAMNAGENMENTS RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of LBC Express Holdings, Inc. (fonnerly Fedsral Resources Investineat
Group) is respanzible for the preparation and fair prasentation of the financial staternents
inctuding the schedules attached therain, for the vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2015,
in accordance with the prescribed finandial reporting framewoik indicated therein, and for
such internal contrel as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financiat stalements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fravd or error.

in prreparing the finandal statements, management Is respansible for assessing the Company's
ability to continua as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going
concern and using the going cancem hasis of accounting unless managemarit either intends
ta liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no reafistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's finanzial reporting
Rracess.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial staternents including the schedules
atiwched therein, and submits the same o the stackholders.

5GV & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stackholders, has audited the financial
staterients of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its
report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such zudit.

Signature: _
MIGUEL ANGEL &. CAMAHORT - Chairman of the Board, Presidant

and Chief Executive Officer

Signature:
ENRIQUE V. REY £ Acting Chief Finance Officer

Sigredi this  dayof 2007,
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INDEPENDENT aUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Slockholders
LBC Express Holdings, Inc,

LBC Hangar, General Aviation Center,
Dromestic Airport Componnd

Pasay City, Matro Manila

Report on the Avdit of the Parent Campaay Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the prrent company tinancial statements of LBC Bxpress Holdings, nc. (the Compuny),
which comprise the parent company statements of finasctal pasition as at Decermnber 31, 2016 and 2015,
parent company statenents of comprehensive i Bcome, parent company staleinsnls of cliana aus in &y u11y
and pareni company statements of cash flaws for the vears then suded, and notes {o the parent company
financial statements, including a swary of significant accounting policics.

In vur opinion, the accommpanying parent company financial statements present fairky, in all marerist
respeats, the financial pasition of the Company as ot December 31, 2016 und 2015, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in aceordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standurds (PFRSa),

Basis far Opmion

We conducted our audits in accordanve with Philippine Standards on Auditing (BSas]. Quy
responsibilities under those stendards are further described in the duditer s Responsibilitias for the Audit
{:-f the Farent Company Eipancial Statewends section of our report. We are independent of the Com pany
in aceordance with the Code of Ethies for Frofessional Accountants in the Thilippines {Code of Erhics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant t onr audit of the parent company finaneial
statements In the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethica) responsibilities in accordance with
these: requirements and the Code of Bthizs. We beligve that the sudit cvidence we have obtained is
safficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and These Charped with Governance for the Parent Com pany
Financial Statenwenis

Munagement is responsible for the preparadon and G presentation of the parent company financial
Stalements in avcordanee with PFRSs, and for such internal conbiol as management deiermines is
neceszary 10 enable the preparation of parent company financial stammﬁms Yhat are free from makernial

nilsstatement, whether due ro fraud or error. N ,_g- & ﬂf;;g"‘.;--w.._
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In prapacing the parent company financial sialements, management is respansible for asscssing e
Company’s ability [0 continue as 2 going concarn, disclosing, as applhicable, patiers related to gaing
concern and using the going concern basis ol socounting unless management cither intends o Lquidate
the Company of to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative bot to do so.

These charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial vepoiting process
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Financial Starements

Chur objectivies are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company financial stetements
as & whole are free from material misstatemens, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an enditor’s
report thal inchudes our opinion. Reasanable assurance is a high lovel of assuranee, but 1s not a guaranies
that an aodit condueted in sccordanee witl PSAz will always detect & material misstatemeant when it
oxisty, Misstatements can arise from fraud or ervor aud are considersd marerial if, individually vr in the
aggregule, they coukd reasonably be expected o influence the sconomic dacisians of nsers taken on the
pasis of these parent company financial statements.

As part of an audit itr aceordance with PSAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
profossional skepiiziam throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldendily and assess the risks of materinl misstarement of the parent company financial statements,
whether due 12 traud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obiain audit evidence that is sufficient and eppropraate 1o provide & basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a mnpterial mizstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from oo,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgary, intentional omissions, misrepresentaiions, or ihe override of
mternal conhrol,

©  Obain an undeistanding of injornal coutre| reievant to the audii in order ta design audit precedines
that are apprepriate tn the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprossing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal conirol.

»  BEvalnate the appropriateness of accounting polizies used and he reagonablenese of secounting
estimates and refated dlsclssures made by management.

»  Lonclude on the appronnaiensss of management's use of the gotng cancern basis of acommting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unseriainty exisls related Lo events or
conditions that may cast signiffeant doubt on the Company’s ability 1o continue as a gaing coneam,
H we conclude fhar 2 material unc.enamry eRIST3, we are required Lz draw atiention in cur auditor’s
repurt 1o Lhe relaled disclosures in the porent company financial statements or, if such disclosurcs are
madeguate, o modily our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. Tlowever, futurs events or conditions miay cause the Company w
aedse Lo camliue as 8 going concern, -

Fa:
o Evaluate the gverall presestation, struciure and sontent of the pnr?nt cmﬁp&'l]y’ ﬁ e WNGI]LS,
inchuding the disclosures, and whether the parent company finangial star ﬁ}ntms Feprdstr 4%"“7
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We eammunicate with these eharged with govemance regerding, muong otlicr maners, the planned SCope
and \ming af the audit and signiticant audit {indings, including any sientficant deficiencies in internal
coantrol that we identify during our audit,

We also provide thase charged with governance with o statement that we have compiied with relevant
athical recuireneents regarding independence, and to communisate wilh them all relationships and other
maiters hat may reasonably be thought 10 bear on our independence, and where applicuble, related
salegiards.

Report on the Supplementary luformation Reqaired Undder Revenuc Reguitions [5-2010

The supplementary Diformation required under Kevenne Regulations (5-2019 for purposes of iling with
the Burean of Internal Reveuue is presented by the management of LBC Expross oldings, ne. in a
separate soheduls, Revenue Regwlations 13-2010 requires the information 1o be presented in the nowes 1o
finmeia] slatements, Such information is nota required part of"the basic fnancial statenients. The
information ts also notreqaired hy Securitiez Regulation Coda Rule 6%, a5 Amended (20113, Our oplnion
on the basie Financial stalemeuiy is nol allected by the presentation of the information in a separate
sehredule.

Tae engagenent partaer on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Cynl Jasmin B, Vaiencia.

SYCIP GORRES VELAY O & O,

f/z 1:4’ g}ﬁﬂpﬂqu_ A V‘Mﬁ!_}"’b’ﬁ‘.

Eyril sénin B3, Valencia

Partner

CPA Cerlificale N, 90787

SEC Avereditition Mo 1229-AR-| (Group A)
May 12 20M5, valid enoil May 11, 207H

Tux Identification No. 162-3] 0623

BIR Accredilalion Mo, 08001 008.74.2015,
Febroary 27, 3015, valid il Febrnary 26, 2018

PTR Ne, 5908770, January 3, 2017, Makati City

Merch 8, 2017
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LBC EXPRESS MTOLDINGS, INC,

(Formerly Federat Resanrces Invwlmeul Group Ine.)

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAR. FO

'Tf%;éw Eg 5

—

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash (Motes 4 and 12) B5o4340 £250,733
Dividends receivable (Notles 9 and 12) 118,999,179 -
Thae from & celated party (Nows 9 and 12) 12,359
Hrepayments and other current assets (Naote 5) 1,304 X030 531 544
Total Current Assets 12,970,627 802,281
Moncurrent Assets
Il}‘.-’t:ﬁlrlf]l:l‘lt in & subsidiary (MNote £) 1.384.670,906 I8 6704966
j P1,505,641,593  B|,1E5473,247
LIABILITIES AND £QUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts and other payables (MNotes 7 und 12) F135,634 BERaA2S
Bue 1o reluted partics (Notes % and 12) 15,840,746 22813325
Total Cunenf Liabilitioy 16,085,400 23,700,150
Equity (Note 8)
Caprtal stock 1,423,80547F 1,523,865 471
Additional paid in capiraf 55,420,327 55,420,327
Retained canmings (deficit) §.47 (395 (119,512,701
Total Eaguity 1,459,555,193 1,361,773,007
BL A0S 641,593 BRI 185473247

b

Fue wecompanving Motee to Parent Company Finansicl Sraenents,
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LBC EXPRESS IHHOLDINGS, INC.

(Tormerly Federal Resonrces Investment Group T

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Yeonrs Tnded December 3]

e, 2016 2003
INCOME
Dividends (MNoles 6 and ) B447,707,612 B
Interest (Note 4) 10,808 3980
thers - 2,993 —
447,721,413 3,980
OPERATING EXPENSES {MNote 10} 3,247,913 5.414,150
NET INCOME (LOSS) 441,473,500 (8,408,170

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (1,OSS }

P44 473,500

{(HE. 408,170

Lue aecompairying Naves io Peent Congornge Firanyi Staizmernis.




LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC,

(Hormer)y Federal Resources Investment Group Inc,)

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Kelained
Share Shars Earnkngs
Capita! Freminm {Dreticdty
(Mote §) [Mote £) (Mote 87 Tntal
For the year ended Dacember 31, 2016
Balunies as of Jaguary 1, 2016 BYAZSH6S 471 PS5,420,227  (R119,502,701) B1,361,773,097
Tota! comprehensive ngome - - 441,475,500 441,473,500
Lividends declared = (313,690404)  (313,690,404)

Balarres as of December 31, 2016 R1 4?8843 471 #45.420.327  M4,270305 P1489.536,103

For the vear snded December 31, 2018

Balanees a5 of Fasvary 1, 2015 P40,809.600  B7LO81,190 (FI1P.304,331) PE75,659
Issuanca of shares during the year 1,384.966,47] - - 1,384,966 47)
Shave isyuance cost (15,060,863) (13,660,363 )
Toral comprebengive lgs . - - (%,408,)70) {8.408 170}

Ealances as of December 21,2015 1415865471 P85420.327 (PL18.512,701) FL361,773,097

Fee accompanylng Nowes 1o Parens Campany Fiocns lal Seeetenifs,
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LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC,

{(Formerly Federal Resovrees Fuvestment Group Ine))

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Yeurs Enadded 1 ecernber 31

o 201¢ *"Ol 5
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Ineome (foss) bafore income tax B4 1,473,500 s Y
Adjustments for:
Dividend income (MNote §) (447,707 ,6L2) -
Interest meome {Nate 4) (10,808) [5.280}
COperating loss before changes in working capital (6,244,324 (8,414,150,
Clianpes in working capital;
Deorsase (increase) in:
Reoeivables - 2208000
Dus from a relaved pairy (Notes 9 and 12) {12,599 -
Frepayments swd ofher current asseis (8d42,903) 16,093
lnerease (decrease) in:
Aczounts payable and other payables (51,181} bHo, B2
Due 1o related parties (MNotes 9 and 12) (6,863,359 20,389,325
Mer cash uzed in operations (14,715233) 15,586,593
Interest received 10,308 5,081
Net cash g{.tneratedlfrm'n {uzed in} oparating activities (14,704,424} 15,592973
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends received [(Moie 93 63,304,014
Paynents made o investment in a subsidiary {Note 6} - {1.325565.800)
Advances o a stockholder (Nole 6) - (58,805,165,
et cash used in investing aclivities 63304 014 {1,384 6A0,0566)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Proceeds from issuance ol shares, net of
stock lssvance cost (Mote 2) - 1,369305,608
Dividends paid (Nete ¥) (4837508R5) -
Net vash generated from (used i) [nancing activities F48.375,965)  1.369,3105608
NET INCREASE IN CASH 313,605 227615
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YIAR S Zﬁﬂ 735 23,120
J
CASH AT END OF VEAR (Note 4) o S ﬁ%-mwc. 5, B250,735
J Tl g !_ L ﬂ\“"‘n'-,
Jev aecompuring Mores to Parent Compangy Finaaciad Statements, £ {)
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LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC,

{Forgierly Federal Kesonrces Investnaent (Sroup fae)

NOTES TG PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

LBC Express Holdings, Inc. (referred to as the “Company™ or “LBUH™), tormerly Federal
Resources Investment Craup lne. (FED), was registerad with e Sceuritics and Bxchange
Covrrission (SECY on July 12, (993,

The uliimaie pareni of the Company is LBL Development Corporation {LECIC).

The Company underiook an Initial Public Cifering on Decembser 21, 2001, LBCOH"s shares are
listed on the Philippine Steck Bxchange (PSE).

"The Company invests, pivchagses or dispeses real and personal property of evary kind and
description, including shares of stock, bands, debentures, notes, evidences of indebledness, and
ather szeurifies or obligations of any carporation, ssseeiation, domestic and foreign.

The Parent Compuny 15 2 public helding company with investuonts in businesses of messengerial
either by sea, air or [and of Joiters, paresls, cargoes, wares, and merchandise; acceplance and
rermiitance of money, bills payment and the like; and perforinance of other allied general services
from oue place of destination 1o another within and outside of the Philippines.

The previous registered oifice and principal place of business of the Company was at

[No. 35 San Antonio Street, San Franctsco Del Mants, Gueron Cily. ©n October 12, 2013, the
SEC approved he changs in principal office of the Company o LBC Hangar, General Aviation
Cemtre, Domestic Atrport Road, Pasay City, Metro Manifa, Philippines.

Cn April 22, 2013, the Company received depasits for future siccks subscription from [RCOC
amounting Lo B39 100,000,

Un April 23, 2015, the Board of Directors (BOD) of the Company approved the issuance of
58,101,000 cunmon shaves, at £1.00 per share, our of Lhe unissued portion of the Company's
authorized capital stock to LECDC,

On May 18, 2015, the Company and LECDC entered into a4 Deed of Subscription, whereby
LBCDE, subject to the complerinn of the mandatory tender offer, subseribed to 39,101,000
coruman shares out of the unissued authorized capital stock of the Company or approximatsly
39.10% of the total authorized capital stock of the Company, by applying the deposiis for fiture
stocks subscription made by LBCDC amaunting to #59,103,000 on April 22, 2015, as the
consideration for the subscribed shares at one peso (B1.00) per share, Accordingly, o the same
date, (he Company’s previous officers and directors resipmend from their respestive positions and
majority were replaced by e representatives from LBCDC,

Cm May 18, 2013, & fommer stockholder entered into 4 Deed of Assunption of Advances with
LBCTIC; wherein, LBCDC aprocd to sssume the cash advances from the Company by a Fornner
stockhalder which transpired on April 28, 2015 amounting to 858,805,165, Accordingly, the
Company agresd to such asswpption,

T RURILHESE



On May 22, 2013, LBCDC filed with the SEC s mandatory tender o fer repori for all the
outstanding shaves of the Comnpany for a feader offer prica of sne paso (B1.00) per shate. The
mandatory ender offer period comuenced on June 8, 2015 and eaded on July 7, 2015, durimg
which parind, vone of the Tender Offer Shares wers tendere by the sharcholders of the Cuinpany.

On July 14,2015, LBCDE filed with the SEC fis final wnder offer report, Witly ihe completion of
the Teuder Offer. LBCDC now vwns 39,101,000 commaon shures representing approximately
59.10% of the tssucd and putstanding and awhorized capita) stock of the Company.

O July 22, 2013, the Company issued the siock certificates o LIICDC covering the 39,101,000
conings shares subject of the said subscriplion.

On July 29, 2015 and Seprember 4, 201 3, the BOD and siackholders, respeclvely, dpproved the
following resoiutions on the amendment to Charter, By-Laws and other doeuments:

*  The change in the name of FED 16 “L.BC Express Holdings, [ne.™;

o Theamendment ol the secandary purpose of the Company which is primarily to align the
purpose ta that of a holding company,

¢ The transter of the Company’s principsl office addrass (o LRC Hangar, General Aviation
Centre, Domestic Airport Road, Fasay City, Memo Manila, Philippines;
The increase in the ngmber of directors of the Company from seven o nine;
The increase in the awthorized capitai stock of the Company from B100.000,000 divided into
100,000,000 shares with par value of PEOD per shars up 1 B3, 000,000,000 divided ino
3,00, 000,000 shares with par valie of 2100 per share;

*  The change in the fiscal year of the Company from calendar year 1o first day of December of
each year fo the lest day of Movernber of the succeeding yoar; and

v The definilion of dividends,

OniJuly 39, 2015, the BOD approved the changs of the trading symbol of the Farent Compiny’s
shares in the PSE from “FED” 10 “1LB3C",

On Seplemoer (8, 20049, the BOD determined aned feed the amount of the increace # suthorized
capital stock of the Company from PIO0,000,000 divided int 100,000,000 shares with par value
of #1.00 per shave m B2, 000,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 with par value of ¥1.00 par
sharg, and autharized the fiting of the ircrease in authorized capital stock with the SEC.

Moreover, the BOD of the Company, 1 meetings held on Juby 26,2013, Sepiember 18, 3015 and
October 2, 2015, as raluvant, and the stockholders of LBCH i the annual general meeting hefd on
September 4, 241 3, also approved amang others the following wangaetions:

v The asquisition by the Company of [,041,180,493 issued and onvbstanclirgz shares of B
Express, Inc. (LBCE) at a book value as reflzvted in the consolidated audited financial
siatements of LBCE ar of November 30, 2014, which hook value shall not be ess than
B 1L0M0,000,000 or such vther cousideration and under such terms and conditions 45
management may deem beneficial to the intevest of the Company;

*  The issuance of 475,000,000 new Company shares to LRODC at the subsoription price of
P1.90 por share out of the increase in autlionized capital stack fram #100,600,006 fo
B2,000.060,000:

o Theissuance of 671,573,632 new Company shares to LECDC aut of the increase in
authurized capital stock, immediately following the appioval by the SEC of U increase in
authonzed capital stock al the subsaription price of 21,00 per share. under such terms and
conditions as panagemeni may deem beneficial;

Mk ARERRC A
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«  The issuance of (13 59,662,947 shares to Viuorio Ling {10) 39,663 Y46 shares (o Mariana O
Martinez, Jr. and (L) 59,683,946 shares to Lowell L. Yu, or an agpregate of 178,001 839
comaum shares. frew the unissued authorized camml stack of the Company, iminediareby
fallowing Whe approval by the SEC of the increase in authorized capital siock af the
:;le;:t‘,liptlm price of #1 00 por share. under such terms and conditions as IMARAZEMENT MAY
deem benelcial;

The faregoing issuances ol stocks ta LBCDC andfor ather investors and/or thind parties {with
reference to LRCIDC or LRCE) was for the parpose of

*  Primarily finding the acquisiten by the Company of LBCE;

= Funding the acquisitian of other potendal invesimaents, whether ar not related 1o the business
of LBCE; and

e Ensuring compliance by the Company with the minunum public ownership requirements of
the PSE

On September |8, 2015, LBCDC subscribed 1o 25% of 1,904,000,000 increase in authorized
capiial stock or equivaient to 475,000.000 common shares at the subseription price of Bi .M per
share, in exchange for cash, conditioned upon and effective immediately following (he approval
by the SEL ol the inerease in authonzed capital stock

On the same date, LBCDEC subseribed to addiional 671,873,642 common shares out of the
unissied capital seock of the Company at the subsceription price of #1040 per share, in exchange for
wash, conditioned upon and effective immediutely tollowing the approval by the SBC of the
increase in autherized capinal stock,

On Sgptember 22, 2015, the Campany submnitied an applicztion for the inerease in authorized
capital stock frup ane trundeed million peses (BLOG 000 0007 divided into one hundred million
(100,000,000) shares with par value of one peso (B1.00) per share 1o two billion pesos
(#2,000,000,009) divided inte two bllion number of shares with par value of one pesa (£1.00) per
share. On the same date, the smendments to the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws, except
for the change in liscal year, were ilkewise submitted o the SEC

In 4 Desd of Transfer dared Sepramber 24, 2013, the Company purchased from LECDC the shares

of stack of LBCE a1 a tot) cash consideration of £1,384,670,960. 1t was also previously agreed

that the Company’s advances payable by LECDC amouniing to B58,805,495 will be setoaff
zeainst the remaining unpaid balancs.

O Getaber 2, 2015, centain individuals subseribed to a total of 178,991 8§39 comnion shares out of

the unissued capital stock of LBCH at the subscription price of B1 .00 per share, in cxchange for
cagh, sonditioned upon and effective immediately following the spproval by the SEC of the
increase in athorized capital siock,

On Octaber t2, 2015, SEC approved the incresse in authorized capital stock of the Comnpany. On
Uiz surne dale, SEC issued 4 certificate of filing of the Company’s amended Articles of
inzomoration and amended By-Laws,

Om October L6, 2015, the Compary issued the stack cerificates ro LRBCDC covering the

1,146,873,632 commen sharag while on Ociober 21, 2015 the Company issued the stock
vertificates (v ceriadn individualy covering 178,991,839 commaon shares.
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The sccompanying Iinenciat slalements of the Camnpany has been approved and authorized ior
iszue by the Company’s BOD ou March §, 2017,

-5

Sumnrary of Signitican( Aecounting Policies

The prineipal acceunting policies applied in fhe preparation of these financial s@rements is sel pu
below, These policies have been constanily apphied 10 all years presented, unless otherwise statad.

Basis of Freparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared using the historical cost basis, The
financial statements are presenied in Philippine Peso (B), which is also the Company’s funclional
currency. All amounts are roundsd off 10 the nezarest peso onit unless otherwise indicated.

statement of Compliance
The accompanying linancial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Changes i Acesuntng Policics and Disclosurss

1he accounting policies adepied ave consisienl with those of the previous finaneial year, excepl
that the Company bas adopled Lhe following new accounting prorauncements staiting

Japwary 1, 2016, Adoption of these proncuncements did not have uny significant impact i the
Compary’s financial position or performance unless otherwiss indicated,

v Amendments to PERS 10, Donsedidured Finemeiod Stetements, PFRS 12, Disclosine of
Mriterests in Other Erticies, and PAS 28, fuvesimenty in Associces and Joint Ventires,
Irveshaent Eniifies: Applying ihe Consolidation Exception
These amendments clarify that the exemption in PFRS 10 ffom presenting consalidated
financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiery of an inveshuent entity that
measures all ol its subsidiaries at fair valoe. They alo clarify that only a subsidiary of an
frvesimoent entity that is not an investinsnt eitbly iwsslf and that provides supporr services 19
the investment entity parent is cansolidated. The amendments also allow an investor {that s
not an investment entity and has an iavestment entity associate or 1oint venlire) 10 retain the
fair value measurement applied by the investment ontity associate or joint venture 1o i1s
interests in subsidiaries when applying the equity method. These amenibuents are aot
applicable to the Company.

°  Amendmems 10 PFRS 11, Jolr drvangements, Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests i
foint Operatians
The ainendments w PFRS 11 require s juint operator that is accounting for the acquisition of
an interest in a Joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation congtitutes a’
business {as defined by PFRS 3), to apply the relevanl PRRE 3 principles for business
combinations accounttag, The amendments also clarify that a previously held isterest ina
foint operation is nol remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same join
operation while joint contral is retained. In addition, 2 seape exclusion has been added to
PFRS 11 1o specify that the amendments do not wpply when (the parties sharing joinr control,
including the reporling entity, are under commeon eontrol of the same ultimate controlling

party. The amendments apply 10 both the avquisition of the fimitial interest in a joint cperaiion
and tae acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation, These amendments
do not have any impact 1o the Company.

RS
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PYRS M, Regwlarory Deferval Accounrs

PFRS 14 15 an optional standard that allows an entity, whose sctivities are subjest to rale
regulation. o continte applying most of its existing accounting policies for reaulatory deferml
acceunt balances upen By first-lUme adoption of PFRS. Bntities thal sdopt PEFRS 14 must
presunt the regulamry defarral acoounts as separate line items on the statemant of financial
pusion and presem movements i these eceaunt halances as separate Jine tems in ihe
statament of income and other comprehensive invome. The stundard requires disclosures on
the nature of, and risks associated with, the envity™s rate-regutation and the effects of it rale-
regulation on its firancial statements. Since the Company is an existing PFRS preparer, this
standard would not apphy.

Amendments to PAS 1, Prasentatfon of Financial Statements, Disclosure nitiative
The amendments are iniended (0 assist entities in applying judgment when mestine the
presentation and diselosure requirements in PERSs. They claiify the following;

+ Tha emiiies shall nor reduce the understandability of their financial statements by either
wbezuring material informarion with immaterial information; or aggregaling imaterial items
that have dfferent natures or functions

+  That specific tine items in the statement of income and athel souyxehensive ncome wul
the statement of financial position may be disageregated

= That entities have flexibility as 1o the order in which they present the notes 1 finanacial
slatoments

+  That the share of other comprehensive neome 0f aysociates und JOIW VeSS aceounted
far using the equity methed mauat be presented in aggregute as a single line item, and
classified Detween those itens that will or will not be subsequently reciassified 1o profir or
loyss.

The Company bas assessed (hat these amendments do not have significant impact on its
financial statemeats upon adoption as it ie already complying with the smended standard in jts
areseniation.

Armsndments tn PAY 16, Properny, Plant and Equipment and PAS 28, Buevngible Asvets,
Clarificarion of Accepiable Metads of Depreciarion and Amovtization

The amendmenis elarify the principle in FAS 16 and PAS 28 thet revenus reflects o gattorn of
econainic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
ratheor than the coonomic benefits that are consumed through vse of the assst. As aesul, a
revenne-based methad cannot be used (o depreciate property, plant and equipment and way
oty be used in very limited citcumstances o amortize intangible assels. These amendments
are applied prospectively and do not have any iinpaoct to the Compeny, given that the
Company has not used a revenne-based method 1o depreciate or amortize its property, plant
and equipment and intangibls assets.

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41, Agricwiivre: Bearer Floants

The amendments change the accounting requitements for biolegical assety that meet the
defmition of bearer plants, Under the arnendments, biological assers that meer the definition
of baarer plants will no longer b within the scops O FAS 41, Instead, PAS 16 will apply,
Afiar inifial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 al secumniated cost
(before maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model fafter mamwity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearsr plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair vaine tess costs to sell. For govermment granls relatad to bearer
rlants, PAS 20, docorarting for Govermment Gross and Disclosure of Government Assistanive,
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will apply. These amendments are apalied ietrospectvely and do podhave any impace o e
Company as the Comoany does not have any bearar planis.

Amendinents w PAS 7. Separare Finaucial Stateents, Bauity Methoo in Sepavate Flivmcicl
SIS

The amendments atlow entities 1 use the equily method w gecount [or investmens in
subsidiaries, joint vencures and agsociates in their separate finaucial statements. Buotirics
already applying PFRS and ciccilng to chanpe 1 the equity methad in its separate financial
statemnenis will have to apply that change retiospectively. These amendments do not have any
impact on the Comuany™s Hnancial statements.

Anped Inprovemenis to PERSy 2072 - 2074 Cyede

Amendment to PFRS 5, Mor-curvent Assets Held for Sale omd Discontimed Gperations,
Charges i Méthods of Dixposal

T amendrnent is appiied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through
sale ta a disposal through Sistribistion to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be
& new plan of disposal, rather il is a continuation of the original pan. There {5, theretore, no
interruption of the applization of the requirements in PFRS §, The amendment also clarifies
that changing the divposal method dozs not change the date of classification.

Amendment to PEFRS 7, Fiwemcial Instrumenis: Disclosures, Servicing Contracts

PERS 7 requires an entiry to provide disclosures for any contiguing involvement in &
trunsferred asset that 15 devecognized 1o s entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing
contract that includes a fee can constitute continning imeateament in a Mnancis] asset. An
entity must assess the nanue of e feo and wrangemend against the guidance for continuing
involvemant in PFRS 7w order 1o assess whether the disclosures are recuired. The
amendment is ta be applied such thal the assessment of whish servicing contracts ennsticute
continuing involvement will need to be done retrospectively. Howewver, comparative
disciosures are not required to be provided for any period beginning betore the annual period
ine which tho entity fArst applics the amendments,

Amendment 10 FERS 7, Appifcabiiiny of ihe dmendments (o0 PFRS 7 io Condensad bulerim
Fineciol Statements

Thig amendment s applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on oftsetting of
financial assets and financial labilities are not wquiied in the condensed Interiin fneucial
report unless they provide a significant update 4 the infarmarion reported in the mast recent
annnal yeport,

Amendment o PAS 19, Emplopee Bengfite, Discowmt Roya: Reglona! Market e

This amendment is applied prospsctively and clarilies tat inarked deptli uf Liigh guatity
corporate honds is assessed based on the currency i which the obligation is dencminated,
rather than the country whers the obligation 1s lncaled. When there is no deep market for high
quality cerporete bords in that curreney, government bond retes must be used.

Amendmient W PAS 34, fererim Floanoial Reporiing, Disclosure of Iformcnion “Elsewhere [1
the Interim Fingmeial Repor’

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim diselosures
must sither be in the intarim fivancial steternonis or incorperated by crosy-roforunse botween
the interim financial statements and wheraver they are inelnded within the gieater interim
(inanctal report (o.g., 10 the munageme commentsry or visk report).
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Pronouncements issued but not yet eifcotive are listed below. Unless utherwise indicated, the
Company docs not expeet that the future adoption of the said pronoancements to have 2 significan:
impact oa 45 finaneisl statements. The Cainpany inieads wadopt e [ullowing prenouncementy
whan they booome eMeerive.

Efficdve heginning o or afier Javicy 1, 20607

+  Amendment to PFRS 12, Clarification of the Suope of the Standard (Part of Answd
{mpravemests 1o PFARS: 3014 - 2016 Cycle)
The amendments ¢larily that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating
1o summarized financial wformation, apply 1o an entity's [nterest in a subsidiary, a joint
VRIS or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is
classilied {or ineluded in & disposal group that is classified) as held for sale. Those
amendments sre not expected 10 have any impact 1o the Conipany.

»  Amendments W PAS 7, Starement of Cash Flows, Disclosure fnitiorive
The amandments o PAS 7 require an entity 1o provide disclosures that enable ngers of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities artsing frow fiwncing activities,
inctitding hoth ehanges arising from cash flows and non-cash ehanges (such as foreign
exchange gaing of lesses). On initial appiication of the amendments, entities are not ceguired
la provide coniparative information for preceding peripds. Early upplication of the
amendmenis is permited. Applicaticn of amendments witl result ia additional disclasnres in
the 2017 finencial statements of the Company.

& Amendments o PAS 12 fncome Toxes, Recogmtion of Deferred Tax Assers for Unvealized
Loxnses
The amendinents elartfy that an eniity needs 10 consider whethar tax taw restetals the soureas
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions o the reversal of thal deductille
temporary difference . Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity
should determing fulure axabls profits and explsin the circomstanees in which caxable profit
may ineiude the recovery ol some assets for more than their canrying amount,

Emtities ars requived 1o apply the wnondments refrospecitvely, llowever, on infdal applicalion
of the amendments, the change in the apening eguity of the earliest ecnmparative period may
be secoguised W opening retained sarnings (or in another component of eguity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained samings and other
components of cquity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact. Barly application
of the amendments is permifted. Thess amendiments arc not expocted 1o have any impact 10
the Company.

Efective beginning on or dfter Foman §, 2018

e Amendments to PERS 2, Share-based Pepment, Clussificorion and Measurement of Share-
based Paymenr Transactions
The ansendinsnls o PFRS 2 address tires main areas: \he elfecis of vesting conditions ox the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the clzesification of a share-
bused payment transaction with net seftlement features for withholding tay abligations: and
the accounting where a modification to the tenms and conditions of a share-bascd payment
wansaction changes its classification from cash sertled to aquity sartled.

AR CETEA




-B.

O adoption, erbilies arg required o apply the amendments wilhout regtating peiar pertods, but
relraspestive application s permitted iF clasted for all dhree amendments and i{ other criteria
are met, Carly applization of the amendmenis s permitted. These amendmenis av: not
expected o have any Impact W the Company,

Amendments o FYRS 4, fesarance Coniracis, Appiving PFRS Y, Financed fastrranens, with
PFRE 4

The amendments address concemns arising from implementing PFRS ¢, the aew financial
istrumen(s standard befors implementing the Fortheoming insurance contracts standard,
They allow eitilies 1o choose between the averlay approach and the deferral approach to deal
with the transilional chailenges. The overlay approach gives all entities that issue insurance
contracis the option 1 recognizs in other comprehensive income, rafher than profit ar loss, (he
volatility 1hat could arise when PERS 9 is applied before the new insurance contracts standard
12 isstied. On the other hand, the deferral approach gives cntities whose activitiss arc
predominanily conmected with insurance an aptional temporary exemption from applying
PERS 9 until the arhier of applivation ol the fortheoming insurance conlracts standard ar
Tsnuary |, 2021,

The overlay approach and the deferral approach will only be available te an entity if it has uot
previously applied PYRS 9. These amendments are not spplicable to the Company.

PFRS wi5, Revenue Fom Comracts with Customors

PFRS 15 esiablishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenus arising From centracts
with custommers. Under PFRE 15, revenns is recognized at an amount that i eflous the
cansideration 1o which an entity expects ta he entifled in exchange for transferring gonds or
services [o a customer. The principles i PTRS 15 provide a more structured approach to
MeasTiz and FECOgnizing revenue,

The pew revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition reguirements under PERS:. Either a fult or modified refrospective application i
required jor annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, This standard 15 not
gpplicable ro the Campary.

PFRS 9, Financicd Instrunens

PFRS 3 reflects all phases of the Hinancial mstruments project and replaces PAR 39, Financial
Instrumcats: Recogrition and Measerenent, and all previows versions of PRRS &, The
standar] infraduces new requirements for classification aud measurement, impairment, and
fiedge acconmting, PFRS 9 is eftective for annual perieds beginning on or after

January 1, 2018, with early application permitted  Retrospective applization is required, but
providing comparative Information is not compulsory. For hedge acconnting, the
requirements are generally applied prospectively, with spue limited exceptions, The
Campany did not sarly adopt PFRS 9.

The adoption of PFRE O will have an effect on the classification and measurcment of the
Company’s financial assets and impairmens melhodolegy for Anancial asgers, bat will have no
impact on the classification and measurement of the Company®s fnancial abilities, The
Company is eurrently assessing the impael of adopling this standard.
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Amendments 10 PAS 28, Measuring an Assocuide or Joinit Verriure af Fodr Vodne (Part of
Annarcd Improvements o PFRS: 2014 - 2016 Cyele)

The amenscrments clarify that an entity that s a ventore capital arganization, ar other
qualifying entity, may clect, atinitial recognition o ae invesiment-by-nvesiment basis. 1o
medsure iy mvestments in associates and joint ventures af fir value through prafit ac loss
They alse clarify shul il un entity that is not itself an investment sntity has an nlerest i an
associate or joint venture thal is an investrmaent eility, the entity roay, when applying the equity
meihod, slect to retain the fair value measursment applied by that investmeur entity associste
or juini venture to the investment entity associate’s oF joint venlure’s interests in subsidiaries.
This wlection is inede separaehy for each investment entily associale or joint ventire, at the
later of the date on whicl: (8} the invesiment entity associzte or joint vaallure is initially
recognized, (b) the assaciate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) the
invesument entity associale or joint ventuze first becomes a parent. These amendments should
be applied retrospectively, with earlier applivation perminted. These amendments are not
expected to have any impact to the Company,

Amendments to PAS 40, Imvestmenr Property, Transfery of fnvesimens Property

The amendments clarify when an emity should mansfer property, inchuding property ander
construstion or development into, or oui of investment propety, The wnsudinents state that a
change in use occurs when the proporty mests, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
propurty snd theie is evidence of the change i use. A mere change in management's
mtentions for the use of a property does not pravide evidence of a change in use. The
emendinents should be applied prospectively to changes in use that coeur on or aiter the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first appliss the amsndoeats.
Retrospeclive application is only pemitted if this s possible withont the wse of hindsight.
These amendments are not expocted to Jive avy bupict o the Company.

Phifippine nierpretation 1IFRIC-22, Foraign Curvency Transactiony ane Advance
Consideration

The urerpretation clarifies that in detarmining the spot exchange rate Uy s o1 initial
meeognition of the related asset, cxpense o inwomes {or part ol iL) on the deresognition af &
non-mnetary asset or non-monetary liabilily relating w advance concideration, the date of Lthe
iransacticn (s the date on which 2n entlty inidially recognizes the nenmaneiary asset or ngn-
moneiary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple paymonts or
receipts in advance, then the entify must detenmine a date of the transactions for each paymeani
or receipt of advance consideration, The mtsrpretation may be applied on a fully retrospective
basis. Falities mzy apply the interpretation prospectively 1o all assets, expenses aad ineome in
its scope that are intially recognized on or alier the beginning of the repaning period in which
the entity first applies the interpretation ar the beginning of 2 prior reporting penad presented
25 comparative information m the financial stateinenis of the reporting period in which the
entity ficst applics the interpretation. The Company is currently asssssing the impact of this
standard.

fiffective beginming on or gfter Jenuery 1, 2049

PERS 16, Leasss

Under the new standard, lessees will no longer elassify their leases as either operating or
Flanee leasus i aceordance with PAS 17, Leases. Rather, lessees will apply the single-assey
madel. Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for most
lzases an their balance sheets, and subsequently, will depreciale the Jeass assels and recognize
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inmenest on the lease Hubilitles i their profif or loss. Leases with a tarm of 12 months o7 less
or for which the underlying asset is of low value are exempted from these roquirenients,

Ihe accounting by lessers is substantially unchanged as the new standard cailes Fawurd the
priveiples of lessor necounting under PAS 17, 1 zasars, however, will be required (o disclose
mure informaation i theiv finaucfal slalemens, partiowiany on the risk exposure to residual
valug,

linrities may early adopt PFRS 18 but only it they have also adopted PFRS 15, When
adupting PFRS 16, an entity is permitied 1o vse eithar 4 full retrospective or a madified
retrospecave appreach, with options 10 use certain traansition reliets. The Company is
current.y assessing the impact of adopting FFRS 16 and plans w adopt the new seandard on
the reguired effective date once adopted tocally, This standard has no significant impaci to the
Company.

Deferreid effectivicy

*  Amendiments 10 FFRS 10 and TAS 28, Safe or Consribraion of dssels between an Investor aad
irs Associgte or Johst Venture
The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is selil vr coutribuled (o an associate or joint ventore, The
graendments clanfy that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer (o an associate or
Juint venture involves a business as defined in PTRS 3, Businesy Combinaiions. Any 2ain or
loss resuliing from the sale or cantribution of assets that does net constitute a business,
hosaver, s recognized only (o the extent of unrelaled inveslors' Interests in the assnciare ar
joint venture,

On January 13, 2016, the Financiaf Reporting Standards Council postpencd the original effective
date of lasuary |, 201 6 of the sai¢ amendments until the Internarional Accounting Stundards
Board has complered its broades review of the tessarvh project on equily accountding that may
result. in the simplification of accoumting for such wensactions and of oiher aspects of accounting
For associates and joint ventures, These amendments are not expected 1o have anv impact 1 the
Coinpany.

Cosh
Cash includes cash in banks which are stated at face value and eam inferest af prevailing bank
depusil rates.

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instroments at faiy valoe at cach reporting date.

Fair value is the price that woald b reevived Lo sell un assel or paid o transfer a lability in an
orderly fransaction between markel parlicipants at the measurewent dare, The fabe valuc
measurentent is based on the presumption that the ransacrion 1o sell the asset or transfer the
Lability takes place sither:

e In the principal market for the asset or liahility, or

* i U absenve ol a prircipal market, in the most advaniageous market for the asset or Habiliny.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be aceessible o the Company.

1 TR T




The fair véhie of an assel or a Hability is measured using the assumptions that nmahe pArGiCi pant iy
would itse when pricing the assel or lability, assuming that mardet participanty act o their
ceonomnc best interest,

A lair vadue measaremnent of a nonfiuancial asset lakes o account a market pariicipant’s amliny
o gengrate eeonemic benefits by using the asset an the higlest and best vse or by sclling it 1o
another market pasticipant that would use the asset in its highesi and best use.

The Comipany nses valuarion techmiques thal are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufcicnt clata are avallable to measure fair vatoe, maximizing the use of relevant observabic
wplts and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

All asgers und liabidities for whick falr valoe is measured or diselosed in the financeal statermeants
are calegorized within the fair value hiermchy, desceibed as follows, based on the lowest level
urput that is significant to the fair value measuremeni 45 & whale;

+  Level |~ Cuoted Gunadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical asseis or ljahilities

< Level 2 - Valuatien fechniques for which e lowest tevel mpuogthat 1s significant uy the fair
value measurement is direcily or indirectly observable

s Level 3 - Valuation fechniquses Lor which 1he lowest level input that is significant to the fabr
value meagurement is unobservable

For assois and liabalilics thal are mouognized in the financial statemants on a recurring basis, Ui
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hisrarchy by re.
aszessing cateprorization (based on the lowest level input that iz significant 10 the fur value
mezsurement as a whole) atthe and of 2ach reporing poriod.

Detz of recognition

The Company recognizes a financial asser or a financial Habilily in the siatement of financial
position when it beromes 4 party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, Purchascs or
aales OF financial assers that require delivery of assets within the time frame astablished by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on tie settlement date,

iticd recugnition of financiul essely ond financial labiirtes

Al finaneial assets and financial liabilities are jnitially recognized at fair value, Except for
Tinancial asgers and financial liabilities at FVPL, the mital measwrement of financial assers
inctudes transaction ¢osts, The Company classifies its financiz] assets within the scope of PAS 39
1 the following catepories: financisl assets at FYPLL, hetd-to-maturiey (FITM) financial assets,
AFS financial assets and loany and receivables, Financial fiabilities are classifled inio financiz]
liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilitics, The ¢lassification depends on the purpose for
which the financial asscls were acquired or financial liabilities incuered and whether they are
quoted in an active market. The Company delermines the classification of its investmerts at initial
recogiiition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evalwates such designation sl svery reporting
date,

As of December 31, 2016 and 2013, the Company’s financial assers and financial hahdities are of
the nature of loans and receivabies and other financial Gabilities, rospestively,
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Determination of fair veduwe

The fair valee of finaneial assets and financial Babilittes raded in astive markets s bused oa
uoied market price at e reporting date. A market is reparded a5 aclive if quoted priees arg
rendily and regularly availuble from an exchanse, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing seeviee,
ur regulavory agency, and those prices represent actual and reeularly OCCUrting market fransactions
o an arnr's lengeh busts. The quoted market price wsed for finaucial assets held by the Company
is the current bud pricz, These instrunents are included n Level 1. Instruments ineluded i

Level T compuise primarily tisied equity invesiments as available for sale securitics.

The fair value of asseis and liabilitios thal are not traded in an active market (for exampe, over-
the-counler derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valoation techniques
maxinize ihe use of observable market dara where it is available and rely as lile a¢ possible on
entity specific estimates. If all sigaificant inputs requized to Fair value an instruwment sre
observable, the asset or liability is included in Level 2. 1f one or mare of the signifizant inputs is
not ased on observable market dara, the asset or labitity is included in Leval 3,

“hope { difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair yalye of other
observable current market transactions in the smne instrusient or based on a valuation technique
whase variables include only daia from obsarvable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair valve (a 'Day 17 difference) in the siaiement of
comprebensive income unless it qualifies for recognilion as seme other type of asset. In cases
where use ls made of dats which is not ebscrvable, the difference between the transavtivn price
and model valee is only recognized in the statement nf comprehensive income when the inputs
becoms observable or when the instrumend is dutecognized, For each ransaciion, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognixing the *Day 1* dilference amouent.

Loanis emdd recetvabler

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finaneial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturines that are not quoted in an active warket. Thess ars nul entered into with the
mdention of wnmediate of shori-term resale and are nod designated as AFS financial assete or
financial assets at "VEL.

Afier inidal measurement, loang and receivables are subssguently measured at amortized crar
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impainnent. Amatized cost is caloulated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fses that are integral parts of
the offective interest rate. The amortization is included in the interest income in (he statement ol
comprehensive income. The lasses arising from impairment of such loans and recejvables aro
recognized as provision Tor impairment losses in the Company statement of comprehensive
income.

Loans and receivables ave included in current gusels if mawrity is within twelve months froen the
reponting date. Orherwise, these are classified ay nancuirent assers.

As of Decemien 31, 2016 and 201 5, the Company’s loans and receivables include casli, dividonds
receivable znd due from a velated party,

Cithar finamicial Hahilitiag

Other fuancial labilities pertain to financial Habilites not classified or desigatad as financial
liabilities at FVPL where flie substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company
having ar obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset 1o the holder or to setile the
obligation cther than by the cxchange of a fixed amount of cash.
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After imtial messceent, oiher linaneial liabilities are subsoquently measured ol amortized cos:
using the eflsctive interest methad, Amortized cosl is caloulated | by laking inte accuunt any
digcount tr preatinm an (e issue 2nd fees that are integral parts of the alfective nrerest rute.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company’s other finaneial liabilities include aceomnts and
ather payables (excludiog withliolding taxes payvable) and due to retated parties,

Lupsirmenl of Financial Assels

The Company assesses at each ruporling daie whether there is ohjective evidence that u financisl
assel or proup of similar financial assets is bnpaired. A fisancial assst or a proup of similar
financial assets is deemed o be impatred if, and only if, there is ohjective evidence of impaimment
as a reslt of one ar more events that hag occurred afler the initial recognition of the asset (an
mectrred “loss event™) and that loss event (or evenis) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows ol the financial asset or the group of similar financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairmenl may include indications that the bostower or a group of borrowers 1s
experiencing significant financial diffisulty, detault or delinguency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankniptey ar other fipzncial reorganization aund
where observable data indicate that thare s measurable decrease in the estimated fulure cash
Hows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions tiat correlats with defaults.

Loy el regeivables

Far loans and recetvables cardied af amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether objective
evidence of impaimnent exists trdividueally for financial assers that are individually significant, or
collecttvely for financlal assets that are nof individually significant. If the Company determines
that o objective ¢yidence of impairment exisis for individually assessed financial asset, whether
sipnificant or not, it includes the gsset in a group of similar financlal assets with similar cradis risk
charaeteristics and collectively assesses for impaimment. Those characteristios are relevant to the
estimation of futurs cash tlows for group of such assots by Using indivative of the debuoes” ability
to pay el amaunts due aceording 1o the contractual terme of the assets betng svaluated. Assats
that are individuslly assessed for impairment and {for which an impairment loss s, or continues to
he, recognized are not included in g gollective assessment for impaimaent.

If there is ohjective evidonce thet an impaitment loss has bean nowed, the anount of the loss is
measured as the difference befween the asset’s carrying amoumt and the present value of the
estimated fubne cash flows (excluding Tuwre credic lesses thar have not been incurred). The
present value of estinrated cash flows is discounted atthe financial asset’s original effootive:
fnerest vate, 1A ¥oan has 2 variable interest rate, the discournt rate tor measuring any impaitinen
loss iz the current effective interest cate, The carrymg umount of the asset is readuced threongh uss
of an allowanee account and the amaunt of foss is charged to the statement of comprehensive
fneome. Inferest incore continnes ro be rscognized based on the original effective interest rate of
the asser. Loans, togeiher with the associated allowance sccounts, are written off when there is ao
realistic prospect of funure recovery and all collaleral has been realized. If, in a sul:sc:qucnt SEAr,
the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases beeause ol an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impaivment Ioss is reversad. Any
subsequent reversal of an impatimsnt foss is revognized in the statement of comprehens ive
e, o the extent that the exrrying value of the asset docs nol exceed its amortized cost at the
reversal date.

For the purpose of a eollective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are mronped oo the basis
of eredit risk characteristics such as customer type, paynient history, past-due status and erm.
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Fumire zash flows i a group of similar financial assets tat sre collectively evalvated tor
impairmsif are estimated on the basis of historical Joss experience for agsets with vredit risk
Characleristios similar 1o these in the growpy. Mistorica! luss experietice 1s adjusted on the basis of
surpent observable data to 1eflest the vifeuls of current condizions that did ot alfect the pericd on
whieh the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effscr of eondiions in ihe
historical peviod thal do not exist currendy. The medadoiogy and assumptions ased far
estimating {uture cash fenws are reviewed regulazly by the Company to reduce any diferences
between loss estimates and actnal losg experience.
Derecomiition of Financial Assets and Financial Lisbilities
findir il ogsel

A finanginl asset (or, wihere applicalle, a part of & financlal asser or part of grovap ot simikar
fnancial assels) is derseognized when:

) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, oc

b the Company has tvansferced its rights to receive cash lows from the asset or has assumed an
nbligation to pay the received cush flows in full withowt material delay to a third party under a
"pass-throvgh’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all 1he
risies wnd rewards of the assct or (b) the Company has neither wansferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred contrel of the assct,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash Flows froin an assst or has entered
intria pasa-throngh arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the rigks and
rewards of ownership. When it has nelther transferred nor retained substantialfy alf of the risky and
rewards of the asset, nor transferrsd contral of the ssset, the Company continues (o recognize the
transferved assel to the extent of (he Company’s continumg involvement. [n that case, the
Company alse recognizes oo assoctated lability. The transferred asset and the associated labilily
arc measured on a basis that retlects the rights and obligations that the Company has

retained. Coutinuing involvement that whes the foom of 2 guarantee over the transferred asser iy
measired ar the Jower of the oripinal carrving amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required 10 repay.

Financial Licheine

A financial [iability is derocognized when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or
canceiled or expired. Where an exiziing financial lability /3 replaced by another from the same
leuder on sabstwiially different termos, or the terns of an existing Hability are substamially
modified, such an excbange or modification is treatsd as a derecognition of the originae] lishfiity
and the recognition of a new fability, and the difference in the respective carving amounts is
recognized in the Company statement of comprehensive income,

Offsetiing of Flosocial Assels and Finaneial Liabilities

Financial asests and financial abilities are offset and the net wnount is reported in the statement
of financial pesition if thers is a currently enforeeable legal nght to set off the recognized amounts
and there is intention te settle ov u not basis, or o realize the asset and settlz the liability
simultaneously. The Company assesses that it has & currently enforceahle right of offset if tlhie
right is not sentingent o & future ovenl, and is legally enforceable in the nornal courss of
business, avent of defaulr, and event of inzolvency or bankruptey of the Company and all of Lhe
COURRLIPAITiES.
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Prepavments and Qier Cumsnr Assers

Other agsets in the farm of inpor vatue-addad tat is recognized as assets 1o the extent i is probable
taat the benaeltt will flow (o Lhe Company, This i derccognized when Were is o legally
enforeeabls vight to apply the recngnized amaunts against the relajod tax Tiabilicy within the period
preseribed by the relevant tax lows.,

nipatnen! of Nonfinanzial Assers

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication (hat an asset may be
impaired. If any suc indication existe, or when anoual impainment testing for an asset is require,
the Company makes an cstimate of the assed’s recoverable amoant. Ap asgst’s recoverable
amotint iy the higher of an asset’s or cash-gencrating unit’s fair value less costs 1o sell and fts
vabue in use and s detenmined for an individual asser, unlass the assel does not generate cash
milows thai ars Jargely independert of those from other ussets or group of assets. Wihere the
carrying amount of an asser exceeds its recoverable amount, the assat is considered impaired and
is written down (o i3 vecoverable amount,

[n assesying value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their prasent vaine
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument market assessments of the time value of meney
antl the risks specific m the aszet. lmpairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in
the staccment of comprahensive income [n those expense categories consisient with e fupstion of
the impaiied asset.

An gssessment is made at each reporting date as to whether thess is any indicalion that previousty
recognized impairmant logses mey no longer exist or may heve decressed. I such indication
exists, the recovarable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there hag been a change in the estimates used 1o determine the asset’s recovernble mmount
since the last impairment loss was recognized. 17 that is the case the carrying amount of the asse
i incressed fo s recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot excesd the canyiag amount
ihat would have been detenmined, net of depraciatian, had no irapaivment loss been recognized for
the ass1 in prior years, Such reversal ks recognized in the starement of comprebensive Income
unless the assat is carried at revalned amount, in which cave, the reversal is treated as a revaiuation
increase. After such reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future penods to allocate the
asget’s revised carrying amaount, less any residusl value, on a systematic basis over its remaining
uséful life.

Investment in Subgidiury

Invesinent in subsidiary i3 accountad {or using the cost methad 1255 any accurtulated impaimen:
it use, in e separate financial statemenis of the Company in aceordance with

FAS 27, On aoquisttion dite of the Invesiment, the excess ol the eost of investmant aver the
investor’s share in the nef fair value of the tnvestee’s idenrifinbic avsets, lubititdes and sontingent
liabilitics is inchufed in the carrying amount of the {nvestment and not amortized.

The Company contrals an juvestee when it is exposed, or las rights, to vartable retans from #s
invelvernent with the investee and has the ability to affes! those retorns through its power over ths
investae,

The Company controbs an investes if and oudy [ the Company has all the following:

o power over e investes (e, sxisting rights thal give it the current ability to direct the relevam

activitios of the investee);
& evposurs, or rights, to variable reforng from its involvement with the investee; and
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v the ubility to nse i1z power over the investes to alliet ls retims.

1'he l"‘ompmw recaguizes mgome from Ihe investimant ouly 1o the extent that the anpam
eeceives disgibotions from accumulated income of the subsidiary arising after the dafe of
clL'q\.[I:a.ll.lf.JIL Disutbiian reeeived in exvess of such income is regarded as a recovery of
investmant and are recogrized as # raduction of die cost of the investinenl

Eguity
The Compary considers he underlying sobstance and sconomic reality of its owil oguiny
trstruments and not merely its lega! forn in dewermining its proper classification,

Capiml stock

The Company records common stocks at par value and the amount of the contribution in excess of
par value is acsounted for as share premium. [neremontal costs insureed direatly atiributable {0
the issuance of new slares are deducted from procesds.

Retained Eaenings fdeficit

Retained varnings represent net accumulated earnings (losses ) of e ('nmpany. nel of dividends
deciared, less any adjusimets arising frons application of new accounting standards, policies or
courectious of srrors applisd rerospecrively,

Revenue Recognition

Revenue i recognized 1o the extent that it 1s probable that the cosnomiv benelils will Row to the
Company and the revenue can be measured reliably regardless when the payment is being made.
Revenae is measursd at the fair value of the consideration recelved, sxeluding diseounts, returns,
rebates and sales tax. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements againgl specific eriteria in
order 1o determine if i1 iz acting as a principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it i
acting us a principal in al] of its revenue arrangoments,

The tollowing specific recogniiion ariteria must also be met before revenus s recognized:

Liividend ingcome

Dividend inceme i¢ vecognized when the Company'a right to recclve payment is established,
which i geasrally when sharcholders approve the dividend. This is recopnized #s dividend
income i the statemont of comprehensive income,

Mserest oome
Interest income is recopnized on a ime-proportion basis using the effective intorost method.
Imerest income from bank depasits is presented net of applicable tax withheld hy the banks.

{Mher income
Other inconse i3 recopsized when samed,

Eapense Recggnition

Expenses are recopmized in profit or kass when decrcase in future cconemic benefit related 1o a
decreass in an assel or an inerease in a liability has arisen that can be raliahly measuved.

Expanseg are recagnized in the statement of comprehensive income:
s Onthe basis of & direct association berween the cosis incurred and the sarning ol specific
iterns of incame;
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»  Cothe basis of systematic and rational gllocation procedures when economic bunefis are
expectedd 0 anise aver seversl sczounting pericds and the association san only be broadly or
mdireclly determined: or

» lminediately wiwn expenditure produces no future economic benefits o when, and w (s
extent it future economic benefits do nor qualify or ceass 1o qualily, for resogaition in the
statzment of financial posiiion us e assel

inegue Faxes

Phetax expense for the pariod comprises of cuurent and deferred tax. Tax is vecognized in prafit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recogpized in other comprehensive income or
direatly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other compreheusivs income or
direcihy In equity.

Crrvane ooy

Current1ax assets and Habilities for the current und prier petiods are measured at the athount
sxpected to be recovered from or paid to the laxation authorities. The tax rates and 1ax laws used
1 compute the amount are those that have been enacled or substantively enactad ut the reporting
daig,

Cursent Income tax relating to tems recoanized directly in equity is recognized in aguity and not
i1 the swtement of comprehensive income. Management periodically evaluates pusitions taken in
the tax reiums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 1o
interpretation and establishes provisiuns where appropriare,

Laferred rox

Deferred tax ic provided using the balunes shet lability method an all temporany diffsiences,
with cerlain exceplions, at the reporting date hetwesn the tay bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial repocting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are 0ot reeopnized when they arise from the initial recopaition of an asset or
liability in « transacticn that is nor & business eombination wnd, at the time of transaction, affects
nelther the accounting income nar taxable income or loss. Delerred tax liabiliiss are not pravided
on nontaxable tvmporary differences associated with invéstments i1 duwestio subsidiaries,
ass50c01ates and merests it joint ventires,

The carrying amount of delerred tax assets is reviewed at sach reporting date and reduosd 1o the
extenr thar it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow
all or part of the deferecd tan assct 10 be utilized. Uniecagnized defoercd tax assots are reassessed
al each reporting date aned are recognized o the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow deferred tax assets t be wtilized.

Dreferred tax assels and liabilities are measored at the tax rates that are expecied to apply to the
period when the asset iz realized or the Nability is settled, based on tax rates and tas. laws that leve
been cnscted or substantively enacted ar the reporting date, bovermeants o the deterred tax assets
and liabilities arising from changes in tax raley sre vredited 1 or charged against income for the
periad.

Beferred tax relating to ilems recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or foss.

Deferred 1a¥ itemns are recognized in comelation Lo the underlying transaction eithar in OCT o
diveatly i equity.
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Deferred tax assets and defeired 1y liabilides are offser, i laoally enforceable risht exists 1o
oliset current tux assets against current tax labilities and the deferred taxes velate 10 thie same
Lexable entity and the same taxaticn authority.

Provisions

Pravisions arc recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive 45 a
result of a past event, B Ix prabable that a0 outflow of vesources embadying ceonomis beneffts wilk
be required to sedtle Lhe ohiigation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Company expects a provision (o be reimbursed, the reimbursegrent iy
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expanse
relating o a provision is presented in the statemens of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

Contingent Liabilities are not recogaized in the fnancial statements. They are disclosed nnless the
nessibility of an outflow of resowrces embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assats
are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when au inflow of sconomnic bencfit 1s
probahie.

Events after the Reoorting Date

Pest year-end events up to the date when the financial statements are antharized for issue that
provids additional infonnation abour the Company’s position at each teparting date (divsting
gvents) are reflected in the finansial statements, Posl year-snd events that are not adjusting evels
are disclosed i the notes lo the Nuaocial sterments, when matesial,

3. Significan( Accounting Jadgmends an Esihnstes

Fhe prepacaiion ol the Campainy s financial statlements requires management 10 wiake judgments,
estimates and assemptions that affeet the reported snounts of revenues, expenges, asscls and
ltabiifties, and [he accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assurnpiioms and estigraies
conld result in outoomes that require a material adjustment 1o the carrying amourt of assets or
labilities aflected in fulire periods.

Recogmivian of deforved tax avsers

As of December 31, 2016 and 2013, the Company did not recognize deterred income lax assets on
deductible temporary differences and carry forward benefit of MOLCO 20d MCIT amounting
£30.89 millon and £32 .01 million, respectively, 8s management assessed (hat there will be no
futurs available toxable income against which the deferred income iax assets can be utilized {see
Nata [ 1),

Provisiea for impeirment losses of financial assey

The Company maintains an allowanze for impairment losses ut a leve) considered adeguate to
pravide for porential uncollectible reovivables, The Jevel of this gllowanee is evaluated by
manapenent based on collection expenence and other factors that affect the collestability of the
aceounts. Managemens asscesed that #1.87 million receivables From ofticers and stockholders
were inpaired us of December 31, 2016 and 2015 (see Note 9.

Provision for impatrment Tassey of norgfincial asseds

The Company assesses impatrment on nonfinancial assets (ie. inventory, property and equipment
and oller assets) whengver svents or changes in cirewnstances iudicate that the carrying amount
of an assal mav not be recoverable.
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The fuctors thatthe Company considers imporant which could Diggar an mpaiment review
inchide the festornwing:

= signilieuni underperformancy relative 1o expecred historical or projected fuiare operating
resulls:

+ significant changes in the manner of Gse of the aGquired assets or the steate gy Lor averal!
business; and

¢ significant negative mdustiy or eeonomic trends.

£ such indications are present and where the carrying amonet of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is congiderad impaired and s written down (o s recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount 15 the higher of an assei’s fair value less costs 1o sell and value-in-use. The
fair value fess costs to sell % the amount abtainable from the sale of an assst in an arm’s lengih
transaction while value-in-use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected 1 arise
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Recoverable
ginounts wre esiimated v individual assets or, iFit i not possible, For the cosli-gensrating unii ta
which the asset belongs.

In detarraining the prosent valus of estimated furw e vash Nows expecied to be generared from the
continued vse of the assets, the Company is required to make estimates and aszumptions that can
meterially affiect the Onancial swatements. Manapement assessed that inventories and propersy and
equipment amounting to 714 million and #11.70 milkion wers flily impaired, while uther
CUrrEnt agsets amounting o 8080 million way imparred as of Decamber 31, 2016 and 7015

Cash

Thig account sonsists of cash in banks amounting to 2564,340 and B250.715 million as of
Docernber 31, 2016 und 2015, respectively.

Cash In banks earn intares at the prevailing bank deposit rates ranging from L.25% 10 1.13% and
0.5%% te 1.13% in 2016 and 2615, respoctively,

Interest income eansd fraiu bank deposits amounted o B10,508 and 85,980 in 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

Prepayments and Other Current Assets

This account consisty of

i - 2016 2015
Input value-added tax (VAT 22,157,028 Pl,343,485
Trepaid expenses _ 0,154 6,830
2,193,298 1,330,313
Less allowance for impainnent losses TOR, 760 798,769
....... £1,304,50 P331546

Inpur VAT arises from domestic purchases of goods and services and may ba offset against auiput
Tax.
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Iuvestutent in » Subsidiary

This account perrains 1o the Comnpany®s sequisition of 100% ownership interest i LBCE, b a
Seed ot Thansier daled Septemnber 24, 2013, the Company purchased from LBODE he shares of
stoek of LBCE at a total eash considecation of B| 38467 million. it was also Jrevionsly agraed
thal the Company’s advances to LBLC amounting to #3881 million will be gol-ofT againze the
vemaining unpaid balance,

Liividend Declarations of & Subsidiary

On September 30, 2016, the BOD of LBCE approved the declaration of cash dividends arpoRnting
to #447.71 miltion or FOA3 for every issued and outstanding conmmon share. O Noversher 24,
2016, through a Memorantum of Agrecment, LBCDC assigned to LBClT a portion of its payable
o LBCE amounting to B263.31 million. The same amount way offset against the dividends
payable of LBCE ta LECH. LBCE settied 263,39 mitlion in cash and the outstanding dividends
receivablz ol £119.00 million as of December 31, 2016 is expected to bi senled in 2017 {sec
Note 12},

Acoounts and Other Payables
This account consists of:

2014 2015

Acconnis pavable BI31 .45 P
Wiiltholding tax payahle 3,889 15,647
Acerned expensss - 871,178
E135,634 BREn B3

Accomnts payable ad accrued expeases arise From regular transactions with suppliers and service
providers. These are noninteresi-bearing and are normally settled on one to 60-day term,

Withliolding tax pavuble perfains 1o faxes withheld on pavment to suppliers and employecs’
compensation whish aro scitlod on a monthly basis.

Cepriiad Siveh
The detatls of the Company’s capital stock as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 follow

1| £
Number of
ahares Anzount

Capital stock - BT par value
Autharized 2.060.000,000  22,060,000,000
Issued and outstanding 1425865471 LARSB65471
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oty pf
Sharves Ameunt
Cupitab stock - #1 par vale
Autharized shares:
Beginning of year 0000000 PAOD,060.004)
incresase . 900,000,000 L200,000.000
Balance at end of year 2.000,000,000 B2 000,000,000
Issaed and cutstanding shares
Balanes at beginning of vear 40,890 000 40,894 600
Effect of issuanue of shares 1,382 9656471 1, 384,966,447
Balance at end of vear VAZS 8as,471 BLA4I5,B6547)1

Increage in authorized capital stock

On Gotober 12,2015, SEC approved the increase of LBCH?s conmnon stock fiem
BI0G.00 wmiltion, dividad intg 10000 millior shares with par vahiz of 81 00 per share to
BL.00 billion, divided inta 2.00 billiun slures with par value of 21.00 per share.

Lssuances of new shares

e« On May 18, 2013, LBCDC subscribed to 92,101,000 coumnion shaves vai of the unissied
authorized capital steck of the | BCH or approximately §9. 10% of the 1otal authoriaed capital
stock of LBCH, befose the approval of the increase in authorized capital stock by applying the
deposits for future sieeks subseription made by LBCDC amounting to 259,161,000 an
Aprif 22, 2013, as the consideration for the subseribed shares at one peso (B1,00) per share.
As discussed in Note 1, sobsequenily, on July 22, 200 5, the Parent Company issued the stogk
certificates to L BCLC covering the §9,101 000 common chares,

e On Seplember 18, 2015, LRBCDC subseribed w 25% of 1,000,000,000 inersase in antharized
capiral stock or equivalent 1o 473,000,000 coramon shares at the subscription price af £1.00
per share, in exchange for cash.

U the same date, TRODRC subseribed o additional 671,873,032 common shaies out of the
unigiued capiial siock of LRCH at the subseription price of 1.00 per share, in exchange for
cash.

= Un Octeber 2, 2013, certain individuals subscribed 10 a total of 178 891839 common shares
ot of the unissued capital stock of LBCH at the subseription price of #1.00 per share, in
exehange for cash, conditioned upon and sffecrive mmediately following the approval by the
SEC of the increase in anthorized capital stock.

Cn October 14, 2013, LECH issued the stock certificates o LRODC covering the |, 146,873,632
cemmon shares while on October 21, 2015, LBCH issued (he stock certificates to certan
nddividualy eovering 178,981,839 common shares.

Retaingd Mernings

OnOctober |1, 2016, the BOD of LBCH approved the declararion of eash dividends amounting to
£313.65 million or B0.22 for every Issned and oulstanding common share, £48 38 million of
which has heen paid in cash to minority sharehoiders. Tlie portion of dividendls artributable 10
LBCDC was settled on & net basis as diselosed in derail in Mote 12
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The Compuny has inctired & share issuance cost amounting to #15.66 millier which reduced the
additional paid-in-capital as of Diecembar 31, 2015,

Related Pa riy ‘Lransactinns

Parties are ronsidered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or nudirectly, to conteol the
other parly or exercise significant inllucnce over the other party in making finaricial und sperating
decisions. Parties are alsu considered to be related if they are subject to common contral or
vommaon significant infleence which include affiliates.

Transactions with related parties are made at noreal market prices. There liave bean ne
suarantess provided or received for any related parly receivables or payables. Hxcept as oflierwise
indicated, the mustanding accounts with related parties shafl be seftled in cash. The transactions
are maife at ierns and prices agreed upon by the parties,

Detatls of related parry transactions and balances as at and for the years ended December 31 are a3
foliow:

2I11a . .
Reeeivalbie
Amaunt!Voluine Payable) Fenng Candifinne
Lige Feoms 2 echated panty
Chfieer andd wrocklnffegs
Kon=lnderest brarmg, i frsesuped,
a1 Adbvanees 12,590 L Rz due pnd demmndenle na imnsirment
Baeeivahics
Stedsrrdtiry N
b ravadends earaed and Hot-interest boari; lingeeured, no
eusiveble B30T, 612 E118, 0005 1 thie md densancdalale umpaTTEnt
Ciicers anid swpekhalifers
Lnzeearetd,
Moa irtevest beaniag,  with Wi provisoon
e.f Advanges 5845503 cut and Usumudals Tur fnpatrinzne
_ Alowance for painien - (1803503
et o e s 211,299,179
________ 2DlE ML lin L mmen aemm
Heceivable
il o KLY ol e (Fayanle} Fermy . Coaditions
Lhie P relatid partics
LHeamarte prorens
Mon-interest bearage
C} Advinos LS (15,604, 461) due ond demandanle Unsecipred
Hon-ingrest bouring
¢y Dilvidends ducturod 245,314,419 - due wnd dumendable Ungacured
Minarity prtarest
g} Oibvidends declorzd 48,575,983 =
Fubsiuleryr
T ingenzee bearing,
o) Sdvansy [ERTE RIS - gue wid denandahte 1Jnse cured
Q;j"!qr.‘rs
M- inteiest pearing;
Eb Adviners - {255,303) e and demadalle vl

(115,540 786)
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a3
Recoivalls
Altouny Volung firayoilet Tuis i
Resneableg
Fidtieers aael vtocktiediders
{nserured,
Now-interesl brasing, Wik 03 provision
&) Advanies Hel 1 865 363 e nid demsandahb Tar imsaiment
Allewanicr fo Enapairieri I3 RASAERY o
P o reluned parijpy
Litnnae paraur
Mo-ieseres] beuring,
b audvaness L5 £94 4593 SPLSERE44T) o e desandalfe Linsecaend
Sudsreirory
Meon-interesi brarmg,
) Adwinies 6,861,550 (&, k43,5549 due and dernundable Uingecurd
e
Ton-interest baatiu
______ 271 Adveiws 335303 (253,303 due o damandabiv .. Linsecuryd
— E22,813323)

a3

)

[
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These ave expenses paid by the Company on behalf of its sfficer and stnckliolder

LBCH recognized dividend income from LBOE amounting ta #447.71 million,
£119.00 miliion of which are vulstanding as of Decembor 31, 2016,

in previous years, the Company granted noninterest-beering loans 1o its previous officers and
stockliolders. These loans have no fized term of repayment. The balance of sucl loans as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015 which is shown as part of Receivables amounted to 81,47
million, whicl were fully impaived.

This nainly consists of advances for the costs directly atiributable to the amendment of
Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws and inevease in authorized cupHal stoch and
docunentary s ases related to 1ssuance of new shares.

As discussed 1n Note 11, the BOD of LRCH approved the declaration of cash dividends
amounting 1o #313.69 1nillion ur 8422 for every issued and outstanding common share, On
November 28, 2016 thiough a Memorandum of Assignment, LBCIC and LBCH agrocd 1o
offset the dividends payable of LBCH to 1. BCDC agains| LBCDC’s payable ra LECE
amounting to 26531 millien. The #265.31 million pertains to the share in dividends of
LBCLIC while ihe B48.38 million pertains 1o the share of nos-controlling interest,

These are: expenses of the Company dirzetly paid by LBCE.
Sinee the Company does not have current commercinl operation, cash requirement to cover

some aperating ¢xpenses are provided by a certain officer. The cash advances are not subjact
to interest and have ne fixed repaymens pedjod.
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(0. Operating Expenses

This accounl consists oft

- _ 2016 2915
Professional fees 24,360,893 B4 056 800
Litertainment and representation 169,750 -
Taxes and licenses 367,680 374,296
Dividends issuance cxpense 44,654 -
Impairment losses - 368,539
Cihers 1.104 897 312,515

£6,247,913 F&ald, 130

Others pertain (o transaction costs directly attributable to the listing of shares.

11. Income Taxes

The recaneitistion of the income tax on pretax income computed 4t the stalwiory ratc to ingome
laa wrponse atlributable 10 operations is as fallows:

‘ 2006 HHE
lncomao tax at the statufory income fax rale B132,4:42,050 (F2,322.45 )
Tax effects of the ems not subject to stalutory rate:
Dividend inccime (£34,312,284) -
Movemment in unreeognized deferred tax asset 1,465,218 1,850,435
N - expired 410,528 502,884
Mondeductible cxpense - 170920
MCIT (2,97G)
Interest invome subject 1o fingj tax (5.242] {1,794}
B b

The Company did not recoginize any deferred tax assets 28 of December 71, 2016 and
December 31, 2015 since it does not expoct 10 have sufficient futwe txablk nvuue against which
the deferred tux assels can be uilized.

Letails of the unrecopnized deferred tax wssets zg at Decernber 31, 2016 and December 3, 2015
are as fallows:

2016 2015
NOLCO 21,505,778 B, 142,830
MCIT 2970
Adlgwanct for impairment Insses an;
Praperty and cquipment 3,509,738 3,309,758
Inventories 2,142,781 2,143,781
Receivables 567,078 367,078
Crihisr clrveantt assets ~ 230,630 230,630
- o _ PILOGR,O7S B9.13,057
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As of Decarabior 31, 2016 and 2013, the NOLCO that can b cliired 45 deductions from Tuurs
taxable income and gxcess MCIT over RCTT that ean be credited against futurs rax Eiahilny

foliow:

2016
Year Incorred Amouat Blsed Expired Halance Expiry Dawe
206 B6,244,9:9 k- B= 76,244,019 2019
s 7844 418 - - 7,844,410 K]
2014 1.263,257 - 1,363,257 w7
2013 1,363,426 - 1.368426 - e

6 721,018 P~ P1368,426  PI3352502

203
Year Incurred Amuul Used Fxpirad Balatnece  Expins Dute
2015 B7.844,416 [ B~ R7.B4441H iUl
014 1,263,257 - 1,263,257 2017
2013 1,368,425 - - 1,368,426 216
2012 L,676,3G0 - LE&T6300 - 2613

- £13,132,597 F— BIETE300  F10.476.00¢

MCT
Year Incursed Aoy Uscd Expired Balance Expiry Date
2074 - 22,970 P F2.970 2017

!~.'-|

Fair Value Information

. Finaneial Assets and Financial FiabHities

Due ts the short-tens nature of the Company’s financial assets and fineneial Liabilitics, the
canrying vaiues ressonably approximate their fair values at vear-end,

Financtat assets include cash i banks, dus from a related party and dividends receivable.
Financial labilitics include acuuunts and ather payables {excluding withholding taxes payable)
and due to related parties which are all classified as other financial Eabilitiss,

The Company uses the following higrarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instraments by valuation Lechnigue:

Lavel |;
Level 2:

tawr value are chservable, sither directly ar indireatly

Level 3

that ave not based on observable marker dats

quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markers for enlica) assels or labilities
other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recosdsd

icehniques which use inputs whicl: have a signilicant ellect on the recorded fuir valuc
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As of Decernber 37, 2016 and 2013, the Campany has 5o financial assets and Bnapeiz’ liabyikines
carried at fair valipe.

Finangial Risk Manacement (Hieciives angd Palicies

The Company's principal firancial instiwaents somprise of cash in banks, dividends receivanle,
due from a related party, accounts and other payables (exeleding withholdings raxes payable) andl
due to refated partes. The main purpese of these financial mstrumenis is o mise fand for the
Company’s operations. The Company’s secounts and other piyables and dus to relaled partics
arise directly [vom ils oporations,

The iy risks carrentty arising from the Company's financial instruments are eradit risk and
liquidity risk.

Credit risk
Urenlit risk 3 the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financiai asset o
financial liability or customer contract, feading to a financial loss.

Receivable balances are monitored on an engoing basis with the result that the Company's
sapusire Lo bad dzbs is oot sienificant.

Ag for the cash in banks, the maximun expasuse bo ersdit risk from this financial assets arge frenm
the defoult of the counterparty with a npax i exposuee equal 1o their carrying anoonts,

Aging anolysis of uany and recetvable
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the aging annlysis of loans and receivablas follows:

o 2018 .
Neither past Past due but not impaiead
Ane nor 30-5¢ G50 Ower
Totul impaired days duys i days Linpiiired
Cash in banks #04,540 F564,340 e B - E—
Dividends reesivab)e 118999179 11R399,17 - - - -
T from relutad porties 14878162 12,550 — - £ 305,543
ELILA4410,680 ¥11Y,576,) 18 B - B-  FLSARSA3
. PUE
Mujther past PPast due Bul net impaicd
1 Ticr 30-60 &84 Ower
Toal impaired days daryi G0 daye {nipaired
Cazh in banks BAR0,745 P250,735 - - - o
Duc fon redaled paitiey I Bas 581 - - » - 1.865.553
B2 115,298 B¥6H,735 B - P B BET 58T

The eredit qualiry of the financial nssers was determined as foliows:

Cash are composed of bank deposits nade with repulable financial instirations and hence, grades
as “high grade”. '

Except for those recaivables provided with allowance in previous years, presented as innpatred,
receivables are considered high grade dug 1 the Company’s positive ollection experience.

High grage accounts are consfderad to be of high credit rating value. The counterparties have o
very remate Hkelilioud of default.

I
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Medium grade acoounts are active accounts with minima’ instances of parymend delaull, doe to
collectton Is3nes. These aecoums are typicalty not inmpaired as the counterparties gensrally
respond fo the Compeany”s callection efforts and update payments accardingly.

Low grade aceounts pertain 1o 2ecounEs which have impairment basel on historical trend o
custormer’s unfavorable operating conditions. Accounts under this group show jpossible or aeal
W05 10 e Company as a result of default in payment of rhe eourlerparty despite the regular
loltove-up actions and extended payinent terns,

The tabies below show the credit quality of the Company’s financia) assets:

2016
_ High Crade Medivin Grade Low Grade Total
Cash in banks #564,340 P— - Pafd 340
Dhividends recaivable 118,099,179 - - F18.999.479
e from related paitiss 12,509 = 1,365,563 FH78. 163
2119.576.118 e PL365,563 FE21, 441,680

2015
High Orade  Madium Grade Low Grade Toptat
Cash in banks B250,733 - e £250,715
Cut from refated parbies - ~ 1,865 503 t 465,563
350,733 P- P1,865561 2 116,208

Liguidiey vink

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will ensounter difficulty in raising funds io meer
commitiments associated with financial assets and financial Fabilities. Ligaidity risk may resuit
from either the imabibioy 0 sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or the counterparry
failing on repayment of a contractual obligation; or inability to generate cash inflaws as
aslicipared.

The following (zble summarizes the matority profile of the Company’s financial assets and
financial liabilities of Decamber 31, 2016 and 2013 based on remaining contractual indiscounied
eailectinng and paymems:

20316

o o dewmsng  Less than [ vear Taial
Loans and Receivables
Cash in banks BE3S64,344) B #abd,341{)
ividends receivable 118,996 174 - 118,990,179
Drue from a relarsd pariy 12,599 - 1,589

B119.576,118 - #119,576,118
Oer Financial Liabilities
Accounts and other payables P B131,798 PI31,7%45
Due 1o related paties - 15,949,746 15,949,704

p- B16,0%81,511 216 081,511

AR
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. 2013 )

o —— On deund Larss than | year Towml
Loans and Reesivables
Cash in banks _— P20, 755 e B150,731%
e Finaneial Liahitities
Acconnts and other payables 2= PEIILITY FE
D i relared parties _ - 22813315 A2,B13.508

#- F13.684503 T ¥13,684,50)

Capital Menagement

Gienzrally, the primary objective of the Campany”s capital management is to cosure that it
continuously strives and maintaing a strong credit standing and healthy capital ratios in order o
support s business and maximize shareholderss” value.

The Company manages its capital sticiure and makes adjustments as may be necessy m hight of
changes in the husiness and geneval economic conditicns, To maintain ar adjust the cagital
strusture, the Company may adjust dividend payment to shareholders, retmrn capitsl w
shareholders or lgsue nevw shares.

Mo changes wers wade in the Company’s objectives, policies or pracesses as of December 21,
2016 wad 201 5. The Company s not subject 1o extemally impoeed capital requirements.

Olfserting of Tinancial ingtruments

Financeal assels and liabilides are offset and tha net amount reported in the sratements of financial
pazition where the Company cununtly has u legally enforceable right 1o set-off the recognized
amaunts and there 1 am infention to settle on a net basis or realize the net 2sset seitles the Lubiliy

shmullanconslyv.

The table represents the recognized financial instruments that are affset ss of December 31, 2016
and shovis in the *Net” solumn what the net impact would be on the Company®s staisinents of
lingncial position as a result of the offsetting rights.

o December 31, 20146
. Gross Anmouit DI tfsetting Met Amount
Divitlencls receivabls{a) RagL 313,508 B- P384,313,599
Drividerads payable {a) - {L65314.43Y) {262,314.41%}

 RIB4,31I3 508 (RI65,314,410)  P11E,069,179

8. The Company’s dividends payable fo LBCDC has beon of et againgt the dividends receivable
{rom LBCE.
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XPress
Holdings, Inx.

STATEMENT QF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIEBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of LBC Ixpress Heldings, Inc. and its subsidiaries is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the ronsolidated finaneial statemants inciuding the
schedules attached therein, for the years ended Dacember 31, 2016 and 201%, in accordance
with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therain, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary ta enable the praparaticn of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or arror,

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continlie 33 a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis nf actounting unless management either
intends to liquidats the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do 50,

The Board of Directors is rasponsible for oversesing the Company’s finanvial reporting
Process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements including
the schedules attached therein, and submits The same o the stockhalders.

SGV & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockhoiders, has audited the
consalidated financial statements of the campany in aceardance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairess of
presentation upon completion of stch audit.

Signature: .
MIGLEL ANGFL A. CAMAHORT - Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Ofiicer

Signature:
ENRIQUE V. RE!'//&cting Chief Finance Officer

F)

Signed this day of _ 2017,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Sfockholders and the Board of Directors

LBC Express Holdimgs, inc, and Subsidiaries

General Avigtion Center, Domestic Airport Compound
Pasay City, Metro Manila

Opinion

We have audited the tonsclidated financial statements of LBC Express Holdings, Inc. and itz subsidiaries
{tite Graup), which comprise the consolidated slalements of financial position as at Decernber 31, 2614
and 2015, and the consolidated statenents uf comprehensive income, consolidated stateiments of changes
in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for cach of the three years in the porind cnded
December 31, 2016, and notes to the consolidated finaneial statements, melading 2 summary of
sigrificant accounting policies.

[ our opinian, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present faidy, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as af Deceraber 31, 2016 and 7015, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consalidated uash Nows for each of the three vears in the period ended
December 31, 2016 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PPRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audiior's Responsibilities for the Audit
af the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independeut of the Group in
actordance with Lhe Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
tagether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to anr audit of the consolidated financial
stateinents in the Philippines, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements nnd the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidenee we have obiained is
sufficienl and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emnphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 25 to the conselidated financial statements which describes the ynetstainty
related fo the suteams of the case filed against LBC Express, Ine. (LEBCE), a subsidiary, amaong other
respondents, by LBC Development Bank, Inc., as represented by its receiver and liquidater, the Philippine
Deposit Inswrance Corpuration (PDIC) for collection of an alleged amount of ®] .82 billion, The case is in
relation 1o a demand letter representing collection of unpaid service fees from June 2006 to August 2011
and service charges on remitlance transactions from Janvary 2010 o September 2011, LBCE and LEC
Development Corporation, the ultirate parent company, amnng other defendants, filed a separate Motion
to Dismiss the Complaint on January 12, 2016, In 2 joim resolution dated June 28, 2016, the court
rasolved to deny the Motions to Dismiss filed by the defendants, including LBCE. On July 18, 2016,
[.BCE, together with the other defendants, filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the Joint Resolution.




Building o beter
warking werld

PDIC then filed its Comment/Opposition on August 16, 2018, followed by the defendants’ reply on
August 26, 2016, PDIC's Rejoinder on September 26, 2016, and defendanis’ Sur-Rejoinder on November
16, 2016, Thereafter, in an Order dated January 26, 2017, the Motion for Reconsideration was desmed
submitted for resolution. On February 23, 2017, LBCE recsived the court’s resolution denying the
Motion for Reconsideration of the Joint Resolution. On February 28, 2017, LBCE filed a Motion for
Extension of Time to File Answer, asking for additional period of 15 days, or until March 15, 2017 to file
Answers. The ultimate outcome of the case cannot presently be determined. In the opinion of
managemenl and in eonewrence with its legal eouncel, any liabitity of LRCE arising from the case is not
probable and estimable at this point in time. Our opinien is not modified in respect to this matter.

Koy Audit Maiters

Xey audit mauters are those marters that, in our professional judgiment, were of most signiftcance in our
audit of the consalidated financial staternents of the current period, These maters were sddressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as # whole, and in forming our apinion
thereon, and we do not provide x separate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our deseription
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have [ulfilled the responsibilities deseribed in the Auditor s Respansibilities for de Audi of ve
Crmsolidated Financial Statements section of cur report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our ascessment of
the risks of material misstatenent of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our augit
procedures, including the procedures performed (o address the matter belaw, provide the basis for our
andit apinion on the 2ecempanying consolidated financial statemenis,

Assessment of potenticd dahifity i refation o the closwre of LBC Development Bank, Toc.

The Company’s subsidiaty, LBCE, among other respondents, is involved in a case filed by LBC
Jevelopment Bank, lne., as represented by its receiver and fiquidator, PDIC, for collection of an alleged
amount of P1.82 billian. This is significant to our audit because the determinarion of whethar any
srovision should be recognized and the estimation of potumial iiabifity resuiting fiom this case require
signiticant judgment by the management given the inherent uncertainty over its outcome. The Group’s
disclosures about the case and basis of management’s assessments are inchided in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial staternents,

Mudit Response

D and it procedures focused on the evaluation of management's assessment on whether any provision
for contingencies should be recognized and the estimation of such amount, We held discussions with
nanagement and the Group’s legal eounsel and obtatned the written reply of the Group's external logal
counsel on the status of the case and their assessment of any pntential liability. We also cent a
confirmation letter to PDIC and oblained their reply which we asked the Group to reconcile with their
records.
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Other fnformation

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comyprises the information
inchuded in the SEC Form 20-18 {Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the vear ended December 31, 2016, but does not inclode the consolidated financial statements and our
suditor’s report thereon, The SEC Form 20-[8 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report for the year ended Deceinber 31, 2076 are expected (o0 be made avallable to us after the
date of thes auditor’s report,

Qur optnien on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thergon,

In connection with our audits of the consolidated firancial statements, sur responsibility is to read the
other information idemitilied above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider wheiber the other
wtormation is materially fnconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledgs
obtained in the andits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged wilh Guvernance for the Consolidated
Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and {air presentation of the consolidated financial
statements i accordanco with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor,

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, managoment is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of aceounting unless management either itends ta liquidate the Group nr to
cease gperations, ur has no realistic alternative but fo do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's finaneial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit uf the Consoliduled Finsncial Statements

Chur ohjectives are to obfain reasonabie assurance aboul whether the consolidated financial statements ag a
whole are free from maerial misstatement, whether due o fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repori
that includes our opmion. Reasonable assurance is u high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
2udit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are congidered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial staterments.
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As partof an audit in accordancs with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

» ldentify and assess the rizks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to frand or error, design and perform andil procedures regponsive to those risks, and
cbtzin audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for onr opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resuliing from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, fergery, intentional omissions, misrepreseatations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Obain an undersianding of inteimal control relevant to the audit in order o destgn audit procedures
that are appropriate in the sircumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opirion on the
elfectiveness of tha Group's intemal contrel.

s Hvaluate the appropriatzness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosurss made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the gaing concem basts of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that way cast significant doublon the Group™s ability to continue as a2 going concern, If we
conelude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requirsd to draw attention in our auditor’s report ta
the related disclosures in the consylidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
o modify cur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group (o cease o continue as a
ZOINE CONCSIT.

o Hvaluale the overall presentation, srrecturs and conteni of the cousolidated financial statemnents,
incleding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient apprapriate audit evidence regarding the financial informeation of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the divection, supervision and performance of the group wudit. We ramain
solely responsible {or our audit opinion,

We communicate with those chavged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the andit and significant audit findings, meluding any significant deficiencies in internal
contiol that we identily during mur audil.

We also provide those charged with governanee with a statement that we have complied with relovan
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with then all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
sulbpruards,

A MR P T o0 MY == R R
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we deterinine those matters that
were of most sighificancs in the audit of the consolidaled {inancial statements of the current period and
are therefore (he key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
reguliation preciudes public disclosire about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our repoit because the adverse consequences ol
doing s0 would reasonably be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Cwril Jasmin B, Valencla.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYD & CO.

(gﬂy{ Agrprss 17 [ndesriey,
yril Msmin B. Valencia
Partner
CPA Certificate Mo, 96787
SEC Acoreditation No. 1224 AR 1 (Gmup A,
May 12, 2013, valid until May 11, 2013
Tax Identilication No, 162-4] (- 623
BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-001898.-74 2018,
bebruary 27, 2015, validd intif February 26, 2018
FTR Ne, 3808770, January 3, 2017, Makatt City

March §, 2017




LBC EXI'RESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCI

ASSETS
Lurrent Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4, 20 and 21) B1,327,730,727 BO79,102,48¢9
Trade and other reccivables (Notes 5, 14, 20 and 213 1,526,719,330 1,466,759,522
Due from related parties (Motes 14, 20 and 21) 1,107 999,329 1,321,346.665
Available-for-sale investments {MNotes 9, 20 and 31 ! 230,957,154 -
Prepayments and olher current assets (Notes 8, 20 and 21) 82,080,197 443,304,439
... Total Current Assels 4.601,535,7137 4,210,513,113
Noncurrent Assefs
Froperty and equipment (Note 7 840,476,927 163,022,204
Intangible assets (Nole §3 266,047,661 276,381,483
Available-for-sale investments (Motes 9, 20 and 213 458,391,174 212,596,951
Deferred tax assets - net (Note 17) 274,380,270 225 645,084
Szcurity deposits (Note 18) 226,233,208 209,634,034
Dither noncurrent assets (Note &) 70,150,604 61,306,091
Total Nonsirent Assets 2,135 761,945 1.749,382,749
- B6,737,237.683  BS959 805, 262
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liahilitieg
Accounts and other payables (Notes 10, 14, 20 anc 21) Bl 264003500  P1,832,036,400
Due to related parties (Notes £4, 20 and 21) 18,509332 18,137,986
Current portion of notes payable (Notes 12, 20 and 21) 400,715,500 1040,617,833
Transmissions liability (Notes 11, 20 and 2{) 467,284,795 508,139,757
Current portion of lease lighilitizs (Nofes 18, 20 and 2 1 50,826,683 43,049 537
Income rax payable 134,758,265 130,683,165
Total Current Liabilities 2,782 008 165 3,572,664 687

Noncerrent Liabitities
Retirement henefit ability (Note 18)

721,026,661

041,812,079

Notes payabie - net of cuerent portion (Notes 12, 20 and 21) £92,500,600 -
Lease liabilities - net of current portion (Notes 18, 20 and 21) 73,242,401 74,164,341
Cther noncurrant labilities (Notes 7, 20 and 21) 34,477,440 43,533,548
Total Noncugrent Liabilities 1,521.24¢,502 754,520 968
] _ 4.274.244,667 4,332,194 655
Bquity (Note 13)
Equity atributable to sharcholders af the Pasent Company
Capital stock 1,425, 865,471 1.425,865,471
Retained zarnings 782,414,079 174,498,871
___JAccumulated comprehensive meome 305,677,402 68,411,150
2,513.954,932 1,668,775,492
Non-controlling interesis (50,963,937 (41,074,285}
Total Euquity 2,402,993,005  1,627,701,207
P6,737,237.68) 5,959 895 852

See wcconipanying ¥otes fo Consalidated Finaneral Strtements,



LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

_ 2016 015 L
SERVICE REVENLE [Note i P8,605,402,672 B7,686,474,464 B7036,227,838
COST OF SERVICES (Mote 15) 5590,313,08% 5119511 467 3,284,490,11%
GROSS PROFIT 3,104,889,533 2,5006.942,597 1,771,737,520
OPERATING EXPENSES [Note 16) 1,872.805,197 1,947 70832 900 1.602 561,779
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Foreign exchange gains - net 143,233,568 108,110,678 42,043,592
Interest income (Note 4) 2365,500 1,539,553 374,768
Interest expense MNotes 17 and 18) {63.,493,53 7 (43,514,537) (30,799,508)
Others=pet 10,900,924 1,447,367 18,851,451
93,006,455 67,733,063 31,175,303
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,325,004,791 686.933.070 200,551,044
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAN (MNote 17) 411,150,046 270,632,174 36,940,306
NET INCONME 9‘.!3,94(1,'?{5 416,300,386 143,410,344
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSH
Yeems pet to be reclassified Yo profit or Joss in
subsequeni periods
Remeasurement (0sses on retirement
benefit plan  nef of tax (Notus 13 and 193 {11,989,535) (42,898,326) 2112810
Itemz that may e reclassificd to profit or foss in
subsequent periods
Uinrealized falr vabue pain (Joss) o avaitable-for-sale
nvestments (Motes © end 13 248,345,907 (64,364,214} (6,926,152}
Currency lranslation gain (Joss) - net 725.008 9,304,034 {11,000,997)
235041467 (97,868,706} 3,375,647
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 71,144,952,212 P318,452,190 P146,785,911
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Shareholders of the Parent Company ROZ1,605,612 B4390811,552 P56, 520088
Mon-controlling mterests (7,664,867 {22.570,656) (13,409,544}
NET INCOME #915,940,745 £4 16,300, 896 Bl43410,244
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBVTABLE TO;
Sharehaolders of the Parent Company 1,158,871, 564 BL43,474 642 P159,849.919
Wonecontrolling intcrosty ) (9.384.652) (23.042 453) {13.084,00%)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE [NCOME P1.148,982,217 F315,432,199 S146,785,9171
BASIC/AMLUTED EARNINGS
PER SHARE (Note 24) Bi.68 PQ,Y PO

See peropipanving Notas tn Consaliduted Finaneial Steiomens,
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LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUDBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended Decemiber 31

2016 20158 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING AZTIVITIES
Incame before income tax F1,323,00,791 PoEs. 013 070 F2O0351,044
Adjustments for:
Depreciakion and amonization (Notes 7, 8, 15 and 16) 295,345,105 338,384 44 296,106,239
Inlerest expense {Notos 12 and 18} (3,493,337 45,214,537 30,799 508
Relirement wxponse, ney of benefits paid and coniribution
te retframent plan (Motes 15,16 and 19) 62, 036673 18,632,208 98,415,401
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gaing) « net (3,249,023 (170,478 12,692.802
Inierest inoome (Note 4) 2,365,500 (1,539.535) {174,762}
Ciain on sale of availoble-(Dr-sale investments {570,050) - -
Logz (gaim) on disposat of property and
wjuipment and intangible assels (Notes 7 and §) {443 561 (1,736,0914) 03,390
Operating inceme bafore changes in werking capital 1,738,678,362 Lk 807,304 OFRATRET
Changas in workiog capital;
Deorease {incrtase) in:
Trde ond ather rerebvables (58,959,308 (17,385,364 ) t412,085,251)
Due fram related parties (Note 23) (SIYH7,085) [325,484,11M {4KD, 455,201y
Frepayrnents and orher assets 55,215,292 (173,309,562} {127,609,390)
Suourity doposits {14, 324,275) (37,115,892} {41, 000,337)

Imersise (dosrase) in
Accounts anil other pryables (Noe 23)

(538,852,457}

85,268,161

555,774,263

Transmissions fiabiliLy (40,854,961} 149,181,428 263,031,609
. Diue 10 related poe Livs (Nowg 231 371344 187 208 107 B,535.350
Aet cash menerited from operations 1,086,306,863 694,958,772 384,106,078
Irnerest received 2,365,540 1,539,555 374,784
Wemne axpaid (331,351,486) (00,689,702)  {300,624,147)
Nel cash provided by operating sotivities 737,315,877 596,808,623 83,836,600
CASIN BLOWSE FROM INVESTING ACTIVETIRS
Prowceeds from:
Redemption of irvestmens i UITF elsssited ag
avaliable-forsale investments 150,080,004 - -
Disposul of property and equipmen: and inangilde assets 13,454,664 17,707,681 [.922.168
Sole ol wvailable-for-sile Investments GH1,824 - -
Sngrease in other nonennenl assets (8,344,513} (6,44 5.4%4) -
Advineey 1o 1 stockhalder (Note 1) - [38,3058,165) -
Payment uf cash 1 offect reverse acquisition = {325,365 8000
Acguisitions uf
Intangible assers (20,471,368} {36,653,500) {134 477 194}
FPropay and equipmcnt {Nnte 23] (204 255,574} {312.060,184) (194 553,399
Available-for-sale investrments (A00,757.920) - -
tlal cash used in invesling zetivitics (559,383 236) {1,732 1872 509 {127 658 425)
CASH FLOVWE FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIRES
Broceads frum notes payably 1,423,701,286 1,791,7590,300 14,780,000
Praceeds from issuance of stocks (et of stack jzsuance eovt) (1,369,305 608 -
Dividends patd (Nate 13) (38,373,044 - -
Paynents of lease Hubilijes {51,894 80%) (84,858,053 (82,423,131}
Inlgrest paid (Wote 23) (61,773,894 (43,314,557 (3,799.308)
Payments ol notes pavable [1,105,103,61%) {1.465,9524G7) {227,700,475)
Nt cash generated from [inancing activities 154,532,975 1,565.970.345 373,836,180
NET INUREASE IN CASH AND CASI EOUIVALENTS ISTABRG1G 441,616,965 30,054 660
EFFECT OF EOREIGR CURRENCY EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASITEQUIVALENTS (3,800,378) 2,570,984 {11,382,63%
CASI OF THE PARENT COMPEANY UPON OBTAINING
CONTROL - 23120 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENIS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 4749,102.48% 317,401,420 I0Y, 38 508
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
LNDOFYEAR Moted) PLI2T 740,727 #079,102 45Y BS27RG1A2G

Sew qocompanying Nates o Consolidoted Finanoial Statements,




LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

LBC Express Holdings, luc. (referred (o a3 the “Parent Company™ or “LECH), formerly Federal
Resources Investment Grounp Inc. (FED), was registered with the Securitics and Exchange
Commission {SEC) on July 12, 1993,

The ultimate parent of the Parent Comypany is LBC Development Corporation (LBCDC).

The Parent Company undertook an Initial Public Offering and on December 21, 2001 LBCH s
shares were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Parent Company invests, pwchases or disposes real and personal property of every kind and
description, including shares of stock, bonds, debentures, notes, evidenses of indebiedness, and
ather sechrities or abligations of any corporation, association, domestic and foreign,

The Parent Company s a public holdiug company with investments jn businesses of messengerial
either by sea, air or land of letters, parcels, cargoes, wares, and merchandise; aceeptance and
remittance of money, hills payment and the like; and performance of other allied general services
from one place of destination to ancther within and outside of the Fhilippines.

The previovs registered office and principal place of business of the Parent Company was at
No. 75 San Antonio Strest, San Franciseo Del Monte, Quezon City, On October 12, 2015, the
SEC approved the ¢hange in principal office of the Parent Company to LBC Hangar, Genera)
Awviatian Centre, Donmestic Aliport Road, Pasay City, Metro Manila, Philippines.

Un April 22, 2015, the Farent Company received deposits for future stocks subscription from
LECDC amounting ta B59.100,000.

QOn April 23, 2013, Use Board of Dirsetors (BOD) of the Parent Company approved the issuance of
39,101,000 common shares, at B] 00 per share, oot of the unissued portion of the Parent
Company’s authoiized capital stock ty LRCDC,

Un May 18, 2015, the Parent Company and LBCDC entered inte & Doed of Subscription, whereby
LBCDC, subject to the eomplefion of the nandatory tender offer, subscribed to 59,101,000
coriaen shares oul of the unissued authorized capltal stock of the Parent Company or
approximately 59.10% of the total authorized capital stock of the Parent Company by applyiug Qe
depasits for fiuture stocks subseription received on April 22, 2015 as the consideration for the
subscribed shares at ane peso (B1.00) per share. Accordingly, on the same date, the Parent
Company’s previous afficers and directors resigned from thsir respective pusitions and majarity
were replaced by the representatives from LBCDC,

On May 18, 2015, a forreer stockholder entered into a Need of Assumption of Advances with
LBCDC; wherein, LDCDC agreed to assume tie cash advances from the Farent Company by &
former stockholder which franspired on April 28, 2015 amounting ta 58,805,165,
Accordingly, the Parent Company agread to such assumptian.

On May 22, 2015, LBCDC filed with the SEC its mandatory tender affer repart for all the

outstanding shares of the Company for a tender offer price of ane peso (B1.00) per share, The
mandatory tender offer period commenced on Tune 8, 2015 and ended om July 7, 2015, during




which period, none of the Tender Gfer Shares were tendered by the shareholders of the Parent
Company.

On July 14, 2015, LBCOC filed with the SEC its final tender offer report. With the completion of
the Tender Qffer, LBCDC now owns 59,101,000 commen shares representing approximately
29.10% of the issued and outstanding and authorized capital stock of the Parent Company.

On July 22, 2013, the Parent Company issued the stock eertifioates to LBCDE covering
the 59,101,000 commeon shares subject of the said subscription.

On July 29, 2015 and September 4, 2015, the BOD and stockholders, respectively, approved
the following resolutions on the amendment io Charter, By-Laws and other documents:

¢ Thechange in the name of Parent Company to “LBC Express [loldings, [ne.”;

*  The amendment of the secondary purpase of Parent Company which is primarily to alizn the
purpese to that of 2 holding company;

e The transfer of Parcut Company’s principal offics address to LEC Hangar, (zaneral Aviation
Centre, Domestic Alrport Rosd, Pasay City, Motro Maiila, Philippines;

»  The increage in the number of directors of Parent Company from seven to nitg;

¢ [he inereass in the authorized capital stock of Parent Company from BID0,000,000 divided
nte 100,000,000 shares with par value of 81.00 per share up to £3,000,000,000 divided into
5,000,000,000 shares with par valuc of BL.00 per share:

»  The change in the fiscal year of Parent Corspany from calendar vear 1o Tirst day of December
of each year o the last day of November of the suscecding vear; and

o The definition of dividends.

On July 20, 2015, the BOD approved the change of the Irading svmbol of the Parent Companys
shares fn the PSE from “FED™ 10 “LEC”,

On Septemiber 18, 2013, the BOD determined ang fiked the amount ol the inareass in atthorized
capital stoek of Parent Company from £100,000,000 divided inwo 109,000,000 shares with par
value of #1.00 por share to 22 000 000000 divided o 2,000,000,000 with par value of £1.00
per share, and authorized the (Hling of the increase in authorized caphal stock with the SEC.

Moareover, the BOD of Parent Company, in meetings held on July 29, 2015, September 18,
2015 and Cctober 2, 2015, as relevant, and the stockholders of LECH iu the annua) general
mceting held on September 4, 2013, also approved among others the following transactions;

= The acquisition by the Parent Campany of ,041,180,4%3 issued and ovtstanding shares of
LBC Express, Ine. (LBCE) at a book value s reflested in the consolidaied audited financial
statemnents of LBCE as of November 30, 2014, which book value shall not be less than
R1.000,000,000 or such other consideration and under such terms and conditions as
managenzat way deem beneficial to the interest of the Parent Company:

° The issuance of 475,000,000 new Parent Company shares 1o LBCDC at the strbseription price
of 81.00 per share out of the inarease in suthorized capital stock from 2180,000.000 1o
£2,000,000,000,

e Theissuance of 671,873 632 new Parent Company shares to L.RBCDC out of the increase in
authorized capital stock, immediately following the approval by the SFC of the increase in
authorized capital stoek at the subseripsion price of 81.00 per share, under such terms and
conditions 25 management may deem beneficial:
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*  The issuance of (i) 59,663,947 shares to Vittorio Lim, (1i) 59,663,946 shares to Mariano D,
Marimez, Ir, and (ifi) $9,663,946 shares to Lowell L. Yu, or an aggregaie of 178,951 834
common shares, from the unissued antharized capital stock of the Parent Company,
unmediately foliowing the approval by the SEC of the inceease in authorized capital stock at
the subscription price of P10 per shars, under such terms and conditions s manigement
miay desm boneficial,

The foregeing issuances of stocks to LBCDC and / or other investors and/or third partics
(with reference to LBCDC or LBCE) was for the purpose of;

»  Primarily funding the acquisition by Parent Company of LBCE;

+  Funding the acquisition of other potential investments, whether or not related to the buginess of
LRCE: and

o Ensurmg compliance by the Parent Company with the minimum public ownershiy requirements
ol the PSE,

Cn September 18, 2015, LBCDC subscribed 1o 25% of 1,800,000,000 increase in attharized
capital stock or equivalent to 475,000,000 comman shares at the subseriplion price of #1.60 per
share, #177,555,495 of which, is immediately paid in cash, conditioned upon and effeative
immediatcly following the approval by tiwe SEC of the increase in suthorized capital stock,

On the same date, LBCDC subseribed to additional 671,873,632 common shares out of the
unissued eapital stock of the Parent Company at the subscription price of B1.00 per share, i
exchange for cash, conditioned upen and effective immediately follewing the approval by the
SEC of the inorease in authorized capital stock.

On September 22, 2013, the Parent Company submirted art application for the inerease in
authorized capital stock from one hundied mitlion pesos (B100,000,000) divided into oae
handred mitlion (100,000,000} shares with par value of one peso (P1.00) per share to two billion
pesus (F2,000,000,000) divided into two billion number of shares with par value of one peso
(B1.0H) per share. On the same date, the amendments to the Articles of Tncarporation and By-
Laves, except for the change in fiscal vear, were likewise submitted to the SEC.

In a Deed of Transfer dated September 24, 20135, the Parenr Company purchased from LBCDC
the sharcs of stock of LBCE af a lotal cash consideration of B 384,670,966, 1t wae also
previously agreed that the Parent Compuny’s advances payable by LBCDC amounting to
P38,503,435 wili be offset against the remaining unpaid balance.

On Qotober 2, 2015, sertain individuals subscribed to a tota) of 178,907,839 common skares out of
the unissued capital stock of LBCH ot the subscription price of #1.00 per share, in sxchange for
cash, conditioned upon and effective immediately following the approval by the SEC of the
nerease in authorized capital stock,

Qn Octaber 12, 2005, SEC approved the increase in authorized vapital stock of the Parent
Compaiy. On the same date, SEC issued a certificate of filing of the Parert Company’s amended
Artigles of Incorporation and amended By-Laws,

On October 16, 2013, the Parent Company igsued the stock certificates to LBCD(C covering the
1,146,873,632 common shares while an October 21, 20135 Lhe Parewt Company issued the stock
certificales to certain individuals covaring 178,991,830 common shares.
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The accompanying consolidated financial staiements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
have besn approved and authorized for isaue by the Group’s BOD on March 8, 2017,

[A¥]

Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

The prinzsipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
stalements are set out below. These policies have been constantly applied to all years presented,
untless atherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

The conselidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared using the historical cost
basis except for available-for-sale (AFS) investments that have heen measured af fair valuz., The
congolidated financial statements are presented in Plilippine Peso (B), which is also the Group's
functional currency. All amounts are rounded off 1o the nearest peso unit unless otherwise
Indigated.

Difference in accarmiing periads

The Group consolidared the non-coterminous financial stataments of its subsidiaries using their
November 30 fiscal year end financial statements sinee it is impracticable for the said subsidiaries
lo prepare financial staiements as of the same date as the reparting date of the Parent Company.

Management exercised judgment i determining whether adjustmeuts should be inade in the
consolidated [inancial statements of the Group pertaining to the effects of significant ransactions
or events of its subsidiaries that ccur between December 1, 2016 and the yvear-cnd date of the
Parent Campany's tinancial statements which is December 31, 2016, The consolidated financial
statements were adjustzd to effect LBCE’s additional availment and settlement of bank loans in
December 2016 amounting to®136 72 million and B246.24 million, respectively; the adjustment
to reflect the increase in fajr value of quoted ARS investment by £50.72 millien for the period
Decamber | to Decamber 31, 2016, and the seitlentent of advances to an affiliaie on

December 21, 2015 amounting to B198.00 million. Aside from these, there were no other
significant rransactions thal transpired between December 1, 2016 to December 3 [, 2016, and
between Decewber 1, 2015 10 December 31, 2015,

Reverse aoguisition

On September 24, 2015, the Parent Company completed the acquisition of LBCE through a cash
transaction (see Mote 1. For accounting purposes, the (ransaction was accounted for similar to a
reverse acquisition following Philippine Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) 3, Business
Combinarion. LBCE was deemed o be the accounting acquirer under the piingiples uf PFRS 3.
I & reverse acquisition, the legal aequirer is identified as the acquiree for accounting Purpascs
because based on the substance of the transaction, the legal acquiree is adjudged to be the entity
that gained control over the fegal aequirer. Avcordingly, the consolidated financial statements of

the Gioup have been prepated as a continuation of the consolidated financial statemients of LBCE.

The comparative Decemnber 31, 2015 information presented in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive ncome gre those of LBCE from December 1, 2014 ta Noverabar 30, 2015 and the
Parent Company from July 22, 2015 to Novernber 30, 2015, Because the consalidated financial
statements vepresent a continuation of the consolidatod financial statements of LBCE, cxvept for
their capital stracture, the consalidation will retlect the following:




Before the asset purchase transaction (as at and far Lhe vear ended December 31, 20{4)

a) the assels and liabilithes of LBCE recognized and measured at their CATCYIng ¥mounts, not at
their acquisition-date fair values;

by the retained sarnings and other equity balances are that of LBCE;

€} the total equily is that of LBCE but the legal capital fcommon shares and additional paid-in
capital) would be that of the Parent Company;

d) the resulting equity reserve represents (1) the difference betwesn the tegal captal of LBCE
and the legal eapital of the Parent Compariy; and {2) and the subsequent movement in legal
capital of LBCE; and

€} the consolidared statement of comprehensive income reflects that of LBCE for the full period

and that of LBCH from the date of incorporation,

After the asset purchase transaction {as at and for the year ended December 31, 2015)

a) the transferred assets and labilities of LBCE recognized and measured at the pre~combinatian

carrying amounts, not at acquisition-date [air yilues;

) legal eapital of the Parent Company;

¢} the retained earmings of LBCE as of Decemnber 1, 2014 and accumulated comprehensive
income of the Parent Company from Inly 22, 2015 to December 3 1. 2015 and LECE from
December 1, 2014 to November 50, 201 3;

d) the comparative consolidated statemnent of comprehensive income reflected that of LRCE
from December 1, 2014 to Movember 30, 2015, and the statement vl comprehenzive income
of the Parent Company from July 22, 2015 to December 31 , 2013,

Tmpact of the share purchase agreement which was execuied on deprember 24, 20013 1o the
cansolidoted financial statements

The effect of (he execution of the deed of transier was reflected in the consolidated financial
statements as movement in cquity, as follows;

[nvestment recognized by the Parent Company Bt 384,070,966
Net assets of the Parent Company 375,659
RT,383,705 307

The cffect of pooling of interest of #1,383.80 million iz applicd against net available ARIC of

£55.42 million, and the remvainiug winount of B399.17 million is applied against retained samings.

The rollforward analysts of Equity Reserve are ag folloswe:

As of January 1, 2014 RE7, 794311
Movement in legal capital of LECE arising from dividends declared

closed 10 equity reserve 871,406,004
Ag ol December 31, 2014 920 200,314
Lffect 0fpoaling-nf-intt1'csi (1,383,795,307)
Total {454,594,997)
Clased ta APIC 55,420,327
Closed to retained earnings 309,174,666

As ol December 31,2015 B
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The accounting simlar tn a reverse acquisition applies only to the consolidated financial
slatements. The Parent Company financtal statements will continue 1o re present LBC Express
Heldings, Ine, as a stand-alone entily,

Bagsis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
irsnsactions and other events in similar circumstances, All significant intercompany balances and
transactions, inchuding income, expenses and dividends, are eliminared in full. The consolidated
financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Cotnipany and its subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, Control is achieved when the Groug is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its invalvement with the investee and has the ahility to affect those
returns through its power over the investes, Specifically, the Group coutrols an investes if and
only if the Group has:

*  DPower overthe invasies (i.e. existing rights that give it the eurrent ability to direct the relevant
activities of the invesice)

= Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the inveslee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to atfec is returns

Waen the Group has less than a majority of the voting or simitar rights of an investee, the (raup
considers all relevant facts and ohcumstunces in assessing whether il has power nver an invesise,
meluding:

o The contractual arrangement vwith the other vote holders of fhe tnvestee

o Rights arising from other contractoal arrangemients

= The Groups voting rights and potential voting vights

The Gronp re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee i Tacts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to ane ar more of the three ¢lements of control. Consolidation of g
subsidiary beginy when the Group obtains contral over the subsidiary and ceases when the Greo it
loses contral of the subsidiary. Assuts, liabilitles, facome and expenses of a subsidiary scquired or
disposed of during the year ars ineluded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control untl] the date the Group ceases 1o conirol the subsidiary,
Nori-eontrolling interests (NCH represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets i subsidarics
not owned by the Group and are presenied separately in the consolidated stalement of
comprehenstve income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financiz! position, separately from the Parent Coinpuny’s equity. Any
equity instrupents Isswed by a subsidiary that are nat awned by LECH are non-controiling
mierests including preferred shares and nptions under share-based traneactions.

Profit or loss and each component of cther comprehensive incomes {OCI) are aiributed o the
equity holdeis of LBCH and 1o the non-confrolling interests, even if this results in the non-
contolling interests having a defici! balance. When necessary, adjustments are made 1o the
Tfinancial statements of zubsidiaries 1o bring their accounting poticies in line with the Uroup's
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and labilities, cquity, income, expenses and cash flows

relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidatios

A change in the ownership interest of o substdiary, without a loss of conirol, is accounted for ag an
equity transaction. Ifthe Group loses control over & subsidiary, it;

¢ Dorecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and Habilities of the snbeidiary
¢ Derecngnizes the carrving amount of any non-canfrolling inerests
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¢ Derecognizes the cumnulative translation differences recarded in eyuity

*  Recopmizes the fair value of the consideration received

*  Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

* Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

¢ Reclassifies LBCH’s share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or loss or
relained eamings, as appropriate, as would be reguired if 1he Group had divectly disposed of
the related zssets or liabilities

The consolidated financial statements inelude the financia) statements of LBCH and the following
subgidiaries: :

Conntry of Owaership Interest
neorporation Frinvipat aciivities MWip N3
LBC Express, nc. Philippines  Lopistios atd money romifamnes 146% L0
LBC Express - MM, Jrc. Fhilipptaes Logistics and money remitiance 100 %% 1042,
LIC Express - CL, Inc. PLibippines Logistics and momey 1cimitianee 100%% 1002
1RO Bxpress - ML, L Philippines Logisties and maney remittance 106y, 108
LBC Express - VIS, Ine. Philippines Logistics and mongy remfnance 1% 100%
LT Cwpress - 51, Inc. Fhilippizes Logistics and money remiitance 1009, 10444
LBC Express - SO, [ne. Fhilippines Lagistics and money remitiancs 100 [CHI2h
LBC Capress - EST, Ine, Philippings Logisics and nioney remittance 100 % 10054
LB Fxpress - CMvbd, Ine. Philippines Lagisiics and moncy remitance 100% His
LBC Exproys - M, Ing. Philippines Lagtsties and money remitance 1009% 1600
LI Express - MIN, inc. Philippinss Logisties and meney remitiance % T{H1%;
LBC Express - SMM, Ine, Philinpines Togistices and money remittance 100% [00%0
LB Express - SEL, Ing, Philippines Logistes and monzy remittance 168% 1041%
LBC Exprass - WVIS, Ine. Philippines Lagistics and monsy remittarcs 100% 100%
LB Express - SEM, Ine. Dhilippies Logisilcs and money remitiance it 1009
LBC Express - SCL, Ine, Philipnines Lagisiivs and money remittanee 100%; 1005
LR Express - SMCC, Tnc. Philippines Logisties and maney remiltance Fixeos 100%
LB Express - NEMM, Inc, Philinpines Logistics and money remitfanes 100% 100%%
LBC Exprass - NWWMM, Inc. Chilippines Logistics and mpney remiltanes 1001%;, 100644
LBLC Systems, Irc Philippines Logistics and mroncy remiftamce 100% 10U
LBC Exprass WL Kol Lopistics 4767, 9%,
LBL Express dahrain, 110 Hahrain Logislics 4954 4%
LEC Express LLC I Qatar 1 opistics 4954 0%,

Mot
1) This emiry is « subsidiary of LBC Fxpress Babrain, LLC which has 9% dwnership interest.

There were no changes in the Parent Company’s ownership interests in its subsidiaries from
January 1, 2014 te December 31, 20186,

Buginess Combination and Goodwill

Business eombinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. This involves recagnizing
identifiable assets (including presicusly unrecognized intangible assets) and Labilities {including
contingent liabilities and excluding future restructuring) of the acquired business ar fair value.
The cost of an acquisition is measured us the aggregate of the constderation transferred, measured
at acquisition date fair value and the amount ol any noncontralling interesi in the acquires. For
each business combination, the sequirer measures the noncontrolling interest i the acquiree either
at fatr valus ar at the proportionate share of the acauirce’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition
costs incurred are expensed in the consolidated statement of somprehensiva income.
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When the Group acquires a business, it asscsses the finanvial assets and labilities assumed tor
apprepriate vlassification and designation in accordance with *he contractual tenus, eoonomie
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquires. [f the business combination s achiaved in
stages, the acquigition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date throy gh profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration 1o he transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subseguent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration, which
18 deemed 1o be an asset or liability, witl be recognized in aceordance with PAS 39 sither in profit
or loss or as a change to ather comprehensive income. [fthe confingent cansideration is classilied
as squity, it should not be remeasured untit it is finally settled within eqtiry,

Goodwill aequired in a buziness combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
cirst of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the avquiree’s
identifiable asscts, liabilities and contingent labilites. Following initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost fess any accumulated impainuent losses. For the purposs of impairment testing,
goodwilt acemired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to cach of the
Group’s cash penerating units or sron ps of cash generating units, that ere sxpected to benefil from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether ather assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or group of units,

Bach uatt oy group of units to which the pacdwill is allocated:

®  represents the lowest fevel within the Group at whieh the opodwill is monitored for internal
mEnagement purposcs; and

¢ s not larger than 4 segment based on cither the Croup’s primary or the Group's secondary
repofting format deteymined in accordance with PFRS 8, Clperating Segment.

Whers goodwill forins part of' 2 cash-generating uni (group of cash generating units) and part of
the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goudwill associated with the operation disposed
of is inchuded in the carrving amount of the operation when determining the ain or loss on
disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circurnstance i measured based on the
elative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the eash-generating vnit retained.

Acquisions of nen-controlling interests are accounted for as reansactions with awners in thefr
vapacity &8 owners and therefore no gondwill or profit or losg is recognized a3 a result,

Adjustments to non-controlling interests arisiug fron transactions that do not inveolve the lass af
control are based on a propertionate amount of the net asscts of the subsidiary.

Statemet of Compliance
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in aceordance with
Philippine Financial Reparting Standards (PFRS).

The Group reclassified certain accounts in the 2015 Consolidated Statemant of Financial Position
compared to the 2015 previously issued consolidated financial statements to betler classiiyv the
accouls Lo its PYODET nature since portion af the reeeivables and payables previously presented as
due from/fe related parties were arising ffom normal trade activities of the Company;,
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Below are the deails of the reclessificalions. The reclassifications did not impact the 2015
Consolidated Slatement ot Comprehensive Income and Consolidated Starement of Cash Flows,

. December 31, 2015
Previous Balance  Reclassification Revised Balance

Statement of Financial Positicn

Trade and other recelvables R1,025.059,478 P44 1,700,004 PI,466,750.52%
De fron: related parties 1,763,046,757 (441.700,054) 1,321,346 667
Accounts and other payables 1.830,208,144 1,828,265 1,832 036,400
Due 1o related parties 19,866,251 (1.828,265) 18,137,986

Changes in Aceounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting palicies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except
that the (Giroup bas adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starting January |,
2016. Adoption of these protouncements did not have any significant impact in the Group's
financial position or performance unless otherwise indicated.

* Amendments to PFR3 10, Consolidated Finarcial Statentents, VERS 12, Disclosure of
Smterests i Qther Entities, and PAS 28, Mmvestments in Associates and Joint Vemtures,
Firvestment Entiiles: Applying the Consolidation Exceptios
These emendmenis clarify that the exemption in PFRS 10 from presenting consolidated
financial statements applies to a parent cntity thal is @ subsidiary of an investment antity that
meagures all of s subsidiaries af fair value. They nlso tlarity that ouly a subsidiary of an
tivestment entity that is not an mvestraent entity itself and that provides support services to
the: investment entity parent is consolidated. The amendments also allow an investar (that is
not an investment entity and has an nvestmeat enl Ly associale or joint ventures to retain the
fair value measurement applied by the investment entity asiociate or joint venture 1o ity
interests {n subsidiaries when applying the equity method. These amendments arc not
applicable to the Gronp.

v  Amendments to PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, Accounting for Acyuisitions of Interests in
Joini Operations
The amendraents 1o PPRS 11 require a loint aperator that is accounting for the acquisition of
M1 interest in a joint operation, in whic) the uctivity of'the joini operation canstitores 4
business {as dafined by PFRS 3, to apply the relevant PIRS 3 principles for business
vombinations accounting. The amendments also elarify that 4 previousty held interest iy g
Joint operation is not reineasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the sarme joint
operation while jomi control is retained. In addilion, a seape exclusion has been added 1o
PFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing foint control,
mcluding the reporting entity, are nnder common control of the same wltimate controlling
paity. The amendmiats apply 1o both the acquisition of the initial interest in a Joint aperation
and the aeguisition of any additional [nterests in the same joint operation. These amendments
do not have any timpact to the Group as there has been no inferus) acquired in a joint operation
during the period.

o PERS V4, Regulaiory Peferral Acconmis
PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an tibty, whose activities are subject to rate-
regulation, to confinue applying most of jts existing accounting policies for regulutory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PERS. Entities that adont PFRS 14 must
present the regnlatory deferral acouunts as separate line items pn the consolidated statement of
financial position and present movements in these account balances gs separate line items in



10 -

the consolidated statementi of income and other comprehensive income. The standard roquires
disclosurez on the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the
effects of that rate-repulation on its cansolidated financial staterments. Since the Group is an
existing FFRS preparer, thic standard would not apply.

Amendments to PAS [, Presentafion of Financicd Statements, Diselosure Mitiative
The amendments are intended 1o assist entities in applying judgment when meeting the
preseniation and diselosure requirements in PFRSs. They clarify the fallowing:

+  That antitigs shall not reduce the understandability of their consolidated financial
statements by either obscuring material information with frmmaterial information; or
aggregating material items that have different natures or functions

* Thatspecitic line items in the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive
incuune and the consolidated statement of finaneial position may be disaggregated

«  That entities have flexibility us (o fie order in which they present the nates to consolidated
linancizal statements

*+ . Thatthe share of other comprehensive income of assonintes and joint ventures aceounied
fur using the equity method must be presented in aggregate 2s a single line item, and
classificd between those Hems (hat will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss.,

The Group has assessed that these amendments da not have significant impact on its
consalidated financial statements upon edoption as it is alrgady complying with the amended
standard i f1s presentation,

Amendments 10 PAS 16, Proper(y, Plant and Foguipment and PAS 38, Intangible Assets,
Clorification of Avcepiable Methods of Depreciation and Amnrtization

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue refiects a pattern of
econnnic benetits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is parl)
rather than the economic benefits thaf are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used 1o depreiate property, plant and 2quipment and may
only be used in very limited circwinstances to amortize inlungible assels. These amendments
are applied prospectively and do not have any impact to the Group, given that the Troup has
not used a revenue-based method to depraciate or amortize its proporty, plant and squipment
and intangibles assels,

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41, Agriculture: Dearer Planis

The amendmenis change the tecounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
delinition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, hinlngical assets that meet the definition
of bearzr plants will no longer be wilhin the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply.
After initizl recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at acomnulated cost
(before maturity) and nsing either the cost moadel or revalvation model (after maturity). The
amendrenls also require that produce that grows on hearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs (o sell, For government grants yelsted to bearer
plants, PAS 20, Accounting for Goverament Grants and Disclosure of Gavernment dssisiance,
will apply. These amendments are applied retrospectively and do not have any impact o the
Ghowp as the Group does not have any bearer plants.




Amendments to PAS 27, Separate Fingncial Stalements, Eguity Method i Separare Financial
Stetementys

The amendments allow entities to ose the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, jolnt ventures and associates in their separate financial statemcnts. Dntities
already applying PFRE and clecting to change to the equity method in i separate financial
statements will have to apply that change reospectively. These amendments do ot have any
impact on the Group's consolidated financial siatements.

Amnual Improvemerits to PFRSs 2012 - 2019 Cyeie

Amendmient w0 FERS S, Moi-current Assers Held Jor Sale aud Discontinued Operations,
Changes in Mzthody of Disposad

The amendment is applied prespectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through
sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be
a new plan of disposal, rather it is 4 continuation of the vriginal plan, There is, therefore, no
interruption of the application of fhe requirements in PFRS 5. The amendment alse tlarifies
that changing the dispasal method does not change the date of classification,

Amendmeant o PFRS 7. Financicd mstemmens: Diselosures, Servicing Contracts

PERS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any contmving involvement in g
transferred assel that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment ¢larifies that a servicing
contract that includes a fee can consritute CONtinuing invoivement in a financial asset, An
entity must assess the nature of the fec and arrangement againsi the guidance for confinuing
involvement in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures aue required. The
amendment is (o be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute
coubinuing involvement will need (o be done rerraspectively. However, comparative
disclasures are not required to be pravided for auy period beginning before the annoal period
in which the entity first applies the amendments.

Ameadment to PERS 7, dpplicability of the Amendmenis 1o PIRRS 7 o Cowndensed Inierim
Financigl Statoments

This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures an offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed intsriy financial
report unless they provide z significant update to the information reporied in the most recent
annual report,

Amendment 1o PAS 19, @mpluyee Benefits, Diseonnt Rate.: Regional Murket Issue

This amendment is spplied prospectively and clarifies that marker depth of high quality
carporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the abligation is denominaled,
rather than the conntry where the obligation is lucaled. When thers is no deep market for liigh
quality corporate honds in that curreney, government bond rates jnust be used,

Amendment to PAS 34, lnierint Finameial Reporting, Disclosure of Iformmiion ‘Elsewhere in
the dnterim Finomcial Report”

The amendment is applied refrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures
st cither be fn the interim financial statements or meorporated by cross-referency between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are ineluded within the areater interim
financial report {e.g., in the management coimmentary or risk report).




Standards issued but not vet affaciive

Pranouncements issued but not vet effective are Jisted below, Unless atherwise indicated, the
Group does net expect that the future adoption of the said proncuncements to have 2 sigmicant
tmpact on its consolidated Tinancial statements, The Croug intends to adopt the following
Pronouneements when they become effective.

Effective beginning on or afier Janwary I, 2047

e

Amerdment to PFRS 12, Clwifisasion of the Scope of the Srandared (Part of dnmual
Improvemenis o PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cwele)

The amendments clarify that the diselosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating
to summarized financial information, apply 10 an eniity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate (or a portion of fts interest in a joint venture or an associare) that is
Classified (or included in a disposal group thar is classified) as held for sale. Tlese
amendinents are ot expected to have any impact to the Groug.

Amendments to PAL 7, Srarement of Cush Flows, Disclosure Mitiaive

The amendrients to PAS 7 reguire an entity 10 provide disclusures that enable users of
linancial statements o ovaluate citanges in liabilities arising from financing activities,
ncluding both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign
exchange gains or lasses). On initial applicadon of the amendinznts, entities are not required
te provide comparative information for preceding periads. Early application of the
amendments is parmitied. Application of amendments will reault in additional disclosures in
the 2017 consolidaled financial statements of the Group.

Arendments to PAS 12, fncome Fores, Recognition of Deferred Trie Assels Jar Lrealized
Losses

The amendinents clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax lawr restricts the sources
of taxable profits against whivh it may make deductions orl the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the armendments provide guidance on liow an entity
should determine firfure taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which txable profit
may laclude the recovery of some assets for more than their Carrying amount,

Enfities are required 10 apply the amendments refgspeclively, However, on iitial applieation
of the amendments, (he change in the opening equity of the carliest compuralive periad may
be recoguizzd in apening retained 2ariings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allecating the change between opening refained eamings and other
cemponents of equity. Entities applying this relief iust disclose that fact. Early applicstion
of the amendments is pernitted. These amendments are not expected to lrlave any impact to
the Groug,

Lffective beginning on or afier Janyary 1, 2018

©  Amendments 1o PFRS 2, Share-hased Pepyrment, Classifeation and Measurament of Shure-

based Payment Transactions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address lliree main arcas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurenent of a eash-setiled share-bused payment transaction; the classification of 2 share-
based payment transaction with net settloment features for withholding tax obligations; and
the accounting where « inudification to the terms end conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its clagsification fiom cash seitled 1o equity settled.
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On adoption, entlties are 1equired to apply the amendmants without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permiteed if elected for all three amendments and if ather criteria
are met. Early application of the amendments is permited, Tiwse amendments are not
expected (0 have any impact (o the Crroup.

Amendments to PFRS 4, lnswrance Contracts, Applving PFRS 9, Financial lastrumen I, with
PFRS 4

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard before implemerting the forthcom Mg insurance contracts standard.
They aliow entilies 10 choose between the. overlay approach and the deferral approach to dea!
with the transitiona] challenges. The overlay approach gives all entities that igsue insurance
contraets the option to recognize in other comprehensive income, rather than profit or loss, the
volatility that could arise wlien PFRS 9 is applied before the new insurance contracts standard
is issued, On the other hand, the deferral approach gives entities whose activities gre
predomirantly connected with insvurance an optional temporary exemption from applying
PFRS 9 untif the earlier of application of the ferthooming Insurance contracts standard or
Janvary 1, 2021

The averlay approach and the deferia) approach will only be availuble to an entity if it has not
previously agplied PFRS 9. These amendments are not applivable to the Group,

PERS A3, Reverus from Comracts with Customers

FFRS 135 establishes a new five-step modsl that wil) apply to revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under PERS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that yeflects the
cousideration 1o which an enlity expeets to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer, The pringi ples in PFKS 15 provide a more structured approach to
measuring and recognizing revenue.

Tire new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and wili supersede all aurrent revenue
recognition requirements under PRRSs. Either a full or madified retrospective application is
required for snnual periods beginning o or after Yanuary 1, 2018, The Gironp is corrently
as5sessing the impact of this standard,

PFRS 9, Finoncial lnstuments

PFRS & reflects all phases of the finansial instrnents project and replaces PAS 39, Finaneial
listrumeants: Recognition mmd Measurentent, and all previvus versions of PERS Y. The
standard intraduces new requirements for classification and measurenien, impaimient, and
hedge accounting, PFRS 9 is effective for annual periads begianing on or after January I,
2018, with early applicarion ponniled. Retrospective application is required, but providing
comparative information is not compulsory. For bedge aceounting, the requirerents are
gencrally applied prospectively, wich some limited exceptions, The Group did not sarly adopt,
PTPRS 9.

‘he adaption of PFRS 9 will have an effect o the classification and measurement of the
Group's financial assets and impairment methadelogy for financial assets, but will have no
impact on the classiflcation and measurement of the Group’s financial Nabilities. The Group
is currently assessi ng the impact of adopting this stapdard.
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©  Amendments 10 PAS 28, Measuriag an Associore or Joint Venture af Fafr Value (Part of
Anral Improvemenis to PFRSy 2014 - 2016 Cyele)
The amendments clariy that an entity that is & vanture capital organization, ar olher
qualifying entity, may elect, at [nitial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, ko
measure its invesiments in associales and ioint venures at fafr value through profit or loss.
They also clarity that if an entiry that is not itself an ivestment entity hag an interest In an
associate or joint veniwe that is an investment enfity, the enfity may, when applying the equity
method. elect to retain the fir value measurement applicd by that investment entity assocrate
ot joint venture o the investmeant DLy associate’s Or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries.
This slection iy made separately for sach investment ¢ntily associgle or joint venture, at the
later of the date on which (a) the investment entity associate or joint venlure is initially
recognized; (b} the associare or joint venture becomeys an investment entity; and (o) the
investment entity associate or joint venture first becormes a parent. These amendments shoukd
be applied retrospectively, with earlier application pornitled. These amendments are not
expected to have any impact to the Group.

*  Amendments to PAS 40, Imeesiment Froperty, Trangfers of Investnent Property
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer proparty, including property under
construcugn or develnpment into, or out of investment propetty. The amendments siate that a
change in wse oconrs when the properly meefs, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and tiere is evidencs of the change in use. A mere change m management’s
mtentions for the wse of a property ducs not provide evidence of a change in use, The
amendments should be applied prospaceively to changes in use that oceur on or afler the
bagiuning of the anmual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Retrospective application is ouly permited ifthis is possible withont the use of hindsight.
These amendnignts are not expected to have ity nnpact 1o the Group.

«  Fhilippine Tterpretation IF1IC-22, Foreign Curreney Transactions ond Advance
Considerarion
The interpretation olarifics that in deterinining the spot exchange rate to use on initial
recognitinn of the related aseet, expense or income {or part of it) on the derecopnition of a
HOISMURELETY asset ar non-monetary fiability relating 1o advance consideration, the date of the
transaction i5 the date on which an entity initially recopnizes the nonmonetary asset or non-
maonetary fiability arising from e advance consideration. H there are multiple payments or
receip(s i advance, then the entity must determine 2 date of the transactions for each payment
vr receipt of advance congideralion. The interpretation may be applied on a fully rewrospective
vasis. [ntities may apply the interprelation prospectively to all assats, expenses and itcome in
its scope that are initially recagaized on o afler the beginning of the reporting period in which
the entity first applics the interpretation or the beginning of' a prior reporting perind presenled
4s comparative information in the consolidated firancial statements of the reporting period i
which the entity fisst applies the interpretation. The Uronp is currently assessing the uopact of
this standard.

Effective beginning or or after January 1 2019

e PIERS 16, Logses
Uinder tha new standard, lessecs will ne longer classify their leases as either operaling or
linance leases in accordance with PAS 17, egses. Rather, lessess will apply the single-assel
meodcl, Undes this model, Jessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for mast
Jeases on their balance sheets, and sulmequently, will depreciale tie lease assets and 1ECognize
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interes! on the lease Hbilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months or Jess
or for which the underlying asset is of low valuc are exempted [rom these requirements.

The acoounting by Iessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessar accounting under FAS |7, Lessors, however, will be regnired to disclose
more information in their consolidated fnancial Faiements, particularly on the risk exposure
1o residual vahe.

Entities may early adopt PFRS 16 but only if'they have also adopted FFRS 15, When
adopling PFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach, with options fo use certain transition reliefs. The Group is currently
assessing the inmpact of adopting PFRS 16 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required
effective date once adopted locally, This stendard is expected to si gnificanily impact it
leasing arrangements for outlets which are currently accounted for as vperating lease, as the
Group is alieudy required to recognize the related assets and linbilities in its consolidated
statement of financial position,

Deferred effectivity

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Comribndion of Assets henween an hivestor awed
s Assectare or Jomf Ventwre

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of 2 subsidiary thatis sold or coniributed 10 an assoeiate or joint venture, The
amendments elanfy that 2 fll gain or loss is recognized when a transfer ro an associate ar
Juint venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations, Any gain or
losa rosulting from the sale or contribution of assefs that does not constitute a business,
howaver, is recognized only to the sxtent of unrelated investors® interests in the aggoviate or
Joint veniure.

On Januvary 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Couneil postponed the original
effeative date of January 1, 2014 of the said amendments unitil the Intemational Acegunting
Standurds Board has completed its broader review of the research project on equily aceounting
that may result in the siaplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of
Aaccounting for associates and joint ventures, These amendments are nmf expected to have any
impact to the Gronp.

ash angl Casly Eguivalents

Cush and cash equivalents are stated at face value. Cagh and cash equivalenis inolude cash on
kand, cash in banks and other short-term highly liguid investments with original matoritics ol
three months or less from the dates of acquisition. Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank
depasit rates.

Fair Value Myasurement
The Group measures financial instruments at Fair value af cach reporting date,

Fair valye is the prive that would be received to seil an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
arderly transaction between marker parlicipants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the wassaciion 1o sell the ALSeT ar transfer the
liability rakes place either:

In the principal marker for the asset or iability, or
I the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or fiahiliry,
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible t© the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market particlants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assumiing that market participants aci in their
sconoemic best interest,

A fair value nieasuremem of a nonfinancizl asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
t0 generate economic benelils by using the asset on the highest and best use or by selling it to
aniother market participant that would use the assel in its highest and begt vse.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sulficient data are available 1o measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant abservable
inputs and minbmizing the use of unebservable inpots.

All assets and lisbilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorrzed within the fzir value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
losvest fevel input that is sipnificant to the fair value measurement as 2 whole:

+ Level I - Qnoted {unadjusted) market prives in aclive markets for identical assets or liabitities

»  Level 2 - Valuauon wehnigues for which the lowest level input that is siguificani w the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for whicl the lowest level input that s significam to the fair
value measwrement i3 unobservable

For assets and liabilities thar are recognized in the consolidated finanoial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transters have neoisred between Levels in the hjerarchy by
re-gssessing caiegorization (based on the lowest level inpur that is sipnificant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Fipancial Assets and Fingneial Liahilities

Date of recognition

The Group recognizes a inapclal asset or a financiat Hability in the consolidated statement of
financial position when it becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the instremennt.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are reepgnized on the seftlement date,

Mnitiad recognition of financiol avseie and financial fabilities

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Except for
financial asscts and financial lHabilities at FYPL, the initia) measurement of financial assets
includes trangaction costs. The Group classifies its financial assets within the scope of PAS 39 in
the follmwing categnries: financial assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) financial assets, AFS
fmancial assets and loans and receivables. Financial liabilities are classified into financial
liabilizies at FYPL and other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the prrpose for
which the {inancial assets were acquired or financial Habilities incurred and whether they arc
quoted in an active market. The Gronp determines the classification of its tnvesiments at initial
recognition and, where aliowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting
date.
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As of December 37, 2016 and 2013, the Group’s financial assets and {inancial liabilities arc of the
nafwre of loans and receivables, AFS financial assets and other financial lizhilities, respectively,

Deirerminarion of fotir value

The fair value of financial assets and financial labilities traded in active markets is based on
quoted marker price at the reporting date, A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readny and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, ind UStry aroup, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and thage prices represent actual and regularly occurring market nansactions
onan arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets hield by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are included i Level 1. Instrimnents included in

Level ) comprise primarily of listed equity investments as AFS,

The fair value of assets and {iabilitics thai are nat traded in an active market {for cxamiple, aver-
the~counter derivatives) is determined by using valation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximize the use of observuble market data where it is available and rely ag little as possible on
entity specific estimates. [1 al) significant inputs required to fair value an insiremert are
cbservable, the asset or liability is included in Level 2, I oue or mote of the significant inpuis is
not based on observable market data, 1he asset or liability 18 inchided in Level 3.

“Ouy ! difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is diferent from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same jnstrum ent or based ou a valuation technique
whose variables inclode only data from obscrvalle markel, ihe Group recognizes the ditference
berween the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1 differcnce) in the consolidated statement of
comprzhensive imcome unless it qualifies for Tecognition as some other type of asset. Ty cases
where uge is made of data which is nut vbservable, the difference between the transaction price
and madel vaive is only recognized in the consolidated stalement of comiprebensive incorne when
the inpyts become observabie or when the instrument is derecognized. For each fransaction, the
Group determines (e appropriate method of recogaizing the ‘Day 17 difference amount,

Loans and recetuahies

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fined maturitics that are not quoted in an active marker. These are not entered into with the
intention of immediatc or shart-leymn resale and are not destgnated as AFS financial assets or
Tinancial assats at FVPL,

Afier initial measurement, Ioans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized st
usmg the effective interest methad, less allowatice for impairment. Amorlized enst is calculated
by taking into account any discount or promivm on acquisiion and fees that are integral parts of
the effective interest rate. The amortizstion is included in the interest income in the consolidated
statement of camprehensive income, The losszes arising from impairment of such loans and
receivables are recognized as provision for fmpairment losses in the Group’s congolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables are included in carrent assets if maturity is within twelve months from (he
reporting date, Otherwise, these are classified as ROBCUITEDt ASsets.

As of Decernber 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group’s lvana and receivables include cash and cagh
squivalents, tade and other receivables, due trom related parties, and shor-term investments
under prepayments and other current assels,
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Aveilablefor-sale finoncial assers
ATS fluancial assets pertain to equity investmencs. Equity instruments classified as AFS are those
that aie neither classified as 1iwld for tradin g nor designated as FVYPL,

After iniijal measurement, ARS financial asssts are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains ot losses recognized in OCT ang credited to unrsalized gain (loss) on AFS
financia! assets account until the invesment is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognized in other mcome, or the investment s determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative loss i3 reclassified from imrealized gain (loss) on AFS financial assets aceoumt to the
consolidated statenyent of profit ar loss in other expenses. Dividend carned whilst holding AFS
financial assets is reparted as dividend income.

The Group evalvates whether the ability and intention to self its AFS financial assets in the near
teray is still appropriate. Wien, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade (hese financial
283213 due 1o inactive markets, the Group may elect 1 reclassify these financial assets if the
management has the ability and intention W hald the assers Tor foreseeah l¢ future or untit maturiry,

For # financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value carrying aimount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amartized eost and any previous gain or logs on the asset that
has been recognized in equity is anorlized to profit or loss over the remining life of the
investment using the EIR. Any difference between the new immortized cost and the mamrity
amount is also amortized cver the remaining life of the asset using the BEIR. If the asset is
subsequently determined 10 be impaired, (hen the amount recorded in equity is reclassified ro 1he
consolidated statement of compreheusive income,

Oiher fingneial labifities

Other financial liabitities pertain 1o financial liabilities not classifiad or designaled as finaneial
liabilities at EVPL where the substance of e contractug) arrangement results in the Group having
an obligation either to deliver vash or another financial asset to the holder or Lo settte the
obligation oiher than by the exchange of » fixed amount of cash,

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured ar amortized cost
using the effective fnterest method. Amortized cost is calonlated by taking into account any
discount of premium o the issue and fess that are integral parts of the cffective interest rate.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2013, the Group’s other financial Nabilities melude aceounts and
other payahles (axcluding statutory liabiliti es), due to related parties, notes pavable, transmissions
hability, finance lease liabilities and other noneurrent liabilities,

Impairment of Finangial Asscts :
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether thers is objective evidence thar a financial asset
or group of similar financial assers is tmpaired. A financial asset o1 a group of similar financial
nasets is deemed to be impaired if, and oniv if, thers is onhiective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more evenss that las ocvurred after the initial recoguition ot the asset {an incurred
“lpss event™) and that less event {or events) has an impact on the esiimated future cash flows of
the financlal asset or the group of simitar financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment wiay include indications that the horrawer or a group of borrowers is experioncing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization and where observable
data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes
In arrears or ceonomic conditions that corrclate with defaults.
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Loans and recejrables

For foans and receivables earried at amortized cost, the Group first agsesses whother objective
evidence of inpairment exists individually for financial assets fhat are individually significant, or
coliectivaly for financial assets that are not individuaily significant. If the Group determines that
no objeclive evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant o not, it includes the asset in a group of similar financial assets with shmilar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses For impairment. Those characteristics are relevant t the
estimation of future cash tlows for group of such assets by being indicative of the debiars’ ability
o pay all amonnts due aecording jo the contractual tsrms of the assels being evaluated, Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
ke, recognized are not inchidsd in a collective assessment for impairment,

It there is objestive evidence that an imparment foss has been incurred, the amoust of the loss is
measured a5 the difference between the assei’s cartying amount and tho present value of the
estirmated fivure cash flows (excluding fiture eredit lasses that have not been incwrred’, The
present value of estimated cash flaws is discounied at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. [1a loan has a variabie interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate. The earrying amount of the asset is reduced through use
of an allowance account and the amaunt of |oss is charged to the consolidated staternent of
comprehensive income. Interest income continues o be recognized based on the original effective
interest rate of the asser, Loans, together with the assaciaied allowance dccounts, are wiitien off
when there s no realistic prospect of future recovery and all eallateral has been realived. I in &
subscquent year, the amount of 1he estimated impairment joss decreases because of an event
accurring after the impaiment was recognized, the previously recogitized impairment loss is
reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in consolldared statement
of cumprehensive income, to the extent that the carying value of the assct does nat excecd iis
amortized cost at the eversal date, '

For the purpose of a eollective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of such credit risk characieristics as custnmer type, payment history, past-due status and term,

Future cash flows in a group of similar financial assets that sre callectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for ussets with cred]t risk
cliaracteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the busis of
current observable data 1w reflect the effects of current conditions that did net affeci the period on
which the historical loss expericnee is based aud (o remove the effects of conditions iv the
historical periad that do not exist eurrently, The methodelogy and assumpiions used for
estinating future cash flows are reviewsd regularty by the Group to reducc any differences
between |oss estimates aywd actual logs experience,

Avatlable-for-sede financial assers

The Gruup assesses af each reporling date whether there is objective evidence that investnent js
impaired. I the case of equity investments classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged deeling
i the fair value of the security below its cost is aiso evidence that the assels are impaired.
‘Significant’ is to be evaluated against the original cost of the investment and *prolonged’ against
the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Generally, the Group lreais
"sigmificant’ as 20% or snore and ‘protonged” as greater than twelve months, Where there js
evidence of impairment, the cumulative joss measured as the differenpe between the acquisition
cost ahd the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized
i profit o [oss is removed from equify and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment lasses un
squity instruments arc not reversed through profit or loss, but its increases in the fair value after
impairment are recognized direetly in other com prehensive income.
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Derecognition of Financial Assers and Finaneia] iabilities

Financial asset
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial zssets) is derecognized when:

a) the rights ta receive cash flows [rom the asset have expined, or

b) the Group has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from the agset o has assumed an
obligation to pay the recelved cash flows in full without mazerial delay io a third party wnder a
‘pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has rransfersed substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset or {b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

Wheno the Group bas transferred is rights 1o receive cash flows fiom an a4set or has entered into a
pags-through arrangement, it ovaluates if und (o what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownsrship. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all ¢f the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transfemed contral of the asset, the Grotip continues to recognize the transferred
assel {0 the exient of the Group's continuing involvernent. In that case, the Group also recognizes
an sssoiated ltability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has rotained. Cantinwing involvement thal
takes the form of 2 guarantee aver the: transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amnauni of the agset and the maximmm amount of consideration that the Group could be
recuired 1o repay.

Finaneral liabiliries

A finuncial liability is derecounized when the obligation under the hability 15 discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantizlly different terms, or the terms of an cxisting Tiability are substantially
madified, such an exchange or modification is treated as 2 derecognition of the original liability
amd the recognition of & new iiability, and the difference in the respactive carrying amounts is
recognized in the Group’s consolidated slaternent of comprehensive invome.

Offsetting of Finaucial Aszets and Financial Liabilities

Finuncial assets and financial liabilites are offsct and the net ameims reported in the consolidated
statemnent of financial position if, ad only if] ithers is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to sctile on 2 net basis, or to realize the assel and
settlc the Habibity stmuitaneously,

Prepoyments and Qther Assets

Prepayments substantially congisting of rent and advertising are recognized in the event that
payment has substantially heen made in advance for the purchase of goods or services lor whish
delivery or perfurmance has not yet ccenrred, Prepayments are measured at nndiscounfed
amounts and derccognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as they expire with
the passage of time, or through use and consuruption.

Mualerials anc supplics consist of (he suppliss, inks, packing matarials and receipt used in the
Group's operations. Materials and supplies are initially measured at the cost of purchase, which
comprise the purchase price less trade discounts, rebates and other similar deductions. Materials
and supplies are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net renlizable vahie, Cost s
determined vsing average cost formula, Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion aud the estimated costs
necessary io male the sale. Materials and supplics are derecognized when consumed.
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Other assets in the foun of nput value-added tax and creditable withholding tax are recognized as
assets 1o the extent it is probable that the benefit will flow to the Group, These are derecognized
when there is 2 legally enforceable right to apply the recognized amounts against the related tax
liability within the period prescribed by the relevant fax Iaws.

Property and Equipment

Broperty and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any
Impairment in value. The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price,
taxes and any directiy attributable costs of bringiug the property and equipment to its warking
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and
equipment have been put into operation are capitalized as part of property and equipment only
when it i probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 16 the Group
and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. All ather repairs and maintenance are cha rged
agamst Qurrent cperations as incurrad.

Depreciation and amortization is calculated o a straight-line method over the following estimated
usciul lives of the property and eguipment;

Years

Computer hardware R PP
Fumitture, fixtures and office eguipman 3tas
Transportatton equipment 3ol
8 or lease lerm

Leaselwdd improvements {whichever 15 shortar)

Constioction in progress is stated at cogt. Construction in progress is not deprociated until such
lime as the rejevant assets are campleted and available for use.

The assets’ residual value, sstimated usefinl tives and depreciation and ameoitization wethod are
reviewed perindicaliy 1o ensure that the period and method of depreciation and amartization arc
consistent with the expected pattern of cconomic benefits from items of property and equipment.
The assct’s carrying amount Is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable aount,

When property and equipment are refired or olherwise disposed of, the cost and the refated
aceumulated depraciation and amortization and accumuiared provision for impairment fosses, if
any, are remaved from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss (ealvwlzied as the difference
between the nef disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property and cquipment} is
credited to or charged against profit or loss in the year the property and squipment is
derccognized.

Intanpible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acouired in 2 business combination is the Fair valne at the date of acquigition.
Following initizl recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any scermulated
amorhization angd acewsulated impairment Josses. Imternally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalized development costs, ar not capitalived and the related expenditure is reflected in the
consolidared statsinent vl comprehensive income in the period in which the expendifure is
meurved,
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful ecouomic life and gssessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangrble asset may be impaired. The
amertization pericd and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a fnite useful life arc
reviawed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expectzd pattern of consumption of future scononiic benelits embodied in the asser are considered
lo modify the amortization period or merhod, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on mlangible assets with finite lives is
recognized in the consolidatad staternent of com prehensive income in the expense category that is
consistent with the function of the intangible assets. The useful life of the Group's software s
three to five years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
anpually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indedinite life
i§ reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. 1f not,
the change in uscful life from indefinite to finite is mads on 4 prospective basis.

Crains or losses arising from deresognition of an intar gible asset are meastred as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and ave recognized in the
consoliduled siatement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

Development expenditures on an individual pioject are recognized as an intangible asset when the
Group can demaonstrate:

* the technical foasibility of conpleting the intangibie asset so thai the asset wil] he available for
nae or sale;

* hig intention to complzie and it abilify t2 use or zell the asset;

*  how the asset will generate futire economic henefirs;

» the availability of resources 1o complete the asset; and

< the ability to measure reliably the exponditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expendrture as an asset, the asset is carried at
cost less any acoumulated anvartization and aceunulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
assef. begine when development is complete and the asset is available for use. 1t is amortized over
the period of expected tutire benefil. Amortization is recorded in vperating expenses, During the
period of development, the asset is tested for impairment apnually.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
fmpaired. Tfauy such indication exisrs, or when annnal impairment testing for an asset is roquired,
the Group males an estimate of (ke assel’s recoverable amouat. A asser s reeaverable amount is
the highes of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value luss costs to sell and its value in use
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash uiflows that are
largely independent of thase from other assets or group of assets, Where the carrying amount of
an gsset exceeds ils recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to ity
racavershle amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future oash flows are diseounted to their present valug
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cumrent market assessments of the time value of mongy
and the risks specific to the asset, mpairment losses of conlinuing operations are recognized in
the consolidated stalement of comprehensive income in those SHpENSE Categories vonsistent with
the function uf the impaired asset.
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An assessment is made al cach reporting date as to whether there is any meeation that previgusly
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indieation
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
ondy if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine fhe asset’s recoverable amoLnt
since the last imprirment Joss was recognized. If that is the case the canrying amoury of the assel
is increased to its recoverable amount, That increased amoun cannor exceed the Carying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had ne im pairment loss been recognized
for the assed in prior vears, Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income unless the asset is camied at revalued mmount, in which case, the reversal 7s
trested s a revaluation increase. After such reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future
pertods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual valug, on a systematic
hasis over its remaining usetul life.

Emplovee Benefits
The Group has @ noncontributory defined retiroment benefit plan. The net delined 1etirement

benefif lisbility or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined retirement benefit
Lability at the end of reporting date reduced by the tair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted for
any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asser ceiling, The asset ceiling is tha
present value of any economic benefifs available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions io the plan. The cost of previding benefils under the defined
benefit plan is actuarialty determined using the projected unit aredit method,

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

£ Service cosis
+  Net interest on the ot definsd benelit liability or asset
»  Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gaing or lesses on non-
routine seitlements are recognized as expense in profit or 10ss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailmoent ocenrs. These amounts are caleulated periodically by an
independent qualified actuary.

Net interest on the net defined retirement benefit liability or asser is the change during the perind
in the net defined retirement benefit Habillty or asset that arises from he passage of tine which is
determined by applying the discount rate based an government bonds to the net defined retirament
benetit lability or asset. Ner interest on the net defines vetirement benefit liabihity or assef is
recognized as cxpense or incows in profit or loss.

Remeasurements compnising actuarial gaing and Tosses, return on plan assets and any change in
the elfect of the asser ceiling (excluding net interest nn defined refirement benefit liabiity) are
recopmized immediately in OC! in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements ave not
reclasuified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. All remeasurements recogrized in OC]
accounrt, “Remeasurement gains (losses) on retirement benefit plan”, are not reclassified to profit
or [oss in subsequent perinds,

Plan assets are assets that are held by & long-terin employes benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid divectly
to the Group, Fair value of pilan assets is based on markst price informatien. When no market
price is available, the fair value of plan assets is asiimated by discounting expected future cash
flows neing a discount rate that reflects both the risk associzied with (he ptan assets and te
maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, i they have no maturily, the expecrd
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neriod untif the seitlement of the related liabilitics). If the fair valus of th plan assets is higher
than the present value of the defined reticeent benefit lability, the measurcment of the resulting
defimed retirement benefit asset is limited to the present value of sconomic benefits available i
the form of refunds frem the plan or reductions in future contributions (o the plan,

The Group®s right to be reimbursed of some ot all of the expenditure required to settfe a defined
benelit retirement Hability is recopnized as a separate asset at fair vatue when and only when
retmbursement is virtnally certain.

Termination benefis

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an
employee’s employment as a result of either the Group’s decision o terminate an employee’s
employment befere the normal retivement date or an enployee’s decision to aceept an offer af
benefits i cxchange for the termination of employment,

A liability aud expensge for a tennination benefit is recognized at the earlier at when the entity can
03 longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when il entily recognizes related restructuring
cos1s. Initial recognition and subsequent changes 10 termination benchits are measyred o
accordunce with the nature of the employes henefit, as either post-cmployment benefits, short-
teste employee benafits, or other Jong-ierm employee benefits,

Emplovee leave entitlenent

Employee entitlements o anrnual leave are recognized as a liability wizen they are acorved to the
employces. The undiscaunted liability for leave credits in excess of 43 iays s expected to be
settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the anmual reporting date. Earned leave
credits of 45 days is recognized as a liability and settled when the cmployee leaves the Group
subject ur certaln conditions.

The Gronp considers the inderlying substance and economie regl ity of its own cqRity instruments
and 1ot merely iis legal form in determining its nroper classification.

Cernitert stock

The Group records common stonks at par value and the omount of the contribution in excess of par
value s accounted for as an additional paid-in capital, Incremental cosis jncurred directly
attribitable to the issuance of new shares are deducted from proceeds,

Retained egrnings

Retained camings represent aconmulated sarnin gs of the Group less dividends declared, and any
adjustments arising from application of new accounting standards, policies or correstions of errors
applied retrospectively, Dividends on common stocks are recognized as a tability and deducted
from equity when decfared. '

Eguity reperve

Froity reserve is the result of the application of similarto 4 pooling-of-inierest whiah FEpresents
the difference between the legal capital of the legal acquirec/nccounting aequirer us against the
legal capital of the legal acyuirer/accounting acquirae.

Revenoe Recoenition

Revenne is recognized fo the extent that it ig probable that the ceonomic benefits will flow to the
Group and 1he revenus ean be reliably measured regardless when the payment is being made,
Revenue is measured at the Ffair value of the congideration received, excinding discounts, retums,




rehates and sales tax. The Group nssosscs its revenue AITANECMENTS against specific oriteria in
arder to dstermine if it is acting s a principal or agent.

The following specific recognition criteria must also he met before revenue I§ recognized:

Service fees

The Group recognizes revenue (rom inboumd and outbound courier, cargo and money transter
facilities when services are rendered and delivered, risk and rewsrds are transferred to customers
and collection of amoints bitled to customers are reasonably assured,

Service arising from money transfer is considered to have been rendered when the principal
amount of money has been transforred (0 2 certain geographical area where the Group holdz 2
branch and the same is ready for withdrawal by the interrded benefiziary,

frleresy income
Interest incame is rocognized on 2 ime-proportion basis using the effective interest method,
Inierest income from hank deposits is presented net of applicable tax withheld hy the banks,

(Qiher fircame
Other income is recognized whan ezmed,

Cost ang Expense Renpenition
Cost and expenses are recognized in profit or loss when decrease in futurs sconomic benefit

related 1o a decreasc in an asset or an increase in a habnlity has arisen that can be reliably
meayured.

Cosl and expenses are recognized in the cansolidated statement of comprehensive income:

= Qn the basis of a dircet association Letween the ¢osis incurred and the earning of specific
items of incame;

» O the basis of systematic and rational allocafion procedures when econoinic benefits are
exprcted 0 arise over several accounting poriods and the association can only be broadly o
indirectly determined; or

«  Immediately when cxpenditure produces no firtiire economic benefits or when, and to the
extent that, future econamic benefits do not qualify or coase Lo qualify, for recognition in the
consolidated statement of financial position as an asser.

Leages

The determinstion of whether an arrangemnenl is, or contains a lesse is based on the sabstance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfiliment of the arrangeanent is
dependant on the use of o specific asset or agsets and the arrangement conveys a right to usc the
asset,

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the foliowing applivs:

(a) there s a clage in contractual terms, other than & revewal or extension aof the arpangoment;

{b) a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term af'the renewal or extension
was inffially included in the lease term;

(¢} there is a change in the determination of whether fin§) lrent is dependent on a specific asset:
o

{d} there is a substantial change to the asset.
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Where n reasscssment ts made, lease accounting thall commence or cease From ths date when the
change in circumstances gives rise to the reasscssment for scenarios (8), {¢) or (d) above, and at
the daie of renewal or extension period for acenario (b).

Group as fessee '

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lzase or an operating lease. A lzase that
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Oroup is classified
as a finance lease.

Finance leases are caprtalized at the commencement of the [ease a1 the inception date, the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum fease pEyments,
Lease payments arc apportioned berween finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liahility. Finance charges are
recognized in finance ¢osts in the consolidated statemnent of comprehensive [ncome,

A leased asset Is depreciated over the nsetol life of the asset, However, if there 1¢ po reasonsble
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
aver the shorter of the estimated usefu] Lifs of the assel znd the lease term, Operating lease
payments are recognized a3 an operating expense in the consolidated statzment of comprehensive
income on 2 strajght-line basis ovar the lease term.

The tax expense for the pericd comprizes of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in protit
or lags, ckeept 10 the exient that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
dircetly in equity, Tn this case, the tax Is alse recognized in other comprelensive incomea or
directly in equity.

Current [y

Current tax assots and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and 13% 1avws vsed
to compiite the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted af the reparting
dae,

Current income tax relating to items recognized divectly {n equily is recognized In equity and not
1 the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, Management periadically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicabls tax recedations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Lefarred terx

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet iability method on al] ternporary differences,
with certain exceptions, al the reporting date berween the tax bascs of assets and liahilities and
their carying amountis for finaneial reporting purposes.

Deferred 1ax labilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tan assets
are recognized for all deduciible temporary differences, carnyforward benefit of umised tax credits
frora excess miniowam eorperate incame fax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT)
and ned operating kosses carrynver (NOLCO), w the extent that it is probable 1hat fiture taxable
income will be available against which the deductible temparary differences and carryforward
benefits of vnused tx credits from MCIT and NGLCO can be ntilized.
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Deferred tax nssets are not recognized when they arise from the inftial recognition of an asset or
liahility in & tansaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of rransaction, affects
neitlier the acoounting income nor taxable meoms or oss. Deferred tax liabilities arg not provided
on nontaxable wwmporary differences associated with investments in domestic subsidiaries,
associstes and inferests in joint ventures.

The carrving anount of deferred ax assets is reviewsd at sach reporting dae and reduced fo the
extent that it is no longer prebable thar sufficient future taxable income will be avetlable to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that #t has become probable that fiture
taxable profit witl allow deferved fax assets to be wtilized,

Deferred tax asscls and liabilities are measured at the tax rares that are expected to apply to the
period when the reset is realized or the liability is settled, based on fax rates and tax laws that have
besn enacted or substantively enagted al the reporting date. Movements in the deferred tax assets
and liabilities arising from changes in tax rales are credited W or charged against incone for the
period,

Plelerred tax retating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside proflt or loss.
Dieferred Lax ltems are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT o3
directly in equity.

Deterred tax assets and deferred tax ikbilitics are offset, if & legally enforceable right exisis (o
offset curment 1ax assets against gurreny tax liabilivdes and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxahle entity and the same taxation authority,

Forsige Curreney-Denomingted Transactions and Teanslations

Foreign currency transaclions are recorded in Philippine Peso at provailing exchange rates at the
time of the Iransactions. Exchange gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transacaons are
credited or chavged to current operations, Foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and
liahilities of the Group are transtated to Fhilippine Peso using the Philippine Dealing and
Exchange Corporation closing rate at the reporting date. Foreign exchange differences ansing
from foreign curreney translation are also credited ar charged to consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

The resulis and financial pusition of all e Group’s Lranches outside the Philippines (none of
which has the curreney of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are transtated into the prasentation cuorrency as folfotws:

{1} assets and labilites for each statenent of fnancial posiiion presented are translated at the
closing rate at the reparting dare; '

{11} income and expenses for each statement of income are tfransialed at average exchange rates
{unfess thig average 15 not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the fransaction dutes, in which case lcome and cipenses are ansiated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(11} all resulting exchange differences arg recognizad in other comprehensive income.




Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Related party refationship exists when one party bas the ability to control, directly or indireetly
through one or more inermediarics, the other party or exercises significant influence over the
other party in making financial and operating desisions. Such relationship also exists between
andfor amorg entities whiclt are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or belween
and/or amony the reporting enterprise and its key management persomiel, direciors, or its
sharchelders, In consideving each possible related party relaticnship, attention is directed o the
substance nf the relationship, and not merely rthe legal form.

Eamnings Per Share ("EPS”)

Basic LPS is calculated by dividing income applicable to common shares by the weighted average
number of common shares ouistanding during the year with retroactive adjusiments for stock
dividends. Diluted EPS is computed in the same manner as basic EPS, however, nel income
attributable to common shares and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are
adjusted for the effccts of all dilutive potential common shares.

Segment Reporting
The Executive Committes is the Group’s chief operating decision-muker. Operating sogmonts are

reported i & manner consistent with the rtemal reporting provided to the Executive Committee.
The Executive Committes, who iz responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has heer identified as the steering commitiee that makes straregic

decisions.

Provisions

Provisions are recogrized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive] as a
gesult of a past event, it is probable that an sutllow of resuurces enzbodying econemic benefits will
be required to seftle the abligation, and a rcliable ostimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Group expects 2 provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement 1s
recognized a5 a separate asset bot onty when the reimbursement is virtually cenain. The expense
relating (o a provision is presented in the consoliduted statement of comprehensive income net of
any reimbiarsement. Frovisions are included in current liabilities, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the reporting period, which are then classified as nomenrrent
fiabilities. Provisions are reviewed at the end of cach reporting period and adjusted 1o reficct the
current best estimate. If it s no longer probable that an outllow ol iesources embadying economic
Lenefits will be required to seftle the obligation, the provision is recognized in profit or foss.

ConnEencies

Contingent fiabilities are not recognized in the consolidated {inanciz] statements. They are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outllow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote, Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated finaneial statemeants it
disclosed when an inflow of econamic benefit is probable.

Events after the Reporting Leate
Post year-end events up 1o the dare when the consolidated financial statements are authorizad tor

issue that provide additionzl information sbout the Group's position at each reporting date
tadjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statemerts, Fost year-end cvents that
are nat adjusting events are disclesed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, wlien
material,
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3. Sigonificant Accounting Judgments, Fstimates and Assumpiions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated Anancial stzlements reguives management to make
judgments, estimates and assumprtions that affect (he reported amounts of revenues, expensas,
assets and labilities, and the accompanying disclasures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumpticns and estimates could result in outcomes that
reqitire 2 material adjustnent to the carrying amount of assets or iiabilities affected in Toture
periods,

Management betieves the following represent a surnmary of these significant judgments, estimates
and assumptiong:

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policics, management has madea the following

P PRiymng inc 1 -ounling palicIes, B
Judgments, apart trom thase tnvalving astimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized i the consolidated financial statements.

Cunsolidation of antitics in whick the Group holds fess thar 510% ownership

EBCE has assessed that it contrals the eniifies in Habrain, Kowait and L}cﬂdf gven at 49%%

pwnership due to the follswing reasons:

(2) it has the pawer to direct the relevant activities {e.g. operations, hiring of people, sesting up of
rates) of the entities. It has the full discretion on tis day o day operations and decides on
major transactions these entities entar inio.

{b) it is exposed o variable returns of the sntities.

[€) given its participation in the relevant activities of the entitics, it is able to affect the retums of
the entities.

fdentifving o business combination
The Group determines whetler a transaction or an event 5 a purchase of a business or purchase ol
an asset by applying PFRS 3 whieh provides the definition of a business.

The Parent Company is a shell listed Company with only cash of 211,840, other currenl assets of
P48,394 and doe from a related party of B58,805,145 as the primary asscls as of May 18, 2015 and
therefore not comprising a business upon acqisttion (see Note 1).

Depermining fimctionaf curvency

LBCH and its subsidiaries have determined that their fonctional currency is the Philippine Peso,
except for LBC Express WLL, LBC Express Bahirain WLL and LBC Express LLC which are in
Kowaiti Dinar, Bahiraini Dinar and Qatari Rival, respectively. It is the currency of the prunary
ceonomic environment in which the catities operate,

Lease commitments - Group as iessee

The determination of whether an arangement is, or containg a lease is dased on the substance of
e arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfiitment of ihe arrangeient is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement convays a right to vse the
asset,

Wanagement exercises judsment in éetermining whether substantizlly all the significant risks and
rewards of ovmership of the leased assels are translorred to the Group, Lease contracts, which
transfer 1o the Group substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental ko ownership of
the leased ifems, are classified as finance lease. {Mherwise, they are considered as operating
Jeases,
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The Group nas anteved into various lease arrangements Tor s business operations

fsee Note 18). Tn determining whether the lease is cencellable or not, the Group vongidened,
among others, the significance of the lease torm as compared with the sstimated uscful life of the
related agset. The Greup has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
(he arrangement, that the lessor retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
leased property and so accounts for the contract as operating lease.

For leases involving transportation equipment, the Group has determined that i retains all
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the leased properties and so accounts for the
eontracts as finance jgase.

Determining provisions and contingencies

The Group is currantly invoived in various legal proceedings including taxatinn matters. The
estimate of the probable costs for the resolutions of these claims has been developed in
consultation with oulside vounsel handling the defense in these matters and 15 based upon an
analysis of potential resulis. The Group curtently does not believe these proceedings will have a
material effect on the Group®s financial position. It is possible, however, that fiutire results of
aperations conld be materialty affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the
strategies relating to these proceedings.

Na provision for probable losses arising from legal conlingencies was recogrized in the
consnlidated financial statements for the years snded December 31, 2016 and 20135 {3ec Notc 25).

Dstimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key saurces of sstimatfion uncertainty at the
reporting dale, that have a significant risk of cansing a materiat adjustment 10 e carrying
amounts of assets and Hahilities within the next financial ysar, are described below. The Group
based its assumptions and cstimates on paramatsrs available when the consclidated financial
statenents were prepared. Existing elrcursiznces and assumptions abnnt fiture developments,
however, may change due to market changss or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Group, Such changes are reflected o the asswnptions when they occur.

Estimating usefud liver of property and equipment

The Ciroup estimates the uscful lives of its property and equipment based on the pericd over which
the assets are expected to be available for use, The Group reviews annually the estimated useful
lives of property and equipment based on expected asset utilization. [Lis possible that future
resulte of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimares brought about by
changes in the factors mentioned. A reduction in the estimated useful fives of property and
equipment would increase the recorded depreciation and decrease the carrying value of property
and equipment.

The carrying amonnt of property and equipment ampunted to #840 48 million and
B763.02 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2013, respoctivaly (see Notw 7).

Estimating pension cost

T'he eost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employmeni 2enefits as well as the
present value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. The acluarial
valuation involves making various assumptions. Thess include the determination of the discount
rates, futurs salary increases, mortality rates and attrition. Due to the complexity of the valuatron,
the nndertving assumphons and its long-tenm natore, defined benetiv obiigations are highly
sensitive 1o changes in these assumptions. Al assumptions are reviswed at cach reporting date.
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In determining the appropriate discount rafe, management considers the interest rate of
government bonds in the respective currencies with extrapolated maturities sorresponding to the
sxpectl Jaration of the deftned benefit obligation adjusted based on the manner of cash outflow
of setiling the pension Labiiity,

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortaiity tables in the Philippines and is modifisd
accordingly with estimates of meriality improvements. Future salary increases is basad on
expected salary rate increase over the duration of the abligation. Aftrition rate is based on
historical experiencas, Further details about the assumptions used sre provided in Note 19,

The carrying amount of pension liabilities, net of plan assets, amounted 1o $721.02 million and
P641.81 million as of Decerber 31, 2016 aud 2013, respectively (see Not 19

Recognizing deferved tax assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deterred tax assefs 2t each reporting date and reduced
ta the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be availahie fo
aliows all or part of the deferved 1ax assets 1o be urilized. Jigoificant wanagement judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax zssets that 2an be recognized, bascd upon the
likely timing and level of future laxable protits together with futdre tax planning strategies.

Realization of future tax benefit reluied to deferred tax assets is dependent on the Group’s ability
to generats futire taxable income during the periods in which they are expected 1o bo recovered.
The Group hias considered factors in reaching a eonchision as to the amount of deferred income
lax assets recagnized as at Decernber 31, 2016 and 2¢13. Management believes that the Group
will be able to generate future taxable income to allow for the realization of deferred tax assets,

Based on management’s assessment, the Group recognized deferred tax assets amounting to
B274.38 million and $223.05 million as of Decemnber 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively {ses
Nate 173

Fair value of financial assers and financial liabilities

When the fair values of financial assets end financial [iabilities recorded in the consolidated
stateent of financial position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active inarkets, their
fair value is measired using valuation techniquss. The inputs to these models are laken from
ohseryable markets wiiere possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is reqnired
in establishing fair values, fudgments include considerations of inputs such as Hauidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factars sould afTect the reparted fabr
value of finaneial instrumemnts {see Note 21),

Cash and Cash Equfﬁl@lls

This account congists of

. 2010 2015
Cash on hand £174,890,603 Ri68,529.471
{"ash in banks 939,534,180 791,383,179
Cash equivalents 213,365,944 14,180 830

21,327,790, 727 #O70.102 480

Crsh in banks carn interest at the respective benk deposit rates,
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Cash equivalents inciude short-term placements made for varying periods of up to thres mounths.

Cash in banks and cash equivalenty earn mterest ranging from 0.25% Lo 2.25%, 0.25% 10 1.13%,
and 0.50% o 1.13% per annum in 2016, 2015 and 2014, regpectively. Interest income sarned
froon cash and cush equivalents amounted to B2.37 miltion, B1.54 million, and $60.37 million in
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively,

Trade and (Hher Receivables

This account consists of:

N 2016 2015

‘Trade receivahles - outside parties P1,023,354,253  BLOTLIN 740
Trade receivables - related parties (Note 14) 518,406,310 441,700,004
1,341,870,572 [,473.017.8534

Less allowance for impairment Josses 55,694,985 30,821,364

LA8G, 125,587 133,126,470

{Mher receivables:
Advances to officers angd employees 25,117,159 19,890,562
__ Others . 14,475,954 13,742,490
B1,526,719,330 Bl 466,739,512

Allowance for impainsent losses were specifically identified as impaired. These perteins o trade
receivables from ouiside parties.

The nievenents in allowance for impairment losses of trade receivables follovw:

6 2013
January 1 #53.891.364 BR.420 843
Provisions (Note 16) 13,803,621 31,461,519
December 31 P35,604,985 P39 R9].364

Trade receivables arise from sate of services related 1o imbound and authound courior services,
handling and consclidation services with normal credit terms of 30 to 90 days.

Advances to officers and employces consist mainly of noninteresi-bearing advances which are
subject 1o liquidation upon completion of the buginess transaction and personal advances subject
to salary deductions.

The Group hus directly written-off other reecivables amounting to £3.22 million, P26.64 miilion,
and B0O.09 ridlian m 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, where probability of collection has bzen
determined to be remote. These were recognized under aperating expenses in the consolidated
statements of somprehensive income (see Noe 16).

Portion of trade receivable - outside parties smounting to P40.79 million are assigned in relation to
a bank loan availed i 20106 (see Note 12).
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6, Prepayments and Other Assets

Thiz account consists off

216 2005
[mput valuz-added lax (VAT BIE4.851,51G #4665 O0R 490
Materials and supplies 104,972,605 115,581,178
Prepayments:

Rent 41,012,242 62,462,480
Advertising 11,095,164 12,768,802
Insurance 11,376,755 16,482,552
Taxes 4,911,428 2,877,608
Software maintenance cost 4,534,547 5,240,504
Others 15,957,769 6.9¢0,084
Creditabile withholding taxes (CWT) 46,767,004 73,696,351
Short-term cash investiments 27,340,771 3,013,300
Restricted cash - 135,278,700
Othier viTent asseis 4,000,000 -
438,239,801 33,904,799
Lese allowance for impairment losses - 798,764
£458,239.801 B305,110,530

Less noncurrent portion of?
VAT on capital goads 54,943 n47 41,805,223
Prepaid rent 15,208,957 10,000,868
Total noncurrent portion #70,150,604 £61,806,091
Total current portion P368,089,197 P443,304,439

Input VAT is applied against output VAT, Management beliaves that the remalning balance iy

recoverable in future periods,

Materisls and supplies carried at cost consist of office supplies, pucking materials and official
receipls used in the Company's operations, Materials and supplies recognized under cost of
services for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted to 829338 million and

B242.11 million respectively (see Mote 15),
Prepaid adveriising cansists of advances for billboards and muitimedia endorscments.

Other prepaymenis pertain (o advance payments of salaries and wages, unamortized dues and
subscriptions and licenses.

CWTs are atribuiable 1o laxes withheld hy the withholding agents which are ereditable against
Income tax payable.

Short-term eash fnvestments are time deposits with maturity of more than three months from the
date of acquisition but not exceeding one year.

Restricied cask in bank represents ensh deposit in a bank in the imune of LBCE which was funded
by a specific customer in relation to the money remittance service in behalT of the said specific
customer. LBCE availed of a {oan from a bank specifically to service the said customer and the
cash deposit served as a guarantee to the bank, The cash balance has been bully diminished in
2016 as the loan was fully repaid within the year,
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The cost of fully depreriated assets that are still in use amounted to ®1 £9 billior and #1 53 billlon
as of Ldecember 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,

Depreciation charges wers recognized as follows:

2016 2015 4

Cost of services {Nofe 15} P196,4497,941 B191,503,976 #201.852,910
Operating expenses (Note 163 68,067 945 51,006,138 61,850,629
#264,565,884 242,510,114 B163,743,529

The Group tzases transpartation, service and office squipment that are included in the property
and equipment and under various finance arrangements ranging for a period of 24 (o 60 manths
(see Note 18),

In 2015, the Company purchased a computer hardware on a long-term payment arrangement. The
liability is noninterest besring and payable over 60 months. As of December 3 L, 2016, the
outstending liability smounted to B43.55 million, £34.48 million of which is reported undey
‘other noncurrent labilities® in the vonsolidated statements of financial position.

Intangibie Assets

The rellforward analysis of this account fulfows:

20i6
Construction in
Soelrware Progress Totat
Costs
Atbegindup of year F134,430.313 BL43,689,7714 P37 11E.087
Reclassification 198,861,104 {198,861,104) -
Additiens 157,464 18,313,904 20,471,365
Niznpsal (55,00 = {35,000
Avend of the yeay 335, M3.881 63,140,574 398,534,455
Accumulated Amaortization
At beginning of vear 101,736,602 - 1,736,402
Amaonization Mo 16) 3,370,210 - 3,779,219
Disposal (29.027) - @9,0z7)
AL ont] of the wear 132,48%,794 - 132,486,704
Net Book Value $102,907,087 £63,140,574 P266,047,661
N5
Conslruction in

o Saltware Pragress Total
Costs
At beginning of vear E113 707,585 B227,624 004 B341 424 58]
Additions B 106,307 31,783,196 50,869,503
Zigposal {1,840,550) {21,326,438) {23,175,997)
Reclassification 14,375,984 {14,375 980
Alend af the year 134,430,313 243,687 774 378015087
Accumulated Awartization
Al beginning of year 24,862,275 - 84,862,275
Amontization (Nt 16) 16 474,327 - 16,874,227
ALend of the vear 101,756,602 o - 101, £16.602
Nef Bootl Value B3 6%3 711 P313,687,7M 176,381,483




]

Construction in progress pertaing to costs related to angnmng development of software, user loense

and impleamentation costs.

n 2013, the Company reversed the intangible assets with a cost of B21.33 million and its related

pavalle (see Note 14).

There were ng capitalized borrewing costs in 2016 and 2075,

Avuilabie-for-Sale Investments

AFS investments represent the Company's investment in ungueted unit invesiment trust fund and
investiment in the quoted shares of stock of Araneta Propesties. luc.

Movement of the ATS investents (ollow:

24106 2015
Quoted;
Balance at beginning of year B112,5496,951 PI76,961,165
Additions 157,920 -
Sale of sharcs {332,450} -
Unrealized Jair value gain (loss) 245,368,753 (64,364,214}
458,301,174 212,596,951
Unquoted:
Balance »t beginning of year - -
Additions 400,000,000 -
Withdrawals (150,G00,000) -
_Lnrealized fuir value gain 937,154 -
130,937,154
T0%,328,318 212,596,951
L&ss current portion BL50,037,1584 P ‘
T'atal noneirrent portion B458,301,174  P212,596,951

The major categories of the Group’s investment in unguoted unit investment trust fund COMPIise
primarily of Overnight Deposit Facility and Term Deposit Faciltity in the Bangko Sentral ng

Pilipinas,

Movement in unreahized gain (Ioss) on AFS investments follow:

2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year (B51,169,355) B13,104, 4450
Reclassified (o profit or loss srising from sale of
AFY Investmenis 8t1010 -
Ureaiized gain (loss) during the year from the
following investments:
Quotad 245,368,753 (64,304,214}
Unquoted ) 937,154 -
Balance at and of yvear (Nuote 13) B193,216,568 (#51,1 69,32_5__}.
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10 Accounts and Other Payables o

Tiig aceonnt consists of:

2016 2013
Trade payable - outaide varlies BA353,690,573 PR45,484,390
Trade payable - related parties {Note 14} 10,239,262 1,828,265
Taxes pavable 175,914,534 390,344,268
Accruals:
Salaries and wages 187,053,521 24(,835,159
Rent and utifities 91,142,828 84,559,689
Contracted jobs 61,027,104 38,193,123
Claims and losses 55,388,469 £1,113,276
Advertizing 21,393,776 36,824 5135
Taxes 5.309,450 130,376,792
Ontside services 7,086,121 9.609.462
'rofessional fees 6,280,356 15,748,004
Others 63,177.510 60,609,084
Government agencies contributions payabics 21,971,215 18411927
Othiers (Note 14) 31,322,861 18,108,345

£1,204,803,800  #1,852,036,409

Trado payable and acciued expenses arise from repular transactions with suppliers and service
providers. These are nominterest bearing and are normally seted on one to 60 - day term.

Taxes payuble include withholding taxes on payntent to suppliers and employees” compensation
which are settled on a monthty basis and deferred output VAT on uneollected recaivables from
vatable sajey,

Accrned salaries and wages perain to unpaid salaries and provision for employee’s allowances
and henefis,

ther aceruals inclids acorual for cost of delivery and remittance, maintenance softwars cost,
webiite development tost and trainmg cost.

Gavernment agencies contribution payable peitaing fo monthly required remittances to
governmenl agencies such as 585, Pag-ihig and Philhealth.

Other payables include eniployees® salary loan deductions payable tn third parties, guarantee fee
payable 1o a related party and payablos arising frons expenses incurred in relation to trarsactions
with nontrade supphiers.

1. Transmizsiens Liakilitsy

Transmissions liability represents money transfer remittances by clients that are sifl) putstancing
and nor yot cucashed by the beneficiaries as at reparting date. These are due and demandable.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2013, transmissions liability amounted to P467.28 million and
#0814 million, respectively, i
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Notes Payable

The Group has cutstanding notes payable o varions local banks. The detzils of these notes as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015 are Jescribed below:

Pty

in 2034

K12
Lite of
Banli Avaiimoend Cutetanding Balonee Mafierity Interags Rule Tervs
Ranea de Oro Yariong B 10, 00403, £l florci 2447 Fixed eate,  Clean; Jnferosl pavable pyery
availments in 440 % mwnth, principal ia be paid
2016 of FEncity dale
Banca de Deo Varioms TIE00 000 Virious matavities Fixed rate, With murigepe; Interest
avaltments in in 2016 5o 242} Al PaYole tvory moeaih,
MG principal payabie quarveesty
Cninnbs nic of tie VU 230080000 Varwus modurides Fixed rote. Dlesn; jniorest pavable svery
Philipping: avallments in in 2017 ahjes mantl, priocipal ta be paid
TES o3 nyieriey date
Rizal Commercial Yarigun 136,713,500 Varieus maturities Fixed rate,  Tleany loterest nayable every
Banling Corporatien  availment in i 24037 a4 month, principad {6 by paid
HCEC) 018 wn madurity doie
Ching Trust Banking  Deasmber 30, 100,01 61,00 Jampary 1), 2017 Fixed riate With Al assigrment;
Carparation M4 S5.51%% Enterest pavahle svery
muath. principal to be paid
on e ity dide
Tolal P 1334 215,500
Currenl portinn afnotes payable 60,715,300 .
Noncurrent poriion BA42 500,008 -
2013
Dz ol
Bk . Acvibnent Dlukstand iam Ralarce Mamriny Intorost Rete Terms
Batieo s Sre YViaoaus BEOT 433 33% Varigus Fised raic, Clestn; awtergst and prineipl
uvailmerys in raal rities in 4.00%  pavible montily wetl) meturity
2l 2008 ered 2015
Boncods U Warie 253 00, 008 Varous Fixed raus, 4 00%% Cheany Tnigics: payable cveny
sveailments in maarilics in HQONER, principal 1 be pafd on
205 2013 grd 20 |6 maniry dale
Unzonbanak of the Y srigus 10 0GE 004 \arimns Fixed rale, Chemn; Enserast puyabils every
Fhitippines awvailmen:s TGS in SO0%  wmanl, prikeipal so be puid un
2015 2018 ALty duli
Resf Commercia, Variaus 247 UM GO0 Yarious Fixed rate, Clean; Ineerest peyable evary
Banking Corporgtion  pvailmenn in mateeiries in G00%  awnth, principal 1o be paid an
{RCBC 015 i) [ maturity dads
Chinatrus Runic Septamber | 30 0058 G0 fanuary 314 Ficed rate, Clean; Interest payable cvery
Cripatutian el 300%  month, prircipat 1o be paid on
maturity cate
Limchank of rhe Gelober 2ts 25,139,500 Various muerivics  Fizod tate, 2 509 Cleun, fnees and pringigal

P10 615,833

The Notes Facility Agreement entered by the Group with Bancoe De e (BDG)Y in May 2016 is
with a credit line fzcility amonnting to BRB00.00 million. The loan is secursd with real estatc

mortgage on land owned by the Group’s affiliate (see Mote 14),

Upcn loan availment in 2016, the Group, under a Deed of Assignment uf Receivables, agreed 10
sell, assign and fransfer, an a with recourse basis, unto RCBC, certain receivables under *Trade
receivabies - outside parties, Total receivables assipned amounted to 2201 26 million,

P161.14 million of which was collected in 2016.
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Interest expense amounted 1o 2401 million, P18,86 million, and ®17.39 1nillion in 20 0, 2013
and 2014, respectively.

The loans were used primarily for working capital requitements and are not subject to any loan
covenants.

13

Eqguity

Ceapaital Stack
As of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the details of the Parent Cempany’s capital stock follow:

2014
NumbBer of
Shares of Stocks Amount
Capital stock - #1 par valne
Authorized 2,000,000,00¢  P2,000,000,000
(ssved and cutstanding 1,425,865.471 1,425 865 471
2015
Number of $harcs
o af Stocks Amount
Capital stocle - B] par value
Anfharized sharves,
Beginning ot vear 100,000,000 B100,000,000
_. . Ancrease i authorized canital stoek 1,800,000,000  1,500,000,000
Balance ar end of year 2000,000,000 23 000,000,000
Issued and oufstanding shares
Balance at heginning of vear 40,899,000 £40,899,000
Issuances of shares 1.384 066,471 1,384.966.47]
Balance ar end of yvear 1,425 Ba5,47] £ 425 65 471
2014
Number of Shaiss
of Stocks Amount
Capital stack - B1 par value
Authorized 190,060,060 200,030,000
__Tssued and outstanding N 44,899,000 40,899,000

Ingrease in authorized capital stock
On Cetober {2, 2015, SEC approved the increase of the Parent Ceompany’s common stock from
R100.00 million, divided into 100.00 millian shares with par value of 81,00 per share

BZ.00 billion, divided into 2.00 billion shares with parvalue of £1.00 per share.

lssuances of now shares

¢ Op May 18, 2015, LBCDC subscribed te 39,101,000 common shares out of the tmrissned
authorized capital stock of the LBCH or approximately 59.10% ol the total authorized capital
stock of LBCH, before the approval of the increase in authorized capital stock by applying the
depasits for fulure stoeks subseription made by LRCDC amounting to £59,101,000 on
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April 21, 2015, as the consideration for the subscribed shates at one peso (B1.00) per share,
As discussed in Note 1, subsequently, on July 22, 2015, the Parent Company issued the stack
eertilicates to LBCDC covering e 59,101,000 common shares,

«  On September 18, 2015, LBCDC subscribed to 25% of ] 200,600,000 increase in authorized
capital stock or cquivalent to 475,000,000 comron shares at the subscription price of
BT1.00 per share, in exchange for cash.

On the same date, LBCDC subscribed to additional €71,873,632 conmumon shares aut of the
umissued capital stock of ‘he Parent Company at the subscriptien price of 21,00 per share, in
exchange for cash,

s (On October 2, 2015, cetain individuals sebscribed 10 2 wial of 178,991 339 common shares
out of the unissued capital stock of the Parent Corapany at the subscription price of 81.00 per
share, n excliznge for cash, conditioner upon and effeetive immediately following the
approval by the SBC of the increase in authotized capital stock.

On October 16, 2015, the Parent Company issued the stoek cortifieates 1o LBCBC covering the
1,146,873,632 common shares wihile on October 3] , 2013 the Parent Company issued the stock

certiflicates to cemain individuals covering 178,991 839 comman shares.

Leteuned famings

On Qulober 11, 20186, the BOD of LBCH approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting ¢
B313.69 million or #0.22 lor everv jssued and outsianding comman share, P48 38 million of

which ltas been paid in cash to minority sharsholders. The portion of dividends attributable to
LBCDC was settled on a net basis as disclosed in detail n Note | 4.

The Parcnt Company has incurred 2 share issuance cost amounting 1o #15.06 million which
reduced the additional paid-in-capital as of December 31, 2015,

Accwmdnted Comprehensive Ficonre

Details of accumulated compisheusive incoms as at December 37 follow:

2016 20135 2014

Remeasurement gain on retrrement

benedit plan - nel of tax

(ote 19} F107,380,833 £119,376,370 £162.274 896
Currency trangtation gain

{loss) - nel 3,074,007 204,135 {(10,721,695)
Unrealized fair value gain (loss)

on AFS investments 193,210,568 (51,169,335) 17,104 RS0

333,677,402 63411,150 164,748,060

AccumiLafted eomprehensive

incoine (koss) attributahle 1o
___Controliing interest B309,059,077 FAO S48 040 B165,122.663

Non-conirolling intenasl (#1,381.67% {£1,156,500) {PI74.905)
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14. Related Party Tranmr.:-{idns

In the normal course of business, the Group transacts with related parties comsisting of ils ujtimarte
parent, LBCDC and affiliates. Affiliates include those antities in which the owners of the Group
have ownership interests. These transactions include royalty, delivery, service and manzgement
fees and loans and cash advances. Excepl as otherwise ingicated, the ontstanding accounts with
related parties shall be settled in cash. The transactions arc made at lerms and prices agreed upon
by the parties.

Dretalis of related party transactions and balances as at and For the years ended December 31 are as
follow:

2016
. AnrountV oty nwe Receivable Terms Conditions
L fiomn retgred porties (Trade ropeivahlan)
Afftiaes
a} Belivery foo, manmzeinen
ize, figimersl Instant Pogg
Palala J7PY Suldifinuent fee Nuninierest-heuving: due and fuseeired,
[Mores 5 and 20 Ed (1,293,343 PRES 6K, IEY demangdable nn fmpairment
e frnm relzeted panics M a-trade recgivable)
Livimare parens commar
MNoninterese-begring; due aml iinseeared,
b Advaness PA56,403,424 BY13,895.392 demandable D frpairment
affifiares
Muninteres)-beuring: due and [nsernred,
[r.) Advimces 81,550,192 TR4.R0F TR demanciable nu impatrmeud
Ofitver
Nonintergst-bearing: due and Unxecored,
£} Advarces 13,599 235,94 4 demendabie  #o impaireent
- R1L 1749031
_ i
_ AmocfVelume  Keceivable Terms Conditions
Due fremn redutzd parties (rade receivahles)
AWty
8.J Dalivery for, masnkzemen]
fue, financial naesnt Peso
Padala (1FP} fulfillment, feq Montnterest-bearing: dus and Vnseotsraii,
(Holes 3 and 22} RIBOISTONG  Padl 700 094 Jemand able o0 impirmicat
Dure from refuwd porte s (Hon-yiale reueivarhles
LAthnate purent compainy
Mesiolergst-bearing; due gnd Ungeured,
B Advanes Blde L8303 PUAD 031172 demuandable 00 Linpaiment
Affifiaes
Noninterest-bearing, dus and Unsasured,
b Advanoes $1,501,050 342,109 047 duemnandatle 13 impaiemen)
CHficer
Moninterest-bearing; due and Lingecured,
B Advanges 3000600 (9,284 355 pemmidable ™o fmpninment

£1,321 346,643
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s
. Anounlvolume Favapie Terms Conditinns
Bug o relned parties 1 Trade navablos)
(fitmate Parewt Compeniy
Monimterest-bearing; dme and
) Rovaly fes (Rlotes [fand 16)  2195.497,630 Fl02319262 demandalie Lngrewred
] Guarantes fes fNanintarest-bearfng; dur and
o AMates 10 and 1) 4761098 4.671.22% demandabile Linsrenred
_— » e 1310401
e o related paties fNon-rade payahles)
Lifeimate Parary Conspar
Moninterest-bearime doe and
b.) Advances - BIS68 463 demandable Unscoured
vy Grealends deelared and Moninterest-tearing; due and
payables {Mate 13) 265,314,419 - demandi:ble Nuserured
Aifriage
MNoepinlerest-brearing; dee and
b Advaness I3 2554 566 demandaile Luscoored
Officar
Narninterest-bearing; dup aid
G} Advanoes — 155343 deanandablc Unsecured
P1E508,332
Kew sanagsraent pesnml
MNoninrerest-bearing; due and
Salaries and wiges BIRAT 12 - demandabie Unseewred
Other shorttenn e pluyes MNoninferest-hearing: due and
Trenelits 11,250 444 - demandible Hisotey
MNeniuerese-hearleg; due ind
Retirenent tesefies (Mote 19) 28,823,711 149 255,497 demandable [Thsecured
B14D 038 404
205 B
_AmavnyVa'lume Pavable N Termy; Conditions
Luge b refated martics (Tradz mavaliler)
Lltimieie Parent Company
Moninterest-benring; doe and
o3 Bty fog (Notes (Dand 18)  #153,522, 364 Palf el . itermandable Mnsecured
Bus 1o reluted npmies (Nondrade pavablos)
tHrimmte Porent Compuny
Moninterest-bearing; dus wnd
by Advinces RIS 60463 19694463 demandubhe Uinsecured
Al
Maoninterest-hearing: due wnd
) Advanoees 1188220 FAER 220 demundablc Limeoured
{Hficer
Norinteresi-bearing; due and
b Advonoes 2IT303 2333C3 demadabie Unsetured
2)8,137,086
Key management perginnel
Muminieres-bearing: toe and
Saluries and wayes R ERAV Y B demandable Uesetired
Qthey short-laim erplayee MNoninitrest-bem ing; dug and
hemefilg [T A3G 655 gernandable Unesured
Moninsarest-bearing, die and
Retirernant beneling (Note 153 12.653.93) [EAETRI dzmandablc Uliseuused

B3d,ti1 95y
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a.} In the normal course of business, the Group flfills the delivery of balikbayan boxes and
money remittances, and parforme certain administrative fanctions on behalf of fis intemational
alfiliaes. The Group charges delivery fees and service Tees for the fulfillment of these
services based on agreed rates.

b.) The Group regularly makes advances to and from related parties 1o finance working capital
requurermnents and as part of their cost reimbursements arrangement. These unsecured
advances are non-interest bearing and payable on demand,

In 20153, the Group agreed o offset its Habilities to LRCDC relating to royalty fees amounting
to B173.66 million against receivables from LBCDC (see Note 213

In prior years, the Group has ouistanding advances of £295.00 million to LBC Development

Bank, &n entity ynder common contral of LBCDC. n 20t I, mapagernent assessed that these
advances are not recoverable. Accordingly, the said asset was writlen-off from the baoks in

2011 (see Note 25).

¢.) LBCDC (Licenser), the Ultimate Daremt Company, granted 1o the Group (Licensee) thes full
and exelusive right to use the LBC Marks within the Philippincs in consideration for &
continuing 1ovalty rate of two point f1ve peraent (2.5%) for 2016 and 2015 of Licences’s gross
revenues which is defined us any and all revenue from all sales of products and services,
including all other income of every kind and nature directly and/or indirectly arising from,
telated to andfor connected with Licensec’s business operutions (inshuding, without limitation,
any praceeds from business nterruption msurance, if any), whether for cash or credit,
wherever made, canned, realized or acerued, excluding any sales discounts and/or rebates,
value added tax.

d.} As discussed inNote 12, the Group enlered into 2 loan sgrecment with BIO which is secured
with real estate mortgage on various real esiate properties owned by the Graup’s atfiliate. In
congideration of the affiliate’s accommodation to the Group's request 1o use these properties
as loan coliaferal, the Group agreed 1o pay the affiliate, every April 1 of the year starting,
April 1, 2016, & guarantee feo of 1% of the nutstanding loan and until said properties are
released by the bank as loan callateral.

As discnssed in Naole 13, the BOD of LRCH appraved the declaration of cash dividends
amounting to ®313.69 million ur #0.22 for every issied and outstanding common share. On
November 29, 2016 1hrough 2 Memarandum of Agreement, LBCLIC and 1LRCH agreed to
offset the dividends payabie of LECT to LBCDC aguins LBCDC's payable to the Group
amounting to #263.31 million (see Note 21). The F265,31 million pertains to the shaye in
dividends of LBCDIC while the 848 38 million pertains to the share of non-controlling
fnterest,

o
—

I 2015, the Group terminated the agreement with LBCX PH, Inc., (formerly
Lovablecommerce com Corporalion), an eatity owned by a stocklolder, to build and operate a
softwars cooodud under intangible asset amounting to #2133 million {see Nate 23). Such asset
and its related payabic was transferred to LBCX PH, Inc.

In 2016, the Group directly wrote oft B3.09 mitlion due from an affiliate recorded as Trade
reccivables - related parties under “Trade and other receivables” in the consnlideted statements of
financial position.
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1%, Cost of Services

This account consists of®

2014 2015 2014
Cost of delivery and remitance ¥1,202,333.121  P1045639.263  £2,060,056.871
Salaries and henefits 1,763,770.517 1,706,004,942 1,796,940,736
Ultilities and supplies 661,848,564 589,283,155 263,017,061
Rent (Note 1) 513,079,995 481,018,056 436 508,489
Depreciation and amortization 196,497,941 191,503,875 201,892,910
Repairs and maintenance 04,956,163 73,733,014 67,154 192
Retirernsnt benefit expense
(INote 19) 82,137,051 63,699 862 83,066,632
Transportatioa und travel 46,464,561 51,297,338 54,523,747
[nsurdnoe 22,953 471 14,517,977 16,585,803
Onhers 6.437.801 2,815,884 2,741,657
£5.590.513.080 25,119,351 457 B3 284,190,318_

16, Operating Expenses

Thiz accaunt consists of

16 2018 2014
Salaries and wages £407,292.070 301,920,328 B334,524,994
Rent (Note 18) 197,940,252 178,146,604 113,848 812
Rovalty 195,497,630 183,522,384 168,003 879
Advertising, and promotion 175,801,246 257,345,280 336,207,171
Professional feeg 157,701,23% 130,645,982 130,647,113
Litilinies and supplies 150,384,187 146,961, | 64 169,230,554
Travel snd representation 101,185,071 200,330,445 4,476,641
Depreciation and amortization 15,847,164 A7 880, 465 74,233,349
Taxes and licenses 47,336,343 87,375,147 L NEER )
Claims and fogses 29,128,719 30,616,758 23,732,740
Software malmienance cosis 54,330,104 53.603.820 49 205,580
Retirement benefit vxpense
(Mote 19) 27,718,715 27,870,055 13,348,749
Insurance 22927207 9,774,212 6,603,181
Commission expense 20,042 764 8.844.904 5,960,613
Provision for upairment osses 15,803,021 11 461,419 £,545,265
Repairs and maintenance 5,987,334 4,567,371 6,661,738
Dues and subseriptions 3,788,386 32,015703 2,879,308
Write-ofT of receivables 3,215,599 26,642,572 21,393
Others 47,794,937 17 160,180 16,388,440
¥1,572,805,197 #1,947,792.900  H] 607,561 779

Others comptise mainly of donations and pemnaltics,
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[7. Income Taxes

Provision for income tax consisis of

. 20140 20105 2014

Current 2455,428,590 R221.037,708 PI0G7,001,954
Deferrad {44,278,541) 49 504 486 {30,071,154)

~ B411,150.044 B270,632,174 P56,040,800

Diotails of the Group's net duferred tax assets as at December 31 follow:

216 2013 2014

Retirement benefit iiabi]ity P212,833,851 192,543,624 P162,571,879
Accrued bonus and lcave credits 34,704,344 - 52,333,945
Allewance fur impajirment losses 16,708,496 1,967,409 2,528,951
Deterred tagse liability (MNote 18) I1,062,231 11,803,523 0,666,765
MUTT 255,304 820,517 1,066,044
NOLCO 209,623 5,690,047 24,825,425
Capitalized boirowing costs {(6215,002) {1,046671) (1,046,671}

Unrealized foreign exchange

lnsses (paing) {1,868,793) 3,756,635 3,807,780
Others 1,043 226 - 107,404
B274,380,370  B225 645 084  RI5E 860.018

The mavements in net deferred tax asser for the yedrs ended Tlecernber 31 are as fallaws:

2016 2015 o 2014
December | B125,645 (184 2256,860.938 206,983,091
Charged to juofic or ioss 44,273,540 {49,594 466) 50,071,154
Excess MCIT over RCIT - 276,304
Appiied MCIT against income tax
due {651,629) (282.975) -
Previously unrecogized;
NOLCO - - 5,560,389
MOT - - 2,374,081
Charged 10 other comprehensive
income 5,138,375 15,385,083 (0,120 777)
£274,380,370 #7225 645,084  £256.860,938
Details of the unrecognized deferred tax asscts as at December 31 are as follows:
2015 2015
NOLCO 4,605,778 P3,142.830
MCIT 2,970 -
Allowanes for impairment losses on:
Property and equipment 3,509,738 3,509,738
Inventories 2,143,781 2,143,781
Recervables 567,078 S6T,078
(iber current assets 139,630 239,630
P11,068,975 BD,603,057
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All unrecognized deferred tax assets arise from the standalone batances of LECH.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the NOLCO that can be claimed as deductions Srom future
taxable income and excess MCIT over RCIT that can be credited against future tax Hability
follow. These NOLCQ and excess of MCIT over RCIT came from LBCH and other subsidiaries.

NOLCO
2014
Year ineurred Amonnt Used Expired Balance Year of expiry
2016 B6,244,918 B- B-  £6,244.919 2019
2013 5,543,160 - - 8,543,150 2018
2014 1,809,334 546,077 - 1,263,257 2007
2013 19,120,420 5,000,461 14,119,968 - 2016
235,707,842 ROS546,538 RI4 110068  P16,051,336
2003
Year meurred Amount Used Eapited  Balance Year of expiry
2015 BE8,543,160 B B P8,343,160 2018
2014 41.324.735 39,915,401 - 1,809,334 2017
2013 19,120,429 - - [9,120,429 2016
2012 75,395,901 12,665,151 52,730,750 o 2015
RI44,384,325 62,180,552  B32 730,750 $I0.472,023
2014
Year incurred Amount Used Expired Balance Year of sxpiry
2014 B0 061,478 R35,455.607 P B6,605,871 2017
2013 17,752,003 - - F7,752,003 2015
2012 73,712,601 15,526,044 - 58,393,335 2016
2011 131,571,362 43,450,752 88,111,610 - 2014
P263.104 444 RO 241405 B8B.111,6)0  BR2.751,429
MCIT
20146
Y ear Incurred Amount Used Expired Balance  Expiry Date
2016 £1 13506 P B-- B110,506 2019
2013 276,505 276,505 - - 2018
2014 447,430 299,572 - 147 858 20107
2013 165,552 105552 - - 2016
£039,993 BCE] 629 B P258.364
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2013
Y ear Incurred Amount Used Bxpired Balance  Dxpiry Date
2013 £276,505 - - #2776 505 ' 2018
2014 447,430 - - 447,430 20107
2011 1a8 562 63,010 - 15,552 2016
20072 453 027 210905 © 233,062 - 015
$£1,345,324 282 075 $231 (0472 BR2OARTY
2014
Year Ineurred Amount Used Expired Balaice  Expiny Date
2014 Rddd 460 - - #444 460 2017
2013 168,362 - - FRE 562 2016
2012 o 453,027 - - 453,027 2013
1,066,049 B - 1,006,049 B

The reconciliarion between income tax expense at the statutory rate and the actual incanie wx
expense prosented in the consolidated staternents of comprehensive income for the years ended

December 31 fullows:

2016 2015 o 2074
Income 1ax at the statutary income tox rate B397,527,237  B204,070971 260,105,313
Tax effects of items notl subject to
statutory rate:
Nondeduetible expense 8,804,260 47,074,574 8,897 893
Fapired NOLCO 4,235,000 15,819.23% 26,416,083
Expired MCIT - 233,067 1,752,481
Movement of unrecognized deferred
lax assels 1,465,918 1,830,433 (34,304,600
Montaxahle inecime (883,368) {425,043 (5,866, 8)
2411,150,0d6 2270632174 P36,940,800

18, Lease Commitments

(z) Operating lease

The following are the operating lvase agreements entered into by the Group;

I Operating lease agreement covering its eurrent corporate office space for a period of five
years from October 20, 2016, The lease agreement is renewable at the Group’s oplion at
such erms and coaditions which may be agreed upon by both parties, The lease agreemeni
includes rental rate escaletions during the term of the lease. The tease apresnrol also

requires the Group to pay security deposits,

2. Uperating |ease agroemenls covering various service centers and service paints within the
Philippines for 2 period of two 10 flve years, renewable at the Group’s option at such terms
and conditions which may be agreed upon by both parties. These lease agreements fnciude
provizion for remal rate escalations inciuding payment of security deposits and advance

rentals,

Gl
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3. Operating lcase agreement with a lucal bank eoveting Transportation equipment far 2 period
of ihree years. The lease agreement docs not include escalation rates on monthly payments.

* There ars no contingent rents for the above lease AEIEEMENTS,

Rent expense was recopnized as fellows:

) 2016 2013 2014
Cost of services (Note 15) B515,079,095 - R481.018,05¢ P436,508,489
Operating expenses (Note 16) 197.940,252 178,146,664 113,848,812

F711,020,247 RSO 164720 B550,357 504

The Group matntains security deposits arising from the said operating lease agresments
amounting to #226 26 million and £209.93 million as of Decamber 31,2016 and 2015,
raspectively,

The future minimum lease payments from the foregoing noncancellable operatin g leage
agrecinents follow:

- 2016 o 2005
Not later thar 1 year P761,3158,053 PoU5, 488,620
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 3,346,283230 3,407,894 222

Deferred lease liability arising from straight linc recognition of Joase PAYILGILS aMOUNLNY 1o
#30.87 miullion and #19 66 million as of Decernber 3}, 2016 and 2015, respectively, are
ineluded in the non-current portion of lease Liabilities account in the congolidated statements
of financial position.

(b} Finance lease
These invelve leases of transportation cquipment which were accounted for as finance leasas,

The components of the finance |rase obligation as at December 31 arising from this lease are as

{uitows:
006 2015
(rass finance lease obligations
Nt later than one year : P32.083.010 £52,583,498
__Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 44,422 597 42,143,711
o 106,503,607 94,727,209
Future finance leasa charges on the finance lease
Nat fater than one year (11,2586,327) (8,533,961
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 vears (8,054,501} (7,641,113}

(19,310,618} (17,175,074)
£§7,194,979 B77,552,135

RO L
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The present value of minimum lease payments is as follows:

2016 2015
Not later than | year 5,520,683 £43.049,537
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 39,368,226 34,202,598

P5§7,194,579 P77,552,135

Interest expense on the above finance lease obligation charged 1o finance costs amaunted 1o
F23.40 million, 224,45 miilion and 81341 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively,

19, Retirement Benefits

The Group has a fundad, noncontributory defined benefit retirement pian covermg all qualified
employees, The retiroment plan is intended fo provide tor benefit payments to employees
equivalent to 160% to 130% of the cmployee’s final monthly basic selary [or every year of
credited service. Tenefits are paid in lump swm upon retirement or separation in accordance with
the terms ol the Plan. Any qualified employee who voluntarily resigns from the service of the
(roup after comploting at least 10 years of service, shall receive a benefit equal to a percentage of
his acerued retirement benefits. The Group updates the sotuarial valuation every year by hiring
Ihe services of a third party qualified actuary. The latest actuarial valuation report was as of
reporting date.

The Fetirement Plan Trustee, as appointed by the Group in ths Trust Agresmient exeeuted berween
the Uroup and the duly appointed Retirement Plan Trustee, is responsible for the gencral
administration of the Retirement Plan and the management of the Retivement Fund. The
Retirement Man Trustee may sock the advice of a counsel and appoint an investment manager or
managers 10 manage the Retirement Fund, an independent accountant to audit the Fund and an
actuary to value the Retivement Fund. The Group has no transactions ether directly or indirectly
through ifs subsidiaries or with i1s employees’ retirement benefif find.

Under the existing regulatory framework, Ropublic Act 7641 requires & provision for retirement
pay 1o qualitied private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity,
provided however that the employee’s retirement benelits under any eollective bargaining and
other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The Group®s retirement plan
meets the minimum retirement benefit speciticd under Republic Act 7641
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The major catogorics of the Group®s plan assets foliow:

2016 2015

Cash and cash equivalents 210,968,876 B4.108.7)4

Equity wstraments 1,431,516 1,297,363
Prebt ingtruments:

Government bonds 9,348,163 7,656,077

Cther bonds 203 55% 00,489

Others 152,715 {333,580

PIL794,.838  FI3.627,763

All equity and debt instruments held have quoted prices in astive market.

The equity instruments are investment in stocks of a holding company of 5 conglomerata listed in
the Philippines stock market engaged in varigus businesses.

[he Retirement Trust Fund assets are valued by the fund marager at faic value using the mark-to-
marfet vaination.

The Group is not required to pre-fund the future defined benefits payable uader the Relirement
Plan hefore they become due. For this reason, the amount and timing of contribuiions to the
Retirement Fund are a1 the Group's discrefion. However, in the event a benefit claim arices and
the Retirement Fund is insufficient © pay the claim, the shortfalf will then be due and pavable by
the Group (o the Retirement Fund.

The Retirement Plan Trustee monitors regularly the status of the plsn astets and liabilities to
ensure availability of funds vpoi retirement of personpel,

The Group expects to eontribote 868 20 miltion o the retirement plan in 2017, The retirement
plan does not have a formal funding poliey. The funding requirement is msinly driven by the

availabtittly of excess fund fiam the Group's operations,

The movement in actianial loss (gain} recognized in other comprehensive income follaws:

. ld 2013 2014

Beginning of year (®170,537,671)  (R231,821,281) (P201,388.6%93)
Acivarial Toss (gaind ficm defined benefil

obligation 16,368,931 39,537,337 {32,679 874)

Flan asset remeasurcment loss TR, 958 1,346,373 2247288

End of vear, gross (153,40%,762) (170,537,671 {231,821,281)

Dreferred tax liability 16,022,329 31,141,201 69,546,585

(107,386,833 (P1)23746370)  (Rl&62,274.896)

The principsl assunpiions used in determining retirement for the defined benefit plans are shown
below:;

20146 2015 2074
Triscount rate S77% t0 6.20% 4./1% 10 6.12%  4.71% w5 00%
Salary increase 3.00% 3.00% 5.00%

Atirition rate 14.31% 22.81%% 12.49%%
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Discount rafe

The disvount rate is determined by reference to market yieids at the end of (he reporting period
based on high quality bends with currency and term similar to the estimated term of the benefit
obligation. There is no deep market in high quality corporale bands in the Philippines uil
therefore, the Group used as ceference the yields in long-term Philippine Treasury Bonds and
adjusted 10 reflect the lerm simifar 10 the estimated term of the henefit abligation as determined
by the actuary.

Scilewy incredse

This 1s the expected long-term average rate of salary increase taking into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other market faciors. Salary increase comprises of the general
inflationary increases plus 2 further increase for individual productivity, merit and promotion.
The future salary increase rates are sef by reference over the period ever which benefits are
erpoeted to be paid,

Atsrition rafe
The stirition rate Js determined based on historical experisnce of the Group.

Demographic asswinptivrs
Asswnptions regarding mortslity cxporience are ser based on published stalistics and experience
in the Philippines.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
signiticant assumption on the defined benefit liability as of the end of reparting date, assuming if
all other assumptions were held constant:

i 2016 2015

Increasc Net defined Net defined

. (decrease) lenciit liability  Lenefit liability
Discounik rate +1.010%4 (R85,375,618) (B45,606,262)

-1.00% 101,845,033 A1,012,403

Safary increase +1.00% 1,741,926 44,194,507

-1.00%% (83,780,167) (40.508,116)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit ubligation at the end of the reporting period
is 1190 years.

Shown below is the maturity analvsis of retirement benefrl payments up 1o ten years:

2016 2015
Lessthan 1 vaar £34,032,237 £7267 3040
Maore than 1 vear to 3 years 191,385 3458 35.911,329
More than § years to 10 years 474,100,134 2832.816,562

B6Y9,517,720  P345995287
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26. Tinancial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group has various financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, due from related parties, available-for-sate investments and ‘short-tem Invesimeans'
wider othey curren assels.

The Growp’s financial liabilites comprise of accounts and other payables, due 1o relaled parties,
notes payable, transrmissions liability, finance lease liabilities and other nencwrent liabilities, The
main purposc of these tinancial liabifities is to finance the Creoup’s operations,

The main risks arising from the Group’s Anancial instruments are price risk, interest rate risk,
liguidity risk, foreign curreney risk and credit risk, The BOD reviews and approves policics for
mauaging cach of these risks which are summnarized below.

Price risk

The Group closely monitors the prices of its equity securities as well as macroeconomic and
eutily-specific factors which could directly or indirectiy affect the prices of these instrumeats. In
sase of an expected decline iu its portfolio of equity securities, the arong readily disposes or
frades the securities for replacement with wore viable and less risky investments.

Such investment securfiies are subjool to price risk due to changes 1 market values of instruments
arising cither from factors specific (o individus! insrements or their issliers, or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the marjcet.

The Ioltowing table shows the effect on income before income tax should the change i the close
share price of quoted and unguoted equity securiries ocenr as of December 31 , 2015 and 2013 with

all other variables beld constant.

Fffect on other comprehensive income

Change in share price 216 2015
+5.00% B35,485,309 £10,629 8438
-5.0084 (33,485,309 (10,625,848)

Futerest rare risk

The Group is not significanily exposed 1o inlerest rata risk as the (roup’s interest raie on its cash
and cagh equivalents and notes payable are fixed and none of the Group’s financial assots and
lishilities is measured at fair value, The impact of fluctuation on interest rates or the Group’s
finance Jeases will nat significantly impact the resulis of operations.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk from inability to meet oblipations when they become due because of
failure to liquidate assets or obiain adequate funding. The (zroup ensures that sufficient liquid
assets are avaiable to meet short-tern funding and regulatory capital requirements.

The Group has a poliey ofregilarty monitoring s cash position to ensure that maluring liabilitias
will be adeyuately met,

Prudent iquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availabilily of funding
through an adequate amount of committed cradif facilitiez and 1he ebility to close out marker
positions. Management believes that cash gensrated trom aperations is sufficient 1o mest daily
working capital requirements.
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Surphus cash is invesied into a range of short-dated momey time deposits and unit investment trust
(ind which seek to ensure the security and liquidity of investment while optimizing yield.

The following summarizes the maturity profits of the Group’s financial assets based on remaining

contracinal undisconnted collect)ong:

2014
Due in less than Dee in mere
OHE yEar than one year Toial
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in bank PU39,2834.180 B Po39,534,180
Cash squivalents 213,365,944 - 213,365 944
Receivables
Trage 1,486,125,587 - 1,486,125 587
Others 14,475,954 - 14,473,954
Dile from refated parties 1,107,99%,379 [,147,999,329
Available-for-sale investiners
Qunted - 458,391,174 438,391,174
Unqumed 250,957,154 - 254,937,154
?hurl-tenn investment 27,340,771 ) - 27,330,171
o B1.530,77¢ 619 P458,391,174 B4 458,170,093
2015

Pue in less than

Pue mmors

Total

ane year than one vear
Coslt and cash equivalents
ush in bank R791,383.179 i BTS1,383,179
Cash equivalents 12,189,839 -~ 10,186, 830
Hecelvables
Trade b433,126.470 - 1,433,126,470
Otbers 13,742,490 - 13,442,490
Uue from related parties 1.320,346,663 - 1,321,346.66]
Avallable-for-sale irvestinenls - 212,596,951 212,396 95%)
Short-lerm investrnent 5,011,500 - 3,011,500
B3, 583 300,141 P12 506 u5] £3,7096 397,007

Except as indivated, the Group’s financial Habilities based on undisconmted cash flows as shown
below are duc and expected 1o be paid within 12 months after the reporting period, which is the
carlier of the contractual maturity date or the expocted settlement date:

2084
Prac in ess than Due in more
one year than one year Total
MAecounts payeble and acerued expenses

Trade paynhle B563.935 838 B £563,9%5,335

Actruals 493,149,695 - 493,249 405

Others 31,322,861 - 31,322 461

Iie to related panics 18,509,332 - 18,509,332

Motes payable TH5,473,344 795,882,740 1.502,156,284

Transmissions Hakility 467,284,795 - 467,284,793

Lease labilities BL053.010 44,422,594 Hi, 505,606
Other noncorran llabilities 34,477 440 C3ATT A0

N £2,341,659,072 BY75,782 776 B3,217.441,848

MO




_ 2015
Dhig in less than Mue in more

oie yea  (han one vear Total

Accounts payable and scorued expensey
Trade payable PGRT 292,553 A- BaRD 302 435
Aceruals 367,502 422 - 567,502,422
Ciligrs 18,108 345 18,108,341
Due i refated parties 18,037,986 18,137,088
Notes payahle 1,0043,663,19¢ 1,043,663,196
Transmissious Tability 508,139,757 - 508,139,757
[.eass Habilities 52,583,498 42,143,711 44,727,209
Other nepowrent liabiiiies - 43,553 5348 43,353,548
B E2 895,427 859 PB3,597,259 P2 ORE 12518

Notes payable and lease lisbilities include future interest payments,

Payable ta govenment agencies amounting to B206.40 million and 2559.12 million ag af
December 31, 2015 and 2015, respectively, are considered nonfinancia)l liabilities.

The Group expects 10 generate cash flows from its operaling activities mainky on sale of seivices.
The Group also las sufficient cash and adequare amount of eredit facilities with banks and its
ultimate parent company la meet any uneapected obligaiions,

Farelgn currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk thar the future cash Hows nf financial assets and financial
liabilities will fluctuate bocause of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to
e nisk ol changes in foreign exchange rates relates to the Uroup’s operating activities when
revenues or expenses arc denominated in a different currency from the Group’s funciional

SUITENCY,

The Gronp aperates intecnationally through its varions infernationa)l affihates by fulfilling the
money remintance and cargo delivery services of these rejated parties. This exposcs the Group to
foreign exchange risk primarily with respect 1o Euro (EUR}, Hongkong Dollar (HIK.DY, Australian
Dallar (AUD) Taiwanese Dollar (TWD), US Dollar (UST), Great British Pound (GBPY and
Canadian Nollar (CAD). Fareign exchange rislk arises from future somuercial (ransactions,
foreign currency denominated assets and labilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The Group enters into short-term foreign cunency farwards, if needed, to manage iis foreign
currency rigk from foreign currency demominated transactions.

L




Intormaiion on the Group's forei

ind otlier recefvables' in the consolidated statements of finaneial pogition

Peso equivalents follow;

- 50—

gn currency-denominated monetary assets recopded under ‘trade
and their Philippine

Kure

Honglkong Dollars
Auwstrabian Dollays
Taiwanese Dollars
US Doliars

Great British Pound

The fransiation vxcharge rater wsed were RI281 10 FUR 1, BE

oneed PALF0 0 GRF ) e 3016

2014
Foreian corrency Peso equivalent
1,851,734 £150,600,073
17,813,579 114,363,177
1,768,501 103,033,039
$9,719,397 93,759,433
1,249,172 62,171,290
194,844 12,039 41

200 HED 3 PR w dUD I, PLSY 10 U, PRI (o S0

Euro

Tarwanese Dollars
Honghong Dollars
Australiun Doliarg
Canadian Dollars
US Dollars

-
Foreign curreney Peso squivalen|
2,817,963 £140,723,072
60,803,591 88,165,642
12,006,592 72,880,013
2,046,081 69,628,135
433,332 50,768,619
955,395 44,970,443

Fhe rranstision exelrngs vepes wsec vwere F49. 04 rn LR [ FRiai 0 TWD L REDT 1 MK 1. RILO7 t0 ALID £ ST e G

citd HET OF oo WS § i 2043

The following able demonstiales the sensitivily o a reasonably possible change in foreign
sxchange rates, with afl variables held constani, of the Grou p's income befare tax (due to changes
in the fair valiue of monetary sssets and liabilities) as at Deccmber 3 I, 20010 and 2015,

Reasanably possible change
exchange rate for every two

ncrease {decrease) in
income befors tax

it foreign
units of

t'hilippine Pean 2016 2013
F2 P169,195,374 158,806,508
{2) {169,195.374) (158,806,508)

There s no impact on the Group®

movement ip sensitivity analysis
average exclhange rales,

s equity other than those already affecling profit or loss. The
is derived from current observations on fluctuatians in cotlar

‘The Group recognized #143,23 million and #108.11 million foreign exchange gains - net. jor the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 20135, respectively, arfzing from settled transactions and
translation of the Group's cash and cash equivalents, trade recefvables, trade and other payvables,

Coreelir pivk

Coredit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument w
"2 financial Ings,

and cause the sther parly 10 incus

il 1ail to diseharge an obligation

Credif risk is monitored and actively managed by way of sitict requircinents relating 1o the
creditworthiness of the counterparty at the point at which the transactions arc coneluded and also
throughout the entire life of the wansactions, and also hy way of defining risk limits.

AR
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The maxiomnm credit risk exposurs of the Group’s financial assets is equal to Lhe CArrving amaounts
in the consolidated statements of finanaiaf position.

Ther are no collaterals held as security ur ather eredit enhancements artached ta the Group®s
financial assets.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2013, the eredit quality per class of financial assets is as follows:

211G
Neeider Pagt Due nos fapaired Past ducandior
Substzadard Indhividually
iz h Grade Standard Grude Impaired Torai
Cash in banks wid cash equivalents  ®1,132,900,124 #- B- B- B1,052,906,124
Trade and other receivables 1,375,320,3534 - - 125,281,041 1300,601.541
One: from relaced paries [,107,999,329 - - - 1,107,000 320
_?irgrtn:c:rm v eilmend 21,340,771 — - — 27,340,771
B1.663,560, 754 P B PILSZEI011 P3,784041.765
2015 _
. X - Past e undor
Meiller Past Due nor Impaired he:
. — {Individually
o High Grade Standard  Substandard Grade linpaired Telal
Lush in bantks and cash seuivalens BRIDATIONE B- b e PEIGEII0LE
Trate and ofhsr receivalsleg 1324417 843 - - 123431115 1AE,&58 Q6D
Dus from related puriics 1521 346 663 - - - U321, 346 663
Shor et invesine 3001500 - -~ - 3011500
#3,461,356.024 - £ BI&24%1 413 PIAR3800,E41

The Group’s basis in. grading its receivables are as follow:

High grade - these are receivables which have a high probability of collection (i «., the
counterpaty has the apparent ability to satisfy its obligatiun and the SECUrity omn receivahles
readily enforceable).

Standard - these are receivables where colleciions are probable due 1o the reputatiom and the
financial ability of the counterparty 1o pay but have beey; eutstariding for a certain period of time.

Substandard - these are receivables that ¢an be collected provided the Group makes persistent
effort to eallect them.

Cash in banks and cash equivalents are deposited/placed in banks that are swable as they qualify
either as universal or commercial banks, Universal and commercial banks represent the largest
single group, resourcc-wide, of finaneial institutions in the country the Grrowp is operating, They
affer the widest variety of banking services among financial institutions, These financial nssels
are classified as high grade due o the counterparties® low probabidity of insolvency,

As of Decembsr 31, 2016 and 2013, the aging analyses of the Group’s past due and/or impuaired
recetvahles are as follows:

N 2014
l'as.: Bue bat not Empaired ;f:‘!:::ﬁﬂ
_ 1t 30 daye 3110 %8 days Over 90 duys Assely Total
Trade and other roceivables BIZ.354.03 PUEEOT4L  PIEI21255 PS5 D4 085 P125281,011
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- 2013 o
Past Due but pot knpaiced Impaired
Financial
[0 30days 31 (o %0 duys  Over 90 days Asgsets Fotal
Trade and olher receivables P50,299 198 Pr4.088 159 £18,151,894  ¥39.391,364 BI243) 113

Thers are no vollaterals held by the Group with respect to 1rade receivables that have been
identified as past due bul not impaiyed.

Carited Management

The Group’s objectives inmanaging capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue ag a
going concern 30 thiat it can continue to provide shareholder returns and (o maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital and thus, increase the value of shareholder
investment.

Inarder to mainiain a heafthy capital strueture, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
1o shareholders, issue new sharcs or sell assets to reduce debis, Muanagzment has assessed that tha
Group is selfsufficient based on hiswrical and current operating results,

The capital that the Group: inunages is equal to the total equity as shown in the consolidated
statements of financial position at Decomber 31, 2016 aud 2014 amounting o B2 462,99 million
and #1,627.70 million, respectively,

Fair Values and Qffsetting Arvangements

‘The methods and assumptions used by the Group in astimating the fuir valve of the financial
instruments are as follows:

The carrying amonnrs of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, due from/to
related pardes, short-tenin cash investments, aceounts and athér payables, transmissions lability,
and the current portion of hotes payable and lease liabilitjes approximate their fair value. I'hese
financial instrumments are relatively shorl-torm in nature.

The fair value of quoted AFS fovestment is the cutrent closing price while the unquoted AFS
mveshinent 3s based on the publishied net asset value per unit as of reporting date.

Lhe estimated fair value of long-term portion of notes payable is based on the discounted value of
futurs cash flow using applicable interest rates ranging from 4.14% to 4.20%.

The fair value of the long-term portion of lease liabilities is based on e discounted value of
future cash fhw using applicable interest rates ranging trom 7.5% 1o 8.00% for 2016 and 2015,

The estimated {air value of other noncurrent [iabilities is based on the discounted value of future
cush flow using applicable rate of 12.28%.
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IPatr Value Hierarchy
The Company uses the following hismarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of
Anancial instruments by valuation technigue:

Level 11 quoted (unadiusted ) prives in netive markets for identival aysets or liabilities

Level 2: other iechnigpies for which all inputs whish have a significanr effect un the recorded
fair value are observable, either directly or indirecthy

Level 3. techniques which use inputs which have 2 significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data

The quantitative disclosures on 31y value measurement hierarchy for assets as of December 31,
2016 and 2813 follow;

016
Fuir value measurements wsing

Quoted prices in
aclive markets  Significant atfer Signilcant

for identical oleservahic  unobservable
aEsels inputs inputs
Carrying values Tnaal {Level 1) {Lewvel 1y fLevel 3)
Assets vieasered af Talr vaae
Cuared poprity sacuiitios FASB397,274  P45S8.39L,104 FASEIS1,1 14 - -
Urnywated unit Bnvestnient
trase find 250037154 J50,437.554 - 28G,937.15
Lt b ties for wlich faiv valoe soe disclosed
Lenng lem notes payalble &12 500,500 495,225,145 - - 545,305,195
Mon-cumeny lease liabiliEics 73,242,410 77,401,097 - - TTA0D 5
Cxher noncuerent Labdities 4477 430 36,507,433 - - 36,807,633
s
[Fair value neasurvments meig
Cinated prices
It active sirmficani
ket for atiey Signifizont
wdentical  chaervakle unobservalilc
3l inpang nputs
Claroy img vilues Toal [Leve| 1} (Livel 23 (Level 3
Assory measured al fuir valne
Quoled equity securiies oy SR TR R2L3, 505081 #211,590,951 - e
liabitities lor whicl dair valug are discloscd
ton-cuncar bease Gapifites T4 16,341 75318246 - - T5.515.244
Chner ponenreent habilities 43,543 348 7085612 - EYRIEN Y s

There was no transfer between Level | and Level 7 in the petied,

Otfsetiing of Financial lustruments

Finzncial assets and liabilities are offset and the uet amaount reported in the consolidated
statements of financial position where the Group currently has a legally uforceable righr tw set-off
the recognized amounts and thare is an intention to settle on a nef busis or realize the net asset
settles the liability simultancously.
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The following tabic represenis the recognized financial instruments that

Decembber 31, 2016 and December 35, 2015, and shows in the

ure offsct as of
‘Neat’ column what the not impact

would be on the roup’s eonsolidated staternents of financiz) position a5 a result of the offyetting

rights.

December 31, 2010

Gross Amount Ofiseiting Nel Amgunf
Dug fram related parties (a) RI3T3.313,748 P— P1L373,313,748
Dividends payable (a) - (165.314,419) (2653144193
P1,373,313,7448 (B205,314,419) ?I,IO?,Q?Q,BIEL
o Becember 31, 3013
) Girgss Amauni OtRetting Net Amowit
Due from related partiss §9))] Bl 571,948 068 {R232.463.417) P1,539,484 649
Oug 1o related partizs (5) (232,429.668) o (252,429,66'8)
Royalry payabic (b) - [73,657,622 173,657,922
Purchase of LRCE (c) - 38,803,495 58,8045 495 i

(252,429.668)

132,463,417 (19,966 251)

#1,319,518 308

B-  B1319,518.398

The Parent Company’s dividends payable to LBCDC has heen offset against dus from

LBCDC. The Parent Company and LBCDC have the intention of sefiling on & net basis.

L.

LBCE has been affser against due from LECDC.

As discuseed in Note 2, the Parent Company’s pavable 190 LBCDC

The Group’s royalty payable to 1.BCOEO kas been offset against due from LRCDC,

arising trom purchase of

12 Begment Reporting

Managemeni has defermined the operating segments bascd on
execulive comimitge for purposes of allocating resources and

the inforinution reviewed by the

assessing performance.

The Group’s two main opsrating sogments comprise of logistics and money transfer services. The
execulive commitiee considers the business from product perspective,

The Group’s logistics products ure geared toward both retail and carporate elients. The muain

services offered under

the Group's logistics business are domestic and international couriar and

freight forwarding services (by way of air, sea and ground transport},

Money tunsfer services cumprise remitiance services {tncluding bravel
remittance cards and online and mobile remit) aud hil]
remitiance payour services. Money transfer serviocs |
branches which comprises international inhaund remitiance services,

retail services, prepaid

§ payiment collection and corporate
nelude international presence through jts

The Gronp only eports revenue line item for this segmentation. Assets and labiiities and cosr and
uxpenses are shared together by these two segmeants and, as such, cannot be reliably separalerd,

The Group has no significant sustomer which cantributes 10.00% nr mare to the revenug of the

Group.

CRTAIO R
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The following iable presents the amount of revenues generated from these sagments;

1€ 2013 2014

Lopistics
Botail B4, 964,000,749 B4,091,2584,562 P3,673,607 337
Carporate 2,557,865,998 2,199,007 266 1,968 288,045

7,521,560,747 6,290.291,828 56419053k

Money transfer services
[romestic 1,058,448,930 1,186,850,428 1,319,278 ,020
Intemational inbound 113,086,245 209332308 97,044,436
1,173,535,875 1,396,182,636 1,414,322.436
P8 ,6YS.402,622 B7,685 474 464 P7.0568,227 B3R

The revenue of the Company consists mainly of sales to external customers, Revenue ar fsing
from service fees ch:ug::cl to affiliales amounted 0 #400.29 million and B386.36 miltion in ”[}I 6
ana 2015, respectively.

Seascnality of Operativn

The Group’s operation expericnces increased volime in rewitlznee ransmission as weil as oar BO
throaghout the second quarter and fourih quarter of the vear, particularly durtng the star of the
sshoot year and during the holiday season.

. Nole to Consolidated SInteinent ol Cash Flows

In 2016, the Group has the following non-cash wansactions under:

a.) Qffseting of due from LBCDC against dividends payable amounting ro 826531 million
recorded under ‘Due from related pariies’,

invesfing activirigs
&} Unpaid acquisitions of property and equipment amounted to #60.75 miflion during the year.

Finacing activities
a.) Acerued interest amaunted o 81 77 million,

In 2015, the Group has the following non-cash tansactions under:

Cperaling activities

a.) Offserting of royalty payable to LBCDC amounting to #173.66 million agaimst due fiom
LBCIC. The net effect of the offsctting of the [inancial instraments is veflected as part of the
“Due flrom related parties” in the statements of financial posilion.

Al Unpau aoqmsztrons of praperty and equipment amounted to B76.30 mitlion, 85214 million of
which pertains to purchases of computer hardware ender long-term payments

b} Reversal of intangible assets and related liability amounting to $£21.33 million.

IR TR




-62 -

24, Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

Y]

The following table presents information necessary 1o caleulate earnings per share:

2016 2013 o 2014

Net income atiributabls o equity

holders of the Farent Company BY21,605,612 B4 16,300,856 43,410,244
Divided by the weighted average

number of commaon sharss

outstanding 1,425 865,471 1,425 865471 1,425 863,471
Basic/diluted eamings per share P63 HO.2O B0

The basic /diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 3 11,2016, 20135 and 2018 were
computed as toliow;

December 31, December 31, December 31,

. 2016 2015 2014
Net income attributable 1o (he sharsholders '

of the Parent Campany (4} BY21,605,612 P4146,3500 858 F143.410,239
Comimon stocks issued at the bég[nning of

the pericd 1425865471 40,849 D4 40,889,000
Comimon stocks issued duving the your - 1384 966,471 1,384,966.471
Veighted average number of common o

stocks outslanding (i) 1,425,863,471 1425865471 141588547
Basiv and diluted carnings per shars {a'h) _FEs P0.25 P00

The basic and dilutive carnings per share are the sane due Lo the absence of dilutive potential
common sharey, '

The denominater used in 2014 represents the issued and outstanding shares as at Lecember 3 1,
2015 to reflect retroactively, the completed acquisition uf LBCE which was accounted for similar
to a reverse acquisition {see Note 2),

[

. Othrer NMatiors

Closure of LBC Devalopment Banl, fno,
On Septernber 9, 201 |, the BSP, through Monetary Board Resolution No. 1334, resolved to close
and place LBC Development Bank Inc,’s (the “Bank™) assets and affairs under receivership.

On December §, 2011, the Philippine Deposit Insurance Company {PDIC), s the official receiver
and liquidator of ¢losed banks, demanded on behalf of the Bank that LBC Holdings USA

Con poration (LBC US) pay for its alleged owstanding abligations to LEC Bank amounting to
approximately £1.00 billion, a claim that LBC US bas dunied as being baseless and unfounded.
No [urther demand on this maiter has been made by the PIMC since then, although there are no
assurances that the claim has heen waived or abandoned in whole or in part, or that the PDIC will
nol institute relevant procecdings in court ar serve another demand leiter wo LBC LIS

tn relation to the Bank’s closure and receivership, as discussed in Note [4. the receivables
amounting to #2295 00 million were written-off in 201 1.

R AT kAR
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COn March 17 aid 29, 2014, the PDICs external counsel sent lerters to LBCE, demanding
coilection of the alleged amounty Wwlaitng #1.79 bitlion O March 24 and 29,2014, July 29,
2014, June 17, 2015 and June 26, 2015, the yume legal counsel sent collection lettors addressed to
LBC Systems, Inc. [Formerly LEC Mundial Inc.] [Formerly LBC Mabuhay USA Corporation],
demanding the payment of amounds agoregating to BOLL.59 million, all yn behalf of the Bank.

On May 15, 2015, the Department of Justice ("DOI?) issued subpoenas 1o some of the
stockholders of the Bank, directing them to submit their cownter-affidaviis in connection with the
coiduct of a preliminary investigation over a complantt filed by the PDIC, The preliminary
Investigation is an inquiry to determine whether there is sufficient ground that e offenses alleped
have been committed, and if iria) should be held. The stockholders submitted their counter-
affidavils, and the matter is now submitted for resolution by the D3,

On Noveinber 2, 2015, the Bank, through PDIC, filed a ¢ivil case against LBCE and LBCDC
before the regional trial courr of Makati ("RTC™), among other respondents, for a toal collection
of an alleged amount of 21.82 billion (the “Complainl™. The case is in relatinn to the March 17,
2014 dewnand lerter representing eolleclion of unpaid service fees dus from June 2006 to August
2011 and serviee charges on remittance fransactions from January 2010 to Septeinber 2011, The
increase i the amount from the demaand letter to the amount eontained in the case was explained
oy PIIC in the complaint as attributable 1o their discovery that the supposed payments of LROE
seem o be ansupparted by actual sash inflow to the Banik,

Gn December 28, 201 5, the simmons, together with 2 copy of the Complaint and the writ of
preliminary atteclunent, were served on the former Corporate Secretary of LECE. The writ of
preliminary attachment resulted i) dhe following: () tagging of the 1,205,974,632 shares of LBCH
in the name of LRCDC, and (k) the attachment of various bank accounts of LECE totaling P6.00
willion. The tagging of the shares it the recard of the stock transfer agent has the effect of
preventing the registratjon ar recording of any transfers of shares in the records, wiless the wijt of
atiachment s lifted, quashed ur discharged,

On January 12, 2016, LBCE and LBCDL, among other defendants, filcd with the RTC, aseparate
Moation 1o Dismiss the Complaint, Ou fanuary 21, 2016, LRCE and LBCD(C Filed their Urgent
Motion 16 Approve the Counterbond and Discharge the Writ of Atlachmenr.

On February 17, 201 6, the RTC granted LEBCE and LBCDE’s motion and issued ths order to iy
and set aside the writ of preliminary attachment. The order to }ift and set aside the preliminary
attachunent directs the sherift of the court to deliver to LBCE and LBCDC all progeriies
previously garished pursuant fa the writ of prefiminary attachment. The counterband delivered
by LBCE and LBCDC shall stand in place of the properties so released and shall serve as sceurity
o satisfy any tinal judgment in the case,

In a joint resolution dated Junc 28, 2016 (the "Joint Resolution™), the RTC resolved to deny the
Motions 1o Lisimiss filed by the defendants, including LBOE. On Tuly 18, 2016, LBCE, ogether
with the other defondants, filed 2 Motion fur Reconsideration of the Joint Resulution. PDIC then
fiked s Comment/ Opposition on August 10, 207 f, followed by the defendants’ reply on

Angust 26, 3016, PDI5 Rejoinder on Seplember 26, 2016, and defendante’ Sur-Rejoinder on
November {6, 2016, Thereafter, in an Order dated Tanuary 26, 201 7, the Motion for
Reconsiderarion was deemed submitted for resolution. On February 23, 201 7, LBCE received the
RTC’s resolution denying the Motion for Reconsideration of the Joint Resolution. On

Febivary 28, 7017, LBCE filed a Meatinn for Extension of Time (o File Answer, agking for
additional period of |5 days, or antil March 15,2017 10 file Answers. The uitimate outeome of
the case cannot presently be determined.

Mo
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in ralation to the above case, in the epinion of management and in cancumence with j1s fegal
roungel, any liability of LECE is not probable and estimabie at this point in time,

20, Subseguent Events

On March &, 2017, the BOD of LBCE approved the declaration of cash dividends Fmounting
B543.36 million or £6.81 for every issued and outstanding common share.

RN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHENULES

The Siockholders and the Board of Directors

LBC Express Holdings, Ine. and Subsidiaries

Ueneral Aviation Center, [Somestic Alrport Compound
Pasay City, Metro Manila

We lave audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the vonsolidated financial
stateraents of LBC Express Holdings, Inc, and is subsidiarics {the Group) as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2013 and lor cach of the Hyee years in the period ended December 31, 2046,
ncluded in this Form 17-A and have issued our report thereon datcd March 8, 2017, Our audit was made
for the purpose of forming an opinion an the consolidated Hnancizl statements taken as a whole. The
schedules fisted in the Index 1o the Consolidated Fingncial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are
the respongibility of the Group’s management. These schedules are presented for purposes of complying
with the Securities Regalation Code Rude Na, 68, As Araended (201 1) and are nol parl of the
cunvolidated financial sratements, These schedules have been subjected io the auditing procedures
apphied i the audir of the consolidated financial statements and, in our opmion. fairly state, in &l material
respects, the information required to be set forth thercin in 1ehuion o the consolidated finmcial
staiements taken as a whola.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

AF H -
Gl desnmn T oo
Jariner
CPA Certificaie No, 00787
SEL Acereditation No. 1229-AR-) (Group A),
May 12, 2008, valid until May 11,2018
Tax Identification Nu., | 62-410-623
ZIR Acereditation No. 08-001998-74.201 3,
February 27, 2013, valid until February 26, 2018
JTR No. 3908770, Janoary 3, 2017, Makari Ciry

Mareh 8, 2017
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LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INGEX TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

Report of Independent Auditors’ op supplementary scheduies
Supplementary schedules required by Annex 8.5
Schedule A: Financial Assets

Schedule B: Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Empioyvees, Related Pariies and
Principal Stockholder (Other Than Related Farties)

Sthedule C: Amonnts Receivables/Payables from/io Related Parties Which are Eliminated
During the Consolidation of Financial Statements

Schedule D Intangible Assets

Schedule B Long Term Deh

Schedule Fr Indebtedness to Related Parties

Schedule Gr Guarantees of Sscurities of other Tssuers

Schedule T Capital Stock

ap of the refationships of the companies within the Group
Reconciliation of retaiied eamings available tor dividend declaration

Schedule of financial soundness indicators

Schedule of ail the effective standards and interpretations
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RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AV AILABLE FOR DIVIDEND
DECLARATION
As of December 31, 2016

LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDTA RIES
General Aviation Center, Domestic Axrport, Pasay City. Metro Manila

Lngppropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted to availakle
for dividend distriburtion, beginning (BLL9.312,701)

Add; Net Income actuaily earned/reslized during the perigd
Met income during the period closed to Retamed Eamnings 441,473,500
Leys:
Equity in net income of assuciate/joint venture -
Unrealized foreign excliange gain - net {except those aftributable w cash and cash -
equivalents); Unrealized sctuarial gam
Fair value adjustment (M2 gains}
Fair valye adjustment of investment property resulting o gain -
Adiustment due to deviation tinm PFRS/GA AR gain
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained E3MNiNgs us a result uf certain -
transactions accounted for under the FFRS
Deferred tax sssets
Sublotal

Add: Non actual losses
Depraciation on revaluation nerement (after tax) -
Adjusiment dae to deviation from PFRS GAAP - loss -
Loss on fair value adjustinent of investment property {afier tax)

Add(iless):
Dividend declarations during the period (313,690,404
Appropriations of-Retajned Earnings duaring the period -
Reversals of appropriations -
Effecis of prior perind adjustmenis
Treasury shares
Etfect of pooling-of-interest method
‘Total Retained Earnings, end _
Avzilabie for dividend declaration £8,270,395




LBC EXPRESS HOLDING S, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
FOR THE YEARS ENOKD DECEMBER 31, 2016 and 013

Financial Soundness ndicators

Below are the financial ratios rhat are relevant to the Group for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2013;

Finaneial ratios 2014 2015

Cinrent ratic . Current assets 1.67:1 (18]
Current liabilities

[Jebt to equity ratio Total tigbilities 1.74:1 2.66:1
Stockholders® Bquity

Debt to total assets ratia Tortal liabilities 0.63:1 0.73:1
Total assets
Return on average asyets Net income altributabie 1o

Purent Company 14.52% 8.1
Averape assets

Book velue per shure Steckholders® equity £1.73 R].14
Total mumber of shares

Earnings per share o Net income P0.65 FG.29

Total number of shares




LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF ALL EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
UNDER PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REFORTING STANDARDS

Philippine Sccurities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued the amended Securities Regulation
Code Rule SRC Rule 68 and 68,1 which consolidates the rwo separate rules and labeled in the
amendment as “Pare [ and “Page 11, rospestively, [t also prescribed the additiona) schedule
requirerenis for farge entities showing a list of all effective standards and interprerations under
Philippine Finaieial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Below is the list of ail effective PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine
Taterpretations of latermutional Financial Reporting Interpretations Comm ittee ([FRIC} as of
December 31, 201 6:

i ':I'P..."%g# e AL R e D H e
paration and Presentation of Finagpeisl o
Statemienls
Conesptual Framewark Phase A Cljectives and gualitative characteristics
BFRSJ Practice Statement Management Commeatary s
Philippine Flnancial Reporting Standards !
PFRS | Fiesi-time Adoption ol Philippine Financial Reporting v
(Revised) | Standards
Amendiments 1o FFRS 1 (ost of 2n Investment in a v
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled En ity or Associate
Amendents to PFRS 1 additional Exemptions for Elrer- S
time Adopiers
Amendnent w PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from s
Compacative PFRS 7 Disclosures far First-time Adopters
Amendiments (o PFRE )0 Severe Hyperinglation and Removal S
of Fixed 12ate for Firs-iima Adopters
Amendments ra PFRS 1 Government Lozns v
Amendments to PFRS LBomowing Cost Vv
Amcadinents to PFRS 1:Meaning of “Effective PIRS" g
PFRS 2 Shure-based Poyment v
Amendments to FFRS 2 Yesting Conditions and s
Cancellations |
Amendments 1o PFRS 2- Group Cash-settled Shure-based < ’
Payment Transactions i
[ Definition of Vesting Condition 7 '
L 1 - H




Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business <
Combination J
l Scope Excentions for aint Arnngements w4 J
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts e ‘
Amendmenis to PERS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts < J
PFRS 5 Mon-current Assets Held for Sale ard Diseontinued v ’
Operationg
Changes in Methods of Disposal v ]
LPFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources e
PFRE 7 il Financial Instruments: Disclosuras e “
Servicing Conracts o
Amendmenis 10 PFRS 7, Retlassificaion of Financial Asgsels v
Amendments to PTRS 7: Reclassificatios of Financial Assets v
- Effective Date and Transitian
Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures abon v
Fiuancial Instruments
Armendments to PERS 7: Disclosures -“Transfers of Financial e
Assels
Arendments to PERS 7: Disclasures - Offsetting Financial g
Assels and Financia! Lizhilities f
Amendments to PERS 7. Mandatory Effective Dale of PFRS
8 and Transition Disclosires #
; !
Applicability of the Amendmeuts 10 PFRS 7 10 Candensed v
Ineevim TFinancial Statements
Amendinents to PFRS 7 Hedge Acconnting (2613 version) ¥ —|I
FFRS 8 Operating Seements ! v
Aggregation of Gperating Segments and Reconciliation af 7
the Tatal of the Keportahle Segments’ Assets to the Entity s
Aszety
PFRS 9 Financlal nstrumeis * v
Améndments io PFRS 9- Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS |
¥ and Transition Diselosurag *

Financial Testruments: Classification and Measurament
(2018 vepsion) ¥

JAnmndments o PFRE 9: Hedpe Accouuting (2013 version}




3.%1:' EI \e e

PTRS 16 _iEonsoJitTa{ed Financial Statements

rAm endmvents o PFRS 10: lovestment Entifies I J

Sals or Contribution of Assete between an Investor and jts N
Associate or Foint Venture

PIRS 11 Joint Arrengements ' N

| Amendments 1 PFRS 11, Accouniing for Acquisiticns of v
Ineerests in Joint Operations

1
FFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitles v _:f

Amendments to PFRS 12: Tnvesmnant Entities v

PFRS 13 |Fair Value Measurement S

Amendments 1o FFRY 13 8hort Tenn Receivable and
Pavahly

Portiolio Exception

PFRS 14 |Regulatory Deferral Accounts |
'TFRS 16 |Leases

Ibilippine Accountiog Standards

PAS | Presenution of Financiat Statemeants s

Amendment 10 PAS §; Capital Discloyures v

Amendments 0 PAS 1 Pottable Financial instruments and g
Obfigations Arising on Liguidation

Amenduients 10 PAS 12 Presentation of hems of Other s
Comprehengive Income

Amendiaents 1o PAS |:Clarification of the Requirements for d
Comparative Information '

Amendments 1o PAS 1 Presentation of financial statements - v
disclesuce initiative

J; PAS 2 Inventorics
PAS T Slatement of Cash Flowy

Aendmenis 1o PAS 7: Disclosnre Initiative

NS RURY Y

PAS 8 Arcounting Policies, Changes i Accaunting Estimates and
Crrors

b

PAS 10 | Fvents after the Reporting Date

FAS 11 Constuglion Comracls

FAS 12 Ircrmme Taxes

Amendment v PAS 12 « Deferred Tax: Recovery of e
Underlving Assets

Anazndment 1o PAS 12 - Recognilion of Neferred Tax Asgsety v
tbr Lnrealized Lossea *

PAS 16 FPrapoity, Plant and Eqguipment 4

Revalvation Methad - Proporiionate Restatument of




Amendinents to PAS 19: Clasification of Accepiable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

Anmtendments to PAS 18: Bearer Planrs

PAS 17

l.cases

PAS 8

Revenue

.

PAS 1Y

Emplovee Benefis

Amendrents to PAS 19; Defined Bengfit Plang: Employoe
Contributions

Regional Market Issue Regarding Discoun Rate

Amendments 1o PAS 19:Defined Benefit Plen: Emploves
Cottributions

FA% 20

Accownring for Government CGranis and Disclozirs of
Government Assistane

PaS 21

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchan ze Rates

Amendiners: Net Tavestment in a Forelgn Qperaticn

<.

PAS 23
(Revived)

Borrowing Costs

PAS 24

Relared Party Disclosures - Key Management Parsonnel

Related Parly Disclosures - Koy Management Personmel
{ Amended)

PAL 16

Aceounting and Reporting by Retirement Beneflt Flans

Pa®s 17

Beparate Fingncial Statements

Amendments ro PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments fo PAS 27: Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Joindy Connelicd Entity or Assuciate

Amendments o PAS 27 Ranity Method in Saparate

| Financial Siavenents

PAS 23

|

Invesiments in Associares and Joint Venrares

Sale or Contribution of Asscls benween an Investor and ils
Associate or Jaint Ventare

Amendroents to PAS 28: luvestment Entities

IPas 2y

Financtal Reporiing in Hyparinflationary Economies




o

Amendinens to PAS 32: Puttable Financial Instriments and <
Oibligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendmernd 10 PAS 32; Classification af Rights Tssuas +
Amendment to PAS 33: Tax Effect of Distribution Lo Realders v
of Equity Instruments
Arendments (0 PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and 4
Flnancial Liabilities

| PAS 33 Earuings per Share v

PAS 34 Intcrim Financia) Reporting o
Amendments to PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting and v
Segment Information for Tota] Assets and Liabilities
Msclosure of Information *Clsewlere in the Inerim v
Firancial Repory’

PAS 34 Irnpairment of Asscts s
Amendments to PAS 36: Recoversble Amount Disclosures 7
for Non-Financial Assets

‘PAS 37 Frovisicns, Continigent Liahjlities and Contingent Assers <

PAS 38 Tntangible Assels v
Revaluatfon Method ~ Proportionate Restatement of «
Accumnulated Deprociation and Agurtization
Amendnients 1o FAS 38 Clartficatinn of Acceptable Vg
Methods of Doprecialion and Aqortization

B . ) L T

PAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognirion and Measyrement ¥
Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Inilial Recognition v
of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amzndments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Acvounting of v
Foreeast Intragroup Transactions
Amendments to PAS 3%: The Fair Value Ontion v
Amendments to PAS 39: Financial Guarantee Contracts v
Aineodments to PAS 39: Reclassificarion of Financial Assets <
Amsmdments to PAS 39 Reclassificarion of Financial Assets v
- Eifective Date and Transition
Amendments to PAS 39; Embedded Derivatives v
Amendment lo PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Nems
Amendments 1o PAS 39: Movation of Derivatives and v
Continuation of Hedge Accounting l




P
Amendments o PAS 40: Cfuriﬁ}:-ation on Ancillary Services v
PAS 4] Agricuiture + |
Ameudmenw o PAS 41; Bearer Plams v
Philippine Interpretations
IFRIC Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restaration and o+ |
Similar Liabilities
IFRIC 2 | Members' Share in Co-operative Fntities and Similar S
[nstruments
IFRIC 4 Determining Wheiker an Asrangement Comiaing ¢ Leuse <
INRIC 3 iighis o Inferests arising From Decommissioning, v -
Restoration and Enviranmental Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC 6 Ligbifities arising fram Paridorparing in o Specifie iarker - v
Wasie Fiectrival and Elecironic Eeuipmaeny
IFRIC 7 |dppdiing the Resiatement 4 pproach wder PAS 29 Finangief | v
Reporifng in Hypertnflationary Economies
IFRICE  |Scope of PRRS 2 v
IFRIC D Heaszessment ol“limbcddc.d "Dcrivatives s
Amendments 1o Philippine Interpretation 1FRIC 0 ¥
Embedded Derivalives
IFRIC W) |/mierim Financinl Reporting aned Ivpairment v
IFRIC 1 [PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Shﬁre Transactions v
;F RIC |1 1 Service Concession Artangements N
M;ERIC 13 Customer Loyalty Mrogrammes Ny
TRRIC 14 | The Linit on a Defined Bensf Asset, Minmmmm Funding v
Reguirements and their inte acijon
Amendments 1o Philippine Interpretations IFRIC 14, v
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
'IFRiC :15 Agreements for the Construstion of Real Estate v
IFRIC 16  |Hedges of a Net Investment in 4 Fureign bperatian v
IFRIC“I? - -Distributions ot Non-cash Assets to Dwners v N
IFRIC 18 |Transfers of Assets from Cuastomers o | . 4
TFRIC 19 Exiinguishing Financtal Liabilities with Equity Instnynents v
IFRIC 24 | Stripping Costs in the Production Phase ofa Surface ]'-\f-]'-i.i]f} 4
hrriczr [Levies v




HEY

[ Government Assistance - No Snecific Relation to Operating
Activities
Sic-12 Conzolidation - #pecial Purpose Entities 4
Amendment tn 81C - 12: Scope of SIC 12 W
81C-13 Tointly Controlled Entities - Mon-iMonstary Comributions by '
Ventyrers
SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives ! 4
S1C-21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable e
Assels .
P SEC.25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Sttus ofan Entity or its v
Sharehalders
S1C.2% Evaluating the Substance of Transactions nvalving the Legal v
Form of a i.ease
EI 220 | Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. v
SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions lnvolving Advertising g

Services

SY(C-32 hrangible Assets - Web Site Costg v
¢ These stanidards are net yel ¢ffective as of December 11, X078

In addition, the JASRE has issued the following new standards tlsat have not yet been adnpred locally by
the SHEC and FRSC. The Group is currently assessing the impact of these new standards and jlans to
adapt them on their required effective dates once adopted locally,

+  IFRS 1S, Revemee from Conracis with Cusiomers (effective January 1, 2018)

Standards tagged as “Not applicahle™ have been adopted by the Group but have no signifionnt cavered
tausactiony {or the year ended December 31, 2016,

Standards tagged as “Not adopted” are standards issued but not yet effective as of December 31, 2016.
‘The Group will adopt the Standards and Interpretations when these become effective.
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SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE O L,

|, MAHLEENE G. GO, of legal age, Fllipino, and with office address at the Penthouse, \|
Liberty Center, 104 H V. dela Costa Streat, Salcedo Village, Makati City, after having been duly \
swarn in accordance with law, hereby certify that:

1. | am the duly appointed and incumbent Assistant Corporate Secretary of LBC
EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. (the “Corporation”), & corporation duly organized and existing under
the laws of the Republic of the Philippines, with cffice address at the LBC Hangar, General
Aviation Centre, Domestic Airport Road, Pasay City, Metro Manila.

2. In compliance with the requirements set forth in SEC Memorandum Circular No.
12, series of 2014, the Corporation submits herewith the accompanying consolidated changes
and updates to its Annual Corporate Governance Report for the year 2016,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto affixed my signature this LU JAS
al Makali City, Metro Manila,

I
é-l A
il fl g |l v
JLzvas s
“MAHLEENE G. GO
Assistant Corporate Secr etary

10 JAN 2017
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on JA _, affiant exhibiting to me
her Passport No. EC1841000 issued on 20 August 2014 at DFA NCR-E

Doc. No. 98¢ PATRICIA J | A. DAVIDE
Page No. _g4 ; AppointménkNo, M-173
Book No. T | Notary Pubii¢ for Makati City
Series of 2017. Until D ber 31, 2017

Penthouse|Liberty Center
104 HV. dela Costa Street, Makati City
Roll of Attofneys No. 63977
PTR No. 5313727/Makati City/01-04-2017
IBP No. LRN-013219/June 2015/Cebu City



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM - ACGR

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANGCE REPORT

1. Repon is filed for the year: 2018!

2. Exactname of issuer as specified in its charter: LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC_ (formerly

FEDERAL RESOURCES INVESTMENT GROUP INC )

3, Address of principal office: LBC Hangar, General Aviation Center. Domestic Airport
Road Pasav City

Postal Code: 1300 :l

4. SEC |dentification Number: ASO93-005277 B (For SEC Use anly)
Industry Classification Code

B. BIR Tax |dentification No.: 002-848-089-000
7. lssuer's telephone number, including area code: (632) 856 8510

B, Former name ar former address, il changed since |ast report; Federz| Resources Investmanl
Group Inc_/ No 35 San Antonio Street, San Francisco del Monte, Quezon City 1105

' Updates as of 31 Decémbiar 2016 ara Underscored and highlighted in yellow,



CONSOLIDATED CHANGES / UPDATES
IN THE ANNUAL CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT
(ACGR)

FOR THE YEAR 2016



A. BOARD MATTERS

(1)

Board of Direstors

[ Number of directers per Articles of Incorporation | Nine (9) =
| Actual number of directors for the yaar | Saven (7} |
(g) Cempeosition of the Board
Complete the lable with information on the Board of Direstors:
Director's Type If Nominator | Date First | Date Last | Elected No. of
Name [Executive | Nominee, in the Last Elected Elected When Years
{ED}, Non- Identify Election (if 1D, (Annual / | Served as
Executive the (if 1D, State State the Special Director
(MED), or Principal the Number | Meeting) as of 31
Independent Realzatianship of Years December
Diractor with the Served as 2016
(DN _Mominator) D)
Migue! ED N/A LEC 18 May 280uly | Annusl 1 vear
Angel A. Development 2015 2016
Carmahorl Corporation
Reng E. NED NIA LBC 26 October | z8.July Annual 1 vear
Fuantes Development 2015 2016
Corgoration
Enrique V. ED NIA LBC 28 Dctober 28 July Annusal 1 vear
Rey, Jr. Development 2015 2018
Cornoration
Auguste G. NED WA LBC 4 29 July Annual 1 year
Gan Development | September 2018
Corporation 2015
Mark NED NIA LEC 28 April 28 July Annual 1 year
Wemer J. vel nt 2015 2016
|__Rosal }  Comeration | | - }
Solita V. [[a] NJA Klarance Tan 18 May 29 July Annuzl 1 year
_ Delantar Dy / None 2015 2018
Luis N Yu jIv] NIA Klarence Tan 28 Aoril 29 July Annual 1 vear
Jr. L Dy /None 2015 2018

(B)

Provide = brief summary of the corpurate governance policy that the Board of
Directors has adopted. Pleass emphasize the policylies relative to the treatment
of all shareholders, respec? for the rights of minority shareholders and of other
stakeholders, disclosure duties, and Beard responsibilities.

The Company's Board of Directors has adopted all the provisions of the Revised
Code of Corporate Governance (SEC Memorandum Circular Neo. 8, Series of 2009),
which are embodied |n the Company's Revised Manual on Corporate Governance
(RMCG) submitted to tha Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on B April
2010, The Board of Directors is primarily responsible for the governance of the
Company

As provided for in the Company's RMCG,; it is the duty of the Buaid o promote the
rights of stockholders. The Board shall respect the rights of the stockholders as
provided for in the Corporation Code end ensure the equitable treatment of all
stockhelders, including mincrity and foreign stockholders. On disclosure duties, all
assantial and material information about the Company shall be publicly and timely
disclosed through the appropriatz Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) mechanisms and
submissians to the SEC The Board's respansihilities, duties, and functions are
defined in the Company's RMCG, It is the Board's responsibility to foster the long-
term suecess of the Company, and to sustain its competitiveness and profitability in a




manner consistent with its corporate ohjectives and the best interests of its

stockholders

(c) How often does the Board review and approve the vision and mission?
Annually

(d) Directorship in Other Companies

(i) Directorsnip in the Company’s Groug?

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the Company's Board of
Directors who hold the office of director in other companies within its Group:

Director's Name

Corperate Name of the
Group Company

Type of RDirectorship
(Executive, Non-
Executive, Independent);
Indicate if Director is also

the Chairman
Migual Angel A LBC Express, Inc,; ED
Camahort LBC Express Corporate
Solutions, Inc. -
Rene F Fuentes LBC Express Ltd.; NED —
LBC Money Transfer Lid.;
LBC Express GmbH
Enrigue V., Rey, Jr. LBC Express. Inc. _ED
Augusio G. Gan LBC Express. Inc. NED
Mark Werper J. Reosal Mone NIA
Soiita V, Delantar LBC Express. Inc. [
Luis N Yu, Jr. None N

(i) Directorship in Other Listed Companies

lgentify, as and if applicable, the members of the Company's Board of
Directors who are also directors of publicly-listed companies outside of its

Group:!
Director's Name Name of Listed Type of Directorship
Company (Executive, Mon-
Executive, Independent);
Indicate if Director is also
I the Chairman
Migual Angel A, None NIA
Camahort
Fens E Fuentes None NIA
Enriqua V. Rey.Jr. None NA
Augusto G: Gan None = NIA
Mark Werner J. Rosal None NIA
Salita V. Delantar None N/
Luis N. Yu, Jr. | 8890 Holdings, InG. Director

(1ii) Relationship within the Company and its Group

Provide details, as and if applicable, of any relation among the members of
the Board of Direclors, which links them to significant shargholders in the
Company and/or in its Group:

Director's Name

Miguel Angal A.
Camahor

Mame of Significant Description of
Sharsholder Relationship
None N/A

2The Group is composed of the parent, subsidianes, associates, and loint ventures of the Company,




(2)

Rene E. Fuentes None MN/A

| Enrique V, Rey, Jr. None N/A
Augusto G, Gan None N/A,

| Mark Wemer J. Resal None N/A
Solita V. Delantar None NIA

Luls N. Yu, Jr. None N/A

{iv) Has the Company set a limit on the number of Beard seats in other
companies (publicly-listed, ordinary, and companies with secondary
license) that an individua! director or CEO may hold simultaneously? In
particular, is the limit of five (5) board sezats in other publicly-listed
companies imposed and observed? W yes, briefly describe other
guidelines:

Yes, the limit of five (8) board seats in other publicly-listed companies is
being imposed and observed. The other guidelines are as follows:

Guidelines Maximum Mumber of
| Direciorships in Other
Companies

Execufive Director The Nomination
Non-Exscutive Directar The CEOQO and other | Committee has considered
CEQ Exceulive Directors are | several guidelines on the
covered Dy 2 lower | number of directorships

indicative it for | that beard members

membership  In other | can hald in. stock
boards. A similar limit | and non-stock
applies fo  Independent | corporations. The optimum
or Non-Executive | number should take into
Directors. who, a2t the | consideration the capacity
same time, serve a5 Iull | of 2 director to diligently
time executives  in other | and efficiently perform
corporalions, his/ner duties and
regpongibilities.

(e) Sharaholding in the Company

Complete the following table on the members of the Company's Board of Direclors
Who directly and indirsctly own shares in the Company:

Nama of Director Number of Direct | Number of Indirect | % of Capital Stock
Shares Shares [ Through
[Mame of Record
. Cwner) .
Miguel Angel A 1 /A [
Camazhon .
Rehe E. Fuentes - 1 N/A, Nii ~
Enrique V. Rey. Jr. 1 " N/A NIl
| Augusto G. Gan 1 N/A INil
Mark Werner J. Rosal 1,000 NIA 0.00007%
Sallta V., Delantar 1 N/A Nil
Luis N. Yu, Jr. 1 | NFA Nil
| TOTAL 1,006 ] NIA 0.00007%
Chairman and CEQ
(a) Do differant persons assume the role of Chairman of the Board of Directors and

CEQ? If no, describe the checks and balances laid down to ensure that the
Board gets the benefit of independent viewe.

{ ) VYes ( X ) No



(B)

Although Migue! Angel A. Camahort holds the pesition of both Chairman of the Board
of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the roles and
rasponsibilities of the Chairman of the Board of Direclors and CEQ are defined In the
By-Laws and Revised Corporate Governance Manual to ensure that the Board gets
the benefit of independent views and perspectives.

Identify the Chairman and CEQ:

Chairman

Miguel Angel A. Camahort

CEQ

Migue! Angel A. Camahort

Roles, Accountabilities, and Deliverables

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities, and dellverables of the Chairman and

CEQ

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer

Roles

Deliverables

Accountahbilities

i

The Chairman  shall
preside al he meetings
of the directors and
the stockhoiders.

The President shall be
the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and shall
also have the administration
and direction of the
long-term aswell as  {he
day-to-day business afiairs
of the Company. The

President/CED shall
He/she shall alse exercise the following
exercise such powers and | functions:

perform such duties as
fhe Board of Directors
may assign to him/hen

Helsha shall ensure thal
the meetings of the Beard
are held in aceordance

To preside at the meetings
of the Board of Directore
and of the stockholders In
the  @hsence of the
Chairman;,

withthe by laws or as | To nifiate  and
hefshe rmay geem | develop carporate
necessary; objectives and policies and
formulate long  range
He/she shall supenvise | sifategies, projects, plans,
Ihe preparation of the | and programs for  the
agenda of lhe approval of the Board:

meeting, i coordination
with the Corporate
Secretary, taking Into
consideration the
suggestions of 1the
CEQ, Management, and
the directors: and

Hefshe shall
qualitative  and
lines of communication
ang information between
the Ecard and
Management.

mainain

timely -

To nave  general
supervision and
management of lhe
businass affairs and
gropetty of the Company;

Ta prepare such
statements and reports of
the Company as may be
required by law and make
reports 1o the Board and
stockholders; and

To perform  such  other
duties @as delegated or
entrusted to him/her by the

| Board  of Directors.

(3) Explein how the Board of Directors plans for the succession of the CEQ/Managing
Director/President and the top key management positions.



(4)

Selectlion and pianning for the sucsession of the CEO/President and the top key management
positions are among the most important respansibilitiss of the Company's Board of Direclors.
The Company's succession process will be managed by the Incumbent CEQ, with the
Nomination Committee oversesing the process, reviewing the candidates, and providing

advice throughout. The Board shall review succession planning with the incumbent CEO on 2
regular basis.

Other Executive, Non-Executive, and Independant Directors

Does tha Company have 2 policy of snsuring diversity of exparience and background
of Directors in the Board? Pleass sxplzin.

Yes, the Company has & policy of ensuring the diversity of experience and background of
directors In the Board. As provided for in the Company's RMCG, the Nomination Committee
shall review and evaluate the gualifications of zll persons nominated lo the Board In
accordance with the Company's RMCG, the Corporation Code, the Securities Regulation
Code. and other relevant laws. The axecutive, non-exscutive. and independent directars

should possess such qualifications and stature that would enable them to effectively
participate in the dellberations of the Board

Does it ensure that at least one Non-Exscutive Director has an experienice in the sector
or industry the Company bzlongs to? Please explain.

Yes, as provided for in the Company's RMCG, one of the qualifications of a director is
membership In good standing in relevant industry, business, or professional organizations.
Also, as provided for in the Company's Audit Committee Charter, each member of the
Committee shall have adequate undsrstanding at least or competence at most, of the
Company's financial management sysiems and environment, as well as the Company's
business and the industry in which It operatas,

Define and clarify the roles, accolntabilities, and deiiverables of the Executive, Non-
Executive, and Independent Directors:

islo design, develop,
and implamant strategic
plans for the Company in
a cosl-eftective and time-
cfficient manner. The
CEQ is  tesponsible
for the day-io
day cperalioy of lhe
Company, s accountable
le. the Chairman of the

Directors s 1o promote
the suepess of the
Company. The key
responsibility of the Non-
Execulive Directors ig (&
provide general guidance
and a different
perspectve on matters of
concarm, The role of Non-
Executive Directors

Exerutive Director Non-Executive Director |  Independent
= Director
Roles The role of an
aieiy The rote of the CEQ and | The primary function _ .
Accauntabilities . 5 Independent Director
Deliverables athier Exebutivg: Diratiors | Of Non-Bxscutive includes improving

gevernance
standards, An
Independent Director
plays an active' role
in various corporate
Govemance
commitiees

created by the Board
such as the Audit

Board, and reports ta the | in strategy formation is lo ggmm:t?:n

Board on a reguiar basie. | provide 3 creative and Cammities —
The CEQ and Executive | informed contribution ¢ Cotnpansakanand
Director lead the | the Beard by giving R mpnarétlon
Company and develop | cbjsclive cilicismeand C:mumittee s
the Company's | advice on the Campany's cnaire good
organizational sultures. objectives and plans. dovemanes.

Provide the Company's definition of “independsnce” and describe the Company's
compliance to the definition.

The Company's definition of director's independence follows the definition of an independent
dirccter, as stated in the Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 38 (Requirements on
Mominalion and Election of Indepsndent Direastors) Linder the said rule, an Indepandent



(3)

Director is defined as a person who, apail from histher fees and sharehoidings, s
Independent of managemant and fres from any business or other relationship whish could. or
could reasanably be perceived to materially Interfere with, hisiher exercise of independent
fudgment in carrving out his/her rasponsibilities as a director,

Ms. Solita V. Delantar and Mr. Luis N Yu, Jr., the lhoumbent Independent directars of the
Company. having possessed the qualifications and none of the disqualifications of &n
Independent direclor. were nominated In accordance with the guidelines for the namination
and election of indepandant directors pursuant to SRC Rule 38.

Ooes the Company have a term limit of five (5) consecutive vears for Independent
Directors? If after two (2) years, the Company wishes to bring back an Independent
Director who had served for five (5) years, does it limit the term for no more than four
(4) additional years? Please explain.

Yes, the Company shall abide by the provisions of the SEC Rule (per SEC Memorandum
Circular No. 3, Series of 2011) on term limits for Independent Directors. As stated in the said
SEC Rule, independent directars can serve as such for five (5) consecutive years. Upon
completion of the five-year service period, an independent director shall be eligible for
election as such in the same company unless the independent director has undergone a
‘caoling off" period of two (2) ysars. An independent director re-elected as such in the same
company after the "cooling off" period ezn serve for another five (5) consecutive years. After
serving 2s Independent director for ten (10) years, the independent director shall be
perpetually barred from being elected as such in the same company,

Note: The Comipeny's RMCG s set to be further revised and updaled in light of SEC
Mermorandum Circular No_ 19, series of 2016, promulgsting the Revised Code of Corporate
Govemance for Publivly-Listed Companies (effective 1 January 2017). Pursuani to the saig
Memerandum Circular, fhe new manual on corporate governance shall be submitted to the
SEC on or before 31 May 2017,

Changes in the Board of Directors (Executive, Non-Executive, and Independent
Directors)

(2) Resignation / Death / Removal

Indicate any changes in the compasition of the Board of Directors that happened
during the pencd:

Name of Director Position ate of Cessation Reason

Manuel 8. Dalfin,_Jr. MED 28 July 2018 Mot nominated as
memboer of the Boarg
of Directors for the

vear 2018

th) Selection / Appointment, Re-election, Disgualification, Removai, Reinstatement,
and Suspension

Describe the procedures for the selection/appeintment. re-slection. disqualification,
remaval, reinstaterment, and suspansion of the members of the Board of Directors.
Provide detalls of the processes adopted (Including he frequency of election) and the
criteria employed in each procedure:

Procedurs | Process Adopted | Criteria

A, Selection / Agpointment i —
Exscutivé Directors | The Board shall be composed of | In addition to  the
Non-Executive Directors | nine (9) directors, who shall be | guslifications for
Independent Directors elected af the Annual | membership in the Board
Stockholders' Meeting, to hold | provided for In the
office until the nexd annual | Corporation  Tode:  the
| meeting and until their respective | Securities Ragulation Code,




succeseers have heen elected
and qualified, The Company shall
have al lesst two (2) independent
direciors  or  such number of
independent direclars that twenty
percent (20%) af (he members of
Ihe Board, whichevar is easier, byt
in na case less lhan two (2). The
Nomination Commilies Is
respansible  for reviewing and
evaluating the gualifications of all
persens nominated ¢ the Board
and cther appointments thal
require Board  approval  in
accordance with the qualificalions
and  disquaiification  provided
under the Corporalion Code,
Securities Regulation Code, other
relevant laws and the Company's
RMCG,

and other relevant laws, the
Company's RMCG provides
for additional qualifications
which  include,  amang
others, the following;
Fractical
understanding of the
business of the
Cerparation;
Membarship in good
standing in
relgvan Industry,
husiness. or
professiongl
organizations;
Previous  business
eXDErences;

Proven o
possess Integrity, and
probity: and
Assiduous,

A director should not be an
active member of more than
five (5  publiclydisted
companies and members aof

‘the Audit Committee should

not serve on moré than
three  (3) publicly-listed
company audit committees.

The nomination and
election of Independent
Directors shall be governed
by the provisions of SRC
Rule 38.

B. Reappoiniment

Executive Directors

Tha Nomination Committae shall

The director's continuing |

Mon-Exscutive Direators | review the conlinued | service on the Board is n
Independent Directors 2pproprialeness on the Board | tha best interest of the
membership  and shall make | Company.
recammendations on  the fe-
appointment  of directors, in
cansuliation with the Chalrman of
the Board.
| C. Permanent Disqualification - [ -
Executive Direclors Tha Nemination Committee shall | The grounds for the
Non-Executive Directors | determine and inform the Board if permanenl  disgualification

of a director are stated in
the Company's RMCG.

Ingependeni Directars there is any wround for the
permanent disqualification of a
director, and shall maxe
racommendations for a2ppropriate
aclion

|_B. Temporary Disqualification

Execulive Direclors Tha Nominatien Commillee shall

Non-Executive Directors | delermine and inform the Board if

Indepandent Directors thara Is any reasen for the

temporary  disqualification of a
dirscter, and shall make
recommendations for agpropriate
actian

A temporarlly disqualified director
shall, within sidy (80) business
days from such disqualification,

take the approprate action to |

The reasons for the
temporary disgualification of
& director are staled in the
Company's RMCG.




remedy or sorrect the
disqualification. If he/she falls or
refuses to do so for unjustifiad
reasons,. e disgualification shall

kecome parmarent
_E. Removal F)
Executive Diractors On the removal of  a | Permanemt disqualification
Non-Exscutive Directors | director, the Company shall follow | or temporary
independent Dirsclors the Carporation Code provisien | disgualifieation  if nol
{5ec. 28) on Removal of Directors | remedied or cunected.
or Truslees.
. Reinstalement
Executive Directors The Nomination  Cemmittee | The director's reinstatement
Mor-Exzcutive Diractors | shall detarmine the | to the Board is in the besl
Indgpendent Directors Eppropriateness of the | interests of the Company.

reinstaterment of a diractor.

G. Suspension

Exscutive Directors The Momination Commlitee shall | The reasons for (he
Non-Executlve Directors | determine and male | temperary disqualification of
Independent Directors recommendations to lhe Board | a direclor are statad in the

relaling to the continuance in | Gompany's RMCG:
office of a director, including the
suspension and  termination
subject to the law.

Voting Resuits of the las? Annual General Meefing (28 July 2016)

Name of Dirscior Votes Recaived
Miguel Angel A _Camahort 1,205 874 632
Rene E. Fuenles 1,205,874 632
Enrigue V. Rey, Jr. 1,206.974,632
Augiisto B_Gan 1,205,074,632
~ Wark Werner J. Rosal 1205.974 632
Solita V, Delaritar 1 205,074,632 ]
- Luis N. Yu, Jr. 1,205,974 632

(8) Orientation and Education Program
(2) Disclose details of the Compan”s crientation program for new directors, if any.

The Company's orientation program is generally conducted In one or more sessions
witnin six [8) months of the annual mesting at which new directors are elected or the
date on which new directors are appointed, as applicable. The orientation program
aims to acquamt the new directors with the Company's business The program
includes presentations by senior management lo familiarize new directors with the
Company's straiegic plans, its compliance programs, and significant financial and risk
managesment Issues. .

(o) State any in-houses training and externzl courses aitended by Directors and
Senior Managemen?® for the past three (3) years:

On 11 Degember 2013, the Direclors and Senior Management attended an Exclusive
Ceorporate Governance Seminar facilitated by Legis Forum, Inc.

On 19 December 2018, the Directors and Senior Management sttended a Corporate
Governance Semingr conducted by Risks. Opportunities  Assessment.  and
Management (ROAM), Inc.

(c) Continuing Education Programs for Directors: Programs, Seminars, and
Rouncitables Attended during the Year

*“Senior Management” rafers to the CEQ and other persers having authority and respensibiiity for planning, directing, and
controlling the activities of the Cempany.




B.
(1)

Name of Date of Training ~ Program Name of Training
Director/Officar ' Institution
Miguel Angel A, 18 Decsmber 2016 Corperate ROAM, Inc.

Camahort Governance Seminar
Rene E. Fuentes 12 December 20168 Corporate ROAM. Ine.
Covernance Seminar
Enrigue V. Rey, Jr. 18 December 2016 Comorate ROAM, Ine.
ovemance Seminar
Mahleena 5. Go 10 November 2018 Disclosure Rules ilinpine Stack
Seminar Exchange, Inc.
18 December 2016 Corporate
= Governance Seminar ROAN. Inc.
Ma. Eloisa Imelda S. 10 November 2016 Diselosure Rules Philippine Stock
Singzon Seminar Exchange, Inc.
18 Decamber 2016 Corporate
Governance Seminar ROAM. Inc.

CODE OF BUSINESS ETHICS

Discuss briefly the Campany’s policies on the following business conduct or cthics
affecting directors, senior management, and employees:

Business Gonduct & |
Ethies

Directors

~_Senior
Management

The basic principle to be

Employees

Similar t&  the

‘ (@) Conflict of Interast

observed Is thal a director shauld
not use his/her pesition o prafit
of gain sume benefit or
advantage for himselffhersslf
andlor his’her related interssis,
He/she should avoid situations
that may compromise his
impartallty. |f an actual or

potential conflict of interest may |

arise ‘w1 the part of a dirsctor,
he/she shoiild fully  and
immediately disclose and shauld
not paricipate i the decision-
making process. A director who
has a continuing material confiict
of interest shouid seriously
consider  resigning  from  his
position:

A confict of interest shall be
considered  matenial it the
directer's persongl or business
interast is antagonistic to that of
the Company, of stands to
acquire  or @ain  financial
advaniage at Ihe expense of the
Company.

Company's policias
for diractars.

Na  employees may

engage in any
business or
Undertaking  that is
directly or
indirectly In

competition with that
of the Company. or
engage directly or
indirectly  in any
undertaking or aclivily
prejudicial  to  the
interest of the
Company, its
customers, and to the
performance of his/har
job or work
assignment.




{b) Conduct of
Business and Fair
Dealings

| A diractar shall not eompete with

the Company by providingsanvica
o = competitor a5 emploves,
officer; of director or in 2 simiiar
capacity, pratil. or agsist  others
o profit, from confidential
infarmation or husiness
opporunitiss.  that are
available because of service lo
the Company; improperly
infiuence or attempt to nfluence
any Business transaction
belween the Company and
another entity in which a direclor
has a direct ‘'or Indirect financial
inleresl or acts an employee,
officer, or director In a similar
capacity: or take
unfalr  advantage of any
customer. supplier, competitor, or
ather person through
manipulation, concealment,
misrepreseniation of material
acts or other unfairdesling
practica,

(¢} Receipt of Gifts
from Third Parties

Similar to the
Company's policies.
for directors.

Similarte the
Company's palicies for
directors.

A director shall not solicit ner
accept gifts, payments, leans,
services, or any form of
compensation from suppliers,
customers, competiors, or others
seeking lo da business with the
Company.

{d) Compliance with
Laws and Regulations

\Similar to the
Company's pelicies
for directors  for
diractors.

Similar to the
Company's policies for
directars

ILis the Company's palicy fo.comply
fully with all laws governing its
operations, and fo conduct its affairs
keeping wiln moral, legal ad
sthical standerds. Each diractor
shall comply with all apphcable
lawe, rules and regulations, and
ihe provisions of the Company's
RMCG.

Under the Company's Audit
Committee  Cherter, the  Audit
Committiee shall ascerain whether
Ine Company has an  effective
process for determining risks and
axposura fo lifigation and olaims

from non-compliance with  laws
& regulations.
The Board  shall appoirit

2 Compliance Officer who shall
monitor complance by the Cormpany
with the RMCGE and all relevant
laws, rules, and regutations, as well
as regulatory reguiremants.

TAl members
of saniior
management  shall
comply with  all
applicable laws,
rules and regulstions,
and the provisions of
the Company's
RMCG.

All employses
shall comply with all
applicable laws, ues
and regulations, and
the provisions of the
Company's KMUG.




() Respect for Trade Adiectorshouidkesp  secure |A senior | Al employses arg |
Secrets / Use of Non- and confidential all nen-public (executive  should | expecied lo keep inslict
Public Infarmation information he/she may acquire or keep  secure axl | confidence all
learn by reason of hisher postion |confidential al | information ard data,
as director. Helshe should not |non-public recordsand  documents
reveal cenfidential information lo |imformation  hehe | peraining o the
unauthonzed persons without the |may acquire or leam | Company's  busness
authority of the Board. by reason of hisher | andlor affairs and ne
position as such, unauthorized disclosure
He/she should not | of reproduction of the
fevieal confidential same shall be made by
Information to | the employes
unauthorized during ar after
persans without the ‘ employment  with the
authority of the | Company.
Board,
() Use of Company A director shal  protect |Similar tothe | Similar  to  the |
Funds, Asssts and the Compary’e funds, assets, [Companys polices Company's policies for
Information rand informaton, andshiall  not use [for directors. directors,
'the Company's  funds, assels,
rand information to pursue personal
opportunities of gain. A director shall
ensure  theeficient use of he
Company's asseis and that no
Company funds, assets, or
imormation  shal be used & aw
| unlawful purpose.
(@) Emplymen: and The Compensaiion  and  [Senior b s e |
labor Laws  and | Remuneration Committee shall |management policy of the
Palicies lensure the implementetion of shall  support Company te select and
| applicable employment and labor  the  implementation | hire only individuals who
laws and policies: The Company and enforcement of pOSSEES the
shall recognize the unique position of  Applicable best qualifications for the
empioyees as individuals with 2 lemployment  and | job and have potential
vital siake in their work and at the |labor  laws and | 1o grow
szme  time with  Inherent |palicies. al  move up In
abligations te themselvas and their the C

own families.

(1) Disciplinary Action

Grpany.
Management Dbelgves
that the continued
progress and success
af  the  Company
degends, b a greal
exient, on #s human
resurces.

Directars and aznior exectdives
are subject te discplinary sction for
vioigtions of busness ethics.
Subject 1o and In accordance
with the Companys RMCG, the
Board  of Directors shall
determine the  appropriate
disciplinary action.

Fuery employee s
expected to observe
and witfy
Cormpany rules  and

regulations. When mules
and regulanona are
viplated or when an
employee disregards or
fails.  te comply with
rules and reguiations,
the Company will have
no alternative but o
akx comedive  and
disciplinary measures,




(2)

()

()

(i) Whistle Blower | Direclors 2nd senior executives

are  encodraged (o promptly

contacl the Chairman of the
Board o the Compliance Ciflcer If

any direcler or ssnior executive

belicves thet helshe has observed

llegal or uneflical behavior by any

amployes, officer, or director, or by

anyone purporiing to be acting on

the Company's bahalf. Any such
reports may be mate |
anonymously, Confidentiality will ba

mainteined to lhe extenl permitted

oy law

(i) Conflict The Beard of Direclors shall |Sanior | Alemployee complaints

Resclutian sstzblish an  allemalve dispule |management and grievances should
resoluion system so that conflicls must  have the be discussed  wifh
and differences  wilhy appropriate people the Company's Human
counterpariies, parficlardy  with \management skills Resources department.

shareholders  and  other  key |andcompetency in
stakehelders, would be seffled In'a |managing confiict
fair and axpeditious manner, sueh as in
dealing with issues,
use of offcal
processes,
parficipative
approach,

monitoring  team
relafionships,  and
asting as =z e
model

Has the code of ethics or conduct been disseminated to all Directors, Senior
Manragement, and employees?

The Company has disseminated to all Diractors Senior Management, and employees the
Company's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

Discuss how the Company Implements and monitors compliance with the code of
sthics or conduct.

The Compliance Offieer will be designated to monitor compliance with the code of conduct
and ethics.

Related Party Transactions
(=) Policies and Procedures

Describe the Company's policies and procedures for lhe review, approval or
ratification, monitoring, 2nd recording of related party transactions between and
among the Company and Its parent, joint ventures, subsidiaries, associates, affiliates,
substantial stocknhalders, officers, and directors, including thair spouses, children, and
dependent sibiings and parents, and of Interlocking director relationships of members
of the Board.

Related Party Transactions Policies and Procedures

(1) Parent Coampany

(2) Joinl Ventures

(3) Subsidiaries

(4) Entities under Commen Centrol

(B} Substantial Slockhelders

(B) Officers including Spouse / Children /
Siblings / Parents

The Beard, through the Audil Commitles,
shall  review  significant related

party transactions (RPTs) and recommend
approval or ratification. The Company will be
transparsnt and consistant in
reporting RPTs and a summary of such
transactions shall be included




{7_) ‘Dire::tors including Spouse ! Children / | In the Company's  Annual Repor.
Siblings / Parents ) The Company  shall  promptlydisclose
| (8) Interlorking Director Relationship of Board | to sharghoidars  all malerial

of Dirsctars ransactions with affiliates of the controlling
l shareholders, directors, or management.

(B) Conflict of Interest
(i) Cirectors |/ Officers and 5% or More Sharsholders

Iei‘entify any actual or probable conflict of ihtarest to which directors /
oificers | 5% or more sharzholders may be involved.

Detzils of Conflict of Interest
(Actuz| o Probable)
Mame of Director/s NIA
Name of Officer/s N/A
Name of Significant Sharehoiders N/A

{ii) iechanism

Describe the mechanism laid down to detect, datermine, and resolve
any possible confiict of interest between the Company andlor its group
and their directors, officers, and significant sharzholders.

Directors / Officers /
____ Significant Shareholders
Company Directers, officers, and  significant
stigreholders shall fully disclose their
active privale or other business inlerests
prematly and any other personal mattes
which may lead to potential or actual
conilicts of interest with the Company,
Their deallngs with the Tompany must
always be al arm's length o avoid
possibility of actual ar
potentlal conflict of Interest. The Roaid
shall review and resolve any conflictof
interest situations.

(9) Family, Commercizl, and Contractual Relations

(a) Indieate, if applicable, any relation of a famlily,* commercial, contractual, or
business nature that exists between the holders of significant equity (5% or
more), tc the extent that they are known to the Company:

Names of Related Type of Relationship Brief Description of
Sigpificant Relationship
Shareholders
i NIA N/A, S N/A
(D) Indicate, i1 applicable. any relation of 2 commercizl, contractuzl, or business
nature that exists between the holders of signiiicant squity (5% or more) and
the Company:

There is no relation of a commercial, contractual, or business nature that exists
petween the helders of significant equity (5% or more) and the Company.

Namas of Related Tyvpe of Relationship Brief Description of '
Significant Relationship
Shareholders -

* Family relationship up to'the faurth civil degree, either by cansanguinity or affinity.



N/&

-

Indicate any shargholder agreements that may have an impact on the control,
ownership, and strategic direction of the Company:

N/A [ N/A |

()

There zre no shareholdsr agreaments that may impact on the control, ownership and
siralegic direction of the Company,

Mames of Sharehalders % of Capital Stock Brief Description of
Affected (Parties) | Transaction
/A N/A /A
(8) Alternative Dispute Resolution
Describe the aliemative dispute resolution system adopted by the Company for the
last three (3) ysars in amicably settling conflicts or differences between the Company
and its stockholders, and the Company and third parties, including regulatory
authorities.
Altsimative Dispute Resolution
System
Company and Stockholders Disputes between the Company and the
Company and Third Parties stockholders, slakeholders, and
Company and Regulatory Authorities regulators, if any, are resolved by
negetiation and mediation,  Through
negotiation and mediation, the Company
can slive for conflict prevention rather
than eanflic! resolution
G SO0ARD NIEETIMGS & ATTENDANCE
(1) Are Board of Directors’ meetings scheduled before or at the beginning of the year?
Per the Company’s By-Laws, the Board of Directors' meetings shall be heid rio less than once
gvery guarter of ®ach year The Board of Directors’ meetings are scheduled during the
gquarer,
(2) Attendance of Directors
Board Neme Date of No. of Mo. of %
Election Meetings Held Meetings
- | duting the Year Attended
Chairman Miguel Angel /. 28 July 20186 8 8 100%
President, 2nd Camahon
CED
Member Rene C. 28 July 2016 5] B 100%
_Fuentes =
nyestars Enrigue V. Rey, 29 July 2016 G (5] 100%
Relations T
Officer, Acting
Treasurer, ang
Acting Chiaf
Finance Olficer R
Member Augusto G, (Gan 28 July 2018 & 5 83%
Member Mark Werner J, 28 July 2018 5] B 100%
Rasal
Independent | Solita V. 28 July 2018 [ & 100%
| Director Delantar
Independant Luis N, Yu, Jr. 29 July 2016 & 5 85%
 Dlrector .

(3)

of any executive? If yes, how many times?

Do Non-Executive Directors have a separate meeting during tha year without tha presence




Mone.

(4) Is the minimum quorum requirement for Board decisicns set at two-thirds of Board
members? Please explain.

No. As provided for in the Company's By-laws, a majority of the number of directors as fixed
in the Articles of Corporation shall constitute = quorum for the transaction of corporate
business, and every decision of at least @ majority of the dircctors present al a mesting at
which there is 2 quorum shall be valid as 3 corporate act, except for the elaction of officers
which shall require the vote of 5 majority of all the members of the Board.

(5) Accass to Information

(a) How many days in advance are Boarg papers® for Board of Directors’ mestings
provided to the Board?

Al least two (2) days in advance.

(b} Do Board members have independent access to anzagement and the
Corporate Secretary?

Yes, Board members have independent access to Management and the Corporate
Secretary.

{e) State the policy of the role of the Company Secrefary. Does such role include
assisting the Chairman in preparing tha beard agenda, facilitating training of
directors, keeping dirsctors updated regarding any relevant statutory and
reguiatory changes, ete.?

The Coempany Secretary's roles and responsibllities are defined in the Company's By-
Laws zind RMCG and Include assisting the Chairman in preparing the Board agenda,
facilitating training of directors, and keeping directors updated regarding any relavant
statutory and regulatory changes

(d) Is the Company Seeretary trained in legal, accountancy, or company secretarial
practices? Please explain should the answer be in the negative.

Yes. Ay, Cristing S. Palma Gil-Femandez, the Corporate Secretary, Is trained in
legal and company secrstarial services,

{e) Committes Frocedures
(X ) Yes . { 1 No
Committee Details of the Procedures
Execulive The Board Committees shall have full
Audit acrass o management, personnel, and
Nemination records for the purpose of performance
Remuneration cftheir dulles and responsibliities.

(6) External Advice

Indicate whether or not a procedure exists whereby Directors can receive exiernal advice and,
if 50, provide details'

| Frocedures | Details

* Boara papers consisi of sumplete and adequate Informatian abaut (he matters t¢ be taken in the Board meeting. Information
Incluces the background or sxplanation gn matters brought before the Board, disclosures, hudgsts. forecasts and intermal
financial documents.



(7)

D.
(1)

(2)

The Directare may obtain external legal | The Directors shell be provided with
counsel orindependant professianal sufficient resources by the Company to

advice if they sensidsr it | discharge their duties,
fecessary in ihe performance of thelr
duties.

Changels in Existing Policles

Indicate, if applicable, any changs/s introduced by the Board of Directors (during its most recent

tarm) on existing policies that may have an effect on the business of the Company and the
reason's fur the change:

No changes were [ntroduced by the Board of Directors (during its most recent term) on
existing policies thal may have an effect on the business of the Company.

Exisling Policies | Changes Reason
MIA 1 N/A N/A

REMUMERATION MATTERS
Remuneration Process

Disclose lhe process used for determining the remuneration of the CEO and the four {4) most
highly compensated management officers:

Existing Policies Changes Reason

(1) Fixed remuneration N/A N/A
(2} Variable rémuneration NAA N/A
(3} Perdiem allowance N/A N/A
(4) Bonus NIA N/A
(5) Stock Options and NIA N/A
Cther Financial

Instruments

(B) Cthers (Specify) NIA N/A

Remuneration Policy and Structure for Executive and Non-Executive Directors

Disciose the Company's palicy on remuneration and the structure of its compensation package.
Explain how the compensation of Executive and Non-Executive Directers is caleulated,

Remunseration Structure-of How Compensation
Palicy Compensation is Caleulated
Packages

Fxacutiva Directors Due to the minimal /A NIA
Non-Exzcutive aperations of the
Direclors Company, there

were no

compensation /

salaries for the year
2016 as the
Diractors | efficers
‘voluntarily declined
their respective
compensation /
salaries.

Do stockholders have the opportunity to approve the decision on total remuneration
(fees, allowances, benefits in-kind, and other emoluments) of Board of Directors?
Provide detziis for tha last three (2) years.

Ne. There ware no other fees, allowanses, benefits-in-kind, and other amollimeants given o
directors during the last three (3) fiscal years.




(3)

(4)

| Remuneration Scheme Date of Stockholders’ Approval

! N/A NIA
Aggregets Remuneration
Remuneration ltsm | Executive Dirsctors Non- Executive Independent
Directors Directors
(Other than
Independent
Directors)

(1) Fixsd remuneration N/A N/A NIA
(2) Variable NIA N/A N/
ramunaration
(3) Par thiem A N/A
allpwanes A
(4) Bonuses N/A /A, N/A
(5) Slock Options N/A NIA
andfor Gther Financial NIA
Instrumeants
(8) Others (Specify) NIA MN/A N/A

TOTAL
Remureration ltem | Executive Direstors Non- Executive Independent
Directors Directors
(Other than
Independent
Directors)

| (1) Advances ~ NA NIA N/A
(2) Credit Granled N/A NIA A
(3) Pension Planls N/A NiA NIA
Contributlons —

(4) Pension Plans, NIA NIA NiA
Obiigaticns Incurrad

(8) Lifz Insursncs NA NIA N/A
Premildm

{(6) Hospitalization NIA N/A
Plan A

(7) Car Plan MNIA N/A A

. (8] Others (Specify) INJA /A WA

| TOTAL

Stock Rights, Options, and Warrants

(a)

Board of Directors

Complete the following table on the members of the Company's Board of Directors
Wwho own or are entitled to stock rights, options or warrants over the Company's
shares

There are no stock warrants or options outstanding,

During the Annual Stockholders' Meeting held on 13 August 2007, the stockholders
owning of represenling at least two thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock
approved the stock option for the Company's deserving employees, officers, and
Board members to be derived from the Company's unissued authorizad capital stock
Up to the extent of ten percent (10%) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company,
subject for approval by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE),

The terms and canditicns goveming the stock aption plan still have to be datermined
and approved by the Board of Directors. The application for said stock option plan
nas yel {o be filed with the SEC and PSE.



(k)

Director's Name Number of Number of Number of Totzl % of
Direct Cption/ | Indirsct Option | Equivalent Capital
Rights | Rights / Shares Stock
War._ranﬁ; Warrants
NIA, N/A N/A NA N/A

Amendments of Incentive Programs

Indicate any smendments and discentinuation of any incentive programs introduced,
including the criteria used in the creation of the program. Disclose whether these are
subject lo approval during the Annual Stockholders Meeting:

There were no amendments and discontinuance of any Incentive programs
introduced, including the criteria used in the crealion of the program;

Incentive Program Amendments Date of Stockhoiders’
Approval
N/A /A, /A
(5) Remuneration of Management
Identify the five (5) members of management who are not at the same time Executive
Directors and Indicate the total remuneration recelved during the financial year.
Name of Gfficer | Position Total Remuneration
NI NIA
E. BOARD COMMITTEES
(1) Number of Mambers, Functions, and Responsibllities
Provide details on the number of members of each committee, its functions, key
respansibilities, and the power/authority delegated to it by the Board:
| Cemmitise No. of Members Committee Functions; Power
Executive fon- Independent Charter Key
Directar | Execcutive Director Recponsibiiities
(ED) Directer
{NED)
Awdit 2 1 Yes To assistthe Ine Committes
Board in the shall have full
perfermance of access o
ouersighl managemeant,
responsibility for | personnel, and
The financial records for the
reparting perermance of
Process, its duties and
system of internal | responsibliities.
canlrel, audil The Comimitiee
process and shall be
monitoring of provided with
campliance with sufficient
applicable laws, | resources by
ruies and the Company
regulations. to discharge its
dulies.
Nomination P 1 Yes To review and
| {(For svaluate the
fmalization) guaiifications of
zll persens
nominated to the ’
Board and
as5s83s the ‘
effectiveness of




the Board's
processes and
procedurss In the
replzcement of
. Dirsctors.
Remunaration 2 1 Yes To esizblish 2
(For farmal and
linalization) fransparam
procedure for
developing 2
policy  on
remuneration of
directorsand
officers and
ensure that their
compensation is
consistent with
the Company's
culture strategy
and e business.
(2) Commitiee Members
(a) Audit Committes
Office Name Date of No. of No, of % Length of
Appointment Meefings Meetings Service in
Held during Altended the
 the Year Commitiee
Chairperson Salita V 28 Julv 2018 1 1 100% 1 vear
{12} Delantar o ]
Member Miguel Angel | 29 .July 2015 1 : 1 100% 1 year
(ED) A, Camahorn B
Member i 29 Julv 2018 1 ¥ 100% 1 year
(ED) Rey, Jr -

Disclose the profile or qualilications of the Audlt Gommittee members,

Sclita V. Delantar concurrently serves as independent director on the Board of
Directors at LBC Express, Inc. and Exscutive Director at PMAF Human Resources
Management Foundation (since July 2013) Previously, Me Delantar served zs
independent director of Anchor Land Holdings, Inc_ (2007 to 2015}, Vice President at
PONTICELLI, Inc. (2006 to 2015), Vice-President, Human Resources Management &
Development Administration (November 1899 to September 2003), Consultant (July
1997 to July 1898), Vice-President, Finance & Administration (May 1988 to June
1986) ana various other positions at Honda Philippines, Inc. Ms. Delantar is a
Certified Public Accountant, fellow in Personal Managemeni and professionzl
business mediator From September 1998 to March 2007, she served as a Member
of the Professional Board of Accountancy, which administers licensure examinations
for CPAs. Ms. Delantar recelved her Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce with a
majar in Accounting from Far Eastern University and participated In 2 Bachelor of
Laws pregram at Ateneo de Manila University.

Migue! Angel A, Camahaort is & Director and the President of the Company. He is also
the President of LBC Express Corporate Solutions, Inc,, the subsidiary operating the
"Print and Mail" business of LBC. Express, Inc. Mr. Camahort concurrently serves on
the Board of Directors of the United Football League. Prior to joining the LBC Group.
Mr. Camahort was a Senior Vice President and the Chief Operating Officer of Aboitiz
Orne, Inc. from 2007 to 2002 and Aboitiz Transport System Corporation (ATSC)
Solutions Division from 2004 to 2007. He also served as a Senior Vice President and
the Chief Operating Officer of Abaitiz Transport System Corp. (formerly, William,
Gothong & Aboitiz, Inc) in the Freight Division from 1999 te 2003, prior to which he
was the President of Davao Integrated Stevedoring Services Corporation




()

(DIPSCCOR) from 1899 te 2003, Mr. Camahort holds & Bachelor of Sclsnce degres
in Business Administration and Economics from Notre Dame de Namur University
(formerly, the College of Netre Dame) in Califarnia, U.S.A,

Enrique V. Rey, Jr. Is a Direclor, |nvestors Relations Officer. Acting reasurer. and

Acting Chief Finance Officer of the Company. Hs is also a director and the Vice
President of the Corporate Audit and Compliance Division of LBC Express, Inc.
Currently, he is & member of the Institute of Intermnal Auditors of the Philippines. He
previously servad as a director for LBC Mundial from 2005 to 2008 2nd 2 director for
LBC Systems from 2008 to 2010, Pricr to joining the LBC Group, he served as the
AVP far Institutional Sales of Coca-Cola Phillppines from 2000 to 2003. Mr. Rey holds
& Bachelor of Sclence degree in Management from the Dz La Salle University,

Describe the Audit Committes's responsibility ralative to the External Auditor.

= Reaview and avaluate, at least arinually, the performance of the External Auditers
(inciuding lead pariner), their compliance with auditing standards, and make
recommendations to the Board each year with respect to the sppointment and
obsarvance of required rotation process of the External Auditor.

= Prior to the commencement of the audit discuss with the External Auditor the
proposed audit scope, approach, fees and sxpenses of the audit and ensure
proger coordination if more than one audit firm is involved in the audit activity, to
secure proper coverage and minimize duplication of efforts.

» Review the performance of the External Auditors, and sxercise final appraval on
ihe 2ppointment or discharge of the auditors. Review compliance with auditing
standards.

* Review and confirm the professional qualifications, compeience 2and
independence of the External Auditor by, among others, obtaining statements
from the auditors on relationships between such auditors and the Company.
ncluding non-audit services, and discuss the relationship with the auditors.

» Eveluate and determine any non-zudht work performed by the External Auditors,
including the fees, and ensure that such work will not confiict with the External
Auditor's duties as such or threaten its indepandence

= Provide oversight over the completensss and timeliness of cammunication with
External Auditors as to critical palicies, altarnative treatments, observations on
internal controls, sudit adjustments, independence, limitations on the audit work
set by the management, and other material issues that affect the audit and
financial reporting.

Nomination Commitise

Oifice Mams Date of Mo. of Mo. of % Length of
Appointment Mestings Meetings Service in
Held during Attended the
the Year Committee
Chairperson Solita V. 29 July 20186 1 ik 100% 1 vear
(D) Delantar
Member Migue| Ange! 28 July 2016 1 1 100% 1 year
(ED) A _Camahort
Member Enrigue V. 28 July 2016 i | a 100% 1 year
(ED) Rey, .Ir |
{c) Remuneration Committee
Offica Name Date of No. of No. of % Length of
Appuintment Meetings Meetings Service in




Held during Attended the
the Year Committee
Chairperson Salita V. 28 July 20186 i 1 100% 1 year
i) Delantar
Member Miguel Angel 25 July 2018  f 1 100% 1 y=ar
(ED) A, Camahort
Mamber Enrique V. 28 July 2018 1 1 100% 1 year
(ED) Rey, Jr,
(3) Changes in Committee Membars
Committes ] Name Reason
Audit N/A, N/A
Nomination B N/A NIA
Remuneration N/IA N/A

(4) Work Done and Issues Addressed

Describe the work done by sach committee and the significant issues addressed
during the year.

‘Commitiee Work Done Issues Addressed
Audit Trhe Audit Committee perfarmed its NIA
functions, duties, and
responsibilities as stated in the
Audit  Commitee Chnarter,

specifically in aseisting the Board in
the performance of its gversight
respansibility  for  the  financial
reporting  process, system  of
Internal control, audit process, and
menitoring  of compliance  with
appiicable laws, rules and
regulations. In addilion, lhe
Audit Commitige recommended
the reappointment of the esxernal
auditar,

Nomination The Nomination Committes NIA
performed  lts  funclions  in
zccordance with its duties and
responsibiiities as stated in the
Company's RMCG, specifically on
the feview snd evaluation of the

gualifications of the

Board nominees. ]
Remuneration The Compenssation znd A

Remuneration Commiltee

performed s funciions  in ;

accordance with its

duties and responsibillties as

stated in the  Company's

RMCG.

(8) Committee Program

Provide a list of programs that each committee plans to undertake to address relevant issues
In the impravemant of enforcement of effective governance for the comin_g year,

Committee Planned Programs lssues to be Addressed
Audit Cormduct an Anrual Self- MN/A
Assessment on Peromance for
the year 2016
Review lfie Company's RMCG for




necessary updates in light of SEC |
Memorandum Circular No. 18,
series of 2018 promulgating the
Revised Code of Corporate
Governan for -Lisled
Companies ({effective 1 January
2017)

(a) Company

Nomination N/A N/A
i Remuneratlan NIA, N/A
F. RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
(1) Disclose tha following:

(2) Overall risk management philosophy of the Company:
Risk management s a fundamental parl of the Company's strategy and effective
corporate govemance The Company adopts 2 philosophy aimed at maximizing
business opportunities and minimizing =dverse oulcomes, thereby enhancing
sharehalder value by effectively balancing risk and reward,

(b) A statement that the Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management system and commenting on the adequacy thereof:
The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management system and its
adequacy

(e) Period covered by the review:
Year2012

(d) How often the risk management system is reviewed and the Directors’ criteria
for assessing its effectiveness; and
The Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, and Management meet regularly to
identify key risk areas and performance indicators and monitor these factors with due
diligence and to assess and manage risks involved in the businesses of the
Company

(e) Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.
N/

(2) Risk Policy

Give a general description of the Company's risk management policy, setting out and
assessing the riskis coversd by the system (ranked according to priarity), along with the
obiective behind the policy for each kind of risk:

Risk Exposure Rigk Management Policy

Objective

Financial Risks
Econemic Risks

Regulatory Risks

i

Competilive Risks

The Board and the Audl
Committee are responsibie for
determining lhe Company's
risk profile. overseeing the
Company's risk,

management framewaork,
reviewing the Cempany's key
riska mitigation strategles, and
ensuring the effectiveness of

The identification and
management of risk reduce
the uncertainty associated
with the execution of the
Company's business
sirategies and allow the
Company. fa mayimize
opportunities that may arise,
thereby enhancing

shareholder value by




procedures,

Manzgement has the primary
respunsibility  of  identifying,
managing, and reperting the
key risks faced by Ihe
Company Managsment is
also responsible for ensuring
that the risk management
framework 15 effectivaly
implemented witrun all arsas
of the respsctive business
units.

The Company's Board of
Directors, the Audit
Committze, and Managemeant
meel ragularly to identify key
risk areas and performance
indicatars, and monitor these
factors with due diligence and
{0 @ssess and manage risks
involved in the businesses of
the Company,

sffectively balancing risk and
reward.

Risk Exposure
Financizl Risks

The main risks arising from
the Group's financial assels
and liabilities are foreign
exchange and Interest rate,
markel, liquidity, access lo

Bisk NManagement Policy

Objective

Risks are properly idéntified,
evalualed, and managed,
specliically in the areas of
menaging credt. market,
llgwidity, asccess lo financing
resources, and other risks.

To manzge and
exposure to such risks.

repon

fingncing  resources, and | Financial reports must comply
increased cradit risks, with  established  internal
pollcies and procedures,
perlinent  accounting  and
auditing standards, and other
regulatary requirements,
Economic Risks The Company's planning | To minimize the risk of aver-
and  management  review | Investrment,
Changes  In  domesls, | processes Involve the periodic
regiongl, and global | monitery  of budgets and

economic  acnditions  may
have & material adverse
effect on the demand for the
Company's business (mining
and real estate)

BXpENsEs,

Compstitive Risks

The real estate rerket in
the Philippines 1s highly
competitive as new players
enlet the market
and may limit market share.

The Company continues fo
Ilentify’ and assess  the
evalving customer needs and
prefefence.

Fegulatory Risks

The Group's operations
on mining and real estate

are subject to  extensive
governmeant regulations
which  may impagi or
limit the flexibility to
respond to market

condilions, competition, new

Regular participation in
discussions and

consultstions with the
respective regulatory

authonties and the industry Lo
propose changes and provide
feedvack of| regulatory
reforms and development

To be able o
compete and  strengthen
customer loyalty.
Te avoidany material
adverse effectt on the
Group's financial

performance and operations;




| technologies, or changes in
cost structures.

(b Minority Shareholders

Indicate the principzl risk of the exercise of controlling shareholders’ voling power,

Risk te Minority Sharehalders

High level of shareholder control

(3) Control System Setup

(a)

Company

Briefly describe the control systems set up o assess; manage, and control the main
issue/s faced by the Company’

Risk Exposure

Risk Management
(Monitoring and
Mezsurement Process)

Rigk Nianagement and
- Control
(Strusctures, Procadures,
Actions Taken)

Operational Risks

Once risks have Dbeen
identifisd, assessment must
be made on the potential
severity of negative impact
(such as damage or
logs) and the probability of
oGEUITENSE.

Rigk assessmenl  should
praduce such information for
the management 1o
understand that the primary
risks are easy to  undersiand
any that the risk
managemen! desisions may
be pnarntized.

The mest widely accepled
formula for risk quantification
1s; Rate (or probability)
of occurrence multiplied by

the Impact of the evenl
equals risk magnitude.
Rick Exposure Risk Management ~ Risk Management and
(Monitering and Control
Measurement Process) (Structures, Pracedures,
Actions Taken)
Financial, Economic, | Once  riske have heen | Sincethe impactofrisk I8

Compelilive, and Regulatory
Risks

Identified, assessment musl
be made on the potantial
severity of negative impact

(such as damage or

not easi to estimate as it is
often difficull 1o estimate the
potantial loss in the event  of

risk ocourrence, it is
loss) and the probability of | absolutely necessary 1o
occurrence. pericdically re-assess
risks and intensity/reiax
mitigation measuras.

as NEGassary,
Potential nsk  treatment

techninues include:

o Avoidance (eliminatg,
withdraw from or not
become invalved)

s Reduction (optimize —
mitigate)

= Sharing (transfer -
outsource arinsure)

e Retention (accept and
budgst)




(1)

(2)

(B)

Committee

Identify the commifttee or any other body of
down and supervising these control

corporate governance In charge of laying
mechanisms, and give details of its functions:

L Committes / Unit

Control Mechanism

| Audit Committes

Detaiis of Its Functions

Provids aversight
Management's activilies
fanaging cradit,

liguidily, operational,

over

in

markel,
legal,

Regular receipt frem
Management of Information
ort sk exposures and risk

and other
Company.

risks of the | management activities,

INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

Internal Control System

Disclose the foliowing information pertaining to the internal control system of the Company:
(a) Explain how the internal control system is defined for the Company:
Internal control system is defined in the Company's RMCG &s lhe framework under
which internal controls are developed and implemented (alone or in concert with other
policics or procedures) to manage and control a particular risk or business activity, or
comaination of risks ar business activities, to which the Company is exposed

(b) A statement that the Dirsctore have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system and whether they consider them effective and adequata:

The Directors have reviewed the sffectiveness of the interal control system and
considered them effective and adequate.

{c) Period covered by the review:
Year 2015

(d) How often intermal controls are reviewed and the Directors’ criteria for
assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system; and

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for raviewing internal controls, and ite
Internal control duties and responsibilities are defined In the Audit Committee Charter.
Ihe Directors' criteria for assessing the effectiveness of the internal contrel system
are stated in the Company's RMCG under the title Internal Control Responsibilities of
the Board. _

(e) Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.
MNIA

Internal Audit

{(2) Role, Scope, and Internal Audit Function

Give a general description of the role, scope of internal audit werk, and cther details
of the Internal audil function

Role Scope Indicate Whether Name of Chief Reporting
In-House or Internal Auditor/ Process
Qutsourced Auditing Firm
Internal Audit




— Function irc
The primary | In-House Jeric  Dagulran, in | Repors directly to
chjective of the an interim capacity | the Audit
interns| audit committee
function s 1o
provide reazsonable
S55Urance 1c
Management that;
Lr:;:[::‘;l a”dgs ;;ﬁ s  Financial and
ndepentent and ;pfz:ra:]i;%n Is
objective  assurance syt and
activity designed to reliable:
aod =~ vellefoand | | e
goree e ™ poceaes
< plans, laws,
operations, and heip I d
accomplish ite L \ati
objectives by e atmn? .
providing a systematic :rr;?h campied
and disciplined _
approach the | © Assets are
evaluation and 23;?:;3“:5’:5
improvement of
Ihuf effactiveness of angTRe,
nsk  management, | ° Resolrces
control, and are.  used
governance ecgénomamliy
8 an
HRORRES. efficiently:
and
¢ [LCstablished
program /
operating
goals and
objsctives
[ will be met
(b) Do the appointment andlor removal of the Internal Auditor or the
accounung/auditing firm or corporation to which the internal audit function ie
outsourced require the approval of the Audit Committee?
Yes, the appioval of the Audit committee is required.
{€) Discuss the Internal Auditor's reporting ralationship with the Audit Committes.
Does the Internal Auditor have direct and unfettered access to the Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee and to all records, properties, and
personnel? -
The Internal Auditor shall functionally report direcfly to the Audit Committee. The
Internal Auditor has direct and unfettered access to the Board of Direclers and the
Audit Commitiee and to all records, properties, and personnel.
{d) Resignation, Re-assignment, and Reassns

(e}

[ Name of Audit Staff

Disclosa any resignation/s or re-assignment of the internal audit staff (including those
employed by the third-party auditing firm) and the reason/s for them

Reason

N/A N/A

Progress against Plans, Issues, Findings, and Examination Trends




State fhe internal audit's progrese against plans, significant issues, significant
findings, and examination trends.

The Internal Auditer has just been engaged recently,

Pragress Against Plans . Currenfly conducting examination based on
) plans.

lssues® Documentation of issues, findings, and trends as

Findings’ a result of the examination will be prepared upon

Examination Trends completion of examination,

The ralationship among progress, plans, issues, and findings should be viewed as zn
internal control review cycle which invelves the following stap-by-step activities:

(1) Preparation of an audit pian incluslve of a timeline and milestones;

(2) Cenduct of examination based on the plan;

(3) Evaluation of the progress in the implernentation of the plan;

(4) Documentation of issues and findings as & result of the examination;

() Determination of the pervasive Issues and findings (“examination trends”) based
on single year result and/or year-to-year results;

(8) Conduct of the foregoing procedures on a regular basis

() Audil Control Policies and Procedures

Lisciosz all intarnal audit controls, policies, and procedures that have been
estabdllshed by the Company, and the result of an assessment as to whether the
eslablished controls, policies, and procedures have been implemented under the
column "Implementation."

Policizs and Procedurss Implementation
The intemnal sudit controls, policies, and | The Company's Intermal Auditor has Just been
procedures are stated in Ihe Company's | engaged recantly
Audit Committee Charter

(a) Mechanisms and Safeguards

State the mechanism est@blished by (he Company to safeguard the independence of
the auditors, financial analysts, investment banks, and rating agencies (e.q,
restrictions on traging in the Company's shares and imposition of internal approval
procedures for these lransactions, limitation on the non-audit services that an
Externz| Auditor may provide te the Company):

Anditors Financial Analysts Investment Banks | Rating Agencies
{internal and

External)

Evalusteand
deteming the
non-audit wark,  if
any, of the External
Auditer, and review
perodicslly e non-
audit fees paid to the
Extermel Auditor in
relation to their
significance 1o the
1otal annual
ineome of the
External Auditor and
o the Ceoempany's
overall  consultancy

“rigsues” are compliance matters that arise from adopting different Interpretations.
" "Findings" are thosa with cancreta hasis under the Company's policies and rules



SXpENSEs, The
committes shall
dizszllow any nen-
audil work that will
ronflict with his duties
a2s an Extemal
Auditor nr may pose a
threat to his
Indzpendence

The non-audit work, if
allowed, should  be
disclosed in
the Company's
annual reporl.

(h) Stale the officers (preferably the Chairman and the CEQ) who will have to attest
to the Company’s full compliance with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance,
Such confirmation must state that all directors, officers, and employees of the
Company have been given proper instruction on their respective duties as
mandated by the Code and that internal mechanisms are in place to ensure that
compliance.

I'he President/CEQ, together with the Compliance Officer, signed and attested to the
Company's full compliance with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance for the year
2012. The confirmation on compliance will include the statement that all directers,
officers. and empioyees of the Company have bean given praper instruction on their
respeclive dulies as mandated by the Code and that internal mechanisms are in
place to ensure that compliance.

Neote: The Company's RMCG is set fo be further revised and updated. ip light of SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 19. series of 2016, promulgaling the Revised Code of

Comporate Governance for Publicly-Listed Companigs (effective 1 January 2017).

Purstant to the said Memorandum Circular, the new manual on corporale
governance shall be submitted to the SEC vn or before 31 May 2017.

H. ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS

(1) Disclose the Company's policy and activities relative to the following:

Policy

“Customers wellare

praclice
Safaguarding craditors’ rights

Suppliericontractor selsction

Offer products and services
that mest clients' nseds and
gxpeciations in a fair and
professional manner.

i Activities
For the Company's Sta
Rosa Homes real estale

project, the housing units are
delivered 1o buyers in lhe
quality, time, and price
agreed upon,

Canduet business affairs with
suppliers, creditors, and ather
aniinterparties according to
cortracted Irading terms and
condilions in & fair and ethical
manner. Aveid any dishonest
actions (hat may infringe upon
the rights of counterparties as
established by law or through
mutual agreemania

Suppliers and contractors are
paid promptly

Environmenially
value-chain
Community interastion

friendly

Aim e achleve
consistently nigh
standards of behavior towards
sociely and the environment.
Adhera to the safely and
pollution control standards in
business operations.

The Company provided
employment for
construction  workers

SecLrily personnel,

and




(2)

(3)

(4)

(1)

Anli-corruption programs and
procedurss

Zero tolerance. The Company
is committed o the highest
level of cthicel behavior and
compliance  wilh laws and
regulations. The Company
expects that all employees
and husiness pariners will
conduct themselves in
accordance with the
Company's values, policies,
and procediuras and the laws
relating to  bribery and
corruption.

Ne dirgctor, 'officer, or
employes shall soligit  of
accept  gifts, paymenis,

loans. services, or any farm

of  compensation frem
suppliers, customers,
competitors, of others

seeking to do business witn
the Company

Does the Company have a separate corporate responsibility (CR) report/section ar

sustainability report/section?

N/A. The Company will comply and have a separate corporate sacial responsibility report.

Performance-enhancing mechanisms for employee participation

(2) What is the Company's pelicy for its employees’ safety, health, and welfare?
Y

The Company recognizes its duliss as an employer to ensure the health, safety, and

welfare of all its emplayees.

(k) Show data relating to health, safety, and welfare of its employees.

The Cempany has minimal operations at present.

(e) State the Company’s training and deveiopment programs for iis employees.

Show the data.

N/A

(d) State the Company's reward/compensation policy that accounts for the
perfarmance of the Company beyond short-term financial measures.

N/A,

What are the Company's procedures for handling complaints by employees
concerning illegal (including corruption) and unethical behavior? Explain how
employees are protected from retaliation.

The employees are sncouraged to freely communicate their concems about illegal or
unethical practices to the Board and their rights should not be compromised for doing so. Any
such report may be made anonymously. Confidentiality will be meintained, to the extent

permitted by law,

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

Ownership Structure
(a) Holding 5% Shareholding or More (as of 30 September 2018)
Sharsholder Number of Shares Percentage Beneficial Owner
LBC Developmenl 1,205,874 632 84.58% NAA
Corporation
~ Mame of Senior Number of Direct Number of Indirect % of Capital
WManagement Shares Shares / Through Stock
(Name of Record .




(2)

(3)

(4

{5)

(6)

| 1 Owner)

NA N/A N/A NIA

Dees the Annual Report disclose the following?

Key risks Yes

Curpurate objectives Yes

Finanrial parformance indicators Yes

Non-financial performance Indicators No

Dividend policy Yes

_ Details of whistle-blowing pollzy Ng
Biographical defails (al least age, qualifications. date of first

appointrment, relevant experience, and any other diractorships of Yes

listed companies) of directors/commissioners
Training and/or continuing education program attended by each
directer/commissioner
Number of board of directors/commissioners meetings held N
during the year 2
Attendance details of each director/commissioner in respect of

Ne

____meetihgs held No
Details af remuneration of the CEO and sach member of the Ye
beard of directors/commissioners ad

Should the Annual Report not disclose any of the above, please indicate the reason for
the non-disclosure.

The number of Board of Directors' meelings hela during the year and the attendance details
of each director were reported in the Ceriificate of Attendance of Directors submitted to the

SEC earlier, however, the Company will include all the required disclosures in this year's
Annual Report.

External Auditor's Fee

Name of Auditor Audit Fee Non-Audit Fee
SyCip Corres Velaye & Co. Php8,035,000.00% Meone

Medium of Communication

List down the modes of communication that the Company is using for disseminating
information.

= Mailing of Annual Report to stockholders
= Submiesion of disclosures/reports o the PSE and SEC

Date of Releass of Audited Financial Report

The Audited Financial Staternents for the fiscal year ended 21 December 2015 were released

on @ March 2018

Company Website

Does the Company have a website disclosing up-to-date information about the
following?

Business operations Yes
Financial statemenis/reparts (current and prior vears) Yes
Msterials provided in brisfings to analysts and madia Yes

* Represents Audit and Audi-Related Fees, which Include the audlt of annual financial statements, réview &f Interim financlal

statements, and services that are normally provided by the indegendent auditor in connection with statutory and regulatory
filings or pngageaments for 2015




(7)

()

Shargholding structure Tes

Group corporata structire NIA

Dewnloadable annual repart Yes

Notice of AGM and/or EGIV Yes

Company'’s constitution (company's by-laws, memorandum and arficlas of association) Yes

Should any of ths foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason thereto.

Disclosure of RPT

RPT | Relzfionship | Nature
1. The Group reguiarly makes advances te and from related parties to finance working
caital requirements and as part of their cost reimbursements arrangement. These
unsecured advances are non-interest bearing and payable on demand,

In_prior vears, lhe Group had autstanding advances of Php2Gs million to LEC

Development Bank. an entity under commer control of LBC Developmenl Corporation
In 2011, Management made an assessment of the recovarability of the said advanee and
concluded that these are not recoverable. Accordingly. the said ssset was writtensoff

r;om the books of the Group in Z011.

2. Inthe normal course of business, the Group fulfills the delivery of balikbayan boxes and

pefformas cerfzin administrative functions on behalf of ifs international affiliates. The
Group charges dellvary fees for the fulfiliment of these services.

3. LBC Developmenl Gorpuralion (Licensor), the ullimate parent company, granted o the
Group (Licensee) the full and exelusive right to use LBC Marks within the Phillppines for

2 continuing rovally rate of 2.6% tor 2016 annd 2015 of Licensee's gross revenues,

When RPTs are involved, what processes are in place to address them in the manner
that will safeguard the interest of the Company and. in particular, of its minority
shareholders and other stakehclders?

The Board, through the Audit Committee, shall review significant related party transactions
(RPTs) and recommend approval or ratification. The Company will be Uansparenl and
consistent in reporting RPTs and a summary of such transactions shall be included In the
Company's Annuzl Report. The Company shall promptly disclose to shareholaers all matarial
transactions with affiliates of the cantrolling shareholders, directors, or Management.

RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS
Right to Participate Effectively and Vote in Annual | Special Stockhoiders’ NMeetings

(a) QuoTtum

Give details on lhe quorum required to convene the Annual/Special Stockholders’
Meeting as set forth in its By-Laws.

Quorum Reguired Uniess otherwise provided by law, in all regular or special
meetings of stockholders, a majority of the outstanding capital
stock musl be presenl o represented in order to conslitule a
guorum. If no quorum is constituted, the meeting shall be
adiourned until the requisite amount of stodk shall be present.

(b) System Used to Approve Corporate Acts

Explain the syst@m used o approve corperate acts.

System Used; A majerity of the number of directors as fixed In the Arficies of

Description Corporation shall constitute 2 quorum for the fransaction of
camporate business, amd every decision of at least & majority of
the directors present at 2 meeating af which there Is 2 dquorum




(e)

(<)

T shall 52 valid as & corporale aci, sxcept for the elsclion of '
officers which shall require the vote of a majorlty of all the
members of the Board. '

Stockholders’ Rights

List any Slockholders® Rights concerning Annual/Spacial Stockholders' Meeting that
differ from those laid down in the Corporation Code

Corporation Code

Stockholders’ Rights under the

Stockholders' Rights Not in the
Corporation Code

Right to vote on all matters that require their cansent NIA
approval
| Pre-emptive nght fo all stock issuancss of the corporation N7A

(unless the same is denied in the artides of Incomporation)

_ Right to inspect comorate books and recards

N/A

_Right & information NJA

| Pight to dividends N/A

| Appraisal right NJA
Dividands

There are no restrictions en the payment of dividends.

©n 11 October 2018, the Board spproved the declaration of cash dividends in the
amount of Twenty-Tweo Centavos (Phpl.22) per one (1) outstanding common share

held by the stockhoelders out of the unrestricted end unapproprialed retained earmnings
of the Corporation as cf 30 September 2016.

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date

11 Dataher 2018 10 November 20156 28 November 2018

Stockholdars’ Participation

(f) State, if any, the measures adopted to promote stockholder
participation in the Annual/Specizal Stackhelders’ Meeting, including the
procedure on how stockholders and other parties interested may
communicate directly with the Chairman of the Board, individual
directors, or board committses. include in the discussion the steps the
Board has taken fo solicit and understand the views of the
stockholders, as well as procedures for putting forward proposals at

stockholders' meetings.

Measures Adopted

Az stated in the Company's RMCG, the
Buard should be tansparent 2nd fair in the
conduet of the annual and special
stockholders’ meelings of the Company.
I he stockholders should be encouraged 1o
personally altend such meetings. if they
cannot sftend, they should be spprised
ahead of time of thelr right to appoint 2
proxy. Subject lo the requirements of the
BEv-Laws  the exercise of that right shall
not be unduly restricted and any doubl
about the validity of a proxy should be
resolved in the stockholders faver,

B Communication Procedure
Malling of Naotice, together with Company's |
Annual Reporl te stockholders,

Submission of disclosures/reports to the PSE
and SEC.

(ii) State the Company policy of acking shareholders to actively participate
in corporaie decisicns regarding;

a. Amendments to the Company’s constitution



B, Autnorization of additional shares

¢. Trensfer of all or substantially all assets which, in effect, results in
the sale of the Company

-‘\ﬂ‘f_ corporate decisions for approval by the stockholders are included in the
Notice/Agenda for the Annual Stockholders' Mesting,

(iii) Does the _c-::-mpany observe a minimum of twenty-one (21) business
days for giving out of notices to the AGM where items to be resolved by
sharehciders are taken up?

No, notices, togather with the Company's Annual Report are mailed to
swokhoiders at least fifteen (15) trading days before the date of the Annual
Steckhelders” Meeting. However, the Company's disclosure on the actual
date, time, and place of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting is submitted to the
FSE and SEC more then 21 business days before the annual meeting.

-

a. Date of Sending Out Notices: 4 July 2016

b. Date of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting: 28 July 2016

(iv)  State, if =ny, questicns and answers during the Annual/Special
Stockholdars® Meeting.

NJA

(V) Result of Annual Stockholders' Meeting's Resolutions

Resolution

Approving

Annproval of the

Stockholders present at

Minutes of the Annual

Stockhelders'
Mecting bheld on 4

the  meeling, owhing
and controlling
1.205,974,632 shares

Sentemoer 2015

of stock or 84.58% aof
the total issue and
puisianding  commaon
charesg

Dissenting

N/A

_Abstaining |
NiA

Approval of the repori
of Management on
the financial

Stockholders present at
the mesting, owning
and controliing

performance
results of operations

; 74
of stock .or B4.58B% of

of the Company [or
the year 2015 and for-

the 1o issue  an
outstanding  commen

the first half of the

shaies

| vear 2016

Approval  of  ths
Annual  Reporl  sn

Audited Finangial

Stockholders present at
b i :

and contralling

Statements  for  the

1,205974632 shares

Fisecal Year Ended 31

of stock or B458% of

December 2015

\he fotal issue and
ouistanding  common
shares

N/A

of the Board of

the meeting, owning

Directors  and _ of

Management  since
the Last

1205874832  sharas
of siock or 84.58% of

and _ __centrolling

Stoakholders’
Mesting held on 4

the total issus  and
outstanding Gammon

Septemnber 2013
Election of Directors:

shares

(1) Miguel Angel | and

Stockhold resant a
the meeting, owning
contralling




(e)

(f)

(2) Be

1205874832 shares
of slock or 84.58% of

(3)

(5)

(6) Salita
Delaniar (I3}

(M Luis N Yu, Jr,
(iD)

the total |ssue =nd
outstanding  soimmon
shares

Reappointment of

Sycip, Gorres. Velayo
& Co. & the

Stockholders present al
the meefing, owning

and controliing

Company's  external

1,205974.632 shares

auditors _for Fiscal | of stock or §4.58% of

Year 2016, the total issue apd
olfstanding  common
shares

(vi)

Date of publishing of the result

recent AGM for all resolutions:

[he results of the Annual Stockheolders' Mesting were disclosed on the

of the votes taken during the most

foliowing dates: 28 July 2016 (PSE disciosure) and 3 August 2016 (SEC
disclosure).
Niedifications

Suate, if any, the modificetions made In the Annual/Special Stockholders'
Meeting regulations during the most recent year and the reason for such

modification;

There wers no modifications made in the Annual/Specizl Stockholders' Meeting
regulations during the most recent year

NIA

Modifications

Reason for Modification

INA

Stockholders' Attendance

(i) Details of Attendance in the Annual/Special Stockholders' Meetingis

Held

Type of
Meeting

Names of Roard
Members [
Officers Present

Date of
Meeting

Voting
Procedurs
(By Poll,
Show of
Hands, etc.)

% of

Shareholders
Attending in
Person

% of
Sharehoiders
in Proxy

Total % of |
Shareholders"
Attendance:

;nﬁua[

= Miguel Angel

29 July

By poll

A. Camahort:
= Enriguse V.
Rey, Jr;
= Rene E
Fuentes;
= Mark Werner
J. Rosal;
™ _S_MQIHEI V.
Delantar;

° GI’[Sﬁ[]E S,
Paima Gil-

Fernandez

2018

84.58%

84.58% |




Ma.__ Elnisz

[melda 5.
Singzon

(g)

(ii) Does the Company appoint an independent party (inspectors) to count
and/or validate the votes at the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting?

Yes, the Company appoints an independent party (independent tabulators)
o count andlor validate the votes at the Annual/Spesial Stockholders

Meeting.

{iii) Do the Company's common shares carry one vote for one share? If not,
disclose and give reasons for any divergence to this standard. Where
the Company has mere than one class of shares, describe the voting
rights attached to each class of shares.

Yes, the Company's commen shares carry one vote for one share.

Proxy Voting Policies

State the policies folowed by the Company regarding proxy voling In the
Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting,

Company’s Pelicies

Execulion and acceptance of proxies

Should the stocknolder be unable to attend the
mesting In person, the: stockholder may designate
an authorized represepfatve by submilting a
proxy, A prosty executed by a corporation shall be in
the form of @ board resolution duly certified by the
corporate secratan.

Notary

The Prosy need not be riotarized.

Submission of Proxy

Several Proxies

==

Proxies shall be submilled 16 and received at the
principal office of the Company within the given
deadline (as provided for in lhe Company's By-
Lawe}, which is stated in the Notice, sddressed

1o he attention of the Corporate Secretary.

Where he Company receives more than one (1)
proxy from the same stockholder and they are all
undated, the posimark dates shall be
considersd.

Validity of Proxy

A Proxy shall be valid only for the meeling for
which it is intended unless othsrwise indicated,
however, no proxy given shall have a validity of
more than five (5) years.

Proxies Execuled Abroad

Proxies executed abroad shall be  duly
authenticated by the Philippine Embassy of
Consular Qffice.

Invalidated Proxy

A Proxy shall not he invalidated on the ground
that the stockholder whe executed the same has
no signalure card on file with the Corporate
Secretary or transfer agent, unless it can be
shown that he/she had refused to suomit the
signature card despite written demand to the
effect duly received by the said stockhoider at
least ten (10) days hefore the Annual
Steckholders Meeung,

Validation of Proxy

in the vaidation of Proxies lhe Company's
Committee of Election Inspectors s designated
by the Boara of Directors which shall be
empawearad to pass on the validity of proxes. All
lssues relative to  proxies including  their




(1)

(i)

)]

(2)
(a)

valigation shall be resolved prior to the
canvassing of votes for purposes of determining
a quonim.

Violation of Proxy

A dispule thet may arise pernaining to the
validation of proxy shall be resolved by the SEC
upen formal camplzint fled by the aggrieved
party

Sanding of Notices

Policies

Procedure

Motices of Annual/Special Stocknholders'
Meeting, together with lhe Company's
Annudl Report, shall be distributed to
stockhaiders al least fifteen (15) trading
days before the date of lhe Annual
Stockholders' Meeting.

The Notices are mailed to steckholders and
pubiished once in two (2) newspapers of general
circulation In the Philippines.

Definitive Information Statement and Management Report

Number of Stockholders entitled to
receive Definitive Information
Statements and Management Report
and Other Materials

Date of Actual Distribution of
Definitive Information Statement
and Management Repert and Other
Materials held by market
_participantsfcertain beneficial owners

486

4 July 2018

Cats of Actual Distribution of
Definitive Infermation Statement
and tfianagement Report and Other
Materiais held by steckholders

4 Julv 2016

State whether CD format or hard copies
were distributed

It yes, indicate whether requesting
stockholders were provided hard
copies

Hard eonies wera distribited

NIA

Does the Notice of AnnualiSpecial Stockholders' Meeting include the following:

Each resolution 1o be taken up deals with only one item Yes
Profiles of directors (at least age, qualification, date of firs! appointment,

experience, and directorships in other listed companies) nominated for Yes
electionfre-glection _

The auditors to be appointed or re-appointed Yes
An explanation of the dividend policy. if any dividend is fo be declared /A
The amaunt pavable for final dividends NIA
Documents required far praxy vote Yes

Shouid any of the feregoing information be not disclosed. please indicate the reason

thersto.

Treatment of Minority Stockholders

Stale the Company's policies with respect to the treatment of minority

stockhalders.

Policigs

Implementation

The Company's Board of Directors shall
gnsure the equitable treatmeant of minarity
stockhalders

As sialed in the Company's RMCG, the minomty
sharehplders shall be granted the right to
propose the holding of a meeting, and the right
lo propose items in the agenda of the meeting.
provided the items are for legitimate business




(1)

(2)

(3)

purposes,

The minority shareholders shall have accsss to
gny and all Informaiien reiating to. matters for
which the management is accountable, and to
these releting to matiers for which the
management shall include sueh information and,
If not included, then the minority shareholders
shall be allowed to propose to incliude such
matiers in the agenda of stockholders' meeting,
being  within  the definion of ‘“legitimate
purposes

(o) Do minority stockholders have a right te nominate candidates for Board of
Directors?

Yes, minority stockholders have 2 right to nominate candidates for Board of Directors,

INVESTOR RELATICNS PROGRAW]

Discuss the Company’s external and internal communications policies and how
frequently they are reviewed. Disclose who reviews and approves major company

announcements. ldentify the committes with this responsibility, IT It has been assigned
to a committee.

As provided for in the Company's RMCG, the Board of Directors shall establish and maintain
an Investor relations program that will keep the stockholders informed of Important

developments in the Company. The CEQ shall exercise oversight responsibility over this
program.

Describe the Company’s invesior relations pregram inciuding s sommunications
strategy to promote effective communication with its stockholders, other
Stakeholdars, and the public in general. Disclose the contact detalls (e.g. telephone,
fax, and e-mail) of the officer responsible for investor reiations.

Details
(1) Chjectives 7o keep stockholders informed of
Imperiant develepments in the Company,
le bulld Investors’ confidence in
the Company;and to  develop
and implement 3

communication pragram to effectively
communicate the Company's long-term

- strategic vision,

{2} Principles The investor relations program and its
implementation is essential to attract and
retain investors.

(3) Modes of Communication Telephone, fax, or e-mail

(4 Investors Relations Otficer Frriqua V. Rey, Jr,

What are the Company’s rules and procedures geverning the acquisition of corporate

control in the capital markets, and exlraordinary transactions such as mergers and
sales of substantial portions of corporate assets?

The Company shall be guided by the provisions of the Corporation Code and other pertinent
laws and regulations.

Name of the independent party the Board of Directors of the Company appeinted to
evaluate the fairness of the transaction price.

N/A



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

Discuss any initistive undartaken or proposed to be undertaken by the Company.

Initiative

Beneficiary

Te develop more real estafe projects in
order to offer housing units at affordable
prices gnd at the same time provide more
jabslemployment and  business 1o

Customers, workers, suppliers, and
contractors

suppliers and contractors.

BOARD, DIRECTOR, CONMMITTEE, AND CED APPRAISAL

Disclose the process followed and criteria used in assessing the annual performance of the
Board and its committees, individual director, and the GEQ/President.

For the Company’s compliance.

The Company has no formal process yet in assessing the annual performance of the Beard
and its committees, individual director, and the CEQ/President.

The Audit Committee performs an annual seif-2ssessment of performance as provided for in
SEC Memorandum Circular No. 4 Series of 2012.

Process Criteria

| Board of Directors

Soard Commillees

Individual Directars

CEO/President

INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANGTIONS

Discuss the internal policies on sanctions imposed for any viclation or breach of the corporate

governance manual invelving directurs, officers,

management, and employees

Viclations

Sanctions

To striclly observe and implement the provisions of
the Company's RMCG, penalties shall be imposad,
after nolice end hearing, on the Company's
directors, officers, staff, subsidiaries and affiliates,
and their respective directors, officsrs, and
staff in case of viclation of any of the provision of
the RMGG.

In case of first violation, the subject person
be reprimanded.

shall

Suspension from office shall be imposed in case
of second violation. The durafion of the
suspension shall depend on the gravity of the
violation.

For third viclation, the maximum penalty of
remeval from officc shell be imposed. The
vommission of & third violation of the RMCG by
any member of the Board of the Company or its
subsidiaries and affiliates shall be a sufficient
cause for removal from directorship.

The Compliance Officer shall be respansible for
determining violation/s through notice and hearing
and shail recommend to the Chairman of the
Beard the imposable penalty for such vielation, for
further review and approval of the Board,






